

# **Operations Plan to Minimize Waste of Natural Gas**

## MarkWest Energy West Texas Gas Company, LLC

Effective Date: Revision Date: August 23, 2021 March 31, 2025

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

CROSS REFERENCE TABLE1
1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Purpose2
1.2 Scope
1.3 Key Elements of Operations Plan2
2.0 PLAN ADMINISTRATION
2.1 Commitment to Environmental Stewardship3
2.2 Management Approval of Plan3
2.3 Location of Plan3
2.4 Plan Review [NMAC 19.15.28]3
3.0 SYSTEM OVERVIEW4
3.1 General Description4
3.2 System Operations Training4
4.0 ROUTINE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE5
4.1 Physical Pipeline Marking and Identification5
4.2 Right of Way Patrols, Leak Surveys5
4.3 Pipeline Integrity5
4.4 Pipeline Pigging5
4.5 Pipeline Maintenance Program6
4.6 Pressure Test Guidelines and Schedule7
5.0 CATHODIC PROTECTION, CORROSION CONTROL AND LIQUIDS MANAGEMENT9
5.1 Cathodic protection9
5.1.1 Coupon Monitoring Program10
5.1.2 Chemical treatments
5.2 Fluid Management
5.3 Tank Operations and Maintenance
5.3.2 Integrity Testing 11
6 0 PROCEDURES TO REDUCE RELEASES

i

## LIST OF FIGURES

- Figure 1: System Location Map
- Figure 2: System Details
- Figure 3: Compressor Station Process Flow Diagram
- Figure 4: Release Reporting Flow Chart

## LIST OF TABLES

- Table 1:OME Section Summary
- Table 2:CP Engineering & Operations Standards List
- Table 3:Compressor Station Air Permit Summary

## LIST OF APPENDICES

- Appendix A: Record of Reviews
- Appendix B: IMP Introduction
- Appendix C: MPLX Pressure Testing with Water
- Appendix D: Cathodic Protection Standards
- Appendix E: Emergency Action Plan

Waste Gas Minimization Operations Plan

## **CROSS REFERENCE TABLE**

Element	Description	Section
	General purpose overview of the gathering system	3.0
	High or low pressure	3.0
	PHMSA/NMPRC Regulated/Non-Regulated lines	3.0
System	Sweet or Sour Natural Gas	3.0
Overview	Above ground or buried lines	3.0
	Installation date of lines (By Decade)	3.0
	Construction Material	3.0
	Physical pipeline marking and identification	4.1
	Right of Way patrols, Leak surveys	4.2
	<ul> <li>Pipeline Integrity (non-exclusive list)         <ul> <li>Routine pipeline inspections</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	4.3
Routine Operations and	<ul> <li>Pipeline Pigging: schedule;</li> <li>Pigging types and applications</li> </ul>	4.4
Maintenance	<ul> <li>Pipeline maintenance program (non-exlcusive list)         <ul> <li>Depressurization procedures</li> <li>Cathodic protection/anode installation</li> <li>Pressure test and dewatering</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	4.5
	<ul> <li>Pressure test guidelines and schedule</li> </ul>	4.6
Cathodic Protection	<ul> <li>Cathodic protection         <ul> <li>Installation on new pipelines</li> <li>Installation or retrofit on existing pipelines</li> <li>Monitoring and testing program to ensure effective cathodic protection</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	5.1
Corrosion	Chemical treatments	5.1.2
Control and Liquids	<ul> <li>Fluid management – centralized vs. field dehydration</li> </ul>	5.2
Management	<ul> <li>Tank Operations and Maintenance associated with the gathering system. How are the tanks managed to reduce venting and overflow events (ie. Tanks related to pigging, dehydration, etc.)</li> </ul>	5.3
	<ul> <li>Procedures to reduce venting and flaring during maintenance, emergencies and malfunctions</li> </ul>	6.0
Procedures to Reduce	<ul> <li>Procedures for reporting scheduled maintenance and emergencies to upstream operators</li> </ul>	6.0
Releases	<ul> <li>Emergency response plan         <ul> <li>Source elimination</li> <li>Reporting to regulatory agencies</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	6.0

1

## **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

MPLX G&P is engaged in the gathering, processing, and transportation of natural gas. MarkWest is a wholly owned subsidiaries of MPLX G&P, a diversified, growth-oriented master limited partnership that was formed by Marathon Petroleum Company (MPC) to own, operate, develop and acquire midstream energy infrastructure assets.

In accordance with the New Mexico Governor's Executive Order 2019-003, the Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department (ENMRD) developed and finalized rules to prevent natural gas waste from new and existing sources, requiring oil and gas operators to capture 98 percent of their natural gas waste by the end of 2026. On March 25, 2021, the ENMRD Oil Conservation Division (OCD) formally adopted The Natural Gas Waste Rules provided within New Mexico Administrative Code (NMAC) Section 19.15.27 and 19.15.28, effective as of May 25, 2021.

## 1.1 Purpose

Pursuant to New Mexico Administrative Code (NMAC) Section 19.15.28.8(C)(1), natural gas gathering system operators must implement an operations plan, including operational and best management practices, to minimize the waste of natural gas. For a natural gas gathering system placed into service before or on May 25, 2021, operators must submit an operations plan (the "Plan") no later than August 23, 2021.

## 1.2 Scope

In accordance with NMAC 19.15.28.8(C)(1), this Plan has been developed and implemented to address the natural gas gathering system and associated equipment operated by MarkWest Energy West Texas Gas Company, LLC.

## **1.3 Key Elements of Operations Plan**

A non-exclusive list of practices is set forth in NMAC 19.15.28.8(C)(1), as follows:

- System Overview
- Routine Operations and Maintenance
- Cathodic Protection, Corrosion Control and Liquids Management
- Procedures to Reduce Releases
- Review and necessary update of the Plan

## 2.0 PLAN ADMINISTRATION

#### 2.1 Commitment to Environmental Stewardship

MPLX is fully committed to ensuring public safety and protecting the environment. This commitment is outlined in MPC-MPLX's Health, Environment, Safety and Security Policy (Policy #7001). This Policy is available to all employees and readily available upon request.

MPLX has committed to provide the manpower, equipment, and engineering required to prevent venting or flaring of natural gas from a natural gas gathering system that constitutes waste as defined in 19.15.2 NMAC and is prohibited.

#### 2.2 Management Approval of Plan

MPLX is committed to maximizing the gathering of natural gas by minimizing the waste of natural gas through venting and flaring. MPLX will take all reasonable actions to prevent and minimize leaks and releases of natural gas from its natural gas gathering system and will implement this Plan to minimize the waste of natural gas for each non-contiguous natural gas gathering system.

This Plan has the full approval of MPLX management.

The Operations Supervisor is the Designated Person Accountable for minimizing waste gas from the natural gas gathering system and has the authority to commit the necessary resources to implement this Plan.

Authorized Facility Representative (Operations Manager): Trent Peterson

Signature:	Aux P.	ett		
Title:		Operatior	ns Manager	
Date:	4/1/2025			

#### 2.3 Location of Plan

The original signed Plan will be maintained at MPLX's Carlsbad office located at 4109 Grandi Rd, Carlsbad, New Mexico. The Plan is maintained and managed by the MPLX Environmental Department, and copies of the Plan are readily available upon request. An electronic version of the Plan is also maintained in the MPLX network files.

## 2.4 Plan Review [NMAC 19.15.28]

MPLX will revise this Plan when any new pipeline is added during the calendar year or it changes its operations plan. The Plan must be reviewed at least once every year. A signed statement will be prepared by the person conducting the evaluation indicating a comprehensive review was completed and whether the Plan will be revised. Revisions made to the Plan as a result of this review will be completed and be implemented as soon as possible, but no later than March 31 of the year following the review.

A Record of Reviews is included in **Appendix A**.

## 3.0 SYSTEM OVERVIEW

Name of Operator:	MarkWest Energy West Texas Gas Company, LLC
OGRID:	329252
Owner:	MPLX
	1515 Arapahoe Street
	Denver, CO 80202
Designated Responsible Party:	EJ Rios, Compression Operations Supervisor
Telephone Number (Office):	575-266-2028
Telephone Number (Cell):	575-266-2028

## **3.1 General Description**

MPLX operates a natural gas gathering system comprised of approximately 267.97 miles of 4" - 20" gathering pipeline that are all located in class 1 area. All the pipelines are buried below ground. This system is located within Lea and Eddy County, New Mexico. A map showing the general location of the system station is presented in **Figure 1**.

The pipeline system moves sweet natural gas from exploration and production customers located within the Delaware Basin. The gathering system is currently comprised of three compressors stations and two launcher/receiver pigging sites. Ultimately the gas is delivered to two gas processing plants operating within Texas for further processing. Additional details about the system are presented in **Figure 2**.

## 3.2 System Operations Training

Each individual working on the MPLX pipeline system is accountable to prevent and minimize leaks and releases of natural gas from the natural gas gathering system, a responsibility communicated through training. MPLX personnel shall be trained annually in the regulatory requirements and elements of this Plan and instructed in the operation and maintenance of equipment to prevent and minimize leaks and releases of natural gas, applicable to their respective job duties. Training topics will include but not be limited to:

- On the job training, to include demonstration of successful completion of tasks
- Discussion of past events, leaks, or equipment failures and measures taken to minimize future occurrences;
- Existing and newly developed contingency procedures to be employed at the facility with in-house equipment and resources;
- Applicable regulations and coordination with other regulatory plans, as appropriate.

Records, such as sign-in sheets with meeting topics, are kept for at least three years to document the routine training programs conducted for affected personnel. Training records are also maintained electronically in the MPLX online training management system.

## 4.0 ROUTINE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

The following measures are implemented to minimize waste of natural gas during the handling, use, or transfer of natural gas throughout the gathering system.

## 4.1 Physical Pipeline Marking and Identification

In accordance 49 CFR Parts 192.707, MPLX adheres to the established Damage Prevention Program, which details pipeline right-of-way (ROW) and compressor stations marking requirements to include company contact information.

## 4.2 Right of Way Patrols, Leak Surveys

MPLX uses a variety of methods to patrol its natural gas gathering system (ie. Aerial, Vehicle, Foot, etc). Patrol is also used to identify leaks commonly due to external corrosion or couplings through visual indications, i.e., dead vegetation, or can be instrumented to detect natural gas. Patrol is also effective in identifying weather or outside force threats to the pipeline if the personnel are adequately trained, i.e., flooding, frost heave, indications of land movement, washouts or lightning strikes. Foot patrols are effective to identify needed pipeline marking additions or maintenance and ROW maintenance. MPLX maintains the ROW by keeping it unobstructed to reduce the risk of third-party damage and improve emergency response. This maintenance effort ensures it is stable and water drains appropriately reducing the risk of land movement impacting the pipeline. While there are currently no documented surveys on the Class 1 gathering pipelines, annual surveys are completed on FERC regulated pipelines.

## 4.3 Pipeline Integrity

MPLX is committed to implement and maintain an Integrity Management Program (IMP) compliant with federal and state regulations which provide a comprehensive process for managing pipeline integrity in pipeline segments and pipeline facilities that could affect high consequence areas (HCAs) to ensure public safety and the protection of the environment. MPLX's IMP ensures the integrity of gas transmission and hazardous liquid pipelines and pipeline facilities. The IMP provides the structure for continuous integration and improvement of all integrity efforts and strives to meet or exceed the requirements established compliant with federal and state regulation. The MPLX IMP overall objective is to ensure public safety and protecting the environment through continuously improving the integrity of pipelines and pipeline facilities which could affect high consequence areas. While currently none of the gathering lines within New Mexico are subject to the HCA requirements for the IMP, some aspects of the program are voluntarily applied. **Appendix B** includes the IMP Introduction that outlines all procedures included in the IMP and other MPLX documents that can be used as guidance for operating the system covered by this Plan.

When underground piping is exposed, it will be visually inspected for corrosion, leaks, and integrity of coating. Visual/mechanical inspection is typically performed per approved operation and maintenance procedures on valves and other equipment. Visual inspection is also used to verify the quality of girth welds and fabrication welds and to monitor for cold weather threats, i.e., frozen regulators.

## 4.4 Pipeline Pigging

The types of pigging and applications. Internal cleaning is used to remove liquids from pipeline to mitigate the risk of internal corrosion. The cleaning pigs can also be used to run batches of biocide

or inhibitor. An increased frequency of cleaning pigs can reduce the buildup of corrosive products such as water and solids and reduce the impact of internal corrosion.

Another purpose for pigging is to perform in-line inspection (ILI) to identify metal loss and deformations on the pipeline. Successive ILIs can be utilized to determine corrosion growth rates and increases in deformations caused by mechanical damage and land movement over time. Performing inspections on a reduced interval can be a preventative measure. Additionally, GPS/strain monitoring processes use GPS instrumentation on ILI tools over successive runs through a line to detect and quantify movement and calculate strain induced in the line by movement. Pipeline movement can be caused by seismic activity, earth movement from landslides and subsidence, cold weather or flooding.

Currently, the pigging application and schedule used for the gathering system within New Mexico is limited to routine cleaning pigs for clearing liquids.

## 4.5 Pipeline Maintenance Program

The system covered by this Plan is subject to regular informal visual inspection by Operators. Operators are asked to look for: 1) Signs of deterioration, damage, or leakage; 2) In-operable pressure and safety devices; 3) Corroded piping and valves; and 4) Damaged or deteriorating piping supports. Any deficiencies are immediately investigated, and corrective action is performed.

In accordance with PHMSA requirements, MPLX has developed an Operations Maintenance Emergency Plan (OME) used to operate the gas program (REG-STD-002 Gas Program). Procedures and practices established by the OME ensure consistent operating practices. **Table 1** summarizes sections of the OME that can be used as guidance for operating the system covered by this Plan.

OME Section No.	Description	Related Subsections
1.0	Introduction	
2.0	Part 191-Reporting	
3.0	Subpart A – General	
4.0	Subpart B - Materials	
5.0	Subpart C – Design Requirements	
6.0	Subpart D – Design of Pipeline Components	
7.0	Subpart E – Welding of Steel Pipe	
8.0	Subpart F – Joining of Materials Other Than by Welding	
9.0	Subpart G – General Construction Requirements	
10.0	Subpart I – Requirements for Corrosion Control	
11.0	Subpart J – Test Requirements	
12.0	Subpart K – Uprating	
13.0	Subpart L – Operations	
14.0	Emergency Plans	
15.0	Public Awareness	
16.0	Investigation of Failures	(16.12) MAOP Reconfirmatoni: Onshore Steel Transmission Pipeline (ROW Maintenance)
17.0	General Maintenance	
18.0	Qualification of Pipeline Personnel	
19.0	Gas Transmission Pipeline Integrity Management	
20.0	Identification of Changes	
Appendix A	Emergency Contact Tables	
Appendix B	Retention Table	
Appendix C	State Reporting Guidelines	Leak Grading Procedure

#### Table 1 – OME Section Summary

## 4.6 Pressure Test Guidelines and Schedule

MPLX's policy is to conduct pressure tests as an integrity re-assessment in covered segments where pressure tests have been determined to be the integrity re-assessment method or one of the integrity re-assessment methods used to assess the identified threats to the covered segment. Baseline integrity assessments performed at construction are conducted in accordance with MPLX Pressure Testing with Water (to REG-STD-010- Liquid Construction Manual, Section 3-Pressure Testing with Water) which satisfy requirements of 49 CFR part 192 Subpart J for gas pipelines. A copy of this standard is provided in **Appendix C**.

## 5.0 CATHODIC PROTECTION, CORROSION CONTROL AND LIQUIDS MANAGEMENT

MPLX's policy is to prioritize and schedule covered segments for integrity assessment according to the threat identification and risk assessment results, to select the appropriate integrity assessment method for each covered segment and schedule reassessments for each covered segment in accordance with 49 CFR Parts 192.

Inspection of pipe is required by 49 CFR Parts 192.459 for external corrosion and CFR 49 Parts 192.475(b) for internal corrosion. Expanding inspection requirements can also identify previous third party damage and address stress corrosion cracking (SCC), manufacturing or construction defects by requiring appropriate NDE, specifically in high risk areas for previously identified threats, maintenance of couplings and mitigation of wrinkle bends or buckles as required by ASME B31.8S-2010 A-5.5. Examples include screening for SCC using MPI or eddy current technology, or cracking using phased array or utilizing shear or guided wave for the inspection of pipe supports, casings, and fittings or using computed x-ray to examine elbows or drains for internal corrosion.

## 5.1 Cathodic protection

MPLX's policy is to conduct external corrosion direct assessment (ECDA) as an integrity assessment in covered segments where ECDA has been determined to be the selected method or one of the selected integrity assessment methods used to assess the identified threats to the covered segment.

MPLX's policy is to conduct stress corrosion cracking direct assessment (SCCDA) as an integrity assessment in covered segments where SCCDA has been determined to be the selected method or one of the selected integrity assessment methods used to assess the identified threats to the covered segment.

MPLX's policy is to conduct internal corrosion direct assessment (ICDA) on covered segments transporting normally dry gas as an integrity assessment where ICDA has been determined to be the selected method or one of the selected integrity assessment methods used to assess the identified threats to the covered segment. **Table 2** summarizes standards used as guidance for operating the system covered by this Plan and copies of such are provided in **Appendix D**.

Standard No.	Description	Form No.
ENG-STD-0004	Cathodic Protection for Buried and Submerged Metallic Structures	
ENG-STD-0005	Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms	
ENG-STD-0006	Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities Standard	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01 ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02 ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03 ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04
ENG-STD-0007	Internal Tank Lining Standard	
ENG-STD-0008	Coating of Underground Pipe Standard	
ENG-STD-0009	Coating of Transition Areas Standard	
ENG-STD-0010	Plant Applied Coating Specification	
OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard	OPS-STD-0017-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0018	Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0018-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0019	Internal Corrosion Monitoring and Mitigation	
OPS-STD-0020	Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	OPS-STD-0020-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0021	Cathodic Protection Test Point Monitoring and Maintenance	
OPS-STD-0022	Cathodic Protection Rectifier and Interference Bond Monitoring and Maintenance	
OPS-STD-0023	Electrical Isolation Monitoring and Maintenance	OPS-STD-0023-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0024	DC Interference Monitoring and Maintenance	OPS-STD-0024-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0025	AC Interference Monitoring and Maintenance	
OPS-STD-0026	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01
OPS-STD-0027	External Corrosion Direct Assessment	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06 OPS-STD-0027-FOR-07
OPS-STD-0028	Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01 OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02 OPS-STD-0028-FOR-03 OPS-STD-0028-FOR-04
OPS-STD-0072	Surveys	OPS-STD-0072-FOR01

#### Table 2 – Engineering & Operations Standards List

#### 5.1.1 Coupon Monitoring Program

A coupon monitoring program may be internal or external. Coupons are placed external to the pipeline to determine IR free readings, evaluate AC interference, and determine native corrosion rates. Internal corrosion coupons are used to evaluate internal corrosion rates and determine effectiveness of corrosion inhibitor or biocide if used. (See OPS-STD-0021 – External and OPS-STD-0019 – Internal in Appendix D)

#### 5.1.2 Chemical treatments

A biocide and/or inhibitor injection program can mitigate the effects of microbiologically or chemically induced internal corrosion. This is often (but not always) combined with a coupon monitoring program to evaluate the effectiveness of the biocide or corrosion inhibitor. Coupon

Permian Natural Gas Gathering System

monitoring may be utilized to determine if biocide or corrosion inhibitor injection is necessary based on corrosion rates. (See OPS-STD-0019 in Appendix D)

## 5.2 Fluid Management

Waste Gas Minimization Operations Plan

There are currently no dehydration processes operating as part of the New Mexico gathering system, therefore no fluid management applies.

## 5.3 Tank Operations and Maintenance

Above ground atmospheric storage tanks are operating within compressor stations located along the system. A generic compressor station process flow diagram is included in **Figure 3**. As indicated by the diagram, hydrocarbon liquids (ie. Condensate) collected throughout the process are stored in atmospheric storage tanks. Emissions from the storage tanks are routed to one or more of the following control devices: an enclosed combustion device with a destruction efficiency of 95%; or electric vapor recovery unit with similar or better control efficiency. In addition, the storage tanks are surrounded by secondary containment sufficiently impervious to contain any liquid overflows. Secondary containment is sized to hold capacity of largest container and sufficient freeboard for precipitation.

#### 5.3.1 Inspections

Operators conduct weekly audio, visual and olfactory (AVO) inspections at each compressor station. Visual inspections of storage tanks, secondary containment, tank piping and valves, and loading and unloading areas, are also subject to more thorough inspections on a monthly basis. At a minimum, the following tank components and associated secondary containment and piping are visually inspected:

- Tank foundation and external supports
- Site gauges and level control indicators
- Overall tank condition
- Overfill protection devices
- Condition of secondary containment (presence of water) and piping
- Discharge valves
- Truck unloading areas
- Drain and load lines
- Spill Kits
- Spill containment boxes (getty boxes) for presence of oil

Weekly AVOs and monthly inspection records are maintained electronically on the MPLX network files.

#### 5.3.2 Integrity Testing

Storage tanks are risk ranked according to a formula developed by MPLX. The external and/or internal tank integrity testing program is maintained and managed by MPLX Maintenance, Reliability and Integrity Department, and copies of associated inspection or maintenance records are readily available upon request.

Tank inspections follow standards that require bulk storage containers to be inspected on a regular schedule to assess integrity. The method and schedule of integrity testing and required qualifications for persons performing the inspections have been determined based on industry standards based on container size, configuration, and design.

## 6.0 PROCEDURES TO REDUCE RELEASES

MPLX has developed Leak Grading procedures to manage leaks (*Reference OME, Appendix C*). In addition, MPLX has obtained authorizations from the New Mexico Department of Environment (NMED) Air Quality Bureau to operate each compressor station in accordance with the applicable federal and state regulations. Specifically, each compressor station is currently permitted under NMED's General Construction Permit for oil and gas production, transmission, and processing facilities (GCP-O&G). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of GCP-O&G, all sources of air emissions are to be operated in a manner consistent with good air pollutant control practices for minimizing emissions, to include startup, shutdown and maintenance operations. Information related to the permits is included in **Table 3** provided below.

Table 3 – Co	mpressor	<b>Station Air</b>	Permit	Summary

Company Name	Facility Name	NMED Al#	NMED Permit#
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Bell Lake North Compressor Station	350252029	9121
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Mid Bell Lake Compression Station	350252128	9372
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Bell Lake South Compressor Station	350251634	8253
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Red Hills Compressor Station	350251700	8436
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Dagger Lake Treating Facility	350252519	10187
MarkWest Tornado Gas Plant, LLC	Red Tanks Compressor Station	350252853	12492

In the event of an emergency, employees shall follow procedures outlined in the company Emergency Action Plan (EAP) established in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.120 "Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response", 29 CFR 1910.39 "Fire Prevention Plan" and 29 CFR 1910.38 "Emergency Action Plan". Section 3.0 of the EAP contains a list of telephone numbers that are to be used to contact the appropriate personnel or agencies in the event of an emergency. A copy of the EAP is provided in **Appendix E**.

In accordance with the EAP, MPLX personnel shall follow the in-house reporting mechanism upon discovery of a release. Management, in consultation with the local environmental professional, will use this reporting mechanism to determine when outside agencies are notified of a release. A reporting procedure flow chart showing the agencies to report to during a release event in the state of New Mexico is presented in **Figure 4**.

#### Notification to Affected Upstream Operators

If operating conditions should impact an upstream operator, the Operations Supervisor is the Designated Person Accountable to make notification to the appropriate upstream point of contact and record of such notification is maintained

## APPENDIX A RECORD OF REVIEW

## **APPENDIX A**

## **RECORD OF REVIEW**

Date	Reviewer Name (Print)	Reviewer Signature	Remarks	Amend Require	lment d (Y/N)
3-31-2022	Jessica O'Brien	Jessica O'Brien	Update to contacts and system map, incorporated additional assets	<b>∀</b> Yes	□ No
3-31-2025	Michael Tyler	Mielud In	Update to contacts and system map, incorporated additional assets	⊠ Yes	□ No
				□ Yes	□ No
				□ Yes	□ No
				□ Yes	□ No

## APPENDIX B IMP INTRODUCTION



Rev 3.4

#### PROCEDURE TO INTRODUCE IMP

#### 1.0 **COMPANY DESCRIPTION**

1.1. MPLX G&P is engaged in the gathering, processing, and transportation of natural gas, the transportation, fractionation, storage and marketing of NGLs, and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. MarkWest, Andeavor Logistics and Southwest Gathering are wholly owned subsidiaries of MPLX G&P, a diversified, growth-oriented master limited partnership that was formed by Marathon Petroleum Company (MPC) to own, operate, develop and acquire midstream energy infrastructure assets.

#### 2.0 **IMP COMMITMENT**

2.1. MPLX is fully committed to ensuring public safety and protecting the environment. MPLX IMP ensures the integrity of gas transmission and hazardous liquid pipelines. The IMP provides the structure for continuous integration and improvement of all integrity efforts and strives to meet or exceed the requirements established compliant with federal and state regulation.

#### 3.0 IMP GOALS

- 3.1. The MPLX IMP overall objective is to ensure public safety and protecting the environment through continuously improving the integrity of pipelines which could affect high consequence areas.
- 3.2. Additional sections of this IMP include procedures used to assess and repair gas DOT regulated transmission pipelines greater than 30% SMYS that have been determined to be outside of an HCA and are in a Class 3 or are in a Moderate Consequence Area.<sup>3</sup> Additional sections also include procedures used to assess liquid DOT regulated transmission pipelines that do not affect HCA's.<sup>4</sup> Those applicable procedures are the following:
  - 3.2.1. HCA
  - 3.2.2. Threat Identification and Risk Analysis
  - 3.2.3. Condition Remediation
  - 3.2.4. Integrity Assessment

#### 4.0 **COMPANY SYSTEM DESCRIPTION**

4.1. MarkWest, Andeavor Logistics, and Southwest Gathering are wholly owned subsidiaries of MPLX G&P, and are engaged in the gathering, processing, and transportation of natural gas; the transportation, fractionation, storage and marketing of NGLs; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. The pipelines include intrastate, interstate and FERC regulated. For specific information

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> 49 CFR 192.710, 711, 712, 713, 714

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> 49 CFR 195.416



**IMP** Introduction

regarding the pipelines in the Integrity Management Plan, and pipelines subject to the 10-year assessment requirements of 192.710 and 195.416 refer to the *IMP Covered Segment Summary*. Integrity management of pipeline facilities is covered by MPLX G&P *Facility Integrity Management Plan* standard.

#### 5.0 COMPANY PROGRAMS AND PROCEDURES

- 5.1. The following includes the operations, maintenance and emergency (OME) procedures, programs and forms that are referenced in the IMP generically as MPLX.
  - 5.1.1. MPLX Operations, Maintenance and Emergencies Manual
- 5.2. The following are the MPLX programs that are referenced in the IMP.
  - 5.2.1. MPLX Public Awareness Program
  - 5.2.2. MPLX Damage Prevention Program
  - 5.2.3. MPLX Operator Qualification Program
  - 5.2.4. MPLX Control Room Management
  - 5.2.5. MPLX Pipeline Management of Change

## 6.0 **REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS The following federal/state regulations, standards and other source documents are used to develop and maintain the IMP:**

- 6.1.1. 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 192 Subpart O, August 25, 2017, including Gas IMP Frequently asked questions (FAQs), February 22, 2016, and Gas IMP inspection protocols, May 2015,
- 6.1.2. 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 195.452 and Appendix C to Part 195 – Guidance for Implementation of an Integrity Management Program, August 25, 2017, including Liquid IMP Frequently asked questions (FAQs), August 31, 2016, and Liquid IMP inspection protocols, May 2015,
- 6.1.3. Applicable State Regulatory Agencies which may supersede federal regulations; Oklahoma Corporation Commission or OCC (OAR Title 165. Chapter 20.), Railroad Commission of Texas or TRRC (TAC Title 16. Part 1. Chapter 8. Subchapter B. Rule 8.101), Public Utilities Commission of Ohio or PUCO (OAC Chapter 4901:1-16), Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or PUC), New Mexico Oil Conservation Division (19.15.28.8 (C)(1) NMAC) and Public Service Commission of West Virginia or WVPSC (WVC Chapter 24B.). At this time, only the TRRC regulations address Integrity Management by mandating all Gas Transmission and Hazardous Liquid pipelines and pipeline facilities with an MAOP/MOP of 100 psig or greater are included in an Integrity Management Plan if prescriptive based, and New Mexico state statute 19.15.28 NMAC which requires procedures



include integrity management of gas gathering pipelines as necessary to prevent and minimize leaks and releases of natural gas.

- 6.1.4. ANSI/ASNT ILI-PQ-2005(2010), "In-line Inspection Personnel Qualification and Certification" reapproved October 11, 2010, as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 195.3 (ANSI/ASNT ILI-PQ),
- 6.1.5. API 1160, *Managing System Integrity for Hazardous Liquids Pipelines*, 3<sup>rd</sup> edition February 2019, which is not incorporated by reference and used as guidance (API 1160),
- 6.1.6. API 1163, *In-Line Inspection Systems Qualification* Second edition, April 2013, Reaffirmed August 2018 as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 195.3 and 49 CFR 192.7 (API 1163),
- 6.1.7. API 1176, Recommended Practice for Assessment and Management of Cracking in Pipelines 1<sup>st</sup> edition, June 2016, which is not incorporated by reference and used as guidance (API 1176),
- 6.1.8. API 1178, Integrity Data Management and Integration, 1<sup>st</sup> edition, November 2017 (API Bulletin 1178)
- 6.1.9. API 1183, Assessment and Management of Pipeline Dents 1<sup>st</sup> edition, November 2020, which is not incorporated by reference and used as guidance,
- 6.1.10. ASME/ANSI B31G-1991 (Reaffirmed, 2004), *Manual for Determining the Remaining Strength of Corroded Pipelines* as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 192.7 and 195.3 (ASME B31G),
- 6.1.11. ASME/ANSI B31.4-2006 Pipeline Transportation Systems for Liquid Hydrocarbons and Other Liquids as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 195.3 (ASME B31.4),
- 6.1.12. ASME/ANSI B31.8S-2004, Supplement to B31.8 on Managing System Integrity of Gas Pipelines as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 192.7 (ASME B31.8S),
- 6.1.13. NACE SP0102-2010, *Standard Practice, Inline Inspection of Pipelines* as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 195.3 and 49 CFR 192.7 (NACE SP0102),
- 6.1.14. NACE SP0206-2006, Standard Practice, Internal Corrosion Direct Assessment Methodology for Pipelines Carrying Normally Dry Natural Gas which is not incorporated by reference and used as guidance (NACE SP0206),
- 6.1.15. NACE SP0204-2008, Standard Practice, Stress Corrosion Cracking (SCC) Direct Assessment Methodology as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 195.3 (NACE SP0204),
- 6.1.16. ANSI/NACE SP0502-2010, Standard Practice, Pipeline External Corrosion Direct Assessment Methodology as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 192.7 and 195.3 (NACE SP0502),



**IMP Introduction** 

**IMP 01** 

- 6.1.17. GRI 02-0057-2002 Internal Corrosion Direct Assessment of Gas Transmission Pipelines Methodology as incorporated by reference per 49 CFR 192.7 (GRI 02-0057).
- 6.1.18. AGA, Pipeline Research Committee Project, PR 3 -805, "A Modified Criterion for Evaluating the Remaining Strength of Corroded Pipe," (December 22, 1989), (PRCI PR - 3 - 805 (R - STRENG))
- 6.1.19. American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) E 1049-85, Standard Practices for Cycle Counting in Fatigue Analysis, Reapproved in 2011
- 6.1.20. Baker, M., Office of Pipeline Safety (OPS) TTO-05, Low Frequency ERW and Lap Welded Longitudinal Seam Evaluation. USDOT Research and Special Programs Administration, April 2004.
- 6.1.21. Baker Jr., M., Stress Corrosion Cracking Study, Prepared for the US Department of Transportation Office of Pipeline Safety, September 2004
- 6.1.22. Beavers, J. A. et al., Methodology for Ranking SCC Susceptibility of Pipeline Segments Based on the Pressure Cycle History, NACE, Corrosion 2007 Conference and Expo, March 2007
- 6.1.23. NACE, External Stress Corrosion Cracking of Underground Pipelines, NACE Technical Committee Report, 2003
- 6.1.24. J. F. Kiefner and K. M. Kolovich, Models for Predicting Failure Stress Levels for Defects Affecting ERW and Flash-Welded Seams, Final Report, Kiefner and Associates, Worthington (Ohio), January 3, 2013

#### 7.0 **IMP PROCESS**

- 7.1. The IMP consists of the following main program elements:
  - 7.1.1. IMP Introduction per IMP 01 IMP Introduction
  - 7.1.2. HCA Identification per IMP 02 HCA Identification
  - 7.1.3. Data Management per IMP 03 Data Management
  - 7.1.4. Threat Identification and Risk Analysis per IMP 04 *Threat Identification and Risk Analysis*
  - 7.1.5. Preventive and Mitigative Measures per IMP 05 *Preventive and Mitigative Measures*
  - 7.1.6. Integrity Assessment per IMP 06 Integrity Assessment
  - 7.1.7. Condition Remediation per IMP 07 Condition Remediation
  - 7.1.8. Management of Change per IMP 08 Management of Change
  - 7.1.9. Quality Control per IMP 09 Quality Control
  - 7.1.10. Communication per IMP 10 Communication



**IMP** Introduction

Rev 3.4

7.1.11. Performance Measurement per IMP 11 Performance Measurement

7.2. Processes included in the IMP are provided in the IMP procedures and other MPLX operating, maintenance and emergency (OME) procedures as specified in the related procedures section in each of the IMP procedures as well as specific MPL procedures that are referenced where services are shared.

#### 8.0 IMP TEAM ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.1. Responsibilities for implementation of the IMP are specified in each IMP procedure in the Responsibility statements. The following also apply:
  - 8.1.1. The EVP, Chief Operating Officer will serve as the senior executive officer sponsor of the IMP and will sign and certify required IMP reports prior to submittal to PHMSA per IMP 10 *Communication*.<sup>5</sup>
  - 8.1.2. The Senior Vice President of Operations will provide support for the IMP.
  - 8.1.3. The Engineering Manager Pipeline Integrity is responsible for the oversight and management of the IMP.
  - 8.1.4. The Integrity Department and the Integrity Committee are responsible for the implementation of IMP and procedures, annual review of the IMP and recommendations for improvement.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> PIPELINE Acts 2006 §16

Waste Gas Minimization Operations Plan

## APPENDIX C MPLX PRESSURE TESTING WITH WATER

Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

For capital projects Level 1-3 (starting at \$250,000) follow <u>ENG-STD-0003- Functional Checkout (FCO) / Pre-PSSR</u> <u>Standard</u> as well as PSM-STD-0001- Management of Change and PSSR Standard.

## **3** Pressure Testing

## 195.300 - 195.310

#### 3.1 Purpose

This document defines MPLX requirements for pressure testing of new pipelines as well as new facility piping where piping is regulated by 49 CFR Part 195. Pressure testing is a fitness-for-service assessment of the pipe, fittings, and appurtenances in a pipeline. It is used to provide assurance for safe operation of new construction, replacement pipe/fittings.

The intended user of this specification is any person, either a direct employee of MPLX or Contractor. This document provides the requirements and guidance for Project Managers, Contractors, and MPLX maintenance personnel, to:

- Properly and safely conduct the pressure test and produce the documentation needed to verify the strength and integrity of new piping systems and fabrications in accordance with federal and state pipeline safety regulations.
- Meet the requirements for strength and/or leak testing pipe specified in 49 CFR Part 195 and other pipeline safety regulations.

## 3.2 Scope

## 195.300

This procedure applies to MPLX. Any deviation to this Practice shall be in accordance with the procedure given in <u>Section 1.11- Liquid Construction Manual Deviation Procedure</u>.

This procedure covers the pressure testing of regulated steel pipelines to be operated by MPLX. Regulated steel pipelines shall be tested to the proper pressure and duration without leakage before being placed in service. This includes, but is not limited to, pipeline pipe, replacement pipe, station pipe, pipe assemblies, tie-ins, and temporary piping such as scraper trap extensions and kicker piping.

#### Testing shall be conducted on pipe that is:

- > New, replaced, relocated, or otherwise changed, including activating idle pipe.
- > Intended to be permanently or temporarily in service.
- Pre-testing pipe sections for crossings of roadways, railways, waterways and HDD installations that have environmental impacts, unless there written approval from MPLX Construction Manager to deviate.

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

#### This procedure does not cover:

- > Hydrostatic testing activities for in-service pipelines.
- > Hydrostatic testing activities for tanks, vessels or other equipment.
- > Hydrostatic testing activities performed in a pipe mill for new pipe qualification.
- Pressure testing activities with any medium other than water. Additives to water may be approved by the MPLX Project Manager or Regional Engineering Director.
- All piping lines and systems that are open to the atmosphere such as drain lines, open safety-relief-valve discharge lines, engine exhausts, and underground sewer lines do not require pressure testing, unless otherwise noted on the drawings. These lines shall be visually examined to determine that all joints are properly made up. Open safety-relief-valve discharge lines shall be defined as those lines on a safety-relief-valve discharge that do not connect into a safety-relief-valve header. All safety-relief-valve discharge piping not described above, and all closed-flare-header systems shall be checked for leaks with its own medium when put into service

#### 3.3 References

American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME) B31.3 - Process Piping

ASME B31.4 – Pipeline Transportation Systems for Liquids and Slurries

## 3.4 Definitions

**Contractor** – Company or business and their subcontractors that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.

**Person in Charge (PIC)** – Any person, either direct or contract, who is responsible for executing any hydrostatic test under this specification.

**Leak Test** – A pressure test used to verify the integrity of a section of pipe or a fabrication.

Strength Test – A pressure test used to:

- > Verify the quality of the material and construction of a section of pipe or a fabrication.
- > Establish the MOP of that section or fabrication.

#### 3.5 Roles and Responsibilities

#### **Construction Designee is responsible for:**

Verifying that the Person-in-Charge and additional Field Team Members involved with the pressure testing have their operator qualification training and proper training to set up test instrumentation, fill the pipeline, test the pipeline, and document the test according to the procedures.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 165 of 191

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- Verifying that all testing is performed properly, safely and in compliance with governmental regulations and MPLX policies and procedures.
- > Requesting technical assistance as needed.

## Person-in-Charge is responsible for:

- > Verifying that a site safety plan is completed before beginning the test.
- > Verifying that proper procedures are followed during the test.
- > Verifying that only qualified personnel are involved in the test.
- Verifying that proper permits are obtained, and the permitting guidelines followed.
- Verifying that landowners and/or tenants and local officials have been notified, if necessary.
- > Verifying that the test is accurately documented.
- > Acquiring the resources to locate a leak.
- > Verifying all approved safety procedure checklists have been signed and safety training has been completed.

## Field Team Members are responsible for:

- > Complying with all MPLX safety procedures when performing pipe testing.
- > Only performing procedures for which they are qualified.
- Paint marking tested stock pipe that is on reserve for future repair work with the test number and entering that number on any accompanying forms.

## MPLX Project Manager or Engineer are responsible for:

- > Complying with all regulations when determining safe test pressures and durations.
- > Developing the pressure test Pre-test Requirements as noted in <u>Appendix F.</u>
- Reviewing completed pressure test report package, and filing it in the project file, both electronic and hard copy.

## 3.6 General Requirements

## 195.302, 195.304, 195.306, 195.308

All testing shall be in accordance with the best practices of the oil & gas transmission industry and shall comply with all MPLX and Federal safety requirements including 49 CFR Part 195.

Contractor shall deliver to MPLX finished pipelines and/or pipeline sections fully tested, devoid of all water and other foreign matter, and with complete records of the testing.

Contractor shall construct and hydrostatically test the pipeline in such a way to minimize the number of untested welds. Pipe associated with tie-ins shall be pressure tested with the section to be tied in unless the tie-in is comprised of less than two field welds. In this case, 100% x-ray of welds is an acceptable substitute in lieu of hydrotest provided the inserted pipe section was hydrotested prior to fabrication and installation.

MPLy   Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

Contractor(s) shall promptly furnish all supervision, labor, equipment, materials, transportation and services for cleaning, inspecting, filling, pressure testing, dewatering, and drying the pipeline.

As required by the job description, the Contractor shall supply a superintendent, labor, transportation and welding equipment, mobile and portable radio equipment and such other materials and supplies as may be required to successfully clean, inspect, test, dry, repair or replace faulty or defective material or work, and tie-in the test sections. The superintendent or their formally designated relief shall remain on site for the entire duration of the test.

Contractor shall provide trained/OQ (Operator Qualified) Field Team Members who are aware of the hazards and proper procedures for testing. Personnel involved in the pressure testing shall be made aware if any additional safety risks are present.

Contractor shall furnish any additional materials required including temporary piping, fittings, couplings, valves, gauges, flanges, gaskets, bolts, etc., needed to complete the testing.

Unless approved otherwise by MPLX Project Manager and Construction Superintendent for new constructed pipelines, Contractor shall pre-test all river and stream crossings; local, state and federal road crossings; all railroad crossings whether cased or uncased; and HDD crossings prior to installation.

Water shall be used as the test medium; however, additives to water may be approved by the MPLX Project Manager or MPLX Engineering Representative. The Contractor will supply water required for hydrostatic testing.

MPLX shall furnish all necessary EH&S permits from governmental agencies for obtaining and discharging of water for testing. The MPLX shall provide Contractor with a copy of the withdrawal/discharge permit for hydrostatic test water. Per state requirements, contractor performing pressure test shall keep water withdrawal/discharge permit on site at all times during testing operations. MPLX will obtain all other necessary permits as required by the agencies.

Contractor shall provide schedule and plans for pressure testing and shall notify MPLX of any additional materials required.

All test pressures shall be applied against blind flanges, spectacle blinds, rated skillet blinds or welded caps. Testing against closed valves is prohibited unless approved by MPLX Project Manager. When a valve is installed in a test section, it should be partially opened. At the option of MPLX, spools may be required to be installed in place of valves during testing with valves to be reinstalled by Contractor after completion of the test. Check valves shall have checks removed. If pressure testing with water for gas systems, orifice plates should not be installed until after the test.

All vents, instrument connections, pressure gauges, and relief valves in the test section shall be plugged, valved and capped, or otherwise isolated to protect the instruments and assure a closed section.

The following should be disconnected or blinded off from the piping and equipment before being tested :

- Pressure gauges.
- > Meters.
- Gauge glasses.
- ➢ Relief valves.

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

> Equipment and piping systems not capable of withstanding the test pressure.

All instrument piping leads, and tubing leads (that contain the measured-process-stream fluid) shall be pressure tested to the first block valve with the piping system or equipment. Piping or tubing on the downstream side of instrument block valves shall be disconnected during the test to avoid introducing foreign matter into the instruments.

Flanges shall not be wrapped with tape or other flange protection until after testing is completed.

Contractor shall ensure water used for testing does not freeze. Care shall be taken throughout the fill, test, and dewater to protect exposed pipe from freezing if this condition is a possibility. MPLX prefers freeze mitigation of test water by controlling the environment of exposed piping and appurtenances. Mitigation options to control the environment at exposed piping and appurtenances include, but are not specifically limited to, insulation, heat wrap, and heated enclosures. With the approval of the MPLX Project Manager, freeze point prevention additives may be used instead of heating exposed portions of the test section.

#### The blend ratio shall be adequate for the temperatures expected during testing:

- A glycol/water blend may be used during freezing conditions with the MPLX Project Manager's approval. Propylene Glycol is preferred, but other glycol additives may be used with permission of MPLX Project Manager and regional environmental staff.
- A methanol/water blend (maximum 50% methanol) may be used during freezing conditions with the MPLX's Project Engineering Director and Area Safety Managers' approval. Blend ratio test documents shall be provided to the MPLX Project Manager, Construction Superintendent, and Area Safety Manager for review and approval prior to fill operations. Documentation shall include the SDS, blend ratio and a specific Methanol Hydrotest Safety Plan using intrinsically safe equipment. Contractor shall use proper and safe equipment when Methanol is added as a freeze point prevention additive. Methanol/water mixtures shall be limited to a maximum 50% methanol content.
- > Blending of any freeze point prevention additive(s) will not be allowed onsite.

MPLX Representative(s) shall review, approve, and be present during all testing operations. The MPLX Project Manager shall review and approve proposed deviations to Contractor's test plan and/or pressure test results. Contractor shall follow all prudent safety precautions to protect personnel, equipment, or others present during the testing periods.

## 3.7 Equipment

The Contractor shall provide equipment that is properly sized and in good working order. The MPLX reserves the right to prohibit the use of any equipment that it considers to be unsafe or unfit for service.

#### Equipment requirements include, but are not specifically limited to the following:

High volume, low-pressure pump(s) capable of filling pipeline with water sized to assure adequate pressure to overcome head, maintain sufficient velocity to move debris, minimize interfaces, assure turbulent flow, and keep any pigs moving.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 168 of 191

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- A variable speed, low-volume, high-pressure, positive displacement pressure pump capable of pumping and pressuring line to a minimum of 200 PSI more than maximum specified endpoint test pressure. The pump shall be capable of maintaining a constant and uniform pressurization rate. The pump shall have a known volume per stroke and shall be equipped with a solenoid-type stroke counter, meter or gauged container to measure the amount of test liquid added.
- When using a flowmeter sized to measure the maximum test water fill and dewater rate. The flowmeter should be accurate to 0.5%.
- Water supply filter(s), when required by the MPLX, with 100-mesh screens or cartridges to assure clean test water enters the test section.
- > Splash plates and/or energy diffusers for water disposal lines.
- Clean water transfer tanks (for flushing, discharging, excess test, and make-up water) which hold water volumes capable of avoiding shutdown of water pumps between water load deliveries.
- Clean tank trucks and/or vessels to transport source water to the test site (to prevent source water contamination).
- Cleaning, water filling, and dewatering/drying pigs, spheres, or cups, if necessary, to clean the pipe and assist in displacing the air and/or product with the test water in conformance to the specifications in the Scope of Work. Pigs, as required by the job description and pipeline pig cups and brushes, shall be satisfactorily maintained to insure efficient operation.
- Air compressors capable of propelling cleaning, dewatering, and drying pigs at recommended rates. Compressors shall be capable of overcoming static head pressures during dewatering and water transfer operations.
- > A relief valve sized to prevent overpressure of the test segment.

Temporary piping, fittings, valves, flanges, gaskets, bolts, and all other test apparatus and components shall be capable of withstanding the test pressures.

The Contractor shall furnish test manifolds in accordance with <u>Appendix A -Hydrostatic Test Manifold Example</u> or in accordance with other MPLX approved designs. The Contractor shall ensure that these test manifolds are capable of withstanding the test pressures.

## 3.8 Instrumentation

The Contractor shall provide a weatherproof, heated/cooled facility (Test Trailer) to house personnel. The Contractor shall provide facilities to protect all equipment and instruments from weather extremes.

The pressure control location(s) and the pressure and/or temperature recording locations for pipeline testing shall be approved by the MPLX and installed as outlined in <u>Appendix A- Hydrostatic Test Manifold Example</u>, <u>Appendix B-Pressure / Temperature Recorder Installation</u> and <u>Appendix C- Establishing Temperature Stabilization</u>. Pipe temperature recorders shall be installed several days prior to line fill to verify stabilization. These devices shall remain

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 169 of 191

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

in place and recording for the duration of the test. For test segments in excess of five (5) miles, a minimum of three (3) temperature probes should be used per test section.

The pressure recorder, deadweight tester (hydraulic or electronic), and an indication gauge shall be housed in the Test Trailer and are to be connected to the test section with a manifold that is capable of isolating all instruments from the test section and from each other instrument. It is recommended to have a back-up pressure recorder installed in the instrument manifold in case an issue arises with the primary recorder.

An ambient temperature recorder shall be placed at a location that is representative of the ambient conditions experienced by exposed pipe, typically near the Test Trailer. The ambient temperature probe shall be placed out of direct sunlight, protected from precipitation, and removed from artificial heat sources (i.e., exhaust pipes, near engine, etc.).

The deadweight tester, electronic device/crystal gauge capable of recording and printing, pressure recorders, and temperature recorders shall be calibrated to a NIST traceable standard.

## Instrumentation used to conduct the hydrostatic test shall include, but not be specifically limited to, the following :

- Deadweight tester(s) (including back-up unit(s)), Chandler Model No. 2-1, or an equivalent pressure sensing device that is acceptable to the regulating agency including electronic devices such as a "Crystal Gauge" that have been approved by the MPLX, certified for accuracy within the last six (6) months, capable of measuring in increments of less than or equal to one (1) PSI, and with an accuracy to at least ± 0.1% of full scale. The deadweight tester(s) and electronic devices ("Crystal Gauges") shall be of adequate capacity to measure at least 100 PSI above the maximum specified test pressure. Hydraulic deadweights should have a pressure range of 50 3000 PSI, unless a higher range is necessary to establish the desired operating pressure.
- Analog pressure recorder(s) covering a minimum 24-hour range to provide a permanent record of pressure versus time with an 8-inch minimum diameter chart size or a Crystal Gauge capable of recording and printing. Pressure recorders shall have an accuracy to at least ± 1.0% of full scale, calibrated within six (6) months of the test date, and be capable of measuring a 25-75% of test pressure (gauge should be mid-range of your pressure test), unless a higher range is necessary to establish the desired operating pressure.
- A Crystal Gauge capable of recording and printing may be used in leu of the Deadweight tester and the Analog pressure recorder.
- 6-inch minimum diameter Bourdon pressure gauge(s) with pressure range and increment divisions, capable of measuring the full range of anticipated test pressures.
- > Temperature recorder(s) used to monitor water or pipe temperature.
- Analog temperature recorders covering a minimum 24-hour range with an 8-inch minimum diameter chart size, or electronic temperature recorders capable of continuously measuring and recording anticipated test temperatures. With an accurate to at least ± 1.0% of full scale and calibrated within the last six (6) months of test date.
- Analog chart recorder(s) with separate pens for temperature(s) and/or pressure recordings may be used as long as they meet the individual temperature and pressure requirements outlined in this Procedure.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 170 of 191

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

Instrument calibration certifications shall be provided to the MPLX Representative a minimum of three (3) business days prior to commencing hydrostatic testing operations. The MPLX retains the right to reject use of any instrumentation that appears subject to improper handling, that is not functioning correctly, or that does not meet the calibration requirements outlined in this Procedure.

## 3.9 Pre-Test Planning

MPLX will furnish Contractor information concerning profiles of test sections prior to testing when elevation has an effect on the testing operation using <u>REG-STD-010-02- Liquid Pipeline Pressure Test Report</u>. MPLX may require contractor to break down the pipeline into test sections.

Contractor shall, prior to testing, provide procedures to the MPLX Project Manager for cleaning, inspecting, tying-in test sections, filling, testing, dewatering, drying, and repairing for review.

## A test plan should be provided to the MPLX Project Manager including, but not be specifically limited to:

- Description of the test section;
- Testing schedule;
- Description of the testing procedure including but not specifically limited to cleaning, filling, stabilization, pressurization, test execution, dewatering, deformation tool run, and drying;
- Equipment, Instrumentation and location to be used during testing;
- Identification of the approved water source (with anticipated fill volume);
- > Water sources and analysis, if required by Environmental;
- Identification of the approved dewater location and method;
- Freeze plan;
- > Communication Plan including relevant MPLX and Contractor phone numbers.
- Names of Contractor personnel conducting the test and OQ documentation.
- Safety Plan;
- Failure Response Plan; and
- > Test Forms to be completed by Contractor during test (if not provided by MPLX).

Contractor shall assist MPLX in the collection of pre-test data needed for <u>REG-STD-010-02- Liquid Pipeline Pressure</u> <u>Test Report</u> including, but not specifically limited to:

- Test segment data (as-built survey data, elevation profile, pipe wall thickness and grade, class location, and test breaks);
- Location and elevation of all mainline valves and other rated components;
- MTR's for piping components;
- Weld and material maps (fabrications or station work);
- Instrumentation calibration certificates.

<b>MELY</b> Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

The pipeline or fabrication test pressures and duration shall be provided to Contractor by MPLX.

MPLX Project Manager or Engineer shall prepare the Pre-test Report and the Pipeline Pressure Test Record to document what is being tested and to communicate the test pressure range and duration to the Contractor. Each pressure test should have a unique number for document tracking purposes. The Project Manager or Engineer shall, at a minimum, perform the following:

Prepare the Pipeline Test Record and include all pipe data and location data to be able to identify this particular pipe in the future. Include the preferred test pressure and duration.

## Along with the approval of the Execution Plan, MPLX Project Manager shall provide Contractor with the Pre-test Requirements as noted in <u>Appendix E</u>:

- Test Pressure, including special consideration for elevation and pipe changes when determining test sections.
- Test Duration
- ➢ Test range
- Stabilization, pressurization and depressurization requirements
- Backpressure requirements
- > Tracer gas requirements, if specified, to check for leaks
- Pig tracking requirements
- Fill points
- Fill and discharge rates
- > Test points for fill, discharge and stabilization
- > Disposal plan / Discharge permits
- Discharge points.
- ➢ Reporting forms.

Contractor's work shall not deviate from approved Execution Plan and Pre-test Requirements.

#### 3.10 Test Pressures and Durations

#### 195.304, 195.305

MPLX personnel performing the calculations for determining the test parameters shall be:

- Knowledgeable of the state and federal regulations to the pipe being tested, such as 49 CFR Part 195, and other state pipeline safety regulations;
- > Knowledgeable of industry standards incorporated by reference in the regulations; and
- > Able to perform the calculation for determining safe pipeline operating pressure and test pressure.

MPLX shall review test header designs and records prior to approving test pressures. The test headers shall be designed in accordance with this Procedure and be capable of withstanding the assigned test pressure range.

MELY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

Pre-test of all environmentally sensitive areas; railroad whether cased or uncased, and HDD installation shall be no less than four (4) continuous hours unless approved by the Project Manager. These sections must be exposed and capable of being visually inspected for leaks. These tests do not establish the operating pressure. The test pressures should be as described as described in the Hydrostatic test plan.

MPLX shall determine the duration of the hydrostatic test for establishing the operating pressure of pipelines using the following guidance:

- LIQUID (CFR 195): Buried pipe shall be tested for eight (8) hours. The test shall be composed of a continuous four (4) hour strength test followed by a continuous four (4) hour leak test.
- LIQUID (CFR 195): For fabricated units, reserve stock pipe, and short sections of pipe, for which a post installation test is impractical, a pre-installation strength test shall be conducted by maintaining the pressure at or above the test pressure for at least four (4) hours. These sections must be fully exposed and capable of being visually inspected for leaks. These tests are satisfactory to establish operating pressure.
- > Longer durations may be specified as desired by MPLX.

**LIQUID (CFR 195):** MPLX shall determine the pressure range of the hydrostatic test for establishing the MOP of pipelines using the following guidance. All test pressures shall be corrected for elevation differences by MPLX.

- Buried pipe should be pressure tested for eight (8) hour test composed of four (4) hour strength test at a minimum pressure of 1.25 x MOP + 25 PSI + Test Range followed by a four (4) hour leak test at a minimum pressure of 1.10 x MOP + 25 PSI + Test Range. Alternatively, a continuous eight (8) hour test at a minimum pressure of 1.25 x MOP + 25 PSI + Test Range is acceptable.
- Above grade piping that is fully exposed and can be inspected for leaks should be pressure tested at a minimum pressure of 1.25 x MOP + 25 PSI + Test Range.
- Pipelines should be pressure tested to a maximum pressure not to exceed 100% SMYS of any pipe in the test section or the maximum allowable component test pressure, whichever is less.

Fabricated assemblies such as mainline valve and scraper trap assemblies should be tested to a minimum of 1.5 times the design pressure and a maximum that is the lesser of the pressure at 100% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe or the maximum allowable component test pressure.

Each pressure test shall test all pipe and attached fittings, including components, unless otherwise permitted by the "single component" rule from 49 CFR Part 195.

## **3.11 Pre-Test Notifications**

When required, MPLX shall inform State and local agencies, and/or people living or working within 100 feet of the pipeline, before starting the test (Responsibility for notifications remains with MPLX, though MPLX may designate Contractor to assist in making notifications when specified in the Scope of Work or required by the MPLX Representative).

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- If applicable to the region and prior to testing, notification of the test and the potential hazards should be made to all property owners, lease holders, State and local officials, and members of the public that may be utilizing the ROW of the pipeline at the time of the test for whatever purpose.
- Notification may take the form of a mailing to landowners and lease holders of record, face-to-face meetings with state and local officials, phone calls, or appropriately worded and placed signs.

## **3.12 Cleaning Prior to Pressure Test**

Contractor shall ensure that mainline valves are in the open position prior to the commencement of cleaning runs.

Contractor shall clean pipeline by running MPLX-approved cleaning pigs (propelled by compressed air). Contractor shall run brush pigs and squeegees continuously through the pipeline until all solids, dust and mill scale are removed. After the final brush pig run, foam squeegees shall be run to enhance removal of dust and mill scale. Pigs shall be run completely through pipeline test section as required until cleanliness of the test section is approved by the MPLX Representative. **EXEMPTION:** Scraper or brush pigs are not to be used in internally coated pipe.

If a cleaning pig becomes lodged in the line, pressure shall not be increased beyond 50 PSIG unless higher pressures are approved by the MPLX Representative. If the presence of water is determined to be the cause of stoppage, MPLX Representative may authorize higher pressures to facilitate water movement. In such cases, MPLX Representative may require pressure to be released and a dewatering line installed at the downstream receiver, as required by permit. When cleaning pigs cannot be dislodged, Contractor shall:

- > Locate lodged pig(s) within the pipeline.
- > Obtain MPLX Representative's approval to remove lodged pig(s).
- Cut out affected section of pipeline.
- > Rejoin/repair cut-out section of pipeline.

Upon completion of the cleaning operation, the temporary launcher and receiver for pigging may be included, removed or isolated. Pipeline section ends shall be sealed by installing MPLX-approved test headers or MPLX-approved caps supported/braced to ensure safety of testing personnel. Pipeline test section shall be sealed to prevent dust, water, or foreign substances from entering, and to preserve internal pipeline cleanliness until filling and pressure testing operations commence. Contractor shall tie-in cleaned pipeline sections as required to complete test sections and shall exercise care in tie-in operations to maintain internal pipeline cleanliness.

## 3.13 Safety

Contractor shall effectively restrain hoses and other components of the test assembly that may become projectiles in the event of failure of the test assembly under pressure. All hoses are to be staked down. Contractor shall utilize whip-checks on all high-pressure hose connections.

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

Test and dewatering piping should be adequately anchored or secured to prevent movement and separation of the piping. All couplings and parts of the test and dewatering system need to be properly selected for their application and should be checked to assure that they meet manufacturer's tolerances and are free of damage.

Contractor shall provide and maintain reliable communication systems during test operations whereby all personnel (directly involved in testing) may communicate during testing.

## During pressure test operations, Contractor shall provide for the safety of the public and all pipeline construction personnel by:

- An MPLX Representative will approve an exclusion zone in all directions around the above ground test sections of the pipe fabrication or pressure containing items under test while the section is pressurized above the operating pressure unless the assembly is enclosed in a "ballistic rated" containment structure. Barricade (DANGER) tape shall be used for the exclusion zone.
- While pipeline facilities are being pressurized and during testing, all personnel not required for test operations (checking for leaks, tightening gaskets, checking valve status, operating pumps, recording data, etc.) shall be restricted from pipeline testing area.
- > Placing warning signs in or near populated areas.
- Whenever test pressures exceed 50% SMYS, prohibiting pipeline work around test sections when such work is not directly associated with test operations.

Contractor shall take every reasonable precaution to protect the general public during the test including stationing guards at all major road crossings and posting signs at minor road crossings to warn the public of the test. The occupants of any building within 100 feet of the pipeline section being tested shall be notified in advance of the test and, in the case of homes, alternate temporary lodging may be made available.

## 3.14 Water Quality

Any water obtained or discharged shall comply with permit requirements. Contractor shall not discharge water to any locations other than those approved by permits.

Water for filling and testing the pipeline shall be delivered to the test site, from rivers, creeks, canals, or other water sources near the pipeline, or be obtained as specified in the job description. MPLX shall obtain all permits for acquisition, using, and disposing of water for cleaning and testing purposes. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the permits. The suitability of source and disposal points, cleanliness of the water and method of moving the water to the pipeline shall be subject to MPLX approval. Fresh, clean water having pH of 7 to 8 shall be used for the test.

The Construction Superintendent or other MPLX Representative shall inspect test water for sheen and sediment before it is removed from any trucks.
MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

If required by MPLX, the Contractor shall have a chemical analysis made of the test water and shall treat such water with inhibitors, chemicals, or filtration units as necessary to make it suitable for use. Consideration shall be given to the impact that additives may have on the environmentally approved disposal of the test water.

# 3.15 Filing/ Gauge Plate-Sizing Pig

Contractor shall supply and run a pig or series of pigs equipped with slotted sizing / gauge plate through the test section with the line fill. The sizing plate shall be constructed of aluminum and have a diameter equal to 95% of the minimum diameter of the pipeline. A Pig Tracking device should be used with any gauge plate pig runs.

The filling of the test section shall be planned and executed to vent all air from the system. Additional vent fittings and valves shall be installed as needed. Flanged blinds shall be opened, as necessary, to completely remove all air and fill the test section fully with the test medium. If excess air cannot be removed, the test section shall be evacuated and refilled.

Contractor shall notify MPLX Representative at least one (1) business day before obtaining and discharging water. Contractor shall provide MPLX Representative access to test water for obtaining samples.

Prior to the water fill, all permits pertaining to water usage and discharge should be obtained. Pipelines or pipe segments are to be filled with clean, filtered water in a manner to assure the absence of air in the pipeline. It is usually best to fill pipelines with elevation changes from the low end to better remove air from the line and get a good fill. If water used for testing is to remain in the pipeline for a period of four weeks or more, inject a corrosion inhibitor. Note that any inhibitor or chemical added to the test water may affect the water quality such that hydrostatic water discharge after testing may be adversely impacted.

Under no circumstances shall an alternate water source be used without prior authorization from the MPLX Representative.

All water introduced into the pipeline shall come from a known clean source.

MPLX shall approve pigs and placement in temporary launchers and test headers.

All mainline valves within the fill section shall be open for fill pig passage, after which valves shall be closed halfway to fill the body cavity.

A meter of sufficient size and accuracy shall be used to measure the quantity of fill water. Unless the elimination of the meters is approved by the Project Manager.

Contractor shall place ambient water, ground, and pipe temperature recorders prior to line to track water stabilization. These records shall be available to MPLX Representatives upon request and shall be delivered to MPLX at the completion of the test.

Before filling a test section with water, **Contractor shall make a final check to verify**:

- All valves are in open position.
- > All pipe and bolt connections are tight.
- > Test manifolds are fabricated and installed in compliance with contract documents.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page **176** of **191** 

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- > Pumps and compressors are in good working condition.
- Instruments are ready for use (proper charts installed, ink pens filled, clocks wound, correct calibration, batteries, etc.).
- ➢ Pigs are installed.
- > Contractor has sufficient water to continually fill the pipeline in one continuous fill.

Contractor shall insert fill pig immediately ahead of the water column (to prevent air pockets from forming). The rate of travel of the fill pig will be controlled to prevent the acceleration of the fill pig during filling downhill portions of the test sections and ensure that the water column behind the fill pig is not broken during the filling operation. The fill pig travel rate will be controlled by maintaining sufficient air back pressure based upon the elevation profile of the test section, on the fill pig to prevent breaking the fill water column by venting the air in the test section as the fill pig progresses. The Contractor is responsible for controlling the velocity of the fill pig and insuring proper water fill.

Care shall be exercised in filling a new pipeline with water while venting through a small branch connection. Air or vapors can pass much more rapidly through a small branch connection than can liquid. The surge resulting from the choking down of the flow when the liquid reaches the small branch vent can overpressure the line.

Contractor shall monitor each MPLX-required recorder during fill operation.

After completion of the filling operation, pipeline water temperature and water turbulence shall be allowed to stabilize. Contractor shall increase pressure in the pipeline to maximum fill pump capability not to exceed the final test pressure. Contractor shall check the pressure on each test section end and compare with calculated pressures to confirm the specified test pressure for the section.

After completion of the filling operation, Contractor shall complete a visual check for leaks of flanges, valves, TORs, bull plugs, and other exposed connections. Contractor shall remediate any identified leaks.

## 3.16 Test Procedure

The MPLX Representative and Contractor shall review and approve test pressure and elevation data before start of test operations. If actual elevations do not match supplied data, test pressures shall be adjusted. In any case, test pressure shall not drop below minimum test pressure nor exceed maximum test pressure specified on the approved Test Plan.

Contractor shall complete and compile all necessary test logs, charts, instrumentation calibration certifications, and related forms for testing.

The test section shall not be brought up to test pressure until stabilized. The section shall be allowed to stabilize between 25% and 50% of final test pressure, unless approved by MPLX. The test section shall be allowed to stabilize. **EXEMPTION:** A stabilization period is not required for test sections that are above grade or exposed and that will be visually inspected for leaks.

Contractor shall pressurize the test section at a rate under 15 psi/min while the section pressure results in a greater than 50% of the final test pressure.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 177 of 191

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

Contractor shall conduct a 15-minute pressurization hold near 75% of the final test pressure, at which time all above grade piping and fittings shall be checked for leaks. If leaks are identified, Contractor shall reduce the test section pressure to a safe working pressure and remediate the leaks.

After the test pressure is reached, Contractor shall isolate the test section and inspect all above-grade piping and fittings for leaks. If leaks are identified, Contractor shall reduce the test section pressure to a safe working pressure and remediate the leaks.

Contractor shall maintain the assigned test pressure window and the duration(s) as specified in the Approved Test Plan. Contractor shall use <u>REG-STD-010-FOR-02-Liquid Pipeline Pressure and Test Report</u> to record time, start pressure, end pressure, pressure change, fluid added, fluid subtracted, ambient temperature, ground temperature 1 and 2 and pipe / fluid temperature readings every 10 minutes for the first hour and every 15 minutes thereafter for the duration of the hydrostatic test period. Contractor shall also log other events prior to, during, and after the completion of the test for:

- > Weather and changes in weather conditions.
- Pump starts and stops.
- Leak checks and results of such checks.
- > Any other significant events, especially those that show up on the pressure chart record.

In the event the test pressure increases near the maximum allowable test pressure, pressure shall be bled off slowly, utilizing a bleeder line, in order to maintain the test section pressure in the allowable range. Contractor shall record volume bled in <u>REG-STD-010-FOR-02-Liquid Pipeline Pressure and Test Report</u>.

When additional test medium is required, the contractor shall record volume injected in <u>REG-STD-010-FOR-02-Liquid</u> <u>Pipeline Pressure and Test Report</u>.

Throughout the hydrostatic test, all piping, valves, fittings, or other components that are exposed shall be visually checked periodically for leaks. If leaks are identified, Contractor shall reduce the test section pressure to a safe working pressure and remediate the leaks. The tests shall be started over again from the beginning, and new charts and reports shall be used.

MPLX reserves the right to extend the test duration, if in the opinion of MPLX, the data is questionable or inconclusive.

#### 3.17 Test Acceptance

Test sections that include below grade segments shall be considered acceptable if:

- The test section has been maintained in the assigned, allowable pressure range for the duration specified in the approved Test Plan.
- Pressure-Volume-Temperature Correlation has been completed that identifies that no leaks are indicated. Pressure-Volume-Temperature Correlations shall be made using temperature recorders that have a minimum sensitivity of 0.1°F and shall be approved by MPLX prior to acceptance of the test.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 178 of 191

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual		4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- > The recorded pressure does not exhibit trends associated with a leak; therefore, no leaks are indicated.
- No leaks may be visually observed on exposed portions of pipe or appurtenances intended to be permanent installations.

Pre-installation test sections that are above ground and can be visually inspected for leaks shall be considered acceptable if:

- > The test section has been maintained in the assigned, allowable pressure range for the duration specified in the approved Test Plan.
- > No leaks may be visually observed.

Upon completion of the test duration and prior to depressurization, a stakeholders meeting including the Contractor, MPLX Representative, and other project stakeholders shall be held to review the test documentation and accept the test.

Contractor shall clearly mark all logs and charts with the test identification number, date and time started test, date and time completed test, reasons for pressure deviations (if any), description of test section, and type of test. All logs and charts shall be signed by Contractor and MPLX representatives.

#### 3.18 Repair

Should a leak be identified during the test, Contractor shall immediately locate and repair the leak(s). Contractor shall make attempts to remove air entrapped in the line as a result of the repair. After repairs, have been made and trapped air has been remediated, the pressure test shall be repeated until it has been determined acceptable.

Contractor shall provide all labor and equipment required to locate and repair any leak or rupture, as determined by the MPLX Representative.

If a failure occurs in a pipe seam, the entire joint shall be removed from pipeline. For other leaks, the MPLX Representative shall determine actual pipe length(s) to be removed. Removed piece(s) of pipe shall be marked for orientation (with respect to the pipeline position) and with the alignment sheet station number of the defect location. Contractor shall not cut on or damage the failed pipe edge during removal, transit, or unloading at the MPLX's designated storage location. All cut-out sections of pipe shall be provided to the MPLX Representative.

Contractor shall provide all test related documentation from the failure to the MPLX Representative. Information can include but is not specifically limited to:

- Date and time failure occurred;
- Exact location of the failure;
- Type and cause of failure (if known);
- Method of repair; and
- ▶ For catastrophic failures, a Root Cause Failure Analysis ("RCFA") with testing data is required.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 179 of 191

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
F		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

## 3.19 Dewatering

As soon as possible after MPLX Representative's test acceptance, Contractor shall reduce pipeline pressure at a rate no more than 20 psi/min until a pressure under 50% SMYS is achieved (to avoid development of vibrations). Contractor shall exercise extreme caution throughout depressurizing process. Valves shall be opened and closed slowly to protect assembly from shock loading.

Prior to beginning any dewatering activities, Contractor and MPLX shall ensure that all mainline valves have been returned to the fully open position.

Dewatering lines shall be securely supported and restrained at discharge end (to prevent uncontrolled movement during dewatering). Victaulic/invasion pipe shall not be used.

The water shall be displaced with pigs. The pigs shall be propelled with compressed air at a speed not greater than three (3) miles per hour. Water shall be blown out of all valves equipped with body drain connections after the water displacement.

Contractor shall control the system backpressure and discharge volume of the water. Discharge rates shall be followed as specified in governing permits. In addition, the volume discharged shall be controlled to prevent erosion damage at discharge point.

The water disposal shall be in accordance with the discharge permit, the MPLX EH&S procedures, and all local, Federal, and State requirements.

The water shall be disposed of in a manner which will not cause erosion, siltation, or damage to the ecology of the area. MPLX shall make final selection and/or approval of energy-dissipating devices. Contractor shall install devices as specified in water discharge permit. Contractor shall install alternate devices only when pre-approved by the MPLX Representative. To reduce discharge velocity, previously approved energy-dissipating devices have included, but are not specifically limited to:

- Splash Pup.
- Splash Plate.
- Plastic Liner.
- Straw Bale Dewatering Structure.
- MPLX-Approved Filter Bags.

Once the primary dewater is complete, a squeegee, polyurethane, or foam pig shall be run to ensure dewater of the pipeline. Pigs shall be run as many times as necessary to remove free water as required by the MPLX Representative. New open-cell polyurethane foam pigs shall be run as necessary until water penetration depth is no more than 1/8" into new foam pig. This shall be considered adequate for dewatering.

After test section, has been dewatered, all valve body drain plugs shall be removed, carefully cleaned and replaced (after the valve body is drained). Use the appropriate thread sealant

Contractor shall repair ROW and/or adjacent property damage caused by test section dewatering as directed by MPLX Representative.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

# MPLx | Gathering & Processing

	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

## 3.20 Drying

Contractor shall run an adequate number of drying pigs until a penetration of 1/4 inch or less is visible on a new open-cell polyurethane foam pig.

#### 3.21 Documentation

#### 195.310

At the completion of the test, Contractor shall prepare <u>REG-STD-010-02-Liquid Pipeline Pressure and Test Report</u>, including a test report, for every pressure test. Contractor shall submit the following completed forms as part of the Field Package to the MPLX Representative at the completion of tests:

- Contractor Test Report;
- Date and Time of the Test
- Test Section Fill Log;
- Test Section Data and Log;
- Pressure Volume Data;
- > Minimum Test Pressure
- The Test Medium
- > Approved disposal or reuse pit site manifest
- A description of the facility tested and the test apparatus;
- Pressure, pipe temperature, ambient temperature, and ground temperature charts or data logs;
- Explanation of any pressure or temperature discontinuities on charts including test failures, that appear on the pressure recording charts;
- Where elevation differences in the section under test exceed 100 feet (30 meters), a profile of the pipeline that shows the elevation and test sites over the entire length of the test section; and
- > Test instrumentation calibration certifications;
- > Temperature of the test medium or pipe during the test period.

MPLX Project Manager or Field Engineer shall review pre-test and field documentation test parameters and the established operating pressure from the test.

A record shall be made of each hydrostatic test and shall be retained by the Construction Group as long as the facility tested is operated by MPLX. MPLX Project Manager or Field Engineer shall compile the record for retention. The record should include, but not be specifically limited to:

- Pre-test Documentation;
- Test segment data (as-built survey data, elevation profile, pipe wall thickness and grade, class location, and test breaks)
- > Location and elevation of all mainline valves and other rated components
- > MTR's for piping components
- Weld and material maps (fabrications or station work)
- Instrumentation calibration certificates
- > Operator Qualifications (OQ) of personnel performing test

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 181 of 191

# MPLy | Gathering & Processing

	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

- Approved Contractor Execution Plan;
- MPLX Provided Pre-test Requirements (Appendix E);
- Contractor Field Package; and
- Field Pressure and Test Report
- Test Section Fill Log
- Test Section Data and Log
- Pressure Volume Data
- > Pressure, pipe temperature, ambient temperature, and ground temperature charts or data logs
- > Explanation of any pressure or temperature discontinuities on charts
- > Test instrumentation calibration reports
- > Test Failure Report,
- > Project Manager shall review final documentation.

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

## 3.22 Appendix A- Pipeline Pressure Test Equipment Layout Schematic



Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

MPLy Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

## 3.23 Appendix B- Pressure/Temperature Recorder Installation and Stabilization



Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023



MPLY Gathering & Processing		
F		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

# 3.25 Appendix D- Maximum Pressure for Pancake Blinds (Based on 90% of Yield Stress)

Plate Material		SA-514 <sup>(1)</sup>	A 537-2	A 516-70	A 286 C
Yield Stress (psi)		100,000	60,000	38,000	30,000
Plate Size (in.)	Blind Thickness (in.)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure
	0.250	37	22	14	11
36.000	0.375	84	50	32	25
	0.500	150	90	57	45
	0.250	54	33	21	16
30.000	0.375	122	73	46	37
	0.500	218	131	83	65
	0.250	85	51	32	26
24.000	0.375	192	115	73	58
	0.500	341	205	130	102
	0.250	124	75	47	37
20.000	0.375	280	168	106	84
	0.500	498	299	189	149
	0.250	155	93	59	47
18.000	0.375	349	209	133	105
	0.500	620	372	236	186
	0.250	198	119	75	60
16.000	0.375	446	268	170	134
	0.500	793	476	301	238
	0.250	263	158	100	79
14.000	0.375	591	355	225	177
	0.500	1051	631	399	315
	0.250	320	192	122	96
12.750	0.375	721	432	274	216
	0.500	1281	769	487	384
	0.250	459	276	175	138

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page **186** of **191** 

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

10.750	0.375	1034	620	393	310
	0.500	1838	1103	698	551

# 3.26 Appendix E- Maximum Pressure for Pancake Blinds (Based on 90% of Yield Stress) cont'd

Plate Material Yield Stress (psi)		SA-514 <sup>(1)</sup> 100,000	A 537-2 60,000	A 516-70 38,000	A 286 C	
					30,000	
Plate Size (in.)	Blind Thickness (in.)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	Maximum Pressure (psi)	
	0.250	724	434	275	217	
.6258	0.375	1629	978	619	489	
	0.500	2897	1738	1101	869	
	0.250	1254	752	476	376	
6.625	0.375	2821	1693	1072	846	
	0.500	5016	3009	1906	1505	
	0.250	2846	1707	1081	854	
4.500	0.375	6403	3842	2433	1921	
	0.500	11383	6830	4325	3415	
	0.250	10796	6477	4102	3239	
2.375	0.375	24291	14574	9230	7287	
	0.500	43183	25910	16410	12955	

Notes:

• SA-514 not to be used for operational isolation, only pressure tests.

• Calculated for "standard" wall pipe.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

# MPLy | Gathering & Processing

Gathering & Processing	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

## 3.27 Appendix F- Pre-Test Requirements

- 1. Test Pressure, including special consideration for elevation and pipe changes when determining test sections.
- 2. Test Duration
- 3. Stabilization, pressurization and depressurization requirements
- 4. Backpressure requirements
- 5. Tracer gas requirements, if specified, to check for leaks
- 6. Pig tracking requirements
- 7. Fill points
- 8. Fill and discharge rates
- 9. Test points
- 10. Disposal plan / Discharge permits
- 11. Discharge points.
- 12. Reporting forms.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

# 3.28 Appendix G- Onshore Liquid Pipeline Pressure and Leak Test Requirements

	Condition	Test Requirement	MPLX Standard	
	MOP produce a hoop stress > 20% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe and is visually inspected during strength test 49 CFR §195.304 ASME B314 6437 4 1	<ul> <li>Minimum: 1.25x MOP (Pressure Test)</li> <li>Maximum: Lower of 100% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe, 2x design pressure or valve/flange maximum pressure limitation <sup>(2)(3)</sup></li> <li>Time: 4 hours, minimum</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>1.25x MOP</li> <li>4 hours</li> <li>Test medium: Water</li> </ul>	
A A A A A	MOP produce a hoop stress 20% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe and is NOT visually inspected during strength test 49 CFR §195.304 ASME B31.4 §437.4.1	<ul> <li>Minimum: 1.25 x MOP (Pressure Test)</li> <li>1.1 x MOP (Leak Test)</li> <li>Maximum: Lower of 100% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe, 2x design pressure or valve/flange maximum pressure limitation <sup>(2)(3)</sup></li> <li>Time: 4 hours, minimum, for strength test PLUS additional 4 hours for leak test</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>1.25 x MOP</li> <li>8 hours</li> <li>Test medium: Water</li> </ul>	
AA A	MOP produce a hoop stress ≤ 20% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe ASME B31.4 §437.4.3	<ul> <li>Minimum: 1.25 x MOP (Leak Test)</li> <li>Maximum: Lower of 100% SMYS of the lowest strength pipe, 2 x design pressure or valve/flange maximum pressure limitation <sup>(2)(3)</sup></li> <li>Time: 1 hour, minimum</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>1.25 x MOP</li> <li>4 hours</li> <li>Test medium: Water</li> </ul>	
1.	If minimum test pressure exceed component. Refer to Appendix	s 100% SMYS of lowest strength pipe/component, test pressure shall be reduced C, for maximum test pressure of various classes of valves and flanged fittings.	l to 93% SMYS of I owest strength	
2.	On existing pipelines, the maxi	mum test pressure may exceed 100% of the pipe SMYS and shall be shown on t	he drawings.	
3.	<ol> <li>The code requires: If any building lies within 300 feet of subject pipeline, a hydrostatic test must be completed at test pressure equal to 1.25xMAOP. However, if building(s) evacuated when hoop stress &gt;50% SMYS, air or inert gas may be used as test medium.</li> </ol>			
4.	4. Test pressures for above ground facilities shall use a 1.5 pressure test factor.			
5.	<ol> <li>For fabricated units and short sections of pipe to be installed in jurisdictional intrastate pipelines in Texas, pre-tested sections shall be limited to 100 feet unless pre-tested for eight hours.</li> </ol>			
6.	Refer to Appendix C, for maximu refer to Gas Construction Manu	m test pressure of various classes of valves and flanged fittings. For test pressures for Ial.	test mediums other than water,	
7.	On existing facilities, the maxir	num test pressure may exceed 100% of the pipe SMYS and shall be shown on th	ne drawings.	

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
		REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

# **3.29 Appendix H- Test Pressures for Flanged Valves and Fittings**

Valve Class or Class	Working	Shell Test Pressure		Seat Test Pressure	
Designation	Pressure (1)	Minimum	Maximum	Valve ≥ 8"	Valve < 8"
150	285	425	475	475	300
300	740	1100	1100	1150	800
400	990	1450	1450	1500	1060
600	1480	2175	2175	2225	1600
900	2220	3250	3250	3300	2400
1500	3705	5400	5400	5450	4000
2500	6170	9000	9000	9050	6600

1. Maximum working pressure ratings for flanged-end, gate, plug, ball and check valves at 100°F. Higher temperatures will derate this number.

2. Pressures shown are maximum seat test pressures and shall not be exceeded. Maintain the seat test pressure for each seat for thirty minutes. Remove the body bleed as a method to determine whether the seat is good. The pressure should hold with minimum pressure drop. If not, the valve should be repaired or junked.

3. Pressures shown are maximum shell test and shall not be exceeded. The valve shall be partially open (1/4 open) during the shell test. Maintain the shell test pressure at or above the minimum test pressure for four hours.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page **190** of **191** 

102

MPLY Gathering & Processing		
	Proc. No.	REG-STD-0010
Construction Manual	Rev. No.	4
Liquid Program	Rev. Date:	12/20/2023

#### 3.29.1 Forms

Reference <u>REG-STD-010-02-Liquid Pipeline Pressure and Test Report</u> and <u>REG-STD-010-04 MOP Summary</u>, when completing a pressure test and MOP summary.

#### 3.29.2 Pressure Testing Aboveground Breakout Tanks 195.307

Refer to <u>REG-STD-012</u> Tank Design and Construction Manual, Section 26 Hydrostatic Testing of Aboveground Storage <u>Tanks</u>.

# 4 Revision Log

Date	Revision	Change
11/9/2022	0	Initial Draft
4/20/2023	1	Fixed grammatical errors, added environmental updates throughout the document. Added Sections 2.44- Hot Tap and Section 2.45- Management of Change and Pre-Start Up Safety Review.
6/29/2023	2	Added language to the OQ reference requiring 100% OQ for contractors. Updated language of the general section for In-Line Inspection
8/11/2023	3	Added language to section 2.33 Flanges are not permitted to be buried belowground.
12/20/2023	4	Added environmental comments (new language) to the HDD, and Environmental sections of this program.

Uncontrolled unless viewed via MPLX Compliance Shared Drive

Page 191 of 191

Waste Gas Minimization Operations Plan

# APPENDIX D CATHODIC PROTECTION STANDARDS

.

5Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0004		
Ryan Ell				
Doc. Custodian:	Cathodic Protection for Buried or	Rev. No.: 3		
Ryan Ell	Submerged Metallic Structures			
Approved by:		MPLX G&P		
Scott Stampka				
Date Approved: 7/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/23		

Purpose	This standard establishes minimum requirements for the design and installation of cathodic protection systems to protect buried or submerged pipelines and structures from external corrosion to provide:				
	• Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regul facilities)	ated pipeline systems and			
	• The intended service life for the asset				
	• Standardization of work procedures, design, materia inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of the m	als, installation, and ation of external corrosion			
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Log Processing (G&P) operated assets.	gistics (MPLX) Gathering and			
Table of	Purpose	1			
Contents	Scope				
	Cathodic Protection	2			
	Determination of Need	2			
	Objectives of System Design	2			
	Design of Cathodic Protection Systems				
	General				
	Factors Determining Anode Current Output, Operating Life, and Efficiency				
	Design Drawings and Specifications	4			
	Anode Groundbeds Installation Criteria				
	Anode Groundbed Environmental Considerations	5			
	Electrical Isolation for Cathodic Protection Systems	6			
	General	6			
	Insulating Flange Kits	7			
	Monolithic Isolation Joints	7			
	Dielectric Unions and Couplings	7			
	Pipe Support Isolation Kits	7			
	Installation of Cathodic Protection Systems	7			
	General	7			
	Construction Supervision				
	Galvanic Anodes Inspection and Handling				
This cop	by was printed on 10/14/2024	Page 1 of 14			

MPLX Gathering & Processing Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Motellia Structures		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
vietanic Structu			
	Installing Galvanic Anodes		
	Inspection and Handling of Im	pression Current Systems	
	Installation Provisions for Imp	ressed Current Systems	
	Installation Provisions for Cor	rosion Control Test Stations, Connec	tions, and Bonds 1
	Other Considerations During I	nstallation	
	Cathodic Protection Design and	Installation Records	
	Control Records		
	Definitions		1
	Waiver Process		
	Forms		
	References		
	Records Retention		
	Revision History		
	<ul> <li>changed, as applicable.</li> <li>Idled pipelines shall be ca electrically bonded to exi receiving cathodic protec</li> </ul>	athodically protected. These pipelines sting cathodically protected piping if	
	• Only pipelines that have Compliance team do not	tion current. been officially classified as "abandon require to be protected with cathodic	s shall be not already ed" by the MPLX protection.
Objectives of System Design	<ul> <li>Only pipelines that have Compliance team do not</li> <li>Effective cathodic protection sys</li> <li>Provide sufficient current current so that the selecte</li> <li>Provide a design life of th the protected structure or</li> <li>Provide adequate allowar time.</li> <li>Place anodes where the p</li> </ul>	tion current. been officially classified as "abandon require to be protected with cathodic tem design will achieve the following t to the structure to be protected and c ed criteria for cathodic protection are on the anode system commensurate with the provide for periodic rehabilitation of the for anticipated changes in current ossibility of disturbance or damage is	s shall be not already ed" by the MPLX protection. g objectives: listribute this efficiently attained the required life of the anode system. requirements with s minimal.

MPLX Gathering & Processing Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Metallic Structures		Gathering & Processing Standard DocumentDoc Number: ENG-STD-0004Rev No: 3	
Factors Determining Anode Current Output, Operating Life, and Efficiency	<ul> <li>Various anode materials h given current density from Therefore, for a given cur material as well as the and protection system. Establi the probable deterioration</li> <li>Proper design of a galvan</li> </ul>	have different rates of deterioration when in the anode surface in a specific environment rent output, the anode life shall dependent ode weight and the number of anodes is ished anode performance data shall be in rate.	en discharging a onment. d on the anode in the cathodic used to calculate

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Metallic Structures		

	<ul> <li>with resultant current output and, in special cases, anode lead wire resistance.</li> <li>In the design of an extensive distributed anode impressed current system, the voltage and current attenuation along the anode connecting wire shall be evaluated. In such cases, the design objective is to optimize anode system length, anode spacing and size, and conductor size in order to achieve efficient corrosion control at the extremities of the protected structure.</li> <li>Where it is anticipated that entrapment of gas actions could impair the ability of the impressed current groundbed to deliver the required current, the system design shall provide for venting the anodes.</li> </ul>
Design Drawings and Specifications	<ul> <li>Design records for cathodic protection systems shall be stored in the Pipeline Compliance System (PCS) database and retained for the life of the cathodic protection system, including the following where applicable:         <ul> <li>Design calculations</li> <li>Power source capacity, circuit breakers, panels, etc.</li> <li>Number of anodes</li> <li>Anode material and expected life</li> <li>Anode installation details</li> <li>Type, quantity, and location of stationary reference electrodes</li> <li>Cost of system</li> <li>Design drawings</li> <li>Detailed layout of new test stations</li> </ul> </li> <li>As-Built drawings shall designate the overall layout of the piping to be protected and the location of significant items of structure hardware, corrosion control test stations, electrical bonds, electrical insulators, and known neighboring buried or submerged metallic structures.</li> <li>Layout drawings shall be prepared for each impressed current cathodic protection (ICCP) installation, showing the details and location of the components of the cathodic protection system with respect to the protected structure(s) and to major physical landmarks.</li> <li>The locations of galvanic anode installations shall be recorded on drawings or in tabular form, with appropriate notes as to anode type, weight, spacing, depth, and backfill.</li> <li>Design specifications shall be prepared for all materials and installation practices that are to be incorporated in construction of the cathodic protection system.</li> </ul>
Anode Groundbeds Installation Criteria	<ul> <li>Deep Well Groundbeds <ul> <li>Drawings of the anode locations and lead wires shall be kept for the life of the groundbed to assist with surveys and excavations.</li> <li>Seal the top of the well to prevent surface run off from entering the groundbed, if required by state regulations.</li> <li>Surface casings, when used, shall be externally sealed to prevent water entry, as required by state regulations.</li> <li>Vent pipe shall be installed from the bottom of the anode backfill material</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard I	Document
Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Metallic Structures	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
<ul> <li>to the surface, tern of surface waters.</li> <li>Groundbeds shall intermixing of une</li> <li>All anode lead wi capacity and insule</li> <li>Each anode shall i</li> <li>Horizontal Groundbeds</li> <li>Drawings of the a of the groundbed</li> <li>Size anode header meet their design</li> <li>Location of parall excavation damage</li> <li>All anode lead wi capacity and insul</li> <li>Distributed Groundbeds</li> <li>Drawings of the a of the groundbed</li> <li>Size anode header meet their design</li> <li>Location of parall excavation damage</li> <li>All anode lead wi capacity and insul</li> <li>Distributed Groundbeds</li> <li>Drawings of the a of the groundbed</li> <li>Size anode header meet their design</li> <li>Mark location of exceeded of the groundbed</li> <li>Size anode header meet their design</li> <li>Mark location of exceeded of the groundbeds</li> <li>Galvanic Groundbeds</li> <li>The header cable and periodic meas</li> <li>The depth of buria protect shall be sp<ol> <li>For buried applica</li> </ol></li></ul>	minating aboveground and designed to be designed and installed in a manner derground aquifers, per state regulation re shall be appropriately sized for current lated. have its own lead wire. mode locations and lead wires shall be to assist with surveys and excavations r cable so that all anodes receive suffice output. lel groundbeds shall be clearly marked ge. re shall be appropriately sized for current lated. mode locations and lead wires shall be to assist with surveys and excavations r cable so that all anodes receive suffice output. leach anode on the surface with concrete r to help prevent excavation damage. re shall be appropriately sized for current lated. shall be brought to a test point to permisurement of output current, for calcula al and the location with respect to the becified. ations, zinc or magnesium anodes shall	o prevent entrance r to avoid ons. rent carrying e kept for the life s. cient current to d to prevent any rent carrying e kept for the life s. cient current to ete or other rent carrying nit monitoring, ation of anode life structure to ll be used with th

- shall be contacted. Deep anode bed systems shall be installed in areas not subject to surface or • subsurface contamination.
- Design shall include the prevention of surface fluid runoff from entering the deep • anode bed system. Surface casings, if used, shall be externally sealed. Sealing materials that may be used include concrete, grout, or bentonite-cement mixtures. Example grouts include:

natural resource, ground water management authority, or other governing entity

Considerations

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Cathodic Protection for Buried	or Submerged	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Metallic Structures	0		
<ul> <li>Include off detailed</li> <li>If cas (2.0 if</li> <li>If cas (2.0 if</li> <li>The s require</li> <li>Vents</li> <li>Cross o</li> <li>Deep shall i</li> <li>o</li> <li>A dee have a minim o</li> <li>o</li> </ul>	Neat cement grout - Portland cement to Cement grout - A r cement to an equal than 2 mm [0.08 in] Bentonite clay grou montmorillonite (be ings are utilized in the n) shall exist on all sid urface portion of unca- red to prevent entry of shall be extended to contamination of wa Sealing within the of intermixing of wate outside of the casin avoid cross contam compromise of the anode bed materials to be used. Accurate records of chemical analysis s of an abandonment proc num requirements. All uncased holes, of All aboveground ap tampering.	<ul> <li>A mixture consisting of 43 kg (or 19 to 23 L (5.0 to 6.0 gal) of clear mixture consisting of 43 kg (one 9-volume of sand (diameter of sand)) to 19 to 23 L (5.0 to 6.0 gal) of or at – A mixture consisting of water entonite) clay containing high solite deep anode bed system, a minim des for sealing.</li> <li>ased deep anode bed systems shall f fluid runoff.</li> <li>a well-ventilated area above the h ter between strata shall be avoided deep anode bed system shall be utier between strata. If a casing is use a shall be employed vent pipe shall ination. Dual vent pipes can be use internal seal.</li> <li>that do not contaminate undergrou</li> <li>f the material used and the data per shall be maintained for the life of the that has been depleted or is no long the ter between shall be removed or sealing.</li> </ul>	Inter 94 lb bag) of a water 4 lb bag) of Portland shall be no larger clean water and sodium ds um space of 51 mm be sealed if igh-water level. 1. lized to prevent ed, a seal around the ll be designed to ed to prevent and water supplies rtaining to its he asset. ger required shall shall be considered operly sealed. secured to prevent
Electrical Isolation for Cathodic Protection Systems General • Electric monor support the sy If an interest using The merical	ical isolation devices lithic isolation joints ort isolation kits shall stem are required to t insulating device is in hable to foresee, then metal cored insulatin eed for lightning and ated per <u>OPS-STD-00</u>	s consisting of insulating flange kit (MIJs), dielectric unions and coup be installed where electrical isolat facilitate the application of corrosi installed in an area where a combus precautions should be taken to pro- ing gaskets. fault current protection at insulati 025.	assemblies, lings, and pipe ion of portions of on control. tible atmosphere is event arcing when ng devices shall be

MPLX Gathering & Processing Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Metallic Structures		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
			<b>1 6 </b> (1 <b>.</b>
Flange Kits	<ul> <li>Regional Corrosion Control</li> <li>Only the products listed in Regional Corrosion Control</li> <li>Phenolic type gasl</li> <li>Glass Re-Enforced Epoxy diameters 10 inches or sma</li> <li>In addition, a G-10</li> </ul>	ol Team Lead or Engineer. <u>Appendix A</u> shall be used, unless ol Team Lead or Engineer. <b>kets shall not be used.</b> (GRE) G-10 gaskets shall only be aller, with the exception of well co type gasket shall not be used whe	approved by the used on pipe nnects. n replacement of an
	<ul> <li>insulating flange ki</li> <li>In high consequence or hig insulating flange kit and de Control Team Lead or Eng <ul> <li>When a decoupler to pipeline and ground</li> </ul> </li> <li>The bolt torquing values spipe followed when installing</li> <li>An insulating gasket shall unless it is equipped with a</li> </ul>	It requires a pipeline shutdown. ghly critical locations, the installati ecoupler may be required. The Reg gineer shall be contacted for guidar is used, it shall be installed in serie ding. pecified by the insulating flange ki g an insulating flange kit. not be installed on the pipeline dur an Internal Diameter (ID) ring (see	ion of both an gional Corrosion nce. es between the t manufacturer shall ring hydrotesting e Appendix A).
Monolithic Isolation Joints Dielectric Unions and Couplings	<ul> <li>MIJs shall not be used without app Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>Dielectric unions and coup piping where the use of an</li> <li>The dielectric union or cou for temperature and pressu dielectric strength rating or</li> </ul>	proval from the Regional Corrosio blings may be used on small diame insulating flange kit is not feasible upling shall be constructed of a ma are operating requirements, and als f 550 Volts/Mil.	n Control Team ter instrumentation e. terial properly rated o have a minimum
Pipe Support Isolation Kits	<ul> <li>All piping shall be electrically iso</li> <li>Only Deepwater I-Rod ass supports, unless approved Engineer.</li> </ul>	lated from pipe support structures. emblies shall be used when isolati by the Regional Corrosion Contro	ng piping from pipe l Team Lead or
Installation of Cathodic Protection Systems General	<ul> <li>The purpose of this section installation of cathodic prowhen design consideration Protection Systems section</li> <li>All construction work on caccordance with constructin specifications shall be in a Protection Systems and Installation Systems and Installation Systems and Installation</li> </ul>	n is to recommend procedures that otection systems that achieve prote is recommended in the Electrical Is in of this standard have been follow eathodic protection systems shall b ion drawings and specifications. The coordance with the Electrical Isola stallation of Cathodic Protection S	shall result in the ction of the structure solation for Cathodic ed. e performed in he construction tion for Cathodic ystems sections of

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Metallic Structures		

this standard.

Construction Supervision	<ul> <li>Cathodic protection systems shall be installed, operated, and maintained by or under the direction of an individual that is qualified to perform these tasks per Appendix D of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.</li> <li>Any deviations shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer and shall be shown on as-built drawings.</li> </ul>
Galvanic Anodes Inspection and Handling	<ul> <li>Packaged anodes shall be inspected, and steps taken to assure that backfill material completely surrounds the anode. The individual container for the backfill material and anode shall be intact. If individually packaged anodes are supplied in waterproof containers, that container shall be removed before installation. Packaged anodes shall be kept dry during storage.</li> <li>Lead wire shall be securely connected to the anode. Lead wire shall be inspected for assurance that it is not damaged.</li> <li>Other galvanic anodes, such as unpacked bracelet type or ribbon, shall be inspected for assurance that dimensions conform to design specifications and that any damage during handling does not affect application. If a coating is used on bands and the inner side of bracelet anode segments, it shall be inspected and, if damaged, repaired before the anodes are installed.</li> </ul>
Installing Galvanic Anodes	<ul> <li>Galvanic anodes shall not be directly connected (i.e., welded) to the pipeline. Galvanic anodes shall always be connected to the pipeline through a test station that will allow the anode to be disconnected for testing.</li> <li>Galvanic anodes shall be installed according to the design specifications and manufacturers recommendations.</li> <li>Packaged galvanic anodes shall be backfilled with compacted native soil. Where anodes and special chemical backfill are provided separately, anodes shall be centered in special backfill which shall be compacted prior to backfilling with native soil. Care shall be exercised so that lead wires and connections are not damaged during backfill operations. Sufficient slack shall exist in lead wires to avoid strain.</li> <li>Where anodes in bracelet form are used, pipe coating beneath the anode shall be free of holidays. Care shall be taken to prevent damage to the coating when installing bracelet anodes. After applications of concrete (if used) to pipe, all coating and concrete shall be no metallic contact between the anode and the reinforcing mesh or between the reinforcing mesh and the pipe.</li> <li>Where a ribbon type anode is used, it can be trenched or plowed in, with or without special chemical backfill, as specified, and is generally laid parallel to the section of pipeline to be protected.</li> </ul>

Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Metallic Structures         Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004         R           Inspection and Handling of Impression Current Systems <ul></ul>	MPLX Gathering &	z Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
<ul> <li>Metallic Structures</li> <li>Inspection and Handling of Impression Current Systems</li> <li>The rectifier or other power source shall be inspected for assurance that connections are mechanically secure and that no damage is apparent. R the DC power source shall comply with construction specifications. Ca exercised in handling and installing.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes shall be inspected for conformance to specific concerning correct anode material and size, length of lead wire, and sec used. Care shall be exercised to avoid cracking or damaging anodes du handling and installation. Impressed current anodes made of a thin emit on substrate such as MMO or Pt/Nb shall be rejected if substra exposed. Field-applied MMO repair coating is NOT acceptable.</li> <li>Lead wires shall be carefully inspected to detect defects in insulation. C be taken to avoid damage to insulation on wire. Defects in the lead wire repaired or the anode shall be rejected. Anode-to-lead end resistance sh supplied by the anode manufacturer for each anode assembly provided.</li> <li>Rectifier or other power source shall be installed so that the possibility or vandalism is minimized.</li> <li>Wring to rectifier sshall comply with local and NEPA.70 code and requ of utility supplying power. An external disconnect switch on AC wiring provided. The rectifier case shall be properly grounded.</li> <li>When used, thermoelectric generator (TEG) cathodic protection rectific have a 'reverse current' device to prevent galvanic action between the p ICCP anodes if the flame is extinguished.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes can be buried vertically, horizontally, or in d as indicated in construction specifications. Backfill material shall be pla assure that there are no voids around anodes. Care shall be exercised d backfilling to avoid damage to the anode and wire.</li> <li>The negative lead wire shall be resilient and require verification prior to ensure p direction.</li> <li>When below grade splicing of the header cable is required, an epox</li></ul>	Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
<ul> <li>Inspection and Handling of Impression Current Systems</li> <li>The rectifier or other power source shall be inspected for assurance that connections are mechanically secure and that no damage is apparent. R the DC power source shall comply with construction specifications. Ca exercised in handling and installation. Impressed current anodes shall be inspected for conformance to specific concerning correct anode material and size, length of lead wire, and see used. Care shall be exercised to avoid cracking or damaging anodes du handling and installation. Impressed current anodes made of a thin emit on substrate such as MMO or Pt/Nb shall be inspected for acceptable.</li> <li>Lead wires shall be carefully inspected to detect defects in insulation. C be taken to avoid damage to insulation on wire. Defects in the lead wire repaired or the anode shall be rejected. Anode-to-lead end resistance sh supplied by the anode manufacturer for each anode assembly provided.</li> <li>Rectifier or other power source shall be installed so that the possibility or vandalism is minimized.</li> <li>Wiring to rectifiers shall comply with local and NFPA 70 code and requer of utility supplying power. An external disconnect soutch on AC wiring provided. The rectifier case shall be properly grounded.</li> <li>When used, thermoelectric generator (TEG) cathodic protection rectifie have a 'reverse current' device to prevent galvanic action between the p ICCP anodes if the flame is extinguished.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes can be buried vertically, horizontally, or in das indicated in construction specifications. Backfill material shall be places with the reade wire shall be resilient and require verification prior to ensergiz Polarization measurements shall be taken after energization to ensure p direction.</li> <li>When below grade splicing of the header cable is required, an epoxy sp approved equal, shall be used.</li> <li>Care shall be taken when installing direct burial cable to the anodes (po wire) to avoid damage to insul</li></ul>	Metallic Structure	S		
<ul> <li>Installation Provisions for Impressed Current Systems</li> <li>Rectifier or other power source shall be installed so that the possibility or vandalism is minimized.</li> <li>Wiring to rectifiers shall comply with local and NFPA 70 code and required of utility supplying power. An external disconnect switch on AC wiring provided. The rectifier case shall be properly grounded.</li> <li>When used, thermoelectric generator (TEG) cathodic protection rectifies have a 'reverse current' device to prevent galvanic action between the p ICCP anodes if the flame is extinguished.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes can be buried vertically, horizontally, or in du as indicated in construction specifications. Backfill material shall be pla assure that there are no voids around anodes. Care shall be exercised du backfilling to avoid damage to the anode and wire.</li> <li>The negative lead wire shall be permanently affixed to the structure. Co to the rectifier shall be resilient and require verification prior to energiz Polarization measurements shall be taken after energization to ensure p direction.</li> <li>When below grade splicing of the header cable is required, an epoxy sp approved equal, shall be used.</li> <li>Care shall be taken when installing direct burial cable to the anodes (po wire) to avoid damage to insulation. Sufficient slack shall be left to avo on all wires. Backfill material around the cable shall be free of rocks an matter that might cause damage to the wire insulation when wire is inst trench. Cable can be installed by plowing if proper precautions are take burial cables shall include metallic warning tape installed above the wir of burial depth outside of anode bed installation areas.</li> </ul>	Inspection and Handling of Impression Current Systems	<ul> <li>The rectifier or other power source shall be inspected for assurance that internal connections are mechanically secure and that no damage is apparent. Rating of the DC power source shall comply with construction specifications. Care shall be exercised in handling and installing.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes shall be inspected for conformance to specifications concerning correct anode material and size, length of lead wire, and secure cap, if used. Care shall be exercised to avoid cracking or damaging anodes during handling and installation. Impressed current anodes made of a thin emitter layer on substrate such as MMO or Pt/Nb shall be inspected for damage to the emitter layer prior to acceptance and installation and shall be rejected if substrate is exposed. Field-applied MMO repair coating is NOT acceptable.</li> <li>Lead wires shall be carefully inspected to detect defects in insulation. Care shall be taken to avoid damage to insulation on wire. Defects in the lead wire shall be repaired or the anode shall be rejected. Anode-to-lead end resistance shall be supplied by the anode manufacturer for each anode assembly provided.</li> </ul>		
	Installation Provisions for Impressed Current Systems	<ul> <li>Rectifier or other power search or vandalism is minimized.</li> <li>Wiring to rectifiers shall of of utility supplying power provided. The rectifier case.</li> <li>When used, thermoelectric have a 'reverse current' de ICCP anodes if the flame.</li> <li>Impressed current anodes as indicated in construction assure that there are no voo backfilling to avoid damag.</li> <li>The negative lead wire shat to the rectifier shall be rest Polarization measurement direction.</li> <li>When below grade splicing approved equal, shall be utility.</li> <li>Care shall be taken when twire) to avoid damage to it on all wires. Backfill mate matter that might cause datter that might cause datter that depth outside of burial depth outside of burial depth outside of the section.</li> </ul>	ource shall be installed so that the d. comply with local and NFPA 70 co c. An external disconnect switch on se shall be properly grounded. c generator (TEG) cathodic protect vice to prevent galvanic action bet is extinguished. can be buried vertically, horizonta on specifications. Backfill material bids around anodes. Care shall be e ge to the anode and wire. all be permanently affixed to the st dilient and require verification prior as shall be taken after energization ag of the header cable is required, a used. installing direct burial cable to the insulation. Sufficient slack shall be erial around the cable shall be free amage to the wire insulation when lled by plowing if proper precaution anode bed installation areas.	possibility of damage de and requirements AC wiring shall be tion rectifiers shall ween the pipe and lly, or in deep holes shall be placed to xercised during tructure. Connections to energization. to ensure proper shift an epoxy splice kit, or anodes (positive lead e left to avoid strain of rocks and foreign wire is installed in ons are taken. Direct ove the wire at half
This copy was printed on 10/14/2024 Page 9 of 14	This copy was	s printed on 10/14/2024	Paş	ge 9 of 14

MPLX Gathering & Processing Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Metallic Structures	5		
Installation Provisions for Corrosion Control Test Stations, Connections, and Bonds	<ul> <li>Pipe and test lead wires shof connection when the copipe shall be installed so the conductive.</li> <li>All test lead wire attachment electrically insulating maters shall be compatible with the Conductors shall be color be installed with slack. Date made if damage occurs. The sunlight. Above ground test the ground, adequate conditions.</li> <li>Conductor connections at shall be mechanically secure connections shall be accest the ground shall be mechanically secure.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Pipe and test lead wires shall be clean, dry, and free of foreign materials at points of connection when the connections are made. Connections of test lead wires to pipe shall be installed so they shall remain mechanically secure and electrically conductive.</li> <li>All test lead wire attachments and all bare test lead wires shall be coated with an electrically insulating material. Where the pipe is coated, the insulating material shall be compatible with the pipe coating and wire insulation.</li> <li>Conductors shall be color coded or otherwise permanently identified. Wire shall be installed with slack. Damage to insulation shall be avoided; repairs shall be made if damage occurs. Test leads shall not be exposed to excessive heat and sunlight. Above ground test stations are preferred. If test stations are flush with the ground, adequate conductor slack shall be provided with the test station to facilitate test connections.</li> <li>Conductor connections at bonds to other structures or across insulating joints shall be mechanically secure, electrically conductive, and suitably coated. Bond</li> </ul>	
Other Considerations During Installation	<ul> <li>Casing Installations: Suffice metallic contacts exist or a pipe.</li> <li>Insulating Devices: Inspect assure that electrical isolated</li> </ul>	cient inspection shall be made to en re likely to develop between the ca tion and electrical measurements s ion is adequate.	nsure that no asing and the carrier hall be sufficient to
Cathodic Protection Design and Installation Records			
Control Records	<ul> <li>The purpose of this section in a clear, concise, workab operation, maintenance, ar</li> <li>The following records sha accordance with Appendix         <ul> <li>Relative to structure</li> <li>Coating ma</li> <li>Design and facilities, ar taken</li> <li>Relative to the design be recorded:</li> <li>Results of compared</li> <li>Results of some and made</li> <li>Interference</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	h is to describe corrosion control re- ble manner, data pertinent to the de ad effectiveness of corrosion contro- ll be stored in the PCS database an a C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> . The design, the following shall be re- terial and application specification location of insulating devices, test and details of other special corrosion ign of corrosion control facilities, the current requirements tests, where m soil resistivity surveys at groundbear the tests and design of interference b	ecords that document sign, installation, ol measures. d retained in corded: is leads and other test n control measures he following shall hade d locations, where onds and drainage

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged		IDoc Number: ENG-STD-0004Rev No: 3	
Metallic Struct	ures		
	switch - - • Relative to the shall be record • Install system - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	installations Scheduling of interference tests, correspondence with Coordinating Committee, including Coordinating Committee minutes, and direct communication with the concerned companies Record of interference tests conducted, including location of tests, name of company involved, and results e installation of corrosion control facilities, the following ded: ation of cathodic protection facilities for impressed current ns: Location and date placed in service Type, size, depth, backfill, and spacing of anodes Specifications of rectifier or other energy source ation of galvanic anode systems: Location and date placed in service	
	-	Type, size, backfill, and spacing of anodes	
Definitions	Anode	An electrode that is characterized by electron loss.	
	Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of a metal surface by making it the cathode in an electrochemical cell.	
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.	
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.	
	Current Density	The current per unit area.	
	Electrical Isolation	The condition of being substantially electrically separated from other metallic structures and the environment.	
	Electrode Potential	The potential of an electrode as measured against a reference electrode.	
	Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged particles (ions) may travel. Typically soil, water, or product in this application.	
	Foreign Structure	Any structure that is not part of the subject structure.	

MPLX Gathering & Processing

Cathodic Protection for Buried or Submerged Metallic Structures		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Galvanic Anode		ypically, a prepackaged assembly tive metal (Mg, Zn, etc.) in a mois ackfill. Generally, any metal which ectrochemically active in a multi-	consisting of an sture retaining 1 is more metal system.
Galvanic Series	A re	list of metals and alloys arranged lative potentials in a given environ	according to their ment.
Holiday	A to	discontinuity of coating that expo the environment.	ses the metal surface
Impressed Current	D el	irect current supplied by a power s ectrode system.	source external to the
Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrica current interchange between metallic systems.		ontrol electrical c systems.
Isolation	Se	ee Electrical Isolation.	
Manufacturer	Direct or indirect producer of materials, fabricated components, or subassemblies.		ials, fabricated
MPLX	Fo A	or the purpose of this standard, MI ndeavor, Markwest, and Southwes	PLX shall mean st Gathering.
Polarization	TI el str of	he deviation from the open circuit ectrode resulting from the migration ructure to electrolyte interface, can current.	potential of an on of ions at the used by the passage
Reference Electrode	A si	device whose open circuit potenti milar conditions of measurement.	al is constant under
Sacrificial Protection	Ro el m	eduction or prevention of corrosio ectrolyte by galvanically coupling etal.	n of a metal in an it to a more anodic
Shared Electrolyte	El st	lectrolyte in contact with both the ructure.	electrode and the
Stray Current	Ci ci	urrent flowing through paths other rcuit.	than the intended
Structure-to-Electrolyte	Tl	he voltage difference between a m	etallic structure and
This copy was printed on 10/14/2024		Page	12 of 14

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Cathodic Protect	tion for Buried or Submerged		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3
Metallic Structu	res			
	Voltage (Also Structure-to- Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)		ference electrode in contact with a	shared electrolyte.
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.		
Waiver Process	<b>iver Process</b> Any deviation or waiver from this Standard shall be processed and documented th use of form <u>GEN-STD-0001-FOR-01</u> .			ocumented through
Forms	<u>Number</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>escription</u>	
	GEN-STD-0001-FOR-01	А	ddition, Deletion and Deviation Fo	rm
References	<u>Number</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>escription</u>	
	Appendix A	А	pproved Insulating Flange Kit Proc	lucts
	NFPA 70	N	ational Electrical Code	
	OPS-STD-0017	С	orrosion Control Governing Standa	urd
	OPS-STD-0020	А	boveground Cathodic Protection So	urveys
	OPS-STD-0025	In	terference Monitoring and Mitigati	ion

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

# **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Added Section 7.0 & Appendix A	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	10/11/2021
2	Edited Sections 6.3.1, 9.2	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
3	Reformatted to G&P Standard	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Template			

Dessived by OCD.	1/1/2025 1.00.00 DM		<b>D</b>	- 67 - 6 102
MPLX (	Jathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document	e 07 0J 403
Append	ix A – Approved Insulating Flange Kit Products	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0004	Rev No: 3	5

Brand	GPT Industries		Lamon			
Product	Evolution*	VCS / VCS ID*	Linebacker G10	Defender FS	Defender	Isoguard G10
Gasket & Retainer Materials	316L SS Core, Proprietary Retainer	316L SS Core, G-10 GRE Retainer	G-10 GRE	316 SS Core, G-10 GRE Retainer	316 SS Core, G-10 GRE Retainer	G-10 GRE
Gasket Thickness	1/8-in	1/4-in	1/8-in	1/4-in	1/4-in	1/8-in
Sleeves & Washers Materials	G-11 GRE (Mica)	G-10 GRE	G-10 GRE	Nomex sleeves, G-10 GRE washers	G-10 GRE	G-10 GRE
Sealing Element Material	Gylon	Teflon	Nitrile	Teflon	Teflon	Teflon
ANSI Maximum Pressure Class (#)	2500	2500	600	2500	2500	600
Operating Temperature Range (F)	-238 to 500	-200 to 302	-200 to 302	-238 to 302	-238 to 302	-238 to 302
Flange Compatibility (Flat Face = FF, Raised Face = RF, Ring Type Joint = RTJ)	FF, RF, RTJ	FF, RF, RTJ	FF, RF	FF, RF, RTJ	FF, RF, RTJ	FF, RF
Pipe diameter greater than 10-in	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No
Product Compatibility						
Ethanol	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	
Ethylene	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	
Fuel Oil	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	
Gas, Natural	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Gas, Sour	Х			Х		
Gasoline	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Crude Oil	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Propane	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Nitrogen	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Butane	Х			Х		
Methane	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	
Hydrocarbons	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	
Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S)	Х	X	X	X	X	
Carbon Dioxide (CO <sub>2</sub> Mix)	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	

\* Insulating gasket has an ID ring.

•

Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0005	
Ryan Ell			
Doc. Custodian:	Cathodic Protection for Tank	Rev. No.: 2	
Ryan Ell	Bottoms		
Approved by:		MPLX G&P	
Prasanna Swamy			
Date Approved: 7/11/24	Next Review Date: 6/1/25	Original Effective Date: 11/1/24	
Latest Revision Effective Date: 11/1/25			

Purpose	This Standard establishes minimum requirements for the cathodic protection of external tank bottoms to provide:	L
	<ul> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> </ul>	
	• Standardization of work procedures, materials, and inspection requirements as they pertain to cathodic protection of external tank bottoms	
Scope	This Standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering ar Processing (G&P) operated assets.	ıd
Table of	Purpose	1
Contents	Scope	1
	Tank Bottom Cathodic Protection	2
	Determination of Need	2
	Acceptable System Designs	3
	Figures	3
	Anode Grid Layout for an Undertank Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System	4
	Anode Cable Layout for a Sacrificial Anode Cathodic Protection System	5
	System Details for a Sacrificial Anode Cathodic Protection System	6
	Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System with the Anodes Distributed Around t Periphery of the Tank	he 7
	Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System with the Anodes Buried Deep Underground	7
	System Details for a Cathodic Protection System Gravel Ringwall or Earth Pad	8
	System Details for a Cathodic Protection System Gravel Ringwall or Earth Pad	8
	System Details for a Cathodic Protection System Concrete Ringwall	9
	Definitions	9
	Waiver Process	10
	Forms	10

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 1 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005	Rev No: 2

Tank Bottom Cathodic Protection Determination of Need	All new or modified aboveground tanks shall be evaluated as their need for cathodic protection. Corrosion surveys, operating records, and national, state, and local code requirements shall be used in the above evaluation. It shall be recognized that external cathodic protection shall have no effect on internal tank corrosion. Guidelines to help determine the need for cathodic protection are as follows:
	• Existing tanks being retrofitted with some mode of release prevention shall have a cathodic protection system installed, unless otherwise approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer
	<ul> <li>New aboveground storage tanks at or over 16' diameter shall be provided with a suitable cathodic protection system designed to include provisions per <u>API 651</u> and <u>NACE SP0169</u>, unless otherwise approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. Tanks below 16' diameter shall be considered for the same</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Where cathodic protection is deemed necessary, an impressed current system shall be used for existing tanks at or over 16' diameter.</li> </ul>
	• Tanks sitting directly on top of vulcanized rubber containment barriers do not require cathodic protection. An economic analysis may be performed for tanks below 16' regarding the use of galvanic or impressed current cathodic protection system.
	• Soil conditions shall be considered when determining a need for cathodic protection. In particular, soil pH, chloride content, sulfate content, and resistivity should be known. See <u>API 651</u> and <u>NACE SP0169</u> for the effect of these variables on corrosion rate to steel.
	• Other factors that shall be considered when determining the need for cathodic protection system are contained in <u>API 651</u> Section 3 and <u>NACE SP0169</u> .

IPLX Gatherin	g & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
athodic Prote	ction for Tank Bottoms	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005Rev No: 2
Acceptable System Designs	All cathodic protection systems sh final approval by the Regional Cor shall meet the -0.85 V IRF or 100 and shall be inspected in accordance • New Construction • For new construction • For new construction the determination d standard, an underta Figures Anode Grid Protection System, Protection System, Protection System. • If a tank line liner (GCL) shield catho anodes are to • Details of cathodic earth pad, or b) con for a Cathodic Prote System Details for a respectively. • A minimum of four reference electrodes shall be installed be below figure • In addition, reference electrodes shall be installed be below figure • A deep anoc Protection S • Angle drille figure Syste Ringwall or	all be installed in accordance with <u>API 651</u> and receive rosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. All systems mV polarization criteria specified in <u>NACE SP0169</u> ce with <u>API 651</u> . on, if cathodic protection is deemed necessary based on escribed in the Determination of Need section of this ank cathodic protection system shall be installed. I Layout for an Undertank Impressed Current Cathodic Anode Cable Layout for a Sacrificial Anode Cathodic and System Details for a Sacrificial Anode Cathodic show typical designs for an undertank cathodic er is to be installed, it shall be of the geosynthetic clay type. Polyethylene liners shall not be used as they will dic protection systems in the case of a) gravel ringwall or crete ringwall are shown in the figures System Details ection system Gravel Ringwall or Earth Pad and a Cathodic Protection System Concrete Ringwall, e(4) copper-copper sulfate and four (4) zinc permanent (a (placed at ~0, 1/3, 2/3, and 11/12 of the tank radius) dow the external bottom of the tank as shown in the one (1) undertank perforated polyvinyl chloride (PVC) ectrode tube shall be installed for tanks with a diameter 50 feet, while two (2) undertank perforated PVC ectrode tubes shall be installed (perpendicular to each nks with a diameter larger than 100 feet. thodic Protection Systems systems may be added to existing tanks not ift or a double bottom retrofit via one of the following or vertical anodes distributed at the periphery of the ure Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System odes Distributed Around the Periphery of the Tank le system, see figure Impressed Current Cathodic ystem with the Anodes Buried Deep Underground d anode systems extending under the tank bottom, see m Details for a Cathodic Protection System Gravel Earth Pad
gures		
This copy	was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 3 of 11

# Figures

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005	Rev No: 2



#### Notes:

• Minimum sand cover between ribbon and upper tank floor shall be 6 inches.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005	Rev No: 2



Notes: Alternate End Conditions

- All spliced connections shall be thermite fusion welds.
- All splices shall be sealed using a Durocast Universal Seal Kit, #SK-40 or approved equal.
- Minimum sand cover between sacrificial anodes and upper tank floor shall be at least 3 inches.
- Anode material shall be 1.2 lbs/ft zinc coil with cross-sectional measurements 5/8 in x 7/8 in or approved equivalent.


Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used



Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used



MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005	Rev No: 2



Typically, a prepackaged assembly consisting of an active metal (Mg, Zn, etc.). Generally, any metal which is more electrochemically active in a multi-metal system.

Direct current supplied by a power source external to the electrode system.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Galvanic Anode

Impressed Current

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005 Rev No: 2
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
	Retrofitted Double Bottom Above-Ground Storage Tanks	An above-ground storage tank with a second bottom installed through a slot in the shell several inches above the original bottom with various media, often sand, between the two bottoms. Leak detection, release prevention, and possibly cathodic protection systems are installed between the bottoms.
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from t use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	his Standard shall be processed and documented through <u>OR-01</u> .
Forms	Number	Description
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
References	Number	<b>Description</b>
	API 651	Cathodic Protection of Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tanks
	ASTM 265	Standard Specification for Titanium and Titanium Alloy Strip, Sheet, and Plate
	NACE SP0169	Control of External Corrosion on Underground or Submerged Metallic Piping Systems
Records Retention	Do not retain printed copies of document will be retained inde	this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this finitely.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Cathodic Protection for Tank Bottoms	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0005	Rev No: 2

#### **Revision History**

Revision Number	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2023
1	Reformatted to G&P Standard Template	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
2	ICCP anode system drawing updated, vulcanized rubber containment lining section added	Ryan Ell	Prasanna Swamy	11/1/2024

Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0006
Ryan Ell		
Doc. Custodian:	Coating of Aboveground Pipelines	Rev. No.: 4
Ryan Ell	and Facilities	
Approved by:		MPLX G&P
Prasanna Swamy		
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024

Purpose	This standard provides requirements for surface preparation and coating applications on aboveground pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, non-galvanized structural steel, etc.) to provide:		
	<ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended coating service life for the asset</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, color schemes, and inspection requirements as they pertain to field coating</li> </ul>		
Scope	This Standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.		
Table of	Purpose1		
Contents	Scope		
	Aboveground Coating		
	Requirements1		
	Surface Preparation		
	Coating Materials		
	Application		
	Inspection		
	Definitions		
	Waiver Process		
	Forms		
	References		
	Records Retention		
	Revision History		
Aboveground Coating Requirements	• Aboveground pipelines and facilities shall be coated to protect against		

• Aboveground pipelines and facilities shall be coated to protect against atmospheric corrosion unless it can be demonstrated by test, investigation, or experience to the environment that corrosion shall only be a light surface oxide and/or not affect the safe operation of the pipeline or facility before the next scheduled inspection.

o The exception does not apply to offshore splash zones or transition (soil-

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4

air) interfaces, which shall always be coated to protect against atmospheric corrosion.

- Individuals performing coating application and inspection work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.
  - The following items shall be cleaned and coated prior to delivery to the job site:
    - Vessels, exchangers, and drums constructed of carbon steel.
    - Carbon steel shop fabricated piping including nozzles, attachments, and backs of flanges, but not machined surfaces. Flange faces shall not be coated. Bolt threads shall be coated after flange assembly.
    - Structural steel that is not galvanized shall be coated including contact surfaces. Coating applied on surfaces to be fireproofed shall be compatible with the fireproof material to be used.
    - The exterior of heater and fired heater jackets, walks, handrails, supports, breaching, ducts, and stacks shall all be coated.
- The following surfaces shall be coated with the manufacturer's standard surface preparation and finish:
  - Hand or mechanically operated valves and piping specialties such as traps, strainers, and filters.
  - Pumps, bases, compressors, motors, turbines, conveyors, and similar machinery.
  - Electrical equipment, instruments, gages, and local instrument panels shall be finished with the manufacturer's standard finish. Instrument panels in control rooms shall be finished as described in the instrument specifications.
- If the manufacturer's standard does not include coating, then the surfaces shall be coated per <u>Appendix A</u>.
- The coating contractor shall properly clean and spot prime all damaged areas of shop applied primers (or previously applied coatings) before applying succeeding coatings. Any items not primed in the shop, but specified for a shop prime coat, shall be cleaned, and primed in the field.
- It is intended that all exposed carbon steel surfaces, including surfaces of insulated equipment, shall be coated. Insulated stainless steel shall be coated. The following shall be evaluated on an individual basis:
  - Grating
  - Stair treads
  - Galvanized steel
  - Vendor shop finished items
  - Cast-iron hardware
- The following surfaces shall not be coated unless specifically required by MPLX or otherwise noted in this standard or in the job specifications:
  - Non-ferrous metals, such as but not limited to aluminum, copper, and copper alloys
  - Machined parts of operating equipment
  - Gasket surfaces
  - Exterior surface of insulation

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard I	Document
Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4
	<ul> <li>Composites, plastics</li> <li>Brick, concrete, (inc wood products</li> <li>Nameplates, identifii</li> <li>Weld joint areas of p</li> <li>Operating metal surface tem coated. If none is available,</li> <li>This standard does not cove</li> </ul>	a, and other resinous products luding precast products), fiber board cation tags, and sight glasses biping and fittings to be field welded aperature shall be specified for each of the specified design temperature sha r architectural coating.	products, and component to be ll be used.
Surface Preparation	<ul> <li>Surfaces shall be prepared a Protective Coatings (SSPC) as indicated in the coat man preparation for the coat syst</li> <li>Where <u>SSPC SP-1</u>, <u>SSPC S</u> means that the surface shall contamination that would ac coating.</li> <li>Hand and power tool cleanin spatter, sharp edges and othe burnishing of the prepared s</li> <li>Abrasive blasting shall not b than 5°F above the dew poin prepared surface is degraded and prior to coat application cleanliness. See <u>Appendix F</u> temperature and humidity.</li> <li>The abrasive media used in</li> <li>Studies have shown that coat times as long as wire brushe varying degrees of anchor p Beauty and VitroGrit, see ta</li> </ul>	and cleaned in accordance with the Sec specifications indicated in the Coati- ufacturer's printed instructions speci- em to be used. P-2, or <u>SSPC SP-3</u> is indicated for m- be clean, dry, and free of dirt, dust, of dversely affect the adhesion or appea- ng shall be conducted so as to remov- er irregularities, but to minimize poli- burface. De performed if the steel surface temp nt or if the relative humidity is greated d or contaminated subsequent to surf a, the surface shall be restored to the to determine dew point relative to a blast cleaning shall meet <u>SSPC AB-</u> ating over abrasive blasted steel has 1 ed steel. Various abrasives can be sel atterns. Some of the more common of ble below.	bciety of ng Schedule, and fying surface letal surfaces, it pils, or any rance of the e burrs, weld ishing or perature is less er than 80%. If the ace preparation specified umbient air 1 requirements. asted up to three ected to produce ones are Black

Anchor Profile	Product
1.0 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade
1.5 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade
2.0 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade
2.5 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade
3-4 mil	Black Beauty 1240 - Medium Grade
1.5+ mil	VitroGrit #70 - Super Fine

### **Common Abrasives**

This copy was printed on 10/21/2024

Page 3 of 10

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Docur	ment	
Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No. 4	
Couring of 1000 regional i fpennes and i activities Doe runnoer. Erro-51D-0000 Kev 110. 4				
	1.5 - 2.5 mil	VitroGrit #50 - Fine		
	2.5 - 3.5 mil	VitroGrit #30/50 - Medium/Fine		
	3.0 - 4.0 mil	VitroGrit #16/30 - Coarse/Medium		
Coating Materials	<ul> <li>Only the products listed in Regional Corrosion Control         <ul> <li>The use of tape wrate as it is ultraviolet (In Acceptable tape wree 0009).</li> </ul> </li> <li>The preferred coating system 6 option:         <ul> <li>Primer Coat: Sherwin</li> <li>Any deviations from the preferred and signed completed and signed co</li></ul></li></ul>	Appendix A shall be used, unless approved of Team Lead or Engineer. up is acceptable on aboveground pipeline sp UV) resistant or protected with a UV protect ap products are listed in Appendix A of EN em for Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities vin Williams Macropoxy 646 Williams Acrolon 218HS roducts listed in Appendix A shall be accompy of ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03.	d by the pans as long ctive coating. <u>VG-STD-</u> es is the AG- mpanied with	
Application	<ul> <li>All work shall be performed in accordance with <u>SSPC PA-1</u>, the coating manufacturer's recommendations, and this standard.</li> <li>All materials shall be applied in smooth, even coats without runs, sags, or bare spots. Dry film thickness where indicated in <u>Appendix A</u> is the minimum required.</li> <li>All valve stems, glass, moving parts, bearings, couplings, shafts, lubricant fittings, equipment nameplates, or other important or sensitive parts shall be protected from damage by coating operations including over spray, dripping, and sandblasting. Any coat falling on, or applied to, such surfaces shall be removed. All such parts may be coated with rust preventatives or strippable coatings.</li> <li>The air, surface, and coating temperature at the time of application shall be at a minimum temperature of 50°F, unless specified by manufacturer, and 5°F above dew point. If construction completion occurs during unsuitable weather, it is not detrimental to leave the steel uncoated until weather conditions are suitable for coating. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.</li> </ul>			
Inspection	<ul> <li>All coated pipeline and tan of the coating may be requ Team Lead or Engineer. A repaired using compatible coating repairs shall be ins to prevent damage.</li> <li>CAUTION: Holiday voltag manufacturer's specification</li> </ul>	k surfaces shall be visually inspected. Holi ired at the request of the Regional Corrosic Il holidays and areas of damaged coating sl system/material(s) immediately after detect pected after repair coating system has cured ges shall be adequate in accordance with co ons but shall not exceed coating manufacture	day testing on Control hall be tion. All d sufficiently pating rer's	

This copy was printed on 10/21/2024

specifications. Exceeding coating manufacturer's recommendations can damage

the coating and cause premature failures.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4

- For holiday detectors with built-in metering ability, the unit's readout voltage shall be recorded in open circuit (HV) and shorted (ground to coil) state at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For high voltage (>100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For low voltage (≤100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool, or a calibrated digital multimeter in "DC Volts" mode, at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- All holiday detectors shall be calibrated annually by the manufacturer.
- The inspection times and voltage readings shall be recorded as part of the coating inspection documentation process.
- The holiday detector coil, brush, and/or other contact devices shall contact the entire coated surface.
- The coating contractor shall permit inspection of all phases of work by the Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC) such as:
  - Atmospheric conditions, such as temperature, humidity, dew point
  - Surface preparation equipment
  - Steel surfaces prior to surface preparation
  - o Steel surfaces following cleaning and surface preparation
  - Coat application equipment
  - Coat material containers and identification labels
  - Coat application process
  - Coat film quality and thickness, wet and dry
- For coatings on new pipeline or tank assets, the Inspector/PIC shall, determine and record the information requested on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01</u> and/or <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02</u>. The contractor representative shall maintain this record if the Inspector/PIC is not present.
- For recoats on existing pipeline or tank assets:
  - If the recoat area is less than or equal to 1 square foot, no inspection documentation is required for records.
  - If the recoat area is greater than 1 square foot, the Inspector/PIC shall, determine and record the information requested on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04</u>. The contractor representative shall maintain this record if the Inspector/PIC is not present.

Definitions	Anchor Profile	The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surface coating.
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to the MPLX.
This copy	was printed on 10/21/2024	Page 5 of 10

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4	

Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
Dew Point	Temperature at which moisture will condense on the surface.
Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.
Manufacturer	The recipient of a direct or indirect purchase order for materials and/or equipment. In this context, a direct order is one issued to a manufacturer by a contractor or MPLX. An indirect order is one issued to a manufacturer by a vendor (recipient of a direct order) for materials, fabricated components, or subassemblies.
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.

**Waiver Process** Any deviation or waiver from this Standard shall be processed and documented through use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>.

Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01	Pipeline Coating Packet
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02	Tank Coating Packet
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03	Coating Variance Request Form
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04	Maintenance Coating Form
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	Appendix A	Coating Systems for Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities
	Appendix B	Dew Point Calculation Chart
	ENG-STD-0009	Coating of Transition Areas Standard
This copy w	vas printed on 10/21/2024	Page 6 of 10

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<b>Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4	
SSPC AB-1	Mineral and Slag Abrasives		
SSPC PA-1	Shop, Field and Maintenance Coating		
SSPC SP-1	Solvent Cleaning		

SSPC SP-2	Hand Tool Cleaning
SSPC SP-3	Power Tool Cleaning

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 4.2, 8.1, &	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
	Appendix A			
2	Appendix A reformatted, AS-	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	1/24/2023
	17 category description			
	changed			
3	NACE CIP 1 requirement for	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Inspectors removed, only			
	requiring OQs now. Inspection			
	section edited to include			
	documentation requirements for			
	recoat projects and introduce			
	new Maintenance Coating			
	form. Reformatted to G&P			
	Standard Template.			
4	Preferred coating system	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	section added	-	Swamy	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Aboveground Pipelines	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006		
and Facilities			

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature (Primer Coat)	Minimum Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Primer Coat	Intermediate Coat	Top Coat
Marine Industrial Environment	AG-1	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 0°F and 130°F	SP-6	1.0 - 3.0	Carboline Carbozinc 11 Series (IOZ) ( <i>Touch up of Carbozinc 11 should be done</i> with Carbozinc 859VOC Organic Zinc Primer) <b>Total DFT:</b> 2 to 3 mils <b>Color:</b> 0300 (Green)	Carboline Carboguard 60 or 890VOC/891VOC (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> 0700 (Light Gray)	Carboline Carboxane 2100 Series (PS) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 7 mils <b>Color:</b> 1864 (Vestal White)
Marine Industrial Environment	AG-2	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 40°F and 100°F	SP-6	2.0 - 3.0	Sherwin Williams Zinc Clad XI(IOZ) <b>Total DFT:</b> 2 to 4 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray	Sherwin Williams Macropoxy 646- 100 (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 5 to 10 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple	Sherwin Williams Sherloxane 800 (PS) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Inland Industrial Environment	AG-3	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 50°F and 110°F	SP-6	1.5 - 3.0	Carboline Carboguard 60 or 890VOC/891VOC (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> O700 (Light Gray)	-	Carboline Carboxane 2100 Series (PS) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 7 mils <b>Color:</b> 1864 (Vestal White)
Inland Industrial Environment	AG-4	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 35°F and 140°F	SP-6	2.0	Sherwin Williams Recoatable Epoxy Primer (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple	-	Sherwin Williams Hi-Solids Polyurethane (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Inland Industrial Environment	AG-5	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 35°F and 120°F	SP-6	2.0 - 3.0	Sherwin Williams Dura-Plate 301 (AEM) Total DFT: 5 to 10 mils Color: Multiple	-	Sherwin Williams Sherloxane 800 (PS) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Inland Industrial Environment	AG-6	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 40°F and 140°F	SP-6	2.0	Sherwin Williams Macropoxy 646 (AEM) Total DFT: 5 to 10 mils Color: Multiple	-	Sherwin Williams Acrolon 218HS (PU) Total DFT: 3 to 5 mils Color: Multiple
Industrial Environment		Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel or Galvanized Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 20°F and 100°F	SP-2	-	Carboline Carbomastic 615 AL (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 5 to 10 mils <b>Color:</b> C901 (Aluminum)	-	Carboline Carboxane 2100 Series (PS) Total DFT: 3 to 7 mils Color: 1864 (Vestal White)
Industrial Environment	AG-7	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel or Galvanized Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 50°F and 100°F	SP-2	-	Carboline Carbomastic 15 (EM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> C901 (Aluminum)	-	Carboline Carbothane 134 Series (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 2 to 3 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Industrial Environment		Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel or Galvanized Steel	Up to 200°F	Between 35°F and 120°F	SP-2	-	Sherwin Williams Epoxy Mastic Alum II (EM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> Aluminum	-	Sherwin Williams Sherloxane 800 (PS) Total DFT: 4 to 6 mils Color: Multiple
Industrial Environment	AG-8	Bare or Previously Coated Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 150°F	Between -20°F and 120°F <i>(Surface must be above 50°F)</i>	SP-2	-	Denso Protal ST Epoxy Mastic (EM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 8 to 10 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray	-	Denso Archco 65 (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Industrial Environment	AG-9	Exterior Carbon Steel Insulating Coating	Up to 325°F	Between 40°F and 200°F	SP-6	1.0 - 2.0	Tnemec Series 1224 Epoxoline WB (WBE) Total DFT: 4 to 8 mils Color: White	Tnemec Aerolon Acrylic Series 971 (TIC) Total DFT: 80 to 100 mils Color: Yellow	Tnemec Enduratone Series 1028T (WA) <b>Total DFT:</b> 2 to 3 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Industrial Environment	AG-10	Bollards and Guard Rails, CMU Buildings/ Structures, Firewater Lines, Safety Showers	Up to 235°F	Between 50°F and 110°F	SP-2	-	-	-	Carboline Carbocrylic 3359 Series (WA) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Industrial Environment	AG-11	Exterior of Floating Roof or Insulated Carbon Steel (Up to 140°F)	Up to 300°F (Carboguard 60)	Between 50°F and 110°F	SP-6	1.5 - 3.0	Carboline Carboguard 60 or 890VOC/891VOC (AEM)	-	Carboline Carboguard 60 or 890VOC/891VOC (AEM)

This copy was printed on 10/21/2024

Page 8 of 10

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Aboveground Pipelines	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006
and Facilities	

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature (Primer Coat)	Minimum Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Primer Coat	Intermediate Coat	Top Coat
			Up to 300°F (Carboguard 890VOC/891VOC)				Total DFT: 4 to 6 mils Color: 0700 (Light Gray)		Total DFT: 4 to 6 mils Color: 0800 (White)
Industrial Environment	AG-12	Insulated Carbon Steel	Up to 425°F	Between 50°F and 100°F	SP-10	2.0 - 3.0	Carboline Thermaline 450 (NE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 8 mils <b>Color:</b> 0500 (Red)	-	Carboline Thermaline 450 (NE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 8 mils <b>Color:</b> 5742 (Gray)
Industrial Environment	AG-13	Insulated or Non- Insulated Carbon Steel	Up to 1000°F, with Peaks to 1200°F	Between 50°F and 120°F	SP-10	1.5 - 2.0	Dampney Thurmalox 245 (HRS) Total DFT (Insulated): 3 to 4 mils Total DFT (Non-Insulated): 1.5 to 2 mils Color: Gray	-	Dampney Thurmalox 230 (HRS) *Only use a top coat if steel is Non- Insulated <b>Total DFT:</b> 1.5 to 2 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray
Industrial Environment	AG-14	Insulated or Non- Insulated Carbon Steel	Up to 1200°F	Between 45°F and 100°F	SP-10	2.0 - 3.0	Carboline Thermaline Heat Shield <b>Total DFT:</b> 7 to 10 mils <b>Color:</b> (0700) Metallic Grey, (J700) Darker Metallic Grey	-	-
Industrial Environment	AG-15	Insulated Stainless Steel	Up to 1000°F, with Peaks to 1100°F	Between 50°F and 120°F	SP-1	-	Dampney Thurmalox 70 (HRS) Total DFT: 3 to 4 mils (w/ 2 coats) Color: Black	-	-
Industrial Environment	AG-16	Exterior of Floating Roof or Insulated Carbon Steel (Up to 140°F)	Up to 250°F	Between 40°F and 120°F	SP-6	2.0-3.0	Sherwin Williams Macropoxy 646-100 (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> Light Gray	-	Sherwin Williams Macropoxy 646- 100 (AEM) <b>Total DFT:</b> 4 to 6 mils <b>Color:</b> White
Industrial Environment	AG-17	Bollards and Guard Rails, CMU Buildings/ Structures, Firewater Lines, Safety Showers, or Small Coating Repairs on Exterior Carbon Steel	Up to 250°F	Between 50°F and 120°F	SP-2	-	-	-	Sherwin Williams Pro Industrial DTM Acrylic (WA) <b>Total DFT:</b> 2 to 4 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple

Type Codes:

AEM	Aluminum Epoxy Mastic	PS	Polysiloxane
EM	Epoxy Mastic	PU	Polyurethane
HRS	Heat Resistance Silicone	TIC	Thermal Insulation
IOZ	Inorganic Zinc	WA	Waterborne Acrylic
NE	Novolac Epoxy	WBE	Water-Based Epoxy

Rev No: 4

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<b>Appendix B – Dew Point Calculation Chart</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0006	Rev No: 4	

Air Amb Temperat	ient ure °F	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90	100	110	120
	90	18	28	37	47	57	67	77	87	97	107	117
	85	17	26	36	45	55	65	75	84	95	104	113
	80	16	25	34	44	54	63	73	82	98	102	110
	75	15	24	33	42	52	62	71	80	91	100	108
	70	13	23	31	40	50	60	68	78	88	96	105
%	65	12	20	29	38	47	57	66	76	85	93	103
Relative	60	11	19	27	36	45	55	64	73	83	92	101
Humidity	55	9	17	25	34	43	53	61	70	80	89	98
	50	6	15	23	31	40	50	59	67	77	86	94
	45	4	13	21	29	37	47	56	64	73	82	91
	40	1	11	18	26	35	43	52	61	69	78	87
	35	-2	8	16	23	31	40	48	57	65	74	83
	30	-6	4	13	20	28	36	44	52	61	69	77

This copy was printed on 10/21/2024

•

MPL	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-01
	Form	Pag DATE:	e 1 of 8 Rev:
	T OFTIT	4/1/2021	0

# Daily Progress Report

# **Project Information**

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Pipe Description	
Upstream Weld # to Downstream Weld # (or) Facility	

# Summary

Mainline	# of Welds	Blast Media	Coating	Estimated Surface Area (ft²)	Station # to Station G Station# to Station G		on GPS ion GPS	
Mainine								
Fittings/Laterals	# of Welds	Blast Media	Coating	Estimated Surface Area (ft²)	Station # to Station GP Station# to Station G		on GPS ion GPS	
	# of Welds	Blast Media	Coating	Estimated Surface Area (ft²)	Statior Statio	n # to on#	Statio to Stat	on GPS ion GPS
Facility Piping	# of Welds	Blast Media	Coating	Estimated Surface Area (ft²)	Faci	lity	Facili	ty GPS
5 1 5								

Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-01
Form	Pac DATE: 4/1/2021	e 2 of 8 Rev: 0

Daily Progress Report

Description of Work Completed Today in Detail

Inspector's Signature	Date
NACE Certification #	

MPLX	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-01
	Form		e 3 of 8 Rev:
	FOLITI	4/1/2021	0

## Surface Preparation

Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Pipe Description	
Upstream Weld # to Downstream Weld # (or) Facility	

#### Ambient Conditions

Date		
Inspector & NACE Certification #		
Inspection Tool / Serial #		
Time		
Item / Area Description		
Air Temperature		
Relative Humidity		
Dew Point		
Surface Temperature		
Comments		

#### Blasted Surface Measurements

SSPC Specification	
Specified Anchor Profile	
Blast Media	
Inspector & NACE Certification #	
Inspector Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

MPLx	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-01	
		Page 4 of 8		
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

# Surface Preparation

Weld #	Weld Type	Station
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Weld #	Weld Type	Station
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Weld #	Weld Type	Station
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Weld #	Weld Type	Station
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Weld #	Weld Type	Station
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE

Note: Place an X in the corner box indicating in which quadrant the reading was taken.

	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01				
		Page 5 of 8				
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## **Application Parameters**

#### Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Pipe Description	
Upstream Weld # to Downstream Weld # (or) Facility	

#### Ambient Conditions

Date		
Inspector & NACE Certification #		
Inspection Tool / Serial #		
Time		
Item / Area Description		
Air Temperature		
Relative Humidity		
Dew Point		
Surface Temperature		
Comments		

#### Material Information

	Stripe Code	Primer Coat	Intermediate Coat	Top Coat
Product Name				
Batch #				
Batch Date				
Second Part				
Thinner Used				
Application Method				
		1	1	
Paint Used (gal)				
Area Painted (Sq Ft)				
Wet Film – Measured				
Dry Film – Measured				

MPL <sub>X</sub>	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01				
		Page 6 of 8				
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

#### Material Information

	Stripe Code	Primer Coat	Intermediate Coat	Top Coat
Comments				

## Dry Film Thickness

#### Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Pipe Description	
Upstream Weld # to Downstream Weld # (or) Facility	

#### Dry Film Thickness Measurements

Inspector & NACE Certification #	
Inspection Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

Item / Area	Spot	R	Readings		Aug	Item / Area	Spot	Readings			A. 10
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range		mils				Specified DFT Range	mils		mils		
DFT Range Achieved				mils		DFT Range Achieved				mils	
Item / Area	Spot	Readings		A	Item / Area	Spot	R	eading	IS	A. 10	
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				

	Pipeline Coa	ating	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01			
	F				e 7 of 8	
8	Fo	rm	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		
Specified DFT Range	mils		Specified DFT Range	ge mils		
DFT Range Achieved	mils		DFT Range Achieved		mils	

Note: Complete a separate report for change in Coating Material, Application Method, or Batch.

### Dry Film Thickness

Item / Area	Spot	Readings		Litem / Area		Spot	R	Ava			
Description Meas	Meas	1	2	3	Avg	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avy
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range		mils				Specified DFT Range	mils		mils		
DFT Range Achieved		mils				DFT Range Achieved			mils		
Item / Area	Spot	R	Readings		Ava	Item / Area	Spot	Readings			A
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg [	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avy
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range		mils				Specified DFT Range	mils				
DFT Range Achieved				mils		DFT Range Achieved	mils				

Note: Complete a separate report for change in Coating Material, Application Method, or Batch.

	Pipeline Coating Packet	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01					
		Pag	e 8 of 8				
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0				

## Holiday Testing

Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Pipe Description	
Upstream Weld # to Downstream Weld # (or) Facility	

### Holiday Detection Report

Inspector & NACE Certification #	
Inspection Tool / Serial #	
Calibration Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

Date	Station Start	GPS Start	Station End	GPS End	Voltage	Repairs	Comments

MPL <del>x</del> -	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02
	_	Page 1 of 7	
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

## Daily Progress Report

# **Project Information**

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Tank Description	

## Summary

	Location	Estimated Surface Area (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Blast Media	Coating
Shell Steel (Interior / Exterior)				
	Location	Estimated Surface Area (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Blast Media	Coating
Floor (Interior / Exterior)				
· · · · ·				
	Location	Estimated Surface Area (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Blast Media	Coating
Roof (Interior / Exterior)				
	Location	Estimated Surface Area (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Blast Media	Coating
Piping				
	Location	Estimated Surface Area (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Blast Media	Coating
Final Jeep				

# Description of Work Completed Today in Detail

Inspector's Signature	Date
NACE Certification #	

	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02
		Page 2 of 7	
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

## Surface Preparation

### Project Information

Project Name	
Location of Work	
Tank Description	

#### **Ambient Conditions**

Date					
Inspector & NACE Certification #					
Inspection Tool / Serial #					
Time					
Location					
Air Temperature					
Relative Humidity					
Dew Point					
Surface Temperature					
Comments					

#### Blasted Surface Measurements

SSPC Specification	
Specified Anchor Profile	
Blast Media	
Inspection Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

MPL	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-0		
		Page 3 of 7		
	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

## Surface Preparation

Location		
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Location		
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Location		
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Location		
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE
Location		
PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE	PRESS-0-FILM HERE

Note: Place an X in the corner box indicating in which quadrant the reading was taken.

	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02			
		Page 4 of 7				
ß	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## **Application Parameters**

Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Tank Description	

#### **Ambient Conditions**

Date		
Inspector & NACE Certifcation #		
Inspection Tool / Serial #		
Time		
Item / Area Description		
Air Temperature		
Relative Humidity		
Dew Point		
Surface Temperature		
Paint Temperature		
Comments		

#### Material Information

	Stripe Coat	Primer Coat	Intermediate Coat	Top Coat
Product Name				
Batch				
Batch Date				
Second Part				
Thinner Used				
Application Method				
Paint Used (Gal)				
Area Pained (Sq Ft)				
Wet Film – Measured				
Dry Film – Measured				
Comments				

	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02			
		Page 5 of 7				
ß	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

### Dry Film Thickness

Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Tank Description	

## Dry Film Thickness Measurements

Inspector & NACE Certification #	
Inspection Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

Item / Area	Spot	Readings		Ανα	Item / Area	Spot	Readings			Ava	
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avy	
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range				mils		Specified DFT Range				mils	
DFT Range Achieved				mils		DFT Range Achieved	mils				
Item / Area	Spot Re		Readings		A	Item / Area	Spot	Readings			Ava
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range				mils		Specified DFT Range	mils				
		-			1		mils				

Note: Complete a separate report for change in Coating Material, Application Method, or Batch.

	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02
		Pag	e 6 of 7
®	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

## Dry Film Thickness

Item / Area	Spot	Readings		Ave	Item / Area	Spot	R	Δυσ			
Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avg	Description	Meas	1	2	3	Avy
	А						А				
	В						В				
	С						С				
	D						D				
	E						E				
Specified DFT Range				mils		Specified DFT Range				mils	
DFT Range Achieved				mils		DFT Range Achieved				mils	
		Readings									
Item / Area	Spot	R	eading	JS	Ave	Item / Area	Spot	R	eading	IS	A. 10
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas	R 1	eading 2	js 3	Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas	R 1	eading 2	IS 3	Avg
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A	R 1	eading 2	s 3	Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A	R 1	eading 2	3	• Avg
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B	R 1	eading 2	3	- Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B	R	eading 2	3	· Avg
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C	R 1	2	3 3	- Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C	R	eading 2	3	· Avg
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C D	R 1	2	3 3	- Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C D	R)	eading 2	3	• Avg
Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C D E	R 1	2	3	· Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C D E	R	eading 2	3	Avg
Item / Area Description Specified DFT Range	Spot Meas A B C D E	R 1	2	js 3 mils	Avg	Item / Area Description	Spot Meas A B C D E	R	eading 2	a mils	Avg

Note: Complete a separate report for change in Coating Material, Application Method, or Batch.

	Tank Coating Packet	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-02			
		Page 7 of 7				
®	Form	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## Holiday Testing

### Project Information

Project Name / AFE #	
Location of Work	
Tank Description	

# Dry Film Thickness

Inspector & NACE Certification #	
Inspection Tool / Serial #	
Calibration Tool / Serial #	
Comments	

Date	Location	Surface Area (Sq Ft)	Voltage	Repairs	Comments

Recei <del>ved by OCD: 4/1/2025 1:00</del>	Coating Variance Request	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-03	t of 483
	Form	Pag DATE: 4/1/2021	e 1 of 2 Rev: 0	

Project / N	viaintenance Item		I	
	Properties	MPLX Specified Product(s)	Proposed Proc	luct(s)
Name				
Chemical Ty	ре			
Percent Solid	ds by Volume			
VOCs (g/L)				
Coverage pe	r Gallon at 1 mil DFT (ft <sup>2</sup> )			
DFT per Coa	t (mils)			
Number of C	coats Required			
SSPC Surface	e Preparation			
Colors				
Finish				
Max Pot Life	Time at 75°F			
Min/Max Dry at 75°F	to Recoat or Topcoat Time			
Min Cure Tin	ne at 75°F			
Min/Max App	plication Temperature (°F)			
Max Service	Temperature (°F)			
Adhesion (ps	si), ASTM D4541			
Abrasion Res (1000 cycles	sistance (mg), ASTM D4060 /CS-17 wheel/1 kg load)			
Cathodic Dis ASTM G95 (2	bondment (mm), 28 days at 77°F)			
Compatibil	ity (Internal Only)			
Crude Ser	rvice			
Refined F	uels			
Ethanol				
Acids				
Alkalines				
Strong Sc	lvent			
Potable Water				
Waste Wa	ater			
Approval	Name	Title	Signature	Date

\* Any substitution or variation must be approved by MPLX's Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer before the start of work. The Contractor shall submit the MPLX Coating Variance Request Form, along with the SDS and technical datasheets, for the proposed substitution. **Released to Imaging:** 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

.

Г

i <del>red by OCD: 4/1/2025 1:00:0</del>	Coating Variance Request	ENG-STD-	<i>Page 10</i> 0006-FOR-03	<b>5</b> 0j
	Form	Pag DATE: 4/1/2021	e 2 of 2 Rev: 0	-
				<u> </u>
Remarks				

\* Any substitution or variation must be approved by MPLX's Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead, or Engineer before the start of work. The Contractor shall submit the MPLX Coating Variance Request Form, along with the SDS and technical datasheets, for the proposed substitution.

	Maintenance Coating	ENG-STD	-0006-FOR-04
		Pag	ge 1 of 2
6	Form	DATE: 5/17/2023	Rev: 0

General Information						
Asset Name:						
Location of Work:						
Pipe/Tank Description:						
GPS Coordinates:						
Material Ir	formation					
Product Name:						
Part A Batch # & Date:						
Part B Batch # & Date:						
Thinner Used:						
Application Method:	🗆 Spray 🗆 Roller 🗆 Brush					
Coating Amount Used (Gal):						
Linear Feet Coated (ft):						
Comments:						
Surface Preparation En	vironmental Conditions					
Date / Time:						
Inspector Name:						
Inspection Lool(s) Name & Serial #:						
Tool Calibration Date (Calibrate Annually):						
Air Temperature (F):						
Substrate Temperature (F):						
Relative Humidity (%):						
Dew Point Temperature (F):						
The substrate temperature at least 5 degrees	🖾 Yes 🗆 No					
SSDC SD Specification:						
Blast Modia:						
Coating Application En	vironmental Conditions					
Date / Time·	An onmental conditions					
Air Temperature (F)						
Substrate Temperature (F)						
Relative Humidity (%):						
Dew Point Temperature (F):						
Is Substrate Temperature at least 5 degrees						
Fahrenheit warmer than Dew Point Temperature?	LI YES LI NO					
Comments:						
Holiday	Testing					
Date:						
Inspector Name:						
Inspection Tool Name & Serial #:						
Tool Calibration Date (Calibrate Annually):						
Inspection Tool Voltage:						
Number of Repairs:						
Comments:						

Notes:

Follow manufacturers requirements.
 Abrasive blasting and coating application shall not be performed if the steel surface temperature is less than 5°F above the dew point or if the relative humidity is greater than 80%.

3. When repairing with Viscotaq, a full encirclement wrap around the pipe is required.

MPL	Maintenance Coating	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04		
		Page 2 of 2		
	Form	DATE: 5/17/2023	Rev: 0	

### Dew Point Calculation Chart

Ambient Temperat °F	Air ture	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90	100	110	120
	90	18	28	37	47	57	210	77	87	97	107	117
	85	17	26	36	45	55	65	75	84	95	104	113
	80	16	25	34	44	54	63	73	82	98	102	110
o/	75	15	24	33	42	52	62	71	80	91	100	108
	70	13	23	31	40	50	60	68	78	88	96	105
	65	12	20	29	38	47	57	66	76	85	93	103
Relative	60	11	19	27	36	45	55	64	73	83	92	101
Humidity	55	9	17	25	34	43	53	61	70	80	89	98
	50	6	15	23	31	40	50	59	67	77	86	94
	45	4	13	21	29	37	47	56	64	73	82	91
	40	1	11	18	26	35	43	52	61	69	78	87
	35	-2	8	16	23	31	40	48	57	65	74	83
	30	-6	4	13	20	28	36	44	52	61	69	77

Gathering & Processing Standard Document								
Authored by: Rvan Ell			Doc No.: ENG-STD-0007					
Doc. Custodian:		Internal Tank Linings	Rev. No.: 2					
Ryan Ell		internal rank Linings						
Scott Stampka			MPLX G&P					
Date Approved: 07	7/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023					
Purpose Scope	This standard Com The i Stand requi This Standar	d provides requirements for internal tank linin pliance with regulatory requirements (for reg ntended service life of the pertinent tank and lardization of work procedures, materials, col rements d applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum L	ng applications so as to provide: ulated breakout tanks) tank lining lor schemes, and inspection ogistics (MPLX) Gathering and					
	Processing (	G&P) operated assets.						
Table of	Purpose1							
Contents	Scope1							
	Tank Linings							
	Requireme	ents						
	Surface Pr	eparation	2					
	Lining Ma	terials						
	Applicatio	n						
	Inspection							
	Definitions							
	Waiver Proc	ess						
	Forms							
	References		6					
	Records Ret	ention	6					
	Revision His	story	7					
Tank Linings								
Requirements	<ul><li>Intern</li><li>All N</li></ul>	hal tank linings shall be installed in accordance IPLX tank linings meet the requirements for	ce with <u>API 652</u> . containing:					

- $\circ$  Crude up to 140°F
- Ethanol (with the exception of Plasite 4500FS)
- Refined products
- Biofuels up to 120°F
- $\circ$  Marine diesel up to 140°F
- For lining selection for products not covered in the list above, contact the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.
| MPLX Gathering & Processing | Gathering & Processing Standard Document |           |  |  |
|-----------------------------|--|-----------|--|--|
| Internal Tank Linings       | Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007                 | Rev No: 2 |  |  |

- Individuals performing coating application and inspection work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.
- Since the linings used are combined at the job site to create a new material, the lining, it is imperative that the ingredients be properly handled, mixed, and applied in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements. The manufacturer of the material components shall supply a written procedure for the application of the lining system and related Safety Data Sheets (SDSs).
- The Manufacturer of the lining system and application contractor shall provide a written five-year warranty for thin film linings and a written ten-year warranty for thick film linings.
- All linings shall be delivered to the jobsite in original, unopened containers, with the product name and batch number of the manufacturer. The containers shall remain unopened and stored properly from the elements.
- All linings shall be from the same manufacturer and shall have a current expiration date that shall not be exceeded if the lining work is delayed by one month.

# Surface Preparation

- Surfaces shall be prepared and cleaned in accordance with <u>SSPC SP-1</u> and the Society of Protective Coatings' (SSPC) specifications indicated in <u>Appendix A</u>, and as indicated in the paint manufacturer's printed instructions specifying surface preparation for the lining system to be used.
- Heating coils, piping, and equipment not in the scope of work, shall be properly covered prior to blasting to prevent residual product from contaminating the blasted surface from over blast and/or when a tank may have to be heated. The covering needs to be adequate to prevent damage and contamination to the object being covered.
- All personnel walking on blast cleaned surfaces shall cover work boots properly as not to contaminate surface (example – poly boots). Rags are not considered acceptable foot protection.
- Abrasive blasting shall not be performed if the steel surface temperature is less than 5°F above the dew point or if the relative humidity is greater than 80%. If the prepared surface is degraded or contaminated subsequent to surface preparation and prior to lining application, the surface shall be restored to the specified cleanliness. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.
- The abrasive media used in blast cleaning shall meet <u>SSPC AB-1</u> requirements.
- For tanks previously in service, all surfaces shall be tested for soluble salts and decontaminated, as deemed necessary, per the lining manufacturer's specification.
- All surfaces prepared for lining are to be inspected and shall be accepted as satisfactory by the Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC) before any lining is applied by the contractor. Contractors shall also inspect all surfaces after cleaning and shall notify the Inspector/PIC of any defects, improper material, poor workmanship, or other conditions, which, in his opinion, will affect the satisfactory performance and permanency of his work. Where such defects have

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Internal Tank Linings	-	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007 Rev No: 2			
•	been discovered, no lining s corrected or until a written a regarding any subsequent de Cleaning and lining shall be the cleaning process or the r surfaces.	hall be started until all faulty conditions have been greement has been made with the Inspector/PIC fects that may develop because of the condition noted. scheduled whereby the dust and contaminants from nanufacturing operation shall not fall on newly coated			
• Materials	Regional Corrosion Control Any deviations from the pro- a completed and signed copy	Team Lead or Engineer. ducts listed in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be accompanied with y of <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03</u> .			
Application .	All work shall be performed manufacturer's recommenda The lining shall be applied i specifications and the additi The minimum surface tempor maintained during the lining If heating is required, the fo o Only indirect-fired h operations. • Heaters are required All welds, irregular surfaces down shall be brush striped Contrasting colors shall be a All linings shall be power m The dry film thickness of ea requirements for both the nu thickness recommended by The applicator shall have pr gauge) to check the minimu specification. Dry film gaug All applied linings shall be for other indication of improper Surface contamination, as do coats shall be removed by the Inspector. The Inspector/PIC shall have the specifications identified Inspection over a period of to responsibilities to provide li All tanks with internal lining high, stenciled every 90° ard Do Not Weld." Clarification	in accordance with <u>SSPC PA-1</u> , the coating ations, and this standard. In strict accordance with the manufacturer's onal requirements listed here. erature specified by the lining manufacturer shall be application and curing process. Howing shall apply: eaters shall be used in both the heating and curing to be pre-approved by MPLX. , pitted areas, and any surfaces that have been ground prior to application of prime coat. Ised between coats. ixed. ch coat and of the entire system shall meet the mber of coats and minimum and maximum dry film the manufacturer. oper equipment (example: wet film gauge/dry film m and maximum conditions of the manufacturer's es shall be properly calibrated prior to every use. tree of runs, sags, embedded foreign matter, and any application procedure. etermined by the Inspector/PIC, that develops between the proper cleaning method as determined by the e the right to reject all work that does not conform to with this Standard. representative or MPLX's failure to provide ime shall not relieve the contractor of his nings and work that conform to the specifications. gs shall have the following, in letters a minimum of 3" bund the exterior of the tank shell: "Internal Lining – a st ot the extent of the lining can then be established.			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Internal Tank Linings	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007	Rev No: 2

• The air, surface, and lining temperature at the time of application shall be at a minimum temperature of 50°F, unless specified by manufacturer, and 5°F above dew point. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.

#### Inspection

All lined surfaces shall first be visually inspected, followed by inspection with an approved holiday detector, unless a different inspection approach is approved by the Regional Corrosion Team Lead or Engineer. All holidays and areas of damaged lining shall be repaired using compatible system/material(s) immediately after detection. All lining repairs shall be inspected after repair lining system has cured sufficiently to prevent damage.
 CAUTION: Holiday voltages shall be adequate in accordance with lining manufacturer's specifications but shall not exceed lining manufacturer's specifications. Exceeding lining manufacturer's recommendations can damage the

- lining and cause premature failures.
  For holiday detectors with built-in metering ability, the unit's readout voltage shall be recorded in open circuit (HV) and shorted (ground to coil) state at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For high voltage (>100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For low voltage (≤100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool, or a calibrated digital multimeter in "DC Volts" mode, at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- All holiday detectors shall be calibrated annually by the manufacturer.
- The inspection times and voltage readings shall be recorded as part of the lining inspection documentation process.
- The holiday detector brush, and/or other contact devices shall contact the entire lined surface.
- The lining contractor shall permit inspection of all phases of work by the Inspector/PIC such as:
  - Atmospheric conditions, such as temperature, humidity, dew point
  - Surface preparation equipment
  - Steel surfaces prior to surface preparation
  - Steel surfaces following cleaning and surface preparation
  - Lining application equipment
  - Lining material containers and identification labels
  - Lining application process
  - Lining quality and thickness, wet and dry
- For coatings on new tank assets or entire existing tank recoats, the Inspector/PIC shall, determine and record the information requested on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02</u>. The contractor representative shall maintain this record if the Inspector/PIC is not present.
- For small repairs on existing tank assets:

MPLX Gatherin	ng & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Internal Tank	Linings	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007Rev No: 2
	<ul> <li>If the recoat are documentation</li> <li>If the recoat are determine and r</li> <li>04. The contrac Inspector/PIC is</li> </ul>	a is less than or equal to 1 square foot, no inspection is required for records. a is greater than 1 square foot, the Inspector/PIC shall, record the information requested on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-</u> tor representative shall maintain this record if the s not present.
Definitions	Anchor Profile	The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surface coating.
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish linings or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to the MPLX.
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
	Curing	Setting up or hardening, generally due to a polymerization reaction between two or more chemicals (resin and curative).
	Dew Point	Temperature at which moisture will condense on the surface.
	Forced-Curing	Acceleration of curing by increasing the temperature above ambient, accompanied by forced air circulation.
	Holiday	A discontinuity of lining that exposes the metal surface to the environment.
	Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.
	Lining	An internal barrier.
	Manufacturer	The recipient of a direct or indirect purchase order for materials and/or equipment. In this context, a direct order is one issued to a manufacturer by a contractor or MPLX. An indirect order is one issued to a manufacturer by a vendor (recipient of a direct order) for materials, fabricated components, or subassemblies.
	Mil	One one-thousandth of an inch (0.001").
This copy	was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 5 of 9

MPLX Gathering	g & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document					
Internal Tank L	inings	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007Rev No: 2					
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.					
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from this Standard shall be processed and documented the use of form <u>ENG-STD-0002-FOR-01</u> .						
Forms	<u>Number</u>	Description					
	ENG-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form					
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02	Tank Coating Packet					
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03	Coating Variance Request Form					
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>					
	API 652	Linings of Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Bottoms					
	Appendix A	Internal Tank Lining Systems					
	Appendix B	Dew Point Calculation Chart					
	SSPC AB-1	Mineral and Slag Abrasives					
	SSPC PA-1	Shop, Field and Maintenance Coating					
	SSPC SP-1	Solvent Cleaning					

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	g Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Internal Tank Linings	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007	Rev No: 2	

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Section 4.4	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	NACE CIP 1 requirement for Inspectors removed, only requiring OQs now. Inspection section edited to include documentation requirements for recoat projects and introduce new Maintenance Coating form. Reformatted to G&P Standard Template.	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Appendix A – Internal Tank Lining Systems	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007	Rev No: 2			

System No	Application	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Product
TL-1	Plural Spray Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 35°F and 90°F	SP-10	Min. 3.0	Carboline Plasite 4550 (NE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Light Gray Tile Red White
TL-2	Plural Spray Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 20°F and 100°F	SP-10	Min. 3.0	Carboline Plasite 4500FS (EP) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Light Gray Light Blue White
TL-3	Single-Leg Airless Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 35°F and 110°F	SP-10	Min. 3.0	Carboline Phenoline Tank Shield Series (EP) <b>Total DFT:</b> 12 to 40 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Gray Blue White
TL-4	Single-Leg Airless Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 45°F and 120°F	SP-10	3.0 - 4.0	Sherwin Williams Nova-Plate 360 (NE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 15 to 35 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Blue Green
TL-5	Single-Leg Airless Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 40°F to 110°F	SP-10	2.0 – 3.0	Sherwin Williams Dura-Plate UHS (EP) <b>Total DFT:</b> 18 to 22 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Light Gray White Light Green
TL-6	Single-Leg Airless Applied System	Product Dependent	Between 35°F to 120°F	SP-10	2.0 - 3.0	Sherwin Williams Phenicon HS (NE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 5 to 7 Mils <b>Color(s):</b> Off White Light Gray Light Blue

Type Codes: NE Novolac Epoxy PE Phenolic Epoxy EP Epoxy

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
<b>Appendix B – Dew Point Calculation Chart</b>	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0007	Rev No: 2		

Air Amb Temperat	ient ure °F	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90	100	110	120
	90	18	28	37	47	57	67	77	87	97	107	117
	85	17	26	36	45	55	65	75	84	95	104	113
	80	16	25	34	44	54	63	73	82	98	102	110
	75	15	24	33	42	52	62	71	80	91	100	108
	70	13	23	31	40	50	60	68	78	88	96	105
%	65	12	20	29	38	47	57	66	76	85	93	103
Relative	60	11	19	27	36	45	55	64	73	83	92	101
Humidity	55	9	17	25	34	43	53	61	70	80	89	98
	50	6	15	23	31	40	50	59	67	77	86	94
	45	4	13	21	29	37	47	56	64	73	82	91
	40	1	11	18	26	35	43	52	61	69	78	87
	35	-2	8	16	23	31	40	48	57	65	74	83
	30	-6	4	13	20	28	36	44	52	61	69	77

Gathering & Processing Standard Document						
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0008				
Ryan Ell						
Doc. Custodian:	Coating of Underground Dine	Rev. No.: 3				
Ryan Ell	Coaling of Underground Fipe					
Approved by:		MPLX G&P				
Prasanna Swamy						
Date Approved: 07/17/2024	Next Review Date: 06/01/2025	Effective Date: 10/2/2024				

Purpose	<ul> <li>This Standard establishes minimum requirements for surface preparation and coating application on field welds, replacement pipe, tie-in connections, and reconditioning of coating or wrapping on underground pipe to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended coating service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, color schemes, and inspection requirements as they pertain to field coating</li> </ul>	
Scope	<ul> <li>This Standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&amp;P) operated assets.</li> <li>Excluded from this standard are air-to-soil transition areas and aboveground piping.</li> </ul>	
Table of	Purpose	1
Contents	Scope	1
	Underground Coating	2
	General Requirements	2
	Surface Preparation	2
	Coating Materials	3
	Application	3
	Inspection	4
	General	4
	Epoxy Coating Systems	5
	Tape Coating Systems	5
	Definitions	5
	Waiver Process	6
	Forms	6
	References	7
	Records Retention	7
	Revision History	7

.

MPLX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard De		d Document
Coating of Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3

Underground Coating			
General Requirements	• Except bottoms of aboveground breakout tanks, each buried or submerged pipeline must have an external coating for external corrosion control if the pipeline is constructed, relocated, replaced, or otherwise changed after March 31, 1970.		
	<ul> <li>The coating systems prescribed in this standard were selected based on their ability to do the following:         <ul> <li>Mitigate corrosion of underground pipe</li> <li>Satisfactorily adhere to the metal surface</li> <li>Prevent migration and accumulation of moisture at the metal surface</li> <li>Have sufficient strength to resist damage due to handling (including, but not limited to, transportation, installation, boring, and backfilling) and soil stress</li> <li>Support cathodic protection</li> </ul> </li> <li>If insulating-type coatings are required for underground pipe, contact the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>All below ground tape wrap shall be non-shielding.</li> </ul>		
Surface Preparation	<ul> <li>Individuals performing coating application and inspection work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.</li> <li>The pipe coating cutback for external line-up clamp clearance at girth welds shall be 5 ± 1/4 inch from the center of the weld.</li> <li>Outer wrap (Kraft, film, felt, etc.) and protective wrap (rock protection), if present, shall be removed for a distance of 3 inches back from the edge of the coating cutback.</li> <li>Surfaces shall be prepared and cleaned in accordance with the Society of Protective Coatings (SSPC) specifications indicated in the Coating Schedule, and as indicated in the coating manufacturer's printed instructions specifying surface preparet for the application of the wead</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Where <u>SSPC SP-1</u>, <u>SSPC SP-2</u>, or <u>SSPC SP-3</u> is indicated for metal surfaces, it means that the surface shall be clean, dry, and free of dirt, dust, oils, or any contamination that would adversely affect the adhesion or appearance of the coating.</li> <li>Hand and power tool cleaning shall be conducted so as to remove burrs, weld spatter, sharp edges, and other irregularities, but to minimize polishing or burnishing of the prepared surface.</li> <li>Abrasive blasting shall not be performed if the steel surface temperature is less than 5°F above the dew point or if the relative humidity is greater than 80%. If the prepared surface is degraded or contaminated subsequent to surface preparation and prior to paint application, the surface shall be restored to the specified cleanliness. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>The abrasive media used in blast cleaning shall meet <u>SSPC AB-1</u> requirements.</li> <li>Studies have shown that coating over abrasive blasted steel has lasted up to three</li> </ul>		

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 2 of 13

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3

times as long as wire brushed steel. Various abrasives can be selected to produce varying degrees of anchor patterns. Some of the more common ones are Black Beauty and VitroGrit, see table below.

Anchor Profile	Products
1.0 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade
1.5 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade
2.0 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade
2.5 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade
3-4 mil	Black Beauty 1240 - Medium Grade
1.5+ mil	VitroGrit #70 - Super Fine
1.5 - 2.5 mil	VitroGrit #50 - Fine
2.5 - 3.5 mil	VitroGrit #30/50 - Medium/Fine
3.0 - 4.0 mil	VitroGrit #16/30 - Coarse/Medium

## Common Abrasives

#### Coating Materials

- Only the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be used, unless approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.
  - Liquid coatings are the preferred coating system for underground pipe when adequate surface preparation can be achieved.
    - Fusion Bonded Epoxy (FBE) coating systems (PC-1 through PC-4) are covered in ENG-STD-0010.
  - Cable-to-pipe connections can also be coated using one of the following approved patch kits:
    - Trenton Patch-Pad
    - Royston Handy Cap
    - Thermoweld ThermOcap
    - Amcorr Viscotaq Welding Patch
- The preferred coating system for Underground Pipe is the UG-1 option: • Sherwin Williams PipeClad 5000
- Any deviations from the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be accompanied with a completed and signed copy of <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03</u>.

Application

• All work shall be performed in accordance with <u>SSPC PA-1</u>, the coating manufacturer's recommendations, and this standard.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3

- All materials shall be applied in smooth, even coats without runs, sags, or bare spots. Dry film thickness (DFT) where indicated in <u>Appendix A</u> is the minimum required.
- Tape coating shall not be applied onto the protective wraps and/or outer wraps, only to bare steel or primed pipe coating, as required by the coating manufacturer.
- A wrapping machine shall be used any time tape that is greater than 4 inches wide is being applied or the exposed area is greater than 5 feet long. When required, use an approved hand wrapping machine, such as:
  - Tapecoat's Hand Wrapster No. 3
  - Stuart Wrapster Model CCW9, CS4, 6, or 9
  - Encoat's (formerly Gaido-Lingle) E-ZEE-WRAP
- Tape coating shall be wrapped using the spiral wrap method. The cigarette wrap method shall not be used. The exposed sidewall of the tape shall face down such that moisture or other contaminants are not entrapped.
- Do not expose the tape-wrapped pipe to any hydrocarbon or other damaging fluid contaminated soils.
- The air, surface, and coating temperature at the time of application shall be at a minimum temperature of 50°F, unless specified by manufacturer, and 5°F above dew point. If construction completion occurs during unsuitable weather, it is not detrimental to leave the steel uncoated until weather conditions are suitable for coating given that the steel remains exposed and is not buried during this time. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.
- Flocking is an acceptable method to apply fusion bonded epoxy to girth welds and fittings in the field.

# Inspection

#### General

• All externally coated pipe must be inspected just prior to lowering the pipe into the ditch or submerging the pipe. All coated pipe, including field joints, shall first be visually inspected, followed by inspection with an approved holiday detector, unless a different inspection approach is approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. All holidays and areas of damaged coating shall be repaired using compatible system/material(s) immediately after detection. All coating repairs shall be inspected after repair coating system has cured sufficiently to prevent damage.

CAUTION: Holiday voltages shall be adequate in accordance with coating manufacturer's specifications but shall not exceed coating manufacturer's specifications. Exceeding coating manufacturer's recommendations can damage the coating and cause premature failures.

- For holiday detectors with built-in metering ability, the unit's readout voltage shall be recorded in open circuit (HV) and shorted (ground to coil) state at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For high voltage (>100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration

MPLX Gathering	g & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Unde	erground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008Rev No: 3	
	<ul> <li>tool at the start of each of</li> <li>For low voltage (≤100 V detector shall be calibrat tool, or a calibrated digit coating inspection effort</li> <li>All holiday detectors shat</li> <li>The inspection times and inspection documentation</li> <li>The holiday detector contentive coated pipe surface</li> <li>The coating contractor stauthorized MPLX Represonauthorized for Coating applicat to Coating applicat to Coating applicat to Coating applicat to Coating film quaterial to Coating film quat</li></ul>	of each coating inspection effort. ( $\leq 100$ V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holidal calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration ted digital multimeter in "DC Volts" mode, at the start of each on effort. ctors shall be calibrated annually by the manufacturer. imes and voltage readings shall be recorded as part of the coating mentation process. ector coil, brush, and/or other contact devices shall contact the be surface. tractor shall permit inspection of all phases of work by an .X Representative such as: heric conditions, such as temperature, humidity, dew point preparation equipment faces prior to surface preparation faces following cleaning and surface preparation application equipment material containers and identification labels application process film quality and thickness, wet and dry new pipeline assets, the Inspector/PIC shall, determine and record requested on ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01. The contractor hall maintain this record if the Inspector/PIC is not present. xisting pipeline assets: coat area is less than or equal to 1 square foot, no inspection that in is required for records. coat area is greater than 1 square foot, the Inspector/PIC shall, the and record the information requested on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOF</u> contractor representative shall maintain this record if the r/PIC is not present.	
Epoxy Coating Systems	<ul> <li>Bubbles, excessive runs shall be adequately cure</li> <li>Wet and DFT and hardn specifications. As a min acceptable nondestructiv the coating inspection destruction</li> </ul>	, drips, and foreign matter shall not be present. Coating d before coated object is handled or backfilled. less shall be in accordance with manufacturer's imum, the DFT shall be checked in each case with an we DFT gauge and the results shall be recorded as part of ocumentation process.	
Tape Coating Systems	Bubbles or wrinkles shall not be accordance with manufacturer's	e present. Overlap and proper tension shall be in specifications.	
Definitions	Anchor Profile	The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surface coating.	
This copy v	vas printed on 10/29/2024	Page 5 of 13	

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Unde	erground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008Rev No: 3	
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.	
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.	
	Dew Point	Temperature at which moisture will condense on the surface.	
	Flocking	Field applied fusion bonded epoxy for girth welds and fittings.	
	Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.	
	Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.	
	Lining	An internal barrier.	
	Manufacturer	The recipient of a direct or indirect purchase order for materials and/or equipment. In this context, a direct order is one issued to a manufacturer by a contractor or MPLX. An indirect order is one issued to a manufacturer by a vendor (recipient of a direct order) for materials, fabricated components, or subassemblies.	
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.	
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from to use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	this Standard shall be processed and documented through <u>SOR-01</u> .	
Forms	Number	<b>Description</b>	
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form	
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01	Pipeline Coating Packet	
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03 ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04	Coating Variance Request Form Maintenance Coating Form	

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Underground Pipe		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008 Rev No:	: 3	
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>		
	Appendix A	Coating Systems for Underground Pipe Areas		
	Appendix B	Dew Point Calculation Chart		
	ENG-STD-0010	Plant Applied Coating Specification		
	SSPC AB-1	Mineral and Slag Abrasives		
	SSPC PA-1	Shop, Field and Maintenance Coating		
	SSPC SP-1	Solvent Cleaning		
	SSPC SP-2	Hand Tool Cleaning		
	SSPC SP-3	Power Tool Cleaning		

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 4.2, 4.4 &	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
	Appendix A			
2	NACE CIP 1 requirement for	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Inspectors removed, only			
	requiring OQs now. Inspection			
	section edited to include			
	documentation requirements for			
	recoat projects and introduce			
	new Maintenance Coating			
	form. Trenton Wax Tape #1 &			
	#2 removed from Approved			
	Coating Systems. Reformatted			
	to G&P Standard Template.			
3	Preferred coating system	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	section added, Sherwin		Swamy	
	Williams PipeClad 5000 (EPC)			
	and Powercrete DD (ARO)			
	added to approved coatings list.			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Coating of Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3
Areas		

Environment	System No	Category Item	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Product
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-1	Standard Application	Up to 203°F	Between 35°F and 150°F	SP-10	2.5 - 4.5	Sherwin Williams PipeClad 5000 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25-60 mils <b>Color:</b> Green
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-2	Standard Application	Up to 200°F	Between 20°F and 110°F	SP-10	2.5 - 4.5	Carboline Polyclad 975 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 20 to 50 mils <b>Color:</b> Multi
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-3	Standard Application	Contact Manufacturer	Between 40°F and 200°F	SP-10	1.5 - 4.0	3M Scotchkote 323 (EPC) Total DFT: 25 to 60 mils. Color: Blue-Green
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-4	Standard Application	Up to 200°F	Down to 50°F	SP-10	2.5 - 4.5	3M Scotchkote 327 (EPC) Total DFT: 25 mils Min. Color: Blue-Green
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-5	Cold Temperature Application	Between -40°F and 150°F	Between -4°F and 68°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7125 (EPC) Total DFT: 25 to 30 mils Color: White
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-6	Standard Application	Between -40°F and 203°F	Down to 50°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7200 (EPC) Total DFT: 25 to 30 mils Color: Green
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-7	Damp Surface Application	Between 41°F and 150°F	Between 41°F and 150°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7300 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 30 to 60 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-8	High Service Temperature	Up to 250°F, with peeks to 300°F	Down to 50°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7900HT (EPC) Total DFT: 30 to 60 mils Color: Gray

Page 9 of 13

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3
Areas		

Environment	System No	Category Item	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Product
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-9	Standard Application	Up to 175°F	Between 50°F and 175°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Polyguard NHT-5600 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 to 30 mils <b>Color:</b> Blue
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-10	High Service Temperature	Up to 350°F	Between 50°F and 185°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Polyguard NHT-6100 (EPC) Total DFT: 30 to 60 mils Color: Orange
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-11	Minimal Surface Preparation Application	Up to 149°F	Between -22°F and 221°F	SP-11	1.0 – 1.5	SPC-1288 (EPC) Total DFT: 20 to 50 mils Color: Blue
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-12	Standard Application	Up to 176°F	Between -40°F and 122°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	SPC-2888 (EPC) Total DFT: 20 to 50 mils Color: Blue
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-13	Standard Application	Up to 203°F	Between -13°F and 212°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	SPC-3888 (EPC) Total DFT: 20 to 50 mils Color: Red
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-14	Damp Surface Application	Up to 176°F	Down to 41°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	SPC-4888 (EPC) Total DFT: 30 to 50 Mils Color: Brown
Underground steel piping, valves, and fittings	UG-15	High Service Temperature	Up to 302°F	Between -40°F and 122°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	SPC-8888 (EPC) Total DFT: 30 to 60 mils Color: Red
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-16	Standard Application	Between -43°F and 160°F	Down to 37°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscowrap – ST (VTW) <b>Color:</b> Blue * PE or PVC Outerwrap Tape Required

Page 10 of 13

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3
Areas		

Environment	System No	Category Item	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Product
			Between -31°F and 212°F	Down to 37°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscowrap – HT (VTW) <b>Color:</b> Blue * PE or PVC Outerwrap Tape Required
		Flange Filling Paste	Between -43°F and 176°F	Down to 68°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscopaste (PST) <b>Color:</b> Blue * PE or PVC Outerwrap Tape Required
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-17	Below Ground Use (Primer Required). Outerwrap Optional if Soil Stress will be Encountered (SP-6)	Up to 145°F	Down to 45°F	SP-3	-	Polyguard RD-6 (TW) <b>Color:</b> Black
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings	UG-18	Below and Above Ground Use	Between -20°F and 140°F	-	-	-	Chase Corporation Tapecoat H50 Gray (TW) Color: Gray
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings and bore pipe	UG-19	Impact Resistant Outerwrap for Bores	Up to 150°F	Contact Manufacturer	Abrade coating	-	Polyguard IRO (CW) <b>Color:</b> Gray
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings and bore pipe	UG-20	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 140°F	Between -20°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.0 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete J ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 40 Mils Typ. (Over Bare Steel) 20 Mils Typ. (Over Epoxy Coating) <b>Color:</b> Brown
Underground steel piping, valves and fittings and bore pipe	UG-21	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 130°F	Between 35°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.5 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.5 – 4.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete DD ARO (ARO) Total DFT: 20 to 80 mils Color: Brown, Black

Page 11 of 13

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Underground Pipe	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3
Areas		

Type Codes:

ΤW

- ARO Abrasion Resistant Overlay VTW Viscoelastic Tape Wrap EPC
  - Composite Wrap **Epoxy Pipeline Coating** CW

Tape Wrap PST

Paste

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Appendix B – Dew Point Calculation Chart	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0008	Rev No: 3		

Air Amb Temperat	ient ure °F	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90	100	110	120
	90	18	28	37	47	57	67	77	87	97	107	117
	85	17	26	36	45	55	65	75	84	95	104	113
	80	16	25	34	44	54	63	73	82	98	102	110
	75	15	24	33	42	52	62	71	80	91	100	108
	70	13	23	31	40	50	60	68	78	88	96	105
%	65	12	20	29	38	47	57	66	76	85	93	103
Relative	60	11	19	27	36	45	55	64	73	83	92	101
Humidity	55	9	17	25	34	43	53	61	70	80	89	98
	50	6	15	23	31	40	50	59	67	77	86	94
	45	4	13	21	29	37	47	56	64	73	82	91
	40	1	11	18	26	35	43	52	61	69	78	87
	35	-2	8	16	23	31	40	48	57	65	74	83
	30	-6	4	13	20	28	36	44	52	61	69	77

Gathering & Processing Standard Document						
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0009				
Ryan Ell						
Doc. Custodian:	Conting of Transition Areas	Rev. No.: 3				
Ryan Ell	Coating of Transition Areas					
Approved by:		MPLX G&P				
Prasanna Swamy						
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024				

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard provides requirements for surface preparation and coating applications on piping at new and existing soil-air transition areas so as to provide: <ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended coating service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, color schemes, and inspection requirements as they pertain to field coating</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Scope	<ul> <li>This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&amp;P) operated assets.</li> <li>In addition to soil-air transition areas, this standard is also applicable to pipeline spans and/or sections that may be temporarily submerged (under water) or buried (under debris or soil), due to run-off or other flowing water conditions.</li> </ul>
Table of	Purpose1
Contents	Scope
	Transition Area Coating1
	Requirements2
	Surface Preparation
	Coating Materials
	Application
	Inspection4
	General
	Epoxy Coating Systems
	Tape Coating Systems
	Definitions5
	Waiver Process
	Forms6
	References
	Records Retention
	Revision History7

**Transition Area** 

Coating

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

.

MPLX Gathering & I	Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Coating of Transitio	on Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3	
Requirements	<ul> <li>Except bottoms of abovegrepipeline must have an exterpipeline is constructed, relo 1970.</li> <li>The coating systems prescriability to do the following:         <ul> <li>Mitigate corrosion of Satisfactorily adhere</li> <li>Prevent migration at</li> <li>Have sufficient strennot limited to, transpistress</li> <li>Support cathodic pre</li> </ul> </li> <li>Existing coating at a transit surface and no porosity doe</li> <li>Individuals performing coating at a transit of the relevant Operator Q</li> </ul>	ound breakout tanks, each buried or nal coating for external corrosion of ocated, replaced, or otherwise chang ibed in this standard were selected of underground pipe e to the metal surface nd accumulation of moisture at the ngth to resist damage due to handli portation, installation, boring, and b otection ion area that display both good adh is not need to be removed and repla ting application and inspection wor ualification (OQ) tasks specified in	r submerged control if the ged after March 31, based on their metal surface ng (including, but backfilling) and soil mesion to the pipe aced. ck shall be qualified a <u>REG-STD-0005</u> .	
Surface Preparation	<ul> <li>On existing transition pipin to ensure that excessive cor- might be weakened with "h "soft cleaned" or "brushoff significant corrosion areas.</li> <li>Surfaces shall be prepared a Protective Coatings (SSPC) as indicated in the coating r preparation for the coating r</li> <li>Where <u>SSPC SP-1</u>, <u>SSPC S</u> means that the surface shall contamination that would a coating.</li> <li>Hand and power tool cleani spatter, sharp edges and oth burnishing of the prepared s</li> <li>Abrasive blasting shall not than 5°F above the dew poi prepared surface is degrade and prior to coat application cleanliness. See <u>Appendix I</u> temperature and humidity.</li> <li>The abrasive media used in</li> <li>Studies have shown that coat times as long as wire brushe varying degrees of anchor p Beauty and VitroGrit, see ta</li> </ul>	g that is showing signs of potential rosion pitting is not present wherei ard cleaning" techniques, the meta blasted" to more carefully expose and cleaned in accordance with the pecifications indicated in the Coa nanufacturer's printed instructions system to be used. BP-2, or <u>SSPC SP-3</u> is indicated for be clean, dry, and free of dirt, dus dversely affect the adhesion or app ing shall be conducted so as to rem- ter irregularities, but to minimize p surface. be performed if the steel surface te nt or if the relative humidity is great d or contaminated subsequent to su h, the surface shall be restored to the <u>B</u> to determine dew point relative to blast cleaning shall meet <u>SSPC AI</u> ating over abrasive blasted steel ha ed steel. Various abrasives can be spatterns. Some of the more common able below.	<ul> <li>corrosion, in order n the pipe wall</li> <li>l surfaces shall be any potentially</li> <li>Society of ating Schedule and specifying surface</li> <li>metal surfaces, it t, oils, or any earance of the</li> <li>ove burrs, weld olishing or</li> <li>mperature is less ater than 80%. If the urface preparation he specified o ambient air</li> <li>B-1 requirements.</li> <li>s lasted up to three selected to produce n ones are Black</li> </ul>	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Coating of Transition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3		

Common Abrasives				
Anchor Profile	Product			
1.0 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade			
1.5 mil	Black Beauty 3060 - X-Fine Grade			
2.0 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade			
2.5 mil	Black Beauty 2040 - Fine Grade			
3-4 mil	Black Beauty 1240 - Medium Grade			
1.5+ mil	VitroGrit #70 - Super Fine			
1.5 - 2.5 mil	VitroGrit #50 - Fine			
2.5 - 3.5 mil	VitroGrit #30/50 - Medium/Fine			
3.0 - 4.0 mil	VitroGrit #16/30 - Coarse/Medium			

#### 0 . .

- Existing coatings away from the transition area shall be power or hand tool abraded such that adequate adherence of transition area primer coating can be achieved. Wipe all surfaces as completely dry as possible.
  - Only the products listed in Appendix A shall be used, unless approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.
- Liquid coatings are the preferred coating system for transition pipe when adequate surface preparation can be achieved.
- The preferred coating system for Transition Pipeline Coatings is the TR-1 option:
  - Primer Coat: Sherwin Williams PipeClad 5000
  - Top Coat: Sherwin Williams Acrolon 218HS 0
- Any deviations from the products listed in Appendix A shall be accompanied with a completed and signed copy of the ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03.

#### Application

Coating

**Materials** 

- All work shall be performed in accordance with SSPC PA-1, the coating manufacturer's recommendations and this standard.
- All materials shall be applied in smooth, even coats without runs, sags, or bare • spots. Dry film thickness (DFT) where indicated in Appendix A is the minimum required.
- All transition coatings shall extend a minimum of 1-ft both above and below . grade.
- Tape Coating shall not be applied over existing protective wraps and/or outer wraps.
- A wrapping machine shall be used any time tape that is greater than 4 inches wide is being applied or the exposed area is greater than 5 feet long. When required, use an approved hand wrapping machine, such as:
  - Tapecoat's Hand Wrapster No. 3 0

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Coating of Transition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009		

- Stuart Wrapster Model CCW9, CS4, 6, or 9
- Encoat's (formerly Gaido-Lingle) E-ZEE-WRAP
- Tape Coating shall be wrapped using the spiral wrap method. The cigarette wrap method shall not be used. The exposed sidewall of the tape shall face 'down' such that moisture or other contaminants are not entrapped.
- Always start wrapping from the bottom of the transition to the top of the transition. The overlap will then on top of the previous wrap in the upper direction.
- Do not expose the tape-wrapped pipe to any hydrocarbon or other damaging fluid contaminated soils.
- The air, surface, and coating temperature at the time of application shall be at a minimum temperature of 50°F, unless specified by manufacturer, and 5°F above dew point. If construction completion occurs during unsuitable weather, it is not detrimental to leave the steel uncoated until weather conditions are suitable for coating given that the steel remains exposed and is not buried during this time. See <u>Appendix B</u> to determine dew point relative to ambient air temperature and humidity.
- During the period when newly applied coating or tape is setting up, the coating or tape is especially susceptible to damage from livestock. Special precautions may need to be taken to protect the coating or tape during this period.

### Inspection

General

• All externally coated pipe must be inspected just prior to lowering the pipe into the ditch or submerging the pipe. All coated pipe, including field joints, shall first be visually inspected, followed by inspection with an approved holiday detector, unless a different inspection approach is approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. All holidays and areas of damaged coating shall be repaired using compatible system/material(s) immediately after detection. All coating repairs shall be inspected after repair coating system has cured sufficiently to prevent damage.

CAUTION: Holiday voltages shall be adequate in accordance with coating manufacturer's specifications but shall not exceed coating manufacturer's specifications. Exceeding coating manufacturer's recommendations can damage the coating and cause premature failures.

- For holiday detectors with built-in metering ability, the unit's readout voltage shall be recorded in open circuit (HV) and shorted (ground to coil) state at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For high voltage (>100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool at the start of each coating inspection effort.
- For low voltage (≤100 V) holiday detectors without built-in metering, the holiday detector shall be calibrated using the manufacturer's recommended calibration tool, or a calibrated digital multimeter in "DC Volts" mode, at the start of each coating inspection effort.

MPLX Gathering	g & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
<b>Coating of Tran</b>	sition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3		
	<ul> <li>All holiday detectors shall</li> <li>The inspection times and vinspection documentation</li> <li>The holiday detector coil, entire coated pipe surface.</li> <li>The coating contractor sha authorized MPLX Represe          <ul> <li>Atmospheric condition</li> <li>Surface preparation</li> <li>Steel surfaces priories</li> <li>Steel surfaces follor</li> <li>Coating application</li> <li>Coating application</li> <li>Coating film qualities</li> </ul> </li> <li>For coatings on new pipeling the information requested representative shall maintates</li> <li>For recoats on existing pipering on the recoat area is documentation is recomplexity of the information recomplexity of the information recomplexity of the recoat area is determine and recomplexity of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the information of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the information of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the information of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the information of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the information of the contractor inspector/PIC is not set the contractor inspector in the contractor inspector in the contractor inspector in the contractor inspector is not set the contractor in the contracto</li></ul>	be calibrated annually by the manu voltage readings shall be recorded as process. brush, and/or other contact devices s all permit inspection of all phases of entative such as: itions, such as temperature, humidity n equipment r to surface preparation owing cleaning and surface preparati n equipment ontainers and identification labels n process ty and thickness, wet and dry ine assets, the Inspector/PIC shall, d on <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01</u> . The co ain this record if the Inspector/PIC is beline assets: s less than or equal to 1 square foot, equired for records. s greater than 1 square foot, the Insp ord the information requested on <u>EN</u> representative shall maintain this re ot present.	facturer. part of the coating shall contact the work by an y, dew point on etermine and record ontractor s not present. no inspection ector/PIC shall, <u>G-STD-0006-FOR-</u> cord if the		
Epoxy Coating Systems	<ul> <li>Bubbles, excessive runs, drips, and foreign matter shall not be present. Coating shall be adequately cured before coated object is handled or backfilled.</li> <li>Wet and DFT and hardness shall be in accordance with manufacturer's specifications. As a minimum, the DFT shall be checked in each case with an acceptable nondestructive DFT gauge, and the results shall be recorded as part of the coating inspection documentation process.</li> </ul>				
Tape Coating Systems	Bubbles or wrinkles shall not be present. Overlap and proper tension shall be in accordance with manufacturer's specifications.				
Definitions	Anchor Profile The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surfac coating.				
	Cathodic Protection A n	A technique to control corrosion of a naking it the cathode in an electroche	metal surface by emical cell.		
	Contractor C	Company or business that agrees to f	urnish materials or		
This copy v	vas printed on 10/15/2024	Page 5 of 10			

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Coating of Transition Areas		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3		
	per to t	perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to the Marathon.			
Corrosion	terioration of a metal that results free trochemical reaction with its environment.	om a chemical or ronment.			
CuringSe po (reDew PointTe surInspector/Person in Charge 		Setting up or hardening, generally due to a polymerization reaction between two or more chemicals (rein and curative).			
		Temperature at which moisture will condense on the surface.			
		Marathon appointed engineer or ins	spector.		
Manufacturer	The ma ord the ma ma	e recipient of a direct or indirect puterials and/or equipment. In this corer is one issued to a manufacturer Marathon. An indirect order is one nufacturer by a vendor (recipient of terials, fabricated components, or set	archase order for ontext, a direct by a contractor or e issued to a of a direct order) for subassemblies.		
MPLX	For An	the purpose of this standard, MPL deavor, Markwest, and Southwest	X shall mean Gathering.		

**Waiver Process** Any deviation or waiver from this Standard shall be processed and documented through use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>.

Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01	Pipeline Coating Packet
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03 ENG-STD-0006-FOR-04	Coating Variance Request Form Maintenance Coating Form
Defenences		
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
Kelerences	<u>Number</u> Appendix A	Description Coating Systems for Transition Areas
Kelerences	<u>Number</u> Appendix A Appendix B	Description Coating Systems for Transition Areas Dew Point Calculation Chart

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 6 of 10

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Coating of Transition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3		
SSPC AB-1	Ineral and Slag Abrasives			
SSPC PA-1	hop, Field and Maintenance Coating	g		
SSPC SP-1	olvent Cleaning			
SSPC SP-2	Iand Tool Cleaning			
SSPC SP-3	Power Tool Cleaning			

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Section 4.3 & Appendix	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
	A; Removed Sections 6.1.1,			
	6.1.2 & Appendix C			
2	Transition Area Coating	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Requirements criteria added.			
	NACE CIP 1 requirement for			
	Inspectors removed, only			
	requiring OQs now. Inspection			
	section edited to include			
	documentation requirements for			
	recoat projects and introduce			
	new Maintenance Coating			
	form. Trenton Wax Tape #1 &			
	#2 removed from Approved			
	Coating Systems. Reformatted			
	to G&P Standard Template.			
3	Preferred coating system	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	section added, Sherwin		Swamy	
	Williams PipeClad 5000 (EPC)			
	and Acrolon 218HS (PU)			
	system, now TR-1, added to			
	approved coatings list.			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Transition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3	

Environment	System No	Category Item	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Primer Coat	Top Coat
Transitional steel piping	TR-1	Standard Application	Up to 203°F	Between 35°F and 150°F	SP-10	2.5 – 4.5	Sherwin Williams PipeClad 5000 (EPC) Total DFT: 25-60 mils Color: Green	Sherwin Williams Acrolon 218HS (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Transitional steel piping	TR-2	Cold Temperature Application	Between -40°F and 150°F	Between -4°F and 68°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7125 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> to 30 mils <b>Color:</b> White	Denso Archco 65 (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Transitional steel piping	TR-3	Standard Application	Between -40°F and 200°F	Down to 50°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7200 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 to 30 mils <b>Color:</b> Green	Denso Archco 65 (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Transitional steel piping	TR-4	Damp Surfaces Application	Between 41°F and 150°F	Between 41°F and 150°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7300 (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 30 to 60 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray	Denso Archco 65 (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
Transitional steel piping	TR-5	High Service Temperature	Up to 250°F, with peeks to 300°F	Down to 50°F	SP-10	2.5 - 5.0	Denso Protal 7900HT (EPC) <b>Total DFT:</b> 30 to 60 mils <b>Color:</b> Gray	Denso Archco 65 (PU) <b>Total DFT:</b> 3 to 5 mils <b>Color:</b> Multiple
			Between -43°F and 160°F	Down to 37°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscowrap – ST (VTW) <b>Color:</b> Blue	PE Outerwrap or PVC Outerwrap (TW) <b>Color:</b> Black
Transitional steel piping	TR-6	Standard Application	Between -31°F d 212°F	Down to 37°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscowrap – HT (VTW) <b>Color:</b> Blue	PE Outerwrap or PVC Outerwrap (TW) <b>Color:</b> Black

.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix A – Coating Systems for Transition Areas	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3	

Environment	System No	Category Item	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile, Mils	Primer Coat	Top Coat
		Flange Filling Paste (if required)	Between -43°F and 176°F	Down to 68°F (substrate temperature)	SP-3	-	Viscopaste (PST) <b>Color:</b> Blue	-
Transitional steel piping	TR-7	Standard Application	Up to 145°F	Down to 45°F	SP-3	-	Polyguard RD-6 (TW) <b>Color:</b> Black	Polyguard RD-6 UVO Overcoat (EPC) <b>Color:</b> White
Transitional steel piping	TR-8	Below and Above Ground Use	Between -20°F and 140°F	-	-	-	Chase Corporation Tapecoat H50 Gray (TW) <b>Color:</b> Gray	Not required

Type Codes:

EPC Epoxy Pipeline Coating

LC Liquid Coating

VTW Viscoelastic Tape Wrap

PST Paste

TW Tape Wrap

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix B – Dew Point Calculation Chart	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0009	Rev No: 3	

Air Amb Temperat	ient ure °F	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90	100	110	120
	90	18	28	37	47	57	67	77	87	97	107	117
	85	17	26	36	45	55	65	75	84	95	104	113
	80	16	25	34	44	54	63	73	82	98	102	110
	75	15	24	33	42	52	62	71	80	91	100	108
	70	13	23	31	40	50	60	68	78	88	96	105
%	<b>65</b> 12 20 29	38	47	57	66	76	85	93	103			
Relative Humidity	60	11	19	27	36	45	55	64	73	83	92	101
	55	9	17	25	34	43	53	61	70	80	89	98
	50	6	15	23	31	40	50	59	67	77	86	94
	45	4	13	21	29	37	47	56	64	73	82	91
	40	1	11	18	26	35	43	52	61	69	78	87
	35	-2	8	16	23	31	40	48	57	65	74	83
	30	-6	4	13	20	28	36	44	52	61	69	77

Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0010		
Ryan Ell				
Doc. Custodian:	Plant Applied Costing Specification	Rev. No.: 3		
Ryan Ell	Plant Applied Coating Specification			
Approved by:		MPLX G&P		
Prasanna Swamy				
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024		

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for surface preparation and applications of plant applied coatings for underground pipelines to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline syst facilities)</li> <li>The intended coating service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, color schemes, and in requirements as they pertain to plant applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy (</li> </ul>	l coating tems and spection FBE) coating
Scope	<ul> <li>This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (M Gathering and Processing (G&amp;P) operated assets.</li> <li>When purchasing existing pre-coated FBE pipe, only the Inspection a Control section of this standard shall apply.</li> </ul>	PLX) and Quality
Table of	Purpose	1
Contents	Scope	1
	Coating General Requirements	2
	Plant Applied Coating	2
	Requirements	2
	Surface Preparation and Inspection	
	Coating Materials	
	Coating Application	4
	Inspection and Quality Control	4
	Preparation for Inspection	4
	Coating Thickness	4
	Coating Holidays	5
	Testing, Tracking, and Repairs	5
	Testing	5
	Tracking, Stenciling, and Record Keeping	6
	Repairs	6
	Storage, Handling, and Shipping	6
	Requirements	6
	Definitions	7
	Waiver Process	
This co	opy was printed on 10/29/2024 Page 1 of 1	1

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Plant Applied C	Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	
MPLX Gathering Plant Applied C General Requirements Plant Applied Coating Requirements	<ul> <li>g &amp; Processing</li> <li>Coating Specification</li> <li>Forms</li></ul>	Gathering & Processing Standar         Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010         round breakout tanks, each buried of the procession ocated, replaced, or otherwise channer of underground pipe         re to the metal surface         and accumulation of moisture at the ength to resist damage due to handle sportation, installation, boring, and protection         ng of line pipe, MPLX may furnish or shall be qualified per the relevant pecified in REG-STD-0005.         ne right to designate and send to the for the purpose of confirming programmer of the purpose of confirming programere of the purpose of confirming programmere	d Document Rev No: 3 	
	<ul> <li>Qualification (OQ) tasks s</li> <li>The company shall have the as applicable, an inspector and observing any coating contractor facility during a (unloaded, loaded, coated,</li> <li>Inspector shall have the au pipe with coating that does have the coating removed expense.</li> <li>The coating contractor sha quality control, tools, and pipe in accordance with the term of the set of the coating contractor share t</li></ul>	pecified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> . The right to designate and send to the off or the purpose of confirming properties. The Inspector shall have free all times when the company's pipe is etc.). The interpret these specification and shall be cleaned and recoated a all be responsible for furnishing all equipment to assure that the coating ese specifications.	e contractor facility, ber coating operations access to the is being handled fons and reject any is. Rejected pipe shall it the contractor's labor, materials, g is applied to the	
This copy v	<ul> <li>The FBE coating shall be a <u>NACE SP0394</u> and the Red difference between these s company standards, these brought to the attention of Engineer.</li> <li>was printed on 10/29/2024</li> </ul>	applied, and inspection test conduct efferences section of this standard. In specifications, <u>NACE SP0394</u> , and company standards shall rule. All d the Regional Corrosion Control Te Pag	ted according to a the case of a the referenced lifferences shall be am Lead or ge 2 of 11	
ed to Imaging: 4/1/	2025 2:07:38 PM			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

Surface Preparation and Inspection	<ul> <li>Bare pipe arriving at the contractor's facility shall be inspected by contractor upon arrival. All damaged or defective pipe found during unloading shall be segregated, shall not be coated, and shall be noted on trucking or rail bills of lading to indicate types of damage and number of joints. Any pipe later found (not detected during unloading) to have dents, gouges, damaged bevels, etc., shall be determined as to the origin of the damage and any pipe damaged by contractor. If damaged by the contractor, the contractor's shall make necessary repairs, including cost of pipe (not repairable), at contractor's expense.</li> <li>Prior to blast cleaning, bare pipe shall be inspected by the contractor for loose mill scale, oil, grease, tar, asphalt, and miscellaneous foreign matter such as, but not limited to, salts and soil. All joints of pipe with such contaminates shall be noted and set aside for pre-cleaning. Pipe that requires solvent removal of deleterious material shall have such material removed by solvent cleaning in accordance with SSPC SP-1 requirements.</li> <li>Prior to pre-heat and blast cleaning, the pipe surface shall be cleaned of all contaminates so as to avoid contamination of abrasive media and imbedding into anchor profile.</li> <li>The pipe surface shall be preheated to above the dew point and sufficiently to remove all surface moisture prior to blast cleaning. Pipe shall be preheated in a uniform manner to avoid distortion.</li> <li>The pipe surface shall be abrasive blast cleaned to "near white finish" in accordance with SSPC SP-10. The abrasive shall be anaxium depth of 4.0 mils. A consistent abrasive working mix shall be maintained by frequent additions of small quantities of new abrasive.</li> <li>After cleaning and prior to final heating, the pipe surface shall be inspected for adequate cleaning and surface condition. Improperly cleaned pipe shall be rejected and rerun at the contractor's expense. Surface imperfections such as slivers, scabs, burrs, and weld spatter shall he retero</li></ul>
Coating Materials	<ul> <li>The coating contractor shall use only the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u>, unless approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>The preferred coating system for Plant Applied Pipeline Coatings is the PC-6</li> </ul>
This comes	$p_{min}$ to $d_{00} = \frac{10}{200} \frac{10}{200}$

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 3 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

option:

- Fusion Bonded Epoxy: Sherwin Williams PipeClad 2000
- Abrasion Resistant Overlay (if required): Sherwin Williams PipeClad 2040
- Any deviations from the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be accompanied with a completed and signed copy of <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03</u>.

Coating Application

- The pipe shall be heated to a minimum temperature in accordance with coating powder manufacturer's specifications with reference to the size and wall thickness of the pipe. The pipe shall be continually checked for proper temperature prior to coating by use of simplistic heat and/or electronic heat indicators. Pipe heated in excess of 525 degrees Fahrenheit shall be metallurgically inspected for acceptability. The costs of the metallurgical inspection and any rejected pipe shall be borne by the contractor.
- The use of reclaimed powder from previous jobs shall not be permitted. Powder older than one year shall not be used. Powder of lesser age shall not be permitted if storage conditions are considered unacceptable by Inspector and powder manufacturer's specifications.
- Coating powder shall immediately be applied using electrostatic spray guns to a uniform minimum and maximum thickness of specified mils. Electrostatic equipment shall be adjusted for maximum efficiency to minimize the amount of powder which may be recycled. Use of recycled coating material shall be permitted if adequate recovery and 80 or finer mesh screening equipment is used and maintained. An adequate recycle system shall properly blend recycled and virgin coating material into the delivery system. At no time shall more than 25% recycled powder be mixed in with virgin powder.
- Air used to fluidize, transport, and apply the coating powder shall be commercially dry and free of oil or other contaminants.
- The minimum cure time and temperatures shall conform to the coating manufacturer's specifications, keeping in accordance with reference to the size and wall thickness of the pipe.
- Coating material shall not be applied closer than 1-1/2 inches or farther than 2-1/2 inches from the beveled ends of the pipe.

Inspection and Quality Control Preparation for Inspection Coating Thickness

- Three randomly distributed coating thickness measurements shall be made along the length and around the circumference of each pipe joint. Calibration of the gauge shall be verified three times per day (at start up a.m., at start up after lunch, and at end of shift), utilizing U.S. Bureau of Standards certified coating thickness calibration standards.
- Any joint of pipe with less than the specified minimum mils and more than the specified maximum mils dry film thickness shall be rejected. The rejected joint shall have the coating completely removed prior to recoating according to this

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 4 of 11

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

<ul> <li>thant Applied Coating Specification   Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010   Rev No: 3 specification.</li> <li>specification.</li> <li>Coated pipe surfaces shall be 100% electrically inspected by the contractor with a holiday detector equipped with an audible signaling device.         <ul> <li>In addition to holiday testing at the factory, all piping shall be holiday tested again on-site prior to being lowered into the ditch.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be placed in contact with the bare pipe in the cutback area of each joint to assure the operation of the signaling device.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be checked periodically, at least three times a day, and adjusted by the contractor to ensure detection of an intentional holiday through the thickest coating on pipe and to ensure proper voltage is being maintained. The times and results of these verifications shall be documented by the Inspector.</li> <li>All holidays shall be clearly marked for repair.</li> <li>Generally, the number of holidays per join reflects the quality of surface preparation before coating, proper coating thickness, or both. All joints containing greater than one holiday per 20 square feet for pipe with an OUSide Diameter (OD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an OUSide Diameter (OD) 20 inches shall be rejected and recoated at the contractor's expense.</li> </ul> </li> <li>taboratory testing of coated pipe shall be conducted each day, on a minimum of the instead they in the start up. The first test of each day shall be initiated on one of the first 15 joints after start-up. The test results shall determine whether application changes are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contractor shall supply a coated sample of pipe from two joints, 18 inches in length, labeled by coating date and joint number. Inspector may choose from which joints of pipe to cut the sample. The testing required in this section shall be conducted on</li></ul>	MPLX Gathering & Processing Plant Applied Coating Specification		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<ul> <li>specification.</li> <li>Coating Holidays</li> <li>Coated pipe surfaces shall be 100% electrically inspected by the contractor with a holday detector equipped with an audible signaling device.</li> <li>In addition to holiday testing at the factory, all piping shall be holiday tested again on-site prior to being lowered into the dich.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be 'DC'' type. Instruments shall be est to 125 volts per mil, based on the specified minimum cured film thickness.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be 'DC'' type. Instruments shall be est to 125 volts per mil, based on the specified minimum cured film thickness.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be 'DC'' type. Instruments shall be documented by the Inspector.</li> <li>All holidays shall be clearly marked for repair.</li> <li>Generally, the number of holidays per joint reflects the quality of surface preparation before coating, proper coating thickness, or both. All joints containing greater than oue holiday ter 20 square feet for pipe with an OU steade Diameter (OD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an OU steade Diameter (OD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an Outside Diameter (OD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an Outside Diameter (DD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an outside Diameter (DD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an outside Diameter (DD) 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an outside Diameter (DD) 20 inches or less nall be conducted each day, on a minimum of two pipe joints. The first test of each day shall be initiated on one of the first 15 joints after start-up. The test results shall determine whether application changes are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contractor shall supply a coated sample of pipe from two joints, 18 inches in length, labeled by coating date and joint number. Inspector may choose shall be conducted on a portion of these 18 inch samples and the remainder shall be romativer balls be relati</li></ul>			Ooc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	
<ul> <li>The holiday detector wand shall be placed in contact with the bare pipe in the cutback area of each joint to assure the operation of the signaling device.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be "DC" type. Instruments shall be set to 125 volts per mil, based on the specified minimum cured film thickness.</li> <li>The holiday detector shall be checked periodically, at least three times a day, and adjusted by the contractor to ensure detection of an intentional holiday through the thickest coating on pipe and to ensure proper voltage is being maintained. The times and results of these verifications shall be documented by the Inspector.</li> <li>All holidays shall be clearly marked for repair.</li> <li>Generally, the number of holidays per joint reflects the quality of surface preparation before coating, proper coating thickness, or both. All joints containing greater than one holiday per 20 square feet for pipe with an OLD greater than 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an OLD greater than 20 inches or less and 30 square feet for pipe with an OLD greater than 20 inches shall be rejected and recoated at the contractor's expense.</li> <li>Esting</li> <li>Laboratory testing of coated pipe shall be conducted each day, on a minimum of two pipe joints. The first test of each day shall be initiated on one of the first 15 joints after start-up. The test results shall determine whether application changes are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contractor shall supply a coated sample of pipe from two joints, 18 inches in length, labeled by coating date and joint number. Inspector may choose from which joints of pipe to cut the sample. The testing required in this section shall be conducted on a portion of these 18 inch samples and the remainder shall be retained for history backup. Problems detected in coating may necessitate additional pipe samples for test.</li> <li>Laboratory tests shall include the following:         <ul> <li>Bend test: coating shal</li></ul></li></ul>	specific Coating • Coated Holidays • O	cation. I pipe surfaces shall be 1 y detector equipped with In addition to holiday t tested again on-site prio	100% electrically inspected by an audible signaling device. esting at the factory, all piping or to being lowered into the dit	the contractor with a shall be holiday cch.	
<ul> <li>esting, racking, and epairs</li> <li>Testing</li> <li>Laboratory testing of coated pipe shall be conducted each day, on a minimum of two pipe joints. The first test of each day shall be initiated on one of the first 15 joints after start-up. The test results shall determine whether application changes are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contractor shall supply a coated sample of pipe from two joints, 18 inches in length, labeled by coating date and joint number. Inspector may choose from which joints of pipe to cut the sample. The testing required in this section shall be conducted on a portion of these 18 inch samples and the remainder shall be retained for history backup. Problems detected in coating may necessitate additional pipe samples for test.</li> <li>Laboratory tests shall include the following: <ul> <li>Bend test: coating shall not disbond, delaminate, crack, or break when ben 3 degrees per pipe diameter (OD) at 32 degrees Fahrenheit.</li> <li>Cathodic disbondment: coating shall not cathodically disbond more than 8 mm radius from 3 mm (1/8 inch) diameter holiday in 24 hours at 150 degrees Fahrenheit in 3% NACL under 3.5 VDC.</li> <li>Porosity levels: under no circumstances shall "foam bond" (cellular porosity) be tolerated. "Foam bond" is a condition resembling soap bubbles on the steel surface, where only thin membranes of coating separate the pores. Generally, such a condition shall permit easy gouging and stripping of the coating with a simple knife test. The extent of foaming</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The ho cutbacl</li> <li>The ho mil, ba</li> <li>The ho adjuste thickes times a</li> <li>All hol</li> <li>Genera prepara greater (OD) 2 inches</li> </ul>	liday detector wand sha k area of each joint to as liday detector shall be " sed on the specified min- liday detector shall be c ed by the contractor to en- at coating on pipe and to and results of these verif- idays shall be clearly m ally, the number of holid ation before coating, pro- than one holiday per 20 20 inches or less and 30 shall be rejected and rec	all be placed in contact with the soure the operation of the signal DC" type. Instruments shall be nimum cured film thickness. The checked periodically, at least the nsure detection of an intentional ensure proper voltage is being fications shall be documented be arked for repair. Hays per joint reflects the quality oper coating thickness, or both. O square feet for pipe with an Of coated at the contractor's exper-	e bare pipe in the ling device. e set to 125 volts per ree times a day, and al holiday through the g maintained. The by the Inspector. cy of surface All joints containing Dutside Diameter D greater than 20 nse.	
<ul> <li>Laboratory testing of coated pipe shall be conducted each day, on a minimum of two pipe joints. The first test of each day shall be initiated on one of the first 15 joints after start-up. The test results shall determine whether application changes are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contractor shall supply a coated sample of pipe from two joints, 18 inches in length, labeled by coating date and joint number. Inspector may choose from which joints of pipe to cut the sample. The testing required in this section shall be conducted on a portion of these 18 inch samples and the remainder shall be retained for history backup. Problems detected in coating may necessitate additional pipe samples for test.</li> <li>Laboratory tests shall include the following: <ul> <li>Bend test: coating shall not disbond, delaminate, crack, or break when ben 3 degrees per pipe diameter (OD) at 32 degrees Fahrenheit.</li> <li>Cathodic disbondment: coating shall not cathodically disbond more than 8 mm radius from 3 mm (1/8 inch) diameter holiday in 24 hours at 150 degrees Fahrenheit in 3% NACL under 3.5 VDC.</li> <li>Porosity levels: under no circumstances shall "foam bond" (cellular porosity) be tolerated. "Foam bond" is a condition resembling soap bubbles on the steel surface, where only thin membranes of coating separate the pores. Generally, such a condition shall permit easy gouging and stripping of the coating with a simple knife test. The extent of foaming</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	esting, racking, and epairs				
<ul> <li>Cathodic disbondment: coating shall not cathodically disbond more than 8 mm radius from 3 mm (1/8 inch) diameter holiday in 24 hours at 150 degrees Fahrenheit in 3% NACL under 3.5 VDC.</li> <li>Porosity levels: under no circumstances shall "foam bond" (cellular porosity) be tolerated. "Foam bond" is a condition resembling soap bubbles on the steel surface, where only thin membranes of coating separate the pores. Generally, such a condition shall permit easy gouging and stripping of the coating with a simple knife test. The extent of foaming This copy was printed on 10/29/2024</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Labora two pip joints a are nec</li> <li>Each d inches from w shall be be reta additio</li> <li>Labora 0</li> </ul>	tory testing of coated pi pe joints. The first test of after start-up. The test re- cessary. ay, the contractor shall si in length, labeled by co- which joints of pipe to cu- e conducted on a portion ined for history backup. nal pipe samples for tes tory tests shall include to Bend test: coating shall a degrees per pipe diap	ipe shall be conducted each day of each day shall be initiated on esults shall determine whether a supply a coated sample of pipe ating date and joint number. In at the sample. The testing requi- n of these 18 inch samples and Problems detected in coating a t. the following: I not disbond, delaminate, crac	y, on a minimum of one of the first 15 application changes from two joints, 18 spector may choose ared in this section the remainder shall may necessitate k, or break when bent	
This copy was printed on 10/29/2024Page 5 of 11	0	3 degrees per pipe dian Cathodic disbondment: mm radius from 3 mm degrees Fahrenheit in 3 Porosity levels: under r porosity) be tolerated. 6 bubbles on the steel sur separate the pores. Gen and stripping of the coa	neter (OD) at 32 degrees Fahre coating shall not cathodically (1/8 inch) diameter holiday in 8% NACL under 3.5 VDC. no circumstances shall "foam b "Foam bond" is a condition res rface, where only thin membra herally, such a condition shall p ating with a simple knife test. 7	enheit. disbond more than 8 24 hours at 150 bond" (cellular sembling soap nes of coating bermit easy gouging The extent of foaming	
	This copy was printed on 10	0/29/2024	Pa	ge 5 of 11	
Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010 Rev No:					
--					
hroughout the film may not exceed a rating of three rephens foam evaluation guide.					
all be permanently marked externally with the wall thickness, heat number, and manufacturer nd location er and product number ed single random and double random length, stencil ea- iple random length aily production tallies which shall contain the uence number d, rejected, diverted for cutoff or re-beveling, etc.) results of all production tests shall be documented, o the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or e steel defects detected after coating shall be clearly e permanent marker on the finished coating. "Appar aken to mean any deep scratch or gouge which vay; any dent that is greater than 0.250 inches deep, neter, or affects a longitudinal seam; or any					
oated surface shall be repaired by the contractor und ripping and recoating is necessary. rounding the defect shall be abraded utilizing 80 gri No files shall be used for holiday repair. s shall be holiday inspected post repair.					
shall be stacked in a manner to prevent egging, Pipe shall not be stored in close proximity to high HVAC) power lines, or other electrical hazards. If t a shared right-of-way, special worker safety cks shall be untreated, clean wood. shall be elevated at least six inches off the ground.					

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

Never store pipe directly on the ground.

- Pipe racks shall be clean of any contaminates that might contaminate the bare pipe or damage the coating on coated pipe.
- Pipe racks shall be of sufficient height to prevent water from contaminating the interior or exterior of the pipe and shall be constructed (at a slight tilt) to allow water to drain from each joint of racked pipe.
- All rows of pipe shall be restrained to prevent joints from rolling. •
- For coated pipe, pipe racks shall have a sufficient number of padded runs (timber skids or metal piping or structural steel), properly spaced and leveled to support the coated pipe without damage. The padded runs shall be clean and free of embedded debris such as rocks, glass, wire, and dirt.
- The rows of coated pipe shall not be nested but separated with adequate clean stripping lumber.
- All pipe shall be handled in such a manner as to prevent damage to pipe walls, beveled ends, internal, and external surfaces. All hooks or forks used for pipe handling shall be padded to prevent damage to the pipe and coating.
- Pipe shall be separated during handling and shipping using tight weave polypropylene rope. The spacers shall be designed and placed so that all joints are separated to prevent coating-to-coating contact of the joints. A minimum of four spacers should be placed on 40 foot joints and shorter. A minimum of 6 spacers should be placed on 60 foot joints.
- Each pipe load shall have sufficient banding and standards (chocks) to securely • hold it in place to prevent shifting of pipe during transit. At no time shall any direct metal-to-coating contact be allowed during handling or shipping.

Definitions	Anchor Profile	The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surface coating.
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish linings or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
	Curing	Setting up or hardening, generally due to a polymerization reaction between two or more chemicals (rein and curative).
	Flocking	The process of spraying FBE onto a substrate.
	Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.
This con	u was printed on $10/20/2024$	Dr 7 f 11

MPLX Gathering	& Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Plant Applied Co	oating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010Rev No: 3
	Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.
	Manufacturer	Direct or indirect producer of linings, fabricated components, or subassemblies.
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from tuse of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	this Standard shall be processed and documented through OR-01.
Forms	Number	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03	Coating Variance Request Form
References	Number	<b>Description</b>
	Appendix A	Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Systems
	NACE SP0394	Application, Performance, and Quality Control of Plant- Applied Single-Layer Fusion-Bonded Epoxy External Pipe Coating
	SSPC SP-1	Solvent Cleaning
	SSPC SP-10	Near-White Metal Blast Cleaning
Records Retention	Do not retain printed copies of document will be retained inde	this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this finitely.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Section 4.1	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	Coating General Requirements section added. NACE CIP 1 requirement for Inspectors removed, only requiring OQs now. Reformatted to G&P Standard Template.	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
3	Preferred coating system section added, Powercrete DD (ARO) added to approved coatings list	Ryan Ell	Prasanna Swamy	11/1/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix A – Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Systems	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile MILS	Product
Underground new factory coated steel		Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	1.5 - 4.0	3M Scotchkote 6233 (FBE) Total DFT: 8 to 16 Mils Color: Green
piping installations	PC-1	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS	-	3M Scotchkote 6352 (ARO) Total DFT: 15 to 35 Mils Color: Brown
Inderground new factory coated steel		Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Up to 225°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	2.0 - 4.5	Dupont Nap-Gard 2500 Series (FBE) Total DFT: 12 to 24 Mils Color: Red
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations	PC-2	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS	-	Dupont Nap-Rock 7-2610 (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> Contact Manufacturer <b>Color:</b> Gray
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations	PC-3	Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	2.0 Min.	Sherwin Williams Pipeclad 2000 (FBE) Total DFT: 12 to 16 Mils Color: Green
		"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS	-	Sherwin Williams Pipeclad 2040 (ARO) Total DFT: 10 to 60 Mils Color: Black
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-4	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Up to 140°F	Between 40°F and 120°F	Abrade FBE	-	Carboline Polyclad ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 to 125 Mils <b>Color:</b> Tan
Underground and new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-5	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 140°F	Between -20°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.0 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete J ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 40 Mils Typ. (Over Bare Steel) 20 Mils Typ. (Over Epoxy Coating)

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 10 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Appendix A – Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Systems	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile MILS	Product
							Color: Brown
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-6	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 130°F	Between 35°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.5 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.5 – 4.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete DD ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 20 to 80 mils <b>Color:</b> Brown, Black
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-7	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Up to 150°F	Down to 50°F	Abrade FBE	-	Denso Protal ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 30 to 60 Mils <b>Color:</b> Red
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-8	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Down to 41°F	See PDS	-	3M Scotchkote 328 (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 40 to 100 Mils <b>Color:</b> Blue-Green

Types of Codes:

FBE Fusion Bonded Epoxy

ARO Abrasion Resistant Overlay

•

•

Gathering & Processing Standard Document						
Authored by:		Doc No.: ENG-STD-0010				
Ryan Ell						
Doc. Custodian:	Plant Applied Costing Specification	Rev. No.: 3				
Ryan Ell	Plant Applied Coaling Specification					
Approved by:		MPLX G&P				
Prasanna Swamy						
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024				

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for surface preparation applications of plant applied coatings for underground pipelines to prove</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipelin facilities)</li> <li>The intended coating service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, color schemes, a requirements as they pertain to plant applied Fusion Bonded Ep</li> </ul>	n and coating vide: e systems and and inspection boxy (FBE) coating			
Scope	<ul> <li>This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistic Gathering and Processing (G&amp;P) operated assets.</li> <li>When purchasing existing pre-coated FBE pipe, only the Inspec Control section of this standard shall apply.</li> </ul>	es (MPLX)			
Table of Contents	Purpose Scope				
	Coating General Requirements	2			
	Plant Applied Coating	2			
	Requirements	2			
	Surface Preparation and Inspection	3			
	Coating Materials				
	Coating Application	4			
	Inspection and Quality Control				
	Preparation for Inspection				
	Coating Thickness				
	Coating Holidays	5			
	Testing, Tracking, and Repairs	5			
	Testing	5			
	Tracking, Stenciling, and Record Keeping	6			
	Repairs	6			
	Storage, Handling, and Shipping	6			
	Requirements	6			
	Definitions	7			
	Waiver Process				
This co	Page Page Page	1 of 11			

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Plant Applied Coating Specification		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3
Plant Applied Coating General Requirements Plant Applied Coating Requirements	<ul> <li><u>Soating Specification</u></li> <li>Forms</li></ul>	Gathering & Processing Standar Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010 ound breakout tanks, each buried of roal coating for external corrosion of ocated, replaced, or otherwise chan ibed in this standard were selected of underground pipe e to the metal surface nd accumulation of moisture at the ngth to resist damage due to handli portation, installation, boring, and rotection ag of line pipe, MPLX may furnish r shall be qualified per the relevant becified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> . e right to designate and send to the for the purpose of confirming prop test. The Inspector shall have free a ll times when the company's pipe i etc.). thority to interpret these specification and shall be cleaned and recoated a	d Document Rev No: 3
	<ul> <li>The company shall have the as applicable, an inspector and observing any coating contractor facility during all (unloaded, loaded, coated, 4)</li> <li>Inspector shall have the autopipe with coating that does have the coating removed a expense.</li> <li>The coating contractor shall quality control, tools, and e pipe in accordance with the autopipe in a coating shall be a</li> </ul>	e right to designate and send to the for the purpose of confirming prop test. The Inspector shall have free a ll times when the company's pipe i etc.). thority to interpret these specification not conform to these specification and shall be cleaned and recoated a l be responsible for furnishing all l equipment to assure that the coating ese specifications.	contractor facility, er coating operations access to the s being handled ons and reject any s. Rejected pipe shall t the contractor's abor, materials, g is applied to the
This copy v	<ul> <li>NACE SP0394 and the Ref difference between these sp company standards, these c brought to the attention of t Engineer.</li> <li>was printed on 10/29/2024</li> </ul>	Ferences section of this standard. In pecifications, <u>NACE SP0394</u> , and t company standards shall rule. All d the Regional Corrosion Control Te Pag	the case of a the referenced ifferences shall be am Lead or ge 2 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	

Surface Preparation and Inspection	<ul> <li>Bare pipe arriving at the contractor's facility shall be inspected by contractor upon arrival. All damaged or defective pipe found during unloading shall be segregated, shall not be coated, and shall be noted on trucking or rail bills of lading to indicate types of damage and number of joints. Any pipe later found (not detected during unloading) to have dents, gouges, damaged bevels, etc., shall be determined as to the origin of the damage and any pipe damaged by contractor. If damaged by the contractor, the contractor's shall make necessary repairs, including cost of pipe (not repairable), at contractor's expense.</li> <li>Prior to blast cleaning, bare pipe shall be inspected by the contractor for loose mill scale, oil, grease, tar, asphalt, and miscellaneous foreign matter such as, but not limited to, salts and soil. All joints of pipe with such contaminates shall be noted and set aside for pre-cleaning. Pipe that requires solvent removal of deleterious material shall have such material removed by solvent cleaning in accordance with SSPC SP-1 requirements.</li> <li>Prior to pre-heat and blast cleaning, the pipe surface shall be cleaned of all contaminates so as to avoid contamination of abrasive media and imbedding into anchor profile.</li> <li>The pipe surface shall be preheated to above the dew point and sufficiently to remove all surface moisture prior to blast cleaning. Pipe shall be preheated in a uniform manner to avoid distortion.</li> <li>The pipe surface shall be abrasive blast cleaned to "near white finish" in accordance with SSPC SP-10. The abrasive shall be anaxium depth of 4.0 mils. A consistent abrasive working mix shall be maintained by frequent additions of small quantities of new abrasive.</li> <li>After cleaning and prior to final heating, the pipe surface shall be inspected for adequate cleaning and surface condition. Improperly cleaned pipe shall be rejected and rerun at the contractor's expense. Surface imperfections such as slivers, scabs, burrs, and weld spatter shall he restor</li></ul>
Coating Materials	<ul> <li>The coating contractor shall use only the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u>, unless approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>The preferred coating system for Plant Applied Pipeline Coatings is the PC-6</li> </ul>
This comes	$p_{min}$ to $d_{00} = \frac{10}{200} \frac{10}{200}$

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 3 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	

option:

- Fusion Bonded Epoxy: Sherwin Williams PipeClad 2000
- Abrasion Resistant Overlay (if required): Sherwin Williams PipeClad 2040
- Any deviations from the products listed in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be accompanied with a completed and signed copy of <u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03</u>.

**Coating Application** 

- The pipe shall be heated to a minimum temperature in accordance with coating powder manufacturer's specifications with reference to the size and wall thickness of the pipe. The pipe shall be continually checked for proper temperature prior to coating by use of simplistic heat and/or electronic heat indicators. Pipe heated in excess of 525 degrees Fahrenheit shall be metallurgically inspected for acceptability. The costs of the metallurgical inspection and any rejected pipe shall be borne by the contractor.
- The use of reclaimed powder from previous jobs shall not be permitted. Powder older than one year shall not be used. Powder of lesser age shall not be permitted if storage conditions are considered unacceptable by Inspector and powder manufacturer's specifications.
- Coating powder shall immediately be applied using electrostatic spray guns to a uniform minimum and maximum thickness of specified mils. Electrostatic equipment shall be adjusted for maximum efficiency to minimize the amount of powder which may be recycled. Use of recycled coating material shall be permitted if adequate recovery and 80 or finer mesh screening equipment is used and maintained. An adequate recycle system shall properly blend recycled and virgin coating material into the delivery system. At no time shall more than 25% recycled powder be mixed in with virgin powder.
- Air used to fluidize, transport, and apply the coating powder shall be commercially dry and free of oil or other contaminants.
- The minimum cure time and temperatures shall conform to the coating manufacturer's specifications, keeping in accordance with reference to the size and wall thickness of the pipe.
- Coating material shall not be applied closer than 1-1/2 inches or farther than 2-1/2 inches from the beveled ends of the pipe.

Inspection and Quality Control Preparation for Inspection Coating Thickness

- Three randomly distributed coating thickness measurements shall be made along the length and around the circumference of each pipe joint. Calibration of the gauge shall be verified three times per day (at start up a.m., at start up after lunch, and at end of shift), utilizing U.S. Bureau of Standards certified coating thickness calibration standards.
- Any joint of pipe with less than the specified minimum mils and more than the specified maximum mils dry film thickness shall be rejected. The rejected joint shall have the coating completely removed prior to recoating according to this

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 4 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard Docum		rd Document	
Plant Applied Coating Specification		Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3
Coating Holidays	<ul> <li>specification.</li> <li>Coated pipe surfaces s holiday detector equip <ul> <li>In addition to h tested again on</li> </ul> </li> <li>The holiday detector w cutback area of each jo</li> <li>The holiday detector since the sector sector since the sector since the sector sector</li></ul>	hall be 100% electrically inspected by ped with an audible signaling device. holiday testing at the factory, all piping -site prior to being lowered into the dif yand shall be placed in contact with the pint to assure the operation of the signa hall be "DC" type. Instruments shall be	the contractor with a shall be holiday tch. bare pipe in the ling device. e set to 125 volts per
'esting,	<ul> <li>mil, based on the species</li> <li>The holiday detector side adjusted by the contract thickest coating on pipt times and results of the</li> <li>All holidays shall be c</li> <li>Generally, the number preparation before coal greater than one holida (OD) 20 inches or less inches shall be rejected</li> </ul>	ified minimum cured film thickness. hall be checked periodically, at least the ctor to ensure detection of an intentiona- be and to ensure proper voltage is being ese verifications shall be documented to learly marked for repair. of holidays per joint reflects the quality ting, proper coating thickness, or both and per 20 square feet for pipe with an Of and 30 square feet for pipe with an Of d and recoated at the contractor's expert	aree times a day, and al holiday through the g maintained. The by the Inspector. ty of surface All joints containing Dutside Diameter D greater than 20 nse.
racking, and lepairs			
resung	<ul> <li>Laboratory testing of a two pipe joints. The fir joints after start-up. The are necessary.</li> <li>Each day, the contracter inches in length, labeled from which joints of p shall be conducted on</li> </ul>	coated pipe shall be conducted each day rst test of each day shall be initiated on he test results shall determine whether or shall supply a coated sample of pipe ed by coating date and joint number. In ipe to cut the sample. The testing requir a portion of these 18 inch samples and	y, on a minimum of one of the first 15 application changes from two joints, 18 aspector may choose ired in this section the remainder shall
	be retained for history	backup. Problems detected in coating	may necessitate
	<ul> <li>Laboratory tests shall i</li> <li>Bend test: coat 3 degrees per p</li> <li>Cathodic disbo mm radius from degrees Fahren</li> <li>Porosity levels porosity) be tol bubbles on the separate the po and stripping o</li> </ul>	include the following: ing shall not disbond, delaminate, crac pipe diameter (OD) at 32 degrees Fahre ndment: coating shall not cathodically n 3 mm (1/8 inch) diameter holiday in heit in 3% NACL under 3.5 VDC. : under no circumstances shall "foam be lerated. "Foam bond" is a condition res steel surface, where only thin membra res. Generally, such a condition shall p f the coating with a simple knife test.	k, or break when bent enheit. disbond more than 8 24 hours at 150 bond" (cellular sembling soap nes of coating bermit easy gouging The extent of foaming
This copy w	as printed on 10/29/2024	Pa	ge 5 of 11
u to 1maging: 4/1/2	023 2:0/:38 PM		

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Plant Applied Co	ating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3
	at the interface and t using the Bell and S	hroughout the film may not excee tephens foam evaluation guide.	ed a rating of three
Tracking, Stenciling, and Record Keeping	<ul> <li>Each joint of coated pipe sh following information:         <ul> <li>Company name</li> <li>Size, weight, grade,</li> <li>Coating contractor a</li> <li>Coating manufacture</li> <li>Month and year coation</li> <li>Stencil each end on end and middle on the stence of the contractor shall keep of following information:             <ul> <li>Date and coating seed</li> <li>Joint number</li> <li>Coating thickness</li> <li>Holiday (jeep) counding the composition (accepted)</li> </ul> </li> <li>Daily production tallies and and copies made available the Engineer. Any apparent pipe marked with a highly visible pipe steel defects" shall be the deformed the metal in any we longer than 1/2 the pipe diated to a step of the step</li></ul></li></ul>	<ul> <li>Each joint of coated pipe shall be permanently marked externally with the following information: <ul> <li>Company name</li> <li>Size, weight, grade, wall thickness, heat number, and manufacturer</li> <li>Coating contractor and location</li> <li>Coating manufacturer and product number</li> <li>Month and year coated</li> <li>Stencil each end on single random and double random length, stencil each end and middle on triple random length</li> </ul> </li> <li>The Contractor shall keep daily production tallies which shall contain the following information: <ul> <li>Date and coating sequence number</li> <li>Joint number</li> <li>Coating thickness</li> <li>Holiday (jeep) count</li> <li>Disposition (accepted, rejected, diverted for cutoff or re-beveling, etc.)</li> </ul> </li> <li>Daily production tallies and results of all production tests shall be documented, and copies made available to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. Any apparent pipe steel defects detected after coating shall be clearly marked with a highly visible permanent marker on the finished coating. "Apparent pipe steel defects" shall be taken to mean any deep scratch or gouge which deformed the metal in any way; any dent that is greater than 0.250 inches deep, is longer than 1/2 the pipe diameter, or affects a longitudinal seam; or any</li> </ul>	
Repairs	<ul> <li>Mechanical damage to the conspector deems complete s</li> <li>Prior to repairs, the area sur carborundum or equivalent.         <ul> <li>All repaired holiday</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	coated surface shall be repaired by tripping and recoating is necessary rounding the defect shall be abrad No files shall be used for holiday s shall be holiday inspected post r	the contractor unless y. led utilizing 80 grit repair. epair.
Storage, Handling, and Shipping Requirements	<ul> <li>Pipe (both bare and coated) buckling, or other damage. voltage alternating current ( pipeline is to be installed in considerations may apply.</li> <li>Any timbers used in pipe ra</li> <li>Pipe (both bare and coated)</li> </ul>	shall be stacked in a manner to pr Pipe shall not be stored in close pr (HVAC) power lines, or other elect a shared right-of-way, special wo cks shall be untreated, clean wood shall be elevated at least six inche	revent egging, roximity to high etrical hazards. If the orker safety 1. es off the ground.
i nis copy wa	as printed on 10/29/2024	Paş	ge o of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

Never store pipe directly on the ground.

- Pipe racks shall be clean of any contaminates that might contaminate the bare pipe or damage the coating on coated pipe.
- Pipe racks shall be of sufficient height to prevent water from contaminating the interior or exterior of the pipe and shall be constructed (at a slight tilt) to allow water to drain from each joint of racked pipe.
- All rows of pipe shall be restrained to prevent joints from rolling.
- For coated pipe, pipe racks shall have a sufficient number of padded runs (timber skids or metal piping or structural steel), properly spaced and leveled to support the coated pipe without damage. The padded runs shall be clean and free of embedded debris such as rocks, glass, wire, and dirt.
- The rows of coated pipe shall not be nested but separated with adequate clean stripping lumber.
- All pipe shall be handled in such a manner as to prevent damage to pipe walls, beveled ends, internal, and external surfaces. All hooks or forks used for pipe handling shall be padded to prevent damage to the pipe and coating.
- Pipe shall be separated during handling and shipping using tight weave polypropylene rope. The spacers shall be designed and placed so that all joints are separated to prevent coating-to-coating contact of the joints. A minimum of four spacers should be placed on 40 foot joints and shorter. A minimum of 6 spacers should be placed on 60 foot joints.
- Each pipe load shall have sufficient banding and standards (chocks) to securely hold it in place to prevent shifting of pipe during transit. At no time shall any direct metal-to-coating contact be allowed during handling or shipping.

Definitions	Anchor Profile	The profile of minute projections formed on a metal surface by sandblasting, shot blasting, or chemical etching; used to enhance the adhesiveness of a surface coating.
	Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish linings or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
	Curing	Setting up or hardening, generally due to a polymerization reaction between two or more chemicals (rein and curative).
	Flocking	The process of spraying FBE onto a substrate.
	Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.
This com	10/20/2024	D7.611

MPLX Gathering	& Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	Document
Plant Applied Co	oating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3
	Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or insp	ector.
	Manufacturer	Direct or indirect producer of linings, fabricated components, or subassemblies.	
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall me Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.	
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference potentials expressed in volts.	e in electrode
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from tuse of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	this Standard shall be processed and doc OR-01.	cumented through
Forms	Number	<b>Description</b>	
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation For	m
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03	Coating Variance Request Form	
References	Number	<b>Description</b>	
	Appendix A	Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Syster	ns
	NACE SP0394	Application, Performance, and Qualit Applied Single-Layer Fusion-Bonded Pipe Coating	y Control of Plant- Epoxy External
	SSPC SP-1	Solvent Cleaning	
	SSPC SP-10	Near-White Metal Blast Cleaning	
Records Retention	Do not retain printed copies of document will be retained inde	this document more than 12 months. Refinitely.	evisions to this

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Plant Applied Coating Specification	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Section 4.1	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	Coating General Requirements section added. NACE CIP 1 requirement for Inspectors removed, only requiring OQs now. Reformatted to G&P Standard Template.	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
3	Preferred coating system section added, Powercrete DD (ARO) added to approved coatings list	Ryan Ell	Prasanna Swamy	11/1/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Appendix A – Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Systems	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3	

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile MILS	Product
Underground new factory coated steel		Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	1.5 - 4.0	3M Scotchkote 6233 (FBE) Total DFT: 8 to 16 Mils Color: Green
piping installations	PC-1	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS	-	3M Scotchkote 6352 (ARO) Total DFT: 15 to 35 Mils Color: Brown
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations		Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Up to 225°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	2.0 - 4.5	Dupont Nap-Gard 2500 Series (FBE) Total DFT: 12 to 24 Mils Color: Red
	PC-2	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS	-	Dupont Nap-Rock 7-2610 (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> Contact Manufacturer <b>Color:</b> Gray
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations	PC-3	Shop Applied Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Between -100°F and 230°F	Contact Manufacturer	SP-10	2.0 Min.	Sherwin Williams Pipeclad 2000 (FBE) <b>Total DFT:</b> 12 to 16 Mils <b>Color:</b> Green
			105	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Contact Manufacturer	See PDS
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-4	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Up to 140°F	Between 40°F and 120°F	Abrade FBE	-	Carboline Polyclad ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 25 to 125 Mils <b>Color:</b> Tan
Underground and new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-5	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 140°F	Between -20°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.0 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete J ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 40 Mils Typ. (Over Bare Steel) 20 Mils Typ. (Over Epoxy Coating)

This copy was printed on 10/29/2024

Page 10 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Appendix A – Fusion Bonded Epoxy Coating Systems	Doc Number: ENG-STD-0010	Rev No: 3

Environment	System No	Category Items	Service Temperature	Ambient Application Temperature	Surface Prep, SSPC-SP	Anchor Profile MILS	Product
							Color: Brown
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-6	Abrasion Resistant Overlay	Up to 130°F	Between 35°F and 120°F	SP-10 (Over Bare Steel) SP-7 (Over Epoxy Coating)	3.0 – 4.5 (Over Bare Steel) Min. 2.5 – 4.0 (Over Epoxy Coating)	Powercrete DD ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 20 to 80 mils <b>Color:</b> Brown, Black
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-7	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Up to 150°F	Down to 50°F	Abrade FBE	-	Denso Protal ARO (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 30 to 60 Mils <b>Color:</b> Red
Underground new factory coated steel piping installations and bore pipe	PC-8	"Abrasion Resistant Overlay" Applied Over	Contact Manufacturer	Down to 41°F	See PDS	-	3M Scotchkote 328 (ARO) <b>Total DFT:</b> 40 to 100 Mils <b>Color:</b> Blue-Green

Types of Codes:

FBE Fusion Bonded Epoxy

ARO Abrasion Resistant Overlay

•

MPL	Corrosion Control Program Annual Review Form	OPS-STD	-0017-FOR-01
		Pag	e 1 of 3
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Standard/Form	Date Reviewed	Reviewed By	Revision Proposed (Y/N)	Proposed Revision
OPS-STD-0017				
OPS-STD-0017-FOR-01				
OPS-STD-0018				
OPS-STD-0018-FOR-01				
OPS-STD-0019				
OPS-STD-0020				
OPS-STD-0020-FOR01				
OPS-STD-0020-FOR02				
OPS-STD-0021				
OPS-STD-0022				
OPS-STD-0023				
OPS-STD-0023-FOR-01				
OPS-STD-0024				
OPS-STD-0024-FOR01				
OPS-STD-0025				
OPS-STD-0026				
OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01				

MPL	Corrosion Control Program Annual Review Form	OPS-STD	-0017-FOR-01
		Pag	e 2 of 3
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Standard/Form	Date Reviewed	Reviewed By	Revision Proposed (Y/N)	Proposed Revision
OPS-STD-0027				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06				
OPS-STD-0027-FOR-07				
OPS-STD-0028				
OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01				
OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02				
OPS-STD-0028-FOR-03				
OPS-STD-0028-FOR-04				
ENG-STD-0004				
ENG-STD-0005				
ENG-STD-0006				
ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01				

MPL	Corrosion Control Program Annual Review Form	OPS-STD	-0017-FOR-01
		Pag	e 3 of 3
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Standard/Form	Date Reviewed	Reviewed By	Revision Proposed (Y/N)	Proposed Revision
ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02				
ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03				
ENG-STD-0007				
ENG-STD-0008				
ENG-STD-0009				
ENG-STD-0010				

Comments

Gathering & Processing Standard Document					
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0018			
Ryan Ell					
Doc. Custodian:	Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring,	Rev. No.: 3			
Ryan Ell	Inspection and Mitigation				
Approved by:		MPLX G&P			
Prasanna Swamy					
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024			

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of atmospheric (external) corrosion of pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) to provide: <ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of work procedures, materials, and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of atmospheric corrosion</li> </ul> </li> </ul>						
Scope	<ul> <li>This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&amp;P) operated assets.</li> <li>The scope of this standard does not include the monitoring, inspection, and mitigation of corrosion under insulation (CUI).</li> </ul>						
Table of Contents	Purpose	1					
	Scope1						
	Inspection and Mitigation						
	Inspection Interval	2					
	Areas of Interest	2					
	Inspection Procedure	2					
	Classifications	3					
	Repairs	4					
	Survey Record Keeping	4					
	Definitions	4					
	Waiver Process	5					
	Forms	5					
	References	5					
	Records Retention	6					
	Revision History	6					

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard	Document	
Atmospheric Co and Mitigation	orrosion Monitoring, Inspection	<b>n Monitoring, Inspection</b> Doc Number: OPS-STD-0018 Rev No:		
Inspection and Mitigation Inspection Interval	<ul> <li>The pipeline system or portion of the shall be inspected for evidence of at</li> <li>Onshore – At least once ever exceeding thirty-nine (39) mages</li> </ul>	the pipeline system that is exposed to tmospheric corrosion at the intervals ry three (3) calendar years, but with months.	the atmosphere is listed below: intervals not	
Areas of Interest	The inspection of the pipeline syste the atmosphere shall give particular under disbonded coatings, at pipe su	m or portion of the pipeline system attention to pipe located at soil-to-a upports, and in spans over water.	that is exposed to ir interfaces,	
Inspection Procedure	<ul> <li>Individuals performing annu Operator Qualification (OQ)</li> <li>Atmospheric Corrosion More be performed using <u>OPS-ST</u> recording the fields listed in completion of the survey, the Compliance System (PCS) of completion date.</li> <li>Atmospheric corrosion inspected areas of a pipeler atmospheric corrosion.</li> <li>Both atmospheric (metal-metal be evaluated for corrosion. If and a transition interface.</li> </ul>	g annual survey work shall be qualified per the relevant (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> . n Monitoring, Inspection, and Mitigation Procedures sha <u>PS-STD-0018-FOR-01</u> or by using an Allegro Field PC ted in <u>OPS-STD-0018-FOR-01</u> (preferred). Following th rey, the survey data shall be transferred to the Pipeline PCS) database within sixty (60) days of the survey n inspection survey data shall be retained per the retention ppendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> . pipeline and exposed in-yard piping shall be inspected f tal-metal) interfaces and transition (soil-air) interfaces sl sion. Figure 1 shows an example of an atmospheric inter- ince.		
	Atmospheric (metal-metal)	Transition (soil-air)		

Figure 1: Atmospheric Interface (Left), Transition Interface (Right)

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0018	Rev No: 3
and Mitigation		

- Priority classifications consist of 5 priority classifications, with a 1 being the least severe and a 5 being the most severe:
  - Priority 1 Excellent Coating, No Exposed Metal Present
  - Priority 2 Aged Coating, No Exposed Metal Present
  - Priority 3 Damaged Coating, Exposed Metal Present but No Measurable Metal Loss
  - Priority 4 Damaged Coating, Exposed Metal with Measurable Metal Loss Less Than Mill Tolerance (< 12.5% Wall Thickness)</li>
  - Priority 5 Damaged Coating, Exposed Metal with Measurable Metal Loss Greater Than Mill Tolerance (> 12.5% Wall Thickness)
- If the most recent inspection used Priority Classifications made before August 2023, the old classification system (prior to August 2023) shall be converted to the new classification system (post August 2023) as follows:
  - Priority 3 (old) shall be reclassified as a Priority 2 (New)
  - Priority 2 (old) shall be reclassified as a Priority 3 (New)
  - Priority 1 (old) shall be reclassified as a Priority 5 (New)
- In the field, the Corrosion Control Technician or Qualified Operator shall assign priorities to all exposed areas of a pipeline system for each area of interest utilizing the above priority classifications.
- Actions associated with priorities are defined in the Classifications section of this standard. Other locations such as splash zones and deck penetrations shall use the same priority system using sound judgment.
- Photographs shall be taken at each assessed location and stored together with the survey data in the PCS database, which shall be retained per <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.
- Each exposed area shall be given a unique identifying label, i.e., PIC 01, for reference on future inspections. If piping circuits have been assigned under a prior <u>API 570</u> or <u>API 2611</u> inspection, use the piping circuits label as the identifying element.

## Classifications

- MPLX personnel shall review third-party inspection reports and affirm or modify priority classifications.
- Areas classified as Priority 1 or 2 items shall be re-assessed at the standard atmospheric inspection interval and can be re-prioritized at any time.
- Areas classified as Priority 3 items shall have coating repaired by the nextfbe atmospheric inspection interval.
- Areas classified as Priority 4 items shall have coating repaired within 1.5 years.
- For areas classified as Priority 5 items, an engineering assessment of the metal loss using non-destructive examination (NDE) methods shall be conducted, as soon as reasonably possibly and within 1 year of discovery, under the guidance of an Integrity Engineer per the code associated with the pertinent regulatory agency.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Sta	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Atmospheric ( and Mitigation	Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection	Doc Number: OPS-STD-00	018 Rev No: 3		
Repairs	<ul> <li>Where no regulatory agency has authority, an engineering assessment, along with remediation, shall be performed per <u>ASME B31.4</u> (liquid service) or <u>ASME B31</u> (gas service).</li> <li>All repair items shall be tracked in the PCS database and should, if available, be assigned a work order and tracked in SAP.</li> <li>Coating repairs on atmospheric piping shall follow <u>ENG-STD-0006</u>, while coatin repairs on transition piping shall follow <u>ENG-STD-0009</u>.</li> <li>Coating repairs shall be documented using the appropriate MPLX coating packet forms: <ul> <li><u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01</u></li> <li><u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02</u></li> <li><u>ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03</u></li> </ul> </li> <li>If metal loss requires repair by mechanical means (e.g., sleeve, weld-overlay, replacement pipe, etc.), an MPLX Pipeline Integrity Engineer shall be consulted determine the proper type of repair.</li> </ul>				
Survey	Record	Owner	Location		
Record Keeping	Atmospheric Corrosion Inspection Survey	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database		
	Photographs of Piping Circuits	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database		
Definitions	Atmospheric	Metal-metal interface or elevate encompasses metal laying on to supports other than soil (e.g., we	metal interface or elevated pipe spans. Also passes metal laying on top of non-metallic ts other than soil (e.g., wood, concrete, etc.).		
Contractor		ompany or business that agrees to furnish materials or erform specified services at a specified price and/or rate MPLX.			
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that res electrochemical reaction with it	eterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or ectrochemical reaction with its environment.		
	Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.			
	Idled (Inactive)	A pipeline that is not currently a liquids, but continues to be main <u>Part 192</u> or <u>49 CFR Part 195</u> .	used to transport gas or ntained under <u>49 CFR</u>		
	Inspector/ Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer of	or inspector.		

MPLX Gathering & Processing

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

Gathering & Processing Standard Document

Atmospheric Co and Mitigation	prrosion Monitoring, Inspection	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0018 Rev No: 3		
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.		
	Onshore	Situated or occurring on land.		
	Offshore (Marine)	Beyond the line or ordinary low water along that portion of the coast that is in direct contact with the open seas and beyond the line marking the seaward limit of inland waters.		
	Transition	Soil-air interface. Also encompasses metal laying on top of soil and water-air interfaces.		
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from the use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FC</u>	nis Standard shall be processed and documented through <u>DR-01</u> .		
Forms	<u>Number</u>	Description		
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form		
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-01	Pipeline Coating Packet Form		
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-02	Tank Coating Packet Form		
	ENG-STD-0006-FOR-03	Coating Variance Form		
	OPS-STD-0018-FOR-01	Atmospheric Corrosion: Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation Form		
References	<u>Number</u>	Description		
	49 CFR Part 192	Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline		
	49 CFR Part 195	Transportation of Hazardous Liquids by Pipeline		
	API 570	Piping Inspection Code: In-Service Inspection, Rating, Repair, and Alteration of Piping Systems		
	API 2611	Terminal Piping Inspection-Inspection of In-Service Terminal Piping Systems		
This copy v	ASME B31.3 vas printed on 10/15/2024	Process Piping Code Page 5 of 6		

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0018	Rev No: 3
and Mitigation		

ASME B31.8	Gas Transmission and Distribution Pipeline Systems
ENG-STD-0006	Coating of Aboveground Pipelines and Facilities Standard
ENG-STD-0009	Coating of Transition Areas Standard
OPS-STD-0026	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation
OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program

# RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### Revision History

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 6.0, 7.0;	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
	Removed Appendix A & B			
2	Classifications and Repairs	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	sections updated. Reformatted			
	to G&P Standard Template.			
3	Section added regarding	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	reclassification of Priority		Swamy	
	classifications made prior to			
	August 2023.			

	Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-	-0018-FOR-01
		Page 1 of 2	
®	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

ATMOSPHERIC CORROSION INSPECTION FORM				
Inspection Date		Technician		
Information				
ROW Code			Milepost	
Location Descript	ion		GPS Coordi	nates
		Atmospheric	Transition	Coating
				Field Applied Epoxy
				Fusion Bonded Epoxy
Facility Type:				Paint
Exposed Pipe -	- Terminal/Facility			Extruded Polyethylene
□ Exposed Pipe -	- Pipeline			Coal Tar
□ Exposed Pipe -	- Offshore Facility			Somastic Coating
Engineered Spa	an			Pritec
□ Trestle				Heat Shrink Sleeve
□ Vault				Таре
				Insulation Wrap
				Wax
				Uncoated
				Other:
				N/A
Information Rem	arks			
Inspection				
Atmospheric	Transition	Conditioning of	Coating	
		Excellent – No Holidays		
		Good		
		□ Fair – Small Holidays		
Poor – Moderate Holidays / Visible Rust			le Rust	
Could Not Inspect				

MPLX	Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-	-0018-FOR-01
		Page 2 of 2	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Inspection					
Atmospheric	Transition	Corrosion			
		Excellent Pipe Con	ndition, No Corrosion		
		Good Pipe Condition	ion		
		Fair – Rust Stain, S	Slight General Pitting		
		Poor – Moderate, (	General or Isolated Pitting		
		Mechanical Damag	age – Engineering Required		
		Rust Stain Betwee	en Pipe and Support / No Isolation		
		Could Not Inspect	t		
		N/A			
Atmospheric	Transition	Priority			
		3 – Pipeline Coatin Loss	ing Undamaged – No Visual Oxidation – No Visible Metal		
$\boxtimes$		2 – Pipeline Coatir	2 – Pipeline Coating Damaged – Visual Oxidation – No Visible Metal Loss		
		1 – Pipeline Coatir	1 – Pipeline Coating Damaged – Excessive Oxidation – Visible Metal Loss		
		Could Not Inspect			
		N/A			
Repair Recomm	Repair Recommended  Yes  No				
Inspection Rem	arks				
Maintenance/Re	epairs				
Recommended I	Repair		_		
Monitor			Repair Priority:		
Coat Expos	ed Steel		□ High		
Perform Ma	Perform Maintenance Coating		□ Medium		
□ Repair or R	□ Repair or Replace Tape Wrap		□ Low		
□ Install PE o	Install PE or Similar Insulating Material		□ N/A		
□ Other (See	Other (See Inspection Remarks)				
Repair Remarks					

Gathering & Processing Standard Document						
Authored by: Rvan Ell			Doc No.: OPS-STD-0019			
Doc. Custodian:		Internal Corrosion Monitoring and	Rev. No.: 1			
Approved by:		Mitigation	MPLX G&P			
Scott Stampka	/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/1//2023			
Purpose	This standar	d establishes minimum requirements for the i	nspection and mitigation of			
	<ul> <li>Com facili</li> <li>The i</li> <li>Stand to the</li> </ul>	pliance with regulatory requirements (for reg ties) intended service life for the asset dardization of survey procedures and inspecti e mitigation of internal corrosion	ulated pipeline systems and on requirements as they pertain			
Scope	This standar Processing (	d applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum L G&P) operated assets.	ogistics (MPLX) Gathering and			
Table of	Purpose		1			
Contents	Scope	Scope1				
	Internal Corr	rosion Detection and Measurement	2			
	General		2			
	Visual Ins	pection	2			
	Corrosion	Coupons and Probes				
	Sampling.					
	In-Line In	spection (ILI)				
	Methods for	Controlling Internal Corrosion				
	General					
	Maintenar	nce Pigging				
	Corrosion	Inhibitor/Biocide				
	Survey Reco	ords				
	Survey Re	cord Keeping				
	Definitions					
	Waiver Proc	ess				
	Forms					
	Reterences					
	Records Ret	ention	6			
	Revision His	story				

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Internal Corrosion Monitoring and Mitigation		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0019	Rev No: 1
Internal Corrosion Detection and Measurement General	The Regional Corrosion Control Te identifying the corrosion constituen	am Lead or Engineer shall be res ts and where the likely source is	ponsible for located.
Visual Inspection	<ul> <li>Individuals performing surv Qualification (OQ) tasks spe</li> <li>If a piping system is above a (this includes cut outs), obse qualified individual and record o Evidence of corrosion identified and record o Measurement of wal corrosion damage do o Circumferential and any discernible patte</li> <li>Position of attack wi with respect to the el o Existence of deposit deposit shall be obta</li> <li>Internal corrosion visual ins schedule outlined in Append</li> </ul>	ey work shall be qualified per the ecified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> . ground or exposed and is opened ervations of the following shall be orded using both <u>124-A</u> and <u>124F</u> on on internal pipe surfaces. Type led. I thickness in the most deeply con- bes exist. longitudinal extent of corrosion of ern of attack. th respect to the horizontal at the levation of adjacent pipe section. s and corrosion under the deposit ined for analysis. pection data shall be retained per dix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .	e relevant Operator to allow visual access e conducted by a <u>3</u> : so of damage shall be rroded areas if on the pipe surface or corroded section and s. A sample of the the retention
Corrosion Coupons and Other Monitoring Equipment	<ul> <li>Individuals performing work qualified per the relevant OO</li> <li>In addition to corrosion cour measure internal corrosion s Resistance (ER) probes, Lin Probes, Microbiologically T Testing.</li> <li>The use of properly located determining the existence, re be recommended by the Reg</li> <li>Coupons and/or probes are in internal exposed surface. Con location where free water or</li> <li>Intrusive coupons or probes</li> <li>Recommended guidance for be located in <u>TSIC-006</u>.</li> <li>Each coupon and probe shall not exceeding seven and a h Pipeline Compliance System the scheduled survey month</li> </ul>	k on internal corrosion coupons a Q tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-00</u> pons, other monitoring equipmen such as (Ultrasonic Testing (UT) hear Polarization Resistance (LPR 'esting (APB/SRB/qPCR), & Wa coupons and/or probes are an eff ate, and type of internal corrosion gional Corrosion Control Team L installed in the gas or liquid streat prosion monitoring devices shall water wetting is anticipated to b shall be retracted before pigging performing corrosion coupon an Il be monitored at least two times alf months, and the data shall be n (PCS) database within sixty (60	nd probes shall be <u>005</u> . t may be used to Monitors, Electric Probes, Galvanic ter Chemistry ective method for n. These devices shall ead or Engineer. m to simulate the be placed in a e present. of a pipeline. d probe testing can each calendar year, entered into the )) days of the end of
This copy	was printed on $10/15/2024$	- F	age 2 of 6

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Internal Corrosion Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0019	Rev No: 1

• Coupon and probe corrosion rates shall be categorized per the values in the table below unless another categorization system is approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. If another categorization system is used, it shall be documented with the inspection data that is using it.

Qualitative Categorization of Carbon Steel Corrosion Rates			
Category	General Corrosion Rate (mpy)	Maximum Pitting Rate (mpy)	
Low	< 1.0	< 5.0	
Moderate	1.0 - 4.9	5.0 - 7.9	
High	5.0 - 10	8.0 - 15	
Severe	>10	>15	

Note: Above table adopted from <u>NACE SP0775-2013</u>.

• Internal corrosion coupon and probe survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.

### Sampling

- If product sampling is conducted to analyze for internal corrosion monitoring, the sampling shall be conducted in accordance with <u>NACE TM0194-2004</u> and <u>NACE</u> <u>SP0106-2006</u>.
- The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for identifying the product sampling protocol and location(s).
- Record all relevant sample analysis (e.g., gas and liquids analysis, solids analysis, bacteria testing, etc.) in the PCS database within sixty (60) days of receiving the analysis results.
- Internal corrosion sample analysis data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.
- In-line inspection tools may be employed for detecting mechanical integrity issues and internal/external corrosion damage.
- For a complete guide on this type of procedure consult <u>IMP 06.1</u>.

Methods for Controlling Internal Corrosion General

**In-Line** 

(ILI)

Inspection

- The recommended methods for controlling internal corrosion shall be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on the data analysis performed in the Internal Corrosion Detection and Measurement section.
- The decision to proceed with mitigation measures will also depend on other factors such as the configuration and type of equipment (e.g., plant piping, pipelines, vessels, tanks, etc.), availability of pigging facilities, feasibility of

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 3 of 6

MPLX Gathering	& Proc	cessing	Gathering & Processing St	andard Document
Internal Corrosio	on Mo	nitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-001	9 Rev No: 1
		<ul> <li>chemical treatment, etc.</li> <li>In steel cross-corpigging and chero</li> <li>In plant facilities and linings, meta</li> </ul>	untry pipelines, options are usua mical inhibition. s, internal corrosion can often be allurgy, use of non-metallic mate	Ily limited to pipeline controlled by coatings erials, gas stripping, etc.
Maintenance Pigging	•	<ul> <li>Cleaning pigs are used to improve and maintain internal pipe cleanliness by removing contaminants and deposits within the pipe.</li> <li>Any pig inserted into a pipeline shall be clean and in good repair.</li> <li>The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for identifying the maintenance pig type and pigging frequency.</li> <li>Operations should maintain records of cleaning pig runs by location including date and type of pig.</li> <li>If product sampling from a maintenance cleaning pig run is conducted to analyze for internal corrosion monitoring, follow the Sampling section under Internal Corrosion Detection and Measurement.</li> </ul>		
Corrosion Inhibitor/Bioc ide	•	<ul> <li>Individuals performing the tasks of monitoring and controlling the injection rate of corrosion inhibitor or biocide shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.</li> <li>Addition of corrosion inhibitor or biocide shall be considered a corrosion mitigation measure when corrosive gases or liquids are transported.</li> <li>The initial name, quantity, and frequency of inhibitors or biocides, and other treating chemicals used shall be recorded and the document shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.</li> </ul>		
Survey Records				
Survey Record		Record	Owner	Location
Keeping		Coupon/Probe Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
		Internal Corrosion Sampling Analysis Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Definitions	ons Corrosion		Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.	
	In-Line Inspection (ILI)		The evaluation of pipelines using "smart pigs" that utilize non-destructive examination techniques to detect and size internal damage.	

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Internal Corrosion Monitoring and Mitigation		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0019 Rev No: 1	
	Manufacturer	Din con	rect or indirect producer of materials, fabricated mponents, or subassemblies.
	Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)	A document that contains information on the potential health effects of exposure to chemicals, or other potentially dangerous substances, and on safe working procedures when handling chemical products.	
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.	
	Product Data Sheet (PDS)	A o tec	document that summarizes the performance and other hnical characteristics of a product.
	Ultrasonic Testing (UT)	Us exa	ing high frequency sound energy to conduct aminations and make measurements.
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	this S OR-(	Standard shall be processed and documented through 01.
Forms	<u>Number</u>	De	scription
	124-A	Pip	beline Crossing & Inspection Form
	124B	Bu Foi	ried Pipeline Maintenance, Repair and Investigation
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Ad	dition, Deletion and Deviation Form
References	<u>Number</u>	<u>De</u>	scription
	IMP 06.1	In-	line Inspection Integrity Management Procedure
	NACE SP0106-2006	Co Piț	ntrol of Internal Corrosion in Steel Pipelines and bing Systems
	NACE SP0775-2013	Pre Co	eparation, Installation, Analysis, and Interpretation of rrosion Coupons in Oilfield Operations
	NACE TM0194-2004	Fie Sy:	eld Monitoring of Bacterial Growth in Oil and Gas stems
	OPS-STD-0017	Co	rrosion Control Governing Standard
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024		Page 5 of 6	

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Internal Corrosion Monitoring and Mitigation		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0019	Rev No: 1	
	REG-STD-0005 TSIC-006	Op Inte	erator Qualification Program ernal Corrosion Survey Procedure	'S
Records Retention	Do not retain printed copies of t document will be retained indef	this Finite	document more than 12 months. Hely.	Revisions to this

### **Revision History**

Revision	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
Number				
0	Standard initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Reformatted to G&P	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Standard Template.			

Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0020		
Ryan Ell				
Doc. Custodian:	Aboveground Cathodic Protection	Rev. No.: 3		
Ryan Ell	Survevs			
Approved by:		MPLX G&P		
Prasanna Swamy				
Date Approved: 7/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024		

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of external corrosion on pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) using cathodic protection to provide: <ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of survey procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion</li> </ul> </li> <li>This standard only applies annual cathodic protection test station surveys. Close interval surveys and buried pipeline coating surveys are covered in OPS-STD-0072.</li> </ul>
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.
Table of Contents	Purpose1
	Scope
	Criteria for Cathodic Protection2
	General2
	Criteria for Steel Structures
	Criteria for Dissimilar Metal Structures
	Special Considerations
	Annual Surveys
	General
	Survey Grouping
	Pipeline Contact
	Test Points4
	Reference Electrode Check
	Survey Cycle
	Survey Meters
	Survey Procedures
	Minimum Pipeline Survey Data Requirements5
	Analyzing the Survey
	Documenting the Survey

MPLX Gathering & Processing Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3	
	Systemic Potential Survey	lssues	6	
	Maintaining the Annual Su	rvey Database	7	
	Remediation of Test Point	Deficiencies		
	Survey Records		9	
	Survey Record Keeping		9	
	Definitions		9	
	Waiver Process			
	Forms			
	References			
	Records Retention			
	Revision History			
	<ul> <li>I otential incastrenten located on the electrol measurements on all o positioned as close as Consideration shall be structure-electrolyte b influence of other stru</li> <li>No single criterion for proven to be satisfacto Control Team Lead or to determine the criter</li> </ul>	yte surface as close as practicable to ther structures shall be made with the feasible to the structure surface being given to voltage (IR) drops other that oundary, the presence of dissimilar nectures for valid interpretation of pote revaluating the effectiveness of cathor ory for all conditions. If required, the Engineer shall evaluate the data on a ia for cathodic protection that shall b	the pipeline. Such e reference electrode g investigated. an those across the netals, and the ential measurements. odic protection has Regional Corrosion a case-by-case basis e used.	
Criteria for Steel Structures	<ul> <li>A potential of -0.85 vo saturated copper/copp a neutral pH to demon location. This potential potential or a current-a potential shall require earth and metallic path</li> <li>A minimum negative measured between the contacting the electrol protection of the struct</li> </ul>	olts or more negative shall be measur er sulfate reference electrode contact strate adequate cathodic protection of a may be either a direct measuremen applied potential. Interpretation of a consideration of the significance of structure surface and a stable reference yte in a neutral pH to demonstrate action ture at that location.	ed with respect to a ing the electrolyte in f the structure at that t of the polarized current-applied voltage drops in the of 100 mV shall be nee electrode lequate cathodic	
This copy wa	s printed on 10/15/2024	Pa	ge 2 of 12	
ed to Imaging: 4/1/20	25 2:07:38 PM			
MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
---	--	-----------		
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3		

• Either the formation or the decay of polarization can be used to satisfy this criterion.

Criteria for Dissimilar Metal	• A negative (cathodic) voltage between all structure surfaces and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte equal to that required for the most anodic metal should be maintained to demonstrate adequate cathodic protection
Structures	<ul> <li>of the structure at that location.</li> <li>o For the case of continuous copper and steel, steel is the most anodic metal, and a potential of at least -0.85 volts between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall be used.</li> <li>o A minimum negative (cathodic) polarization voltage shift of 100 mV</li> </ul>
	between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall not be used.

- The 100 mV polarization criteria may be used, with approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, for steel piping that is electrically continuous with copper grounding if on-site testing has been conducted and documented that shows the copper grounding has no influence on the steel's potential.
- Amphoteric materials, which could be damaged by high alkalinity, shall be electrically isolated with insulating flanges or the equivalent per <u>OPS-STD-0023</u>.
- Abnormal conditions sometimes exist where protection is ineffective or only partially effective using the above criteria. For the below abnormal conditions, the following criteria shall be used to evaluate whether or not the structure is receiving adequate cathodic protection:
  - Electrolyte temperatures in excess of 140 degrees Fahrenheit:
    - A potential of at least -0.95 volts, not -0.85 volts, between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall be used.
    - A minimum negative (cathodic) polarization voltage shift of 200 mV, not 100 mV, between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall be used.
  - When active microbiologically influenced corrosion (MIC) has been identified or is probable:
    - A potential of at least -0.95 volts, not -0.85 volts, between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall be used.
    - A minimum negative (cathodic) polarization voltage shift of 200 mV, not 100 mV, between the structure surface and a stable reference electrode contacting the electrolyte shall be used.
- The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall evaluate abnormal conditions not addressed above on a case-by-case basis to determine what criteria for cathodic protection to use and when it has been effectively met.

Special Considerations

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3

## **Annual Surveys**

General	<ul> <li>Individuals performing annual survey work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.</li> <li>Pipe-to-electrolyte potential surveys shall be conducted over cathodically protected pipeline and other applicable facilities at least annually, but with intervals not exceeding 15 months.</li> <li>Annual survey data shall be documented in the Pipeline Compliance System (PCS) database within sixty (60) days of the survey completion date.</li> <li>Annual survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.</li> </ul>
Survey Grouping	<ul> <li>A single pipe-to-electrolyte reading at a test point only validates a single point on the pipeline system.</li> <li>Test points shall be put into a logical grouping, designated by pipeline segment rights-of-way or facilities, to facilitate cathodic protection evaluations. This will allow trend analysis over a large area, and aid in the filing and documentation of the survey as required by federal, state, and local regulations.</li> </ul>
Pipeline Contact	<ul> <li>Pipeline contacts are locations where contact with the pipeline can be made such as test leads, valves, spans, drips, risers, main line taps, etc.</li> <li>Negative lead wires of a rectifier, galvanic anode ground bed lead wires, or interference bond station lead wires shall not be used as pipeline contacts to obtain structure-to-electrolyte potential readings. Metallic IR drops occur in these test leads, due to current flowing in the wire, and introduce an error into the structure-to-electrolyte potential reading. If a dedicated test lead has been installed at these locations, then that lead can be used as a pipeline contact.</li> <li>Sufficient test points, as determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, shall be present to determine the adequacy of cathodic protection. The annual pipeline survey may not require the use of all existing test points.</li> <li>All existing survey data shall be maintained for the life of the asset unless prior approval is obtained from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer to deactivate the test point.</li> </ul>
Test Points	<ul> <li>This is the point over the approximate centerline of the pipeline where the reference electrode (half-cell) shall be placed to take the potential reading.</li> <li>Since the test point may vary from the "pipeline contact" location, the test point location designated by milepost/station number is the recorded data location.</li> <li>Structure-to-electrolyte potentials taken through high resistance layers (blacktop, permafrost, macadam, etc.) may exhibit higher measurement error due to IR drop. When feasible, reference cell contact shall be made with the shared electrolyte.</li> <li>It may be necessary to water the point of contact with the half-cell in areas of dry or high resistivity soils to lower the contact resistance of the half-cell to an</li> </ul>

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3

acceptable level.

Reference Electrode Check	<ul> <li>A reference electrode shall consist of a copper rod in a saturated copper-copper sulfate/distilled water solution. Other types of reference electrodes, such as silver-silver chloride, may be used in brackish or saltwater environments, but readings shall be converted to equivalent Cu-CuSO4 potentials.</li> <li>Field reference electrodes shall be assigned an ID number and calibrated monthly, not to exceed 45 days, to a virgin/shelf lab reference electrode that is stored indoors at ambient temperature and covered from exposure to light. <ul> <li>Calibrations shall be recorded on the OPS-STD-0020-FOR01 form.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Reference cells showing a potential difference greater than 10 mV shall be cleaned or replaced.</li> <li>Recommended guidance for testing and confirming reference electrode(s) are within tolerance can be located in Procedure 1 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.</li> </ul>
Survey Cycle	<ul> <li>When an interrupted survey is performed, corresponding "On/Instant Off" potentials shall be logged for each location.</li> <li>The normal survey interruption cycle of the current sources is 3-4 seconds "ON" and 1 second "OFF," sync with the "OFF," for a total duty cycle of 4-5 seconds. Other survey cycles may be used with approval of the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. Multiple interrupters shall be Global Positioning System (GPS) synchronized with time updates at least every 24 hours. Waveform generators and/or manually synchronized interrupters shall not be used.</li> <li>The recording meter shall be capable of capturing and displaying these cycles in either real-time or near real-time.</li> </ul>
Survey Meters	All annual surveys shall be performed using a multimeter, such as an American Innovations Allegro Field PC, that has been calibrated annually, not to exceed 15 months.
Survey Procedures Minimum Pipeline Survey Data Requirements	<ul> <li>Recommended guidance for performing cathodic protection survey procedures can be located in <u>TSCP-006</u>.</li> <li>Rectifier Direct Current (DC) voltage and amperage outputs for each rectifier location.</li> <li>A structure-to-electrolyte potential at each designated test point as defined by the computerized survey. These potentials normally consist of an "On" potential and an "Instant Off" polarized potential, or native potential.</li> <li>Galvanic anode ground bed current output and polarity.</li> <li>Structure-to-electrolyte potentials at each known buried MPLX and metallic foreign structure crossings.</li> <li>Structure-to-electrolyte and casing-to-electrolyte potentials at all casings.</li> <li>Structure-to-electrolyte potentials, current flow, and polarity at interference bonds.</li> <li>Isolation effectiveness and "On/Off" readings on both sides of the isolation</li> </ul>

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020Rev No: 3
Analyzing the Survey	Cathodic Protection Surveys         Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020         Rev No:           device. For routine checking of isolation devices, use an RF Insulator Checke instrument. The status of the insulator shall be indicated in the Insulator Statu field in PCS. A potential difference of at least 100mV across the flange is also be considered a valid test of insulator effectiveness.           Alternating Current (AC) potentials at every test point location. AC monitorin for induced AC from high voltage power lines shall be in accordance with OI STD-0025.           Test points for new facilities shall be added to the survey in PCS.           e         All structure-to-electrolyte potentials shall be evaluated with regard to criteria and limits.           All monitored galvanic anode outputs shall be evaluated.         All monitored galvanic anode outputs shall be evaluated.           All shown interference shall be evaluated.         All sinol devices shall be evaluated.           All structure-to-electrolyte potentials at foreign crossings shall be evaluated for required output.         All structure-to-electrolyte potentials at foreign crossing shall be evaluated for interference is suspected, the crossing shall be listed as a deficie and an interference is suspected. The deficiency shall be noted in the technician's comments field in the Allegro Field PC.           All casings, supports, and valve boxes shall be evaluated for isolation. Testing of suspected shorts may be scheduled for a later time.           AC potentials shall be evaluated to determine magnitude and cause. AC potentials shall be evaluated to determine magnitude and cause. AC potentials above 15 VAC are a potential safety concern, shall be	
Documenting the Survey	When an annual survey has been survey shall be promptly submit Engineer for analysis.	completed and entered into the PCS database, that ted to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or
Systemic Potential Survey Issues	<ul> <li>To address system surveys shall be co low cathodic prote</li> <li>The close i impractical</li> </ul>	ic issues found during annual surveys, a close interval nducted in both directions from the test station with a ction reading. nterval survey must be conducted unless it is based upon geographical, technical, or safety reasons.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 6 of 12

MPLX Gathering & Processing Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020 Rev No:	
	<ul> <li>Areas with insuffic the restoration of a implementation of <ul> <li>Remediation months of t soon as pra necessary p</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	eient cathodic protection levels shall be remediated and dequate cathodic protection confirmed following the the remedial actions. ons shall take place within 1 year, not to exceed 15 he inspection or test that identified the deficiency; or cticable, not to exceed 6 months, after obtaining any permits.	
Maintaining the Annual Survey Database	<ul> <li>All pipeline facilities shallocated in the proper hier</li> <li>Each reading location shall Reading locations includ beds, and marine structure</li> <li>It is recommended that the identification. Mile post/survey when a feature su incorrectly designated, cl number change is at a reconstity the Regional Correction Quite often the casing vere may be "doglegged" or e end of the casing, or to the taken over the pipeline or not be at the vent pipe.</li> <li>Casing end locations, if relocation noted in the perror.</li> <li>Corrections, deletions, or Description Section is in survey, not to the personne.</li> <li>For many test points, GP conducting the survey to points on MPLX pipeling.</li> </ul>	Il be set up in the PCS database. Facilities shall be archy. all be entered under the proper pipeline segment. e test stations, rectifiers, interference bonds, ground res owned by MPLX. est points use milepost/station numbers for station numbers can be corrected. During the annual ch as a test point, rectifier, etc. is found to be hange it to the correct value. If the milepost/station etifier, correct it on the appropriate monitoring form a posion Control Team Lead or Engineer. Int is not directly above the end of the casing. The ver- xtended, either back over the casing, away from the ne side of the casing. The casing readings are to be ne to three feet from the end of the casing. This may not known, shall be located with a pipe locator and its nanent comments of the casing vent test point. r each reading location shall be made active. additions can be made to the Description Section. The tended to give information to the person making the (s) reading the resulting printout. S or special instructions are necessary for the person know how to find the test points. This is true for test es but is especially for test points on foreign lines. ructions in the appropriate database field	
	<ul> <li>Data from retired or abar methods for making data numerous circumstances database. This might be t destruction of a test lead housing, removal of a car the information is not to point. This will maintain large group of points can inactive. The data for a re</li> </ul>	adoned facilities SHALL NOT be deleted. Approved inactive or archiving data shall be used. There are that may require deleting an individual data set from he removal of a sales station and its associated piping when land is converted from pasture to cultivation of sing, or removal of a foreign line. The data containing be deleted but shall be converted to an inactive test the test point's history and assist in documentation. A be moved to another section of the hierarchy and ma efference point or group of points cannot be deleted	

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 7 of 12

MPLX Gathering &	Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Aboveground Cath	odic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020Rev No: 3
	<ul> <li>from the database or dead Corrosion Control Team</li> <li>The technician shall make needs to be removed. The shall create the required h</li> <li>The technician shall main</li> <li>Structure-to-Electrolyte H mV CSE for all grades of in the Inspection Remark</li> </ul>	ctivated from the database without the Regional Lead or Engineer's approval. e notes in the comments section of the read as to what e Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer history records and remove the reading from the survey. Intain all the facilities for which they are responsible. Potential Limits: Polarized potentials exceeding -1200 E pipe shall be reported as deficiencies, unless justified s field in PCS.
Remediation of Test Point Deficiencies	<ul> <li>The following requirem be applicable for 49 CF.</li> <li>MPLX shall promptly consispection and testing.         <ul> <li>MPLX shall dever permits within 6 midentified the defi</li> <li>MPLX shall complete remains within 1 wear, not identified the defiinties of the following permits of the following permits of the following permits.</li> <li>MPLX shall determine the earliest of the following permits.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MPLX shall determine the protection for onshore gare ading indicates CP lever mitigate the identified iss.</li> <li>MPLX will address syste Conducting a closs station with a low approximately 5 for Conducting a closs geographical, tech Completing a closs protective current technical or safety.</li> <li>Remediate areas where protective of Confirm the restor implementation or causes of external period.</li> </ul>	ents for a buried pipeline coating survey shall only R 192 Transmission type pipelines. rrect any deficiencies indicated during the annual lop a remedial action plan and apply for any necessary nonths of completing the inspection or testing that ciency. medial action for test point deficiencies no later than ng. nspection or test interval required by this section; to exceed 15 months, of the inspection or test that ciency; cable, not to exceed 6 months, after obtaining any . e extent of the area with inadequate cathodic stransmission pipelines where any annual test station als below the required criteria and investigate and ues. mic causes by: e interval surveys in both directions from the test cathodic protection reading at a maximum interval of eet or less. escinterval surveys quired by this section with the interrupted unless it is impractical based upon mical, or safety reasons. with insufficient cathodic protection levels, or areas current is found to be leaving the pipeline ration of adequate cathodic protection following the f remedial actions undertaken to mitigate systemic corrosion.
This copy was	printed on 10/15/2024	Page 8 of 12
used to Imaging: 4/1/202:	5 2:07:38 PM	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3

## **Survey Records**

Survey Record Keeping	Record	Owner	Location
	Annual CP Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Definitions			

Anode	An electrode that is characterized by electron loss.
Cathode	An electrode that is characterized by electron gain.
Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of a metal surface by making it the cathode in an electrochemical cell.
Continuity Bond	A metallic connection that provides electrical continuity.
Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.
Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
Current Density	The current per unit area.
Electrical Isolation	The condition of being substantially electrically separated from other metallic structures and the environment.
Electrode Potential	The potential of an electrode as measured against a reference electrode.
Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged particles (ions) may travel. Typically soil, water, or product in this application.
Foreign Structure	Any structure that is not part of the subject structure.
Galvanic Anode	Typically, a prepackaged assembly consisting of an active metal (Mg, Zn, etc.) in a moisture retaining
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 9 of 12

		Gamering & Processing Standard Document
oveground Cathod	ic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020Rev No: 3
		backfill. Generally, any metal which is more electrochemically active in a multi-metal system.
G	alvanic Protection	Reduction or prevention of corrosion of a metal in an electrolyte by galvanically coupling it to a more anodic metal.
G	alvanic Series	A list of metals and alloys arranged according to their relative potentials in a given environment.
H E	alf Cell Reference lectrode	See Reference Electrode.
Н	oliday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.
Ir	npressed Current	Direct current supplied by a power source external to the electrode system.
Ir (I	spector/Person in Charge PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.
Ir	sulating Coating System	All components comprising the protective coating, the sum of which provides effective electrical insulation of the coated structure.
Ir	terference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between metallic systems.
Is	olation	See Electrical Isolation.
L	ine Current	The direct current flowing on a pipeline.
Ν	Ianufacturer	Direct or indirect producer of materials, fabricated components, or subassemblies.
Ν	IPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
Р	urchaser	The party placing a direct purchase order. The Purchase is the Owner's designated representative.
R	eference Electrode	A device whose open circuit potential is constant under similar conditions of measurement.
S	hared Electrolyte	Electrolyte in contact with both the electrode and the

MPLX Gathering &	Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Aboveground Catl	nodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3	
		structure.		
	Stray Current	Current flowing through paths othe circuit.	er than the intended	
	Stray Current Corrosion	Corrosion resulting from current floother than the intended circuit.	owing through paths	
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage	The voltage difference between a n reference electrode in contact with	netallic structure and a shared electrolyte.	
	Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)			
	Structure-to-Structure Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Structure Potential)	The difference in voltage between a common electrolyte.	metallic structures in	
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a different potentials expressed in volts.	nce in electrode	
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from t use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	his Standard shall be processed and o OR-01.	documented through	
Forms	Number	<b>Description</b>		
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation F	Form	
	OPS-STD-0020-FOR01	Reference Electrode Calibration Fo	orm	
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>		
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Stand	dard	
	OPS-STD-0023	Electrical Isolation Monitoring and	Maintenance	
	OPS-STD-0025	AC Interference Monitoring and M	litigation	
	OPS-STD-0072	Cathodic Protection Close Interval Coating Surveys	and Buried Pipeline	
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program		

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0020	Rev No: 3

TSCP-006

Cathodic Protection Survey Procedures

Records	Do not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this
Retention	document will be retained indefinitely.

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	<b>Description of Change</b>	Written By	<b>Approved By</b>	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 6.11.1, 6.15.2	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	New requirements per 49 CFR	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Part 192 for "Remediation of		_	
	Test Point Deficiencies" and			
	"Buried Pipeline Coating			
	Surveys" added. Reformatted to			
	G&P Standard Template.			
3	Systemic Potential Survey	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	Issues section added, Portable		Swamy	
	Reference Electrode Calibration			
	requirements for annual surveys			
	added, Close Interval Survey			
	section removed and made into			
	its own standard.			

•

MPLX	Reference Electrode Calibration Form	OPS-STD-0020-FOR01	
		Page 1 of 1	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Meter / Serial #     Meter Calibration Date       Reference Electrode ID     Potential Difference Between Field Reference Electrode (mV)     Date     Tested By       ID     ID     ID     ID       ID<	Survey			
Reference Electrode 1D       Potential Difference Between Calibrated Reference Electrode (mV)       Date       Tested By         Image: Display the second second calibrated Reference Electrode (mV)       Image: Display the second se	Meter / Serial #		Meter Calibrati	on Date
Reference Electrode ID     Potential Difference Between Field Reference Electrode (mV)     Date     Tested By       ID     ID     ID     ID     ID       ID     ID     ID     ID   <				-
Image: section of the section of th	Reference Electrode I D	Potential Difference Between Field Reference Electrode and Calibrated Reference Electrode (mV)	Date	Tested By
Image: section of the section of th				
Image: section of the section of th				
Image: set of the				
Image: set of the				
Image: set of the				
Image: set of the				
Image: section of the section of th				
Image: set of the				
Image: set of the				
Image: set of the				
Image: section of the section of th				
Image: section of the section of th				
Image: second				
Image: Sector of the sector				
Image: second				
Image: Sector of the sector				

Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0021		
Ryan Ell				
Doc. Custodian:	Cathodic Protection Test Point	Rev. No.: 2		
Ryan Ell	Monitoring and Maintenance			
Approved by:	<b>3</b>	MPLX G&P		
Prasanna Swamy				
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024		

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of external corrosion through the use of cathodic protection for pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) to provide: <ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of survey procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion through the use of cathodic protection</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.
Table of Contents	Purpose1
	Scope1
	Monitoring and Maintenance1
	Monitoring1
	Test Point Surveys2
	Installation and Maintenance of Test Points2
	Instrumentation and Measurement Guidelines2
	Survey Record Keeping
	Definitions
	Waiver Process
	Forms
	References
	Records Retention
	Revision History
	<u>CP</u> Test Station Typical Drawings

Monitoring and Maintenance Monitoring

- Individuals performing annual survey work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.
- Cathodic protection monitoring and maintenance data shall be documented in

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 1 of 13

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Maintenance	1 Test Point Monitoring and	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0021	Rev No: 2
	<ul><li>the Pipeline Compliance survey completion date.</li><li>Cathodic protection moni retention schedule outline</li></ul>	System (PCS) database within sixt itoring and maintenance data shall ed in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-00</u>	y (60) days of the be retained per the <u>17</u> .
Test Point Surveys	<ul> <li>Test point surveys shall b</li> <li>Recommended guidance electrolyte potential meas</li> <li>Recommended guidance electrolyte potential meas</li> </ul>	be performed annually, not to exceed for performing Direct Current (DC surements can be located in Proced for performing Alternating Curren surements can be located in Proced	ed 15 months. c) structure-to- lure 4 of <u>TSCP-006</u> . t (AC) structure-to- lure 5 of <u>TSCP-006</u> .
Installation and Maintenance of Test Points	<ul> <li>Test leads shall be installed</li> <li>Locate the leads a measurements ind</li> <li>Provide enough lobbreak the lead and and electrically compression of the lead attact of the Prevent lead attact of For leads installed conduit.</li> <li>At the connection bared metallic are the pipe coating a</li> <li>Test leads shall be maintated measurements to be obtait criteria for cathodic protee other working test leads the efforts will be made to reinspection, although there frequency.</li> <li>If it is found the wire conthere are sufficient test station may be decontrol Team Lead or Emission of the station replacements is the provide of the station replacements in the provide test station replacements is the provide the provide the provide the station replacements is the provide the station replacements is the provide the provide the station replacements is the provide the provide the provide the provide the provide the provide the station replacements is the provide the p</li></ul>	<ul> <li>and bared gardance for performing rinormaling current (110) structure to only the potential measurements can be located in Procedure 5 of <u>TSCP-006</u>, which is the structure of the stru</li></ul>	
Instrumentation and Measurement Guidelines	• Accurate cathodic protect and use of instruments. S difference, and similar me voltage ranges. The user a equipment, calibration of manual, and be skilled in use instruments correctly protection measurements	tion electrical measurements requir tructure-to-electrolyte potential, vo easurements require instruments the shall know the capabilities and lim requipment, follow the manufactur the use of electrical instruments. If may cause personal harm or errors	re proper selection oltage drop, potential hat have appropriate itations of the rer's instruction Failure to select and s in cathodic

MPLX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard Docum		d Document
Cathodic Protection Test Point Monitoring and	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0021	Rev No: 2
Maintenance		

- Instruments used for structure to electrolyte potential measurements shall be calibrated to or checked against a National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) traceable standard on an annual basis.
- To measure structure-to-electrolyte potentials accurately, a digital voltmeter shall have a high input impedance (at least 10 M $\Omega$ ) compared with the total resistance of the measurement circuit.

Survey Record Keeping		Record		Owner	Location
I U		Annual CP Survey	R	egional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Definitions	Cat	hodic Protection		A technique to control corrosion of making it the cathode in an electron	of a metal surface by ochemical cell.
	Cor	rosion		Deterioration of a metal that result electrochemical reaction with its of	ts from a chemical or environment.
	Ele	ctrolyte		A medium through which electric (ions) may travel. Typically, soil, this application.	ally charged particles water, or product in
	MP	LX		For the purpose of this standard, I Andeavor, Markwest, and Southv	MPLX shall mean vest Gathering.
	Ref	erence Electrode		A device whose open circuit pote similar conditions of measuremer	ntial is constant under nt.
	Stra	ay Current		Current flowing through paths oth circuit.	ner than the intended
	Stru Vol (Al: Pote Pote	acture-to-Electrolyte tage so, Structure-to-Soil ential or Pipe-to-Soil ential)		The voltage difference between a reference electrode in contact wit	metallic structure and h a shared electrolyte.
	Vol	tage		An electromotive force or a differ potentials expressed in volts.	rence in electrode

**Waiver Process** Any deviation or waiver from this Standard shall be processed and documented through use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Test Point Monitoring and	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0021	Rev No: 2
Maintenance		

Forms	<u>Number</u>	Description
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
References	Number	Description
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program
	TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedures

Records	Do not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this
Retention	document will be retained indefinitely.

# **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Reformatted to G&P Standard	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
2	CP Test Station Typical	Dyon Ell	Drasanna	11/1/2024
2	Drawings section added	Kyall Ell	Swamy	11/1/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Test Point Monitoring and	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0021	Rev No: 2
Maintenance		

#### **CP** Test Station Typical Drawings

### **Standard CP Test Station – Type 1**



POST MOUNTED CP STANDARD TEST STATION (FENCE LINE)



MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Test Point Monitoring and	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0021	Rev No: 2
Maintenance		





NOTES:

1. LEAVE A MINIMUM OF 2-FT OF SLACK IN TEST LEAD WIRES BETWEEN PIPE AND BOTTOM OF PVC PIPE.









1. LEAVE A MINIMUM OF 2-FT OF SLACK IN TEST LEAD WIRES BETWEEN PIPE AND BOTTOM OF PVC PIPE.



#### **Foreign Pipeline Crossing CP Test Station – Type 1**



Foreign Pipeline Crossing CP Test Station – Type 2



Foreign Pipeline Crossing CP Test Station – Type 3



Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0022
Ryan Ell	Cathodic Protection Rectifier and	
Doc. Custodian:	Interference Rend Menitering and	Rev. No.: 1
Ryan Ell	Interference Bond Wonttoring and	
Approved by:	Maintenance	MPLX G&P
Scott Stampka		
Date Approved: 7/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the monitoring and maintenance of cathodic protection rectifiers and interference bonds installed on pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) to provide: <ul> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of survey procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.
Table of	Purpose1
Contents	Scope
	Monitoring and Maintenance
	Monitoring1
	Rectifier Surveys
	Interference Bond Surveys
	Classification of Interference Bonds
	Survey Record Keeping
	Definitions
	Waiver Process
	Forms
	References
	Records Retention
	Revision History
Monitoring and	

Monitoring and Maintenance Monitoring

- Individuals performing annual survey work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.
- Rectifier and interference bond readings shall be documented in the Pipeline Compliance System (PCS) database within sixty (60) days of the survey completion date. In addition to routine monitoring, the following shall be documented:

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Rectifier and Interference		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0022	Rev No: 1
Bond Monitoring and Maintenance			
	<ul> <li>Adjustments</li> <li>Unit maintenance a</li> <li>Ground bed mainte</li> <li>GPS coordinates of</li> <li>Rectifier and interference b schedule outlined in Apper</li> </ul>	nd repairs nance/addition each rectifier and interference bond bond readings shall be retained per the ndix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .	e retention
Rectifier Surveys	<ul> <li>Rectifier surveys shall be pmonths, and after installing ground bed, and making re</li> <li>Recommended guidance for amperage output testing ca</li> <li>Rectifier survey records sh <ul> <li>A measurement acr</li> <li>reading</li> <li>A measurement acr</li> <li>Amperage f</li> <li>be measured</li> <li>Recording of the tag</li> <li>Recording the name</li> </ul> </li> <li>Remote Monitoring Units (yet each rectifier shall be in months, to verify proper op check of the rectifier.</li> <li>If a rectifier is not preform 2.5 months of the discovery Control Team Lead to keep</li> </ul>	performed 6 times per calendar year, r g a new rectifier, installing a new or p ctifier repairs. or performing Direct Current (DC) rec n be located in Procedure 14 of <u>TSCF</u> all consist of: coss the positive and negative leads fo coss the shunt for the amperage meter from foreign operator negative returns d and recorded as part of the bimonthl ps settings, if present he taps settings as "Same" shall not b e of the technician who performed the (RMUs) can be utilized to obtain recti- nspected on-site at least once annually peration of the RMU and to perform a ing correctly, it shall be repaired, or re- y, unless approval is given from the R o the unit turned off.	not to exceed 2.5 artial replacement ctifier voltage and 2-006. r voltage meter reading s, if present, shall ly/annual surveys. e accepted. e measurements ifier survey data, y, not to exceed 15 visual integrity eplaced, within degional Corrosion
Interference Bond Surveys	<ul> <li>Critical interference bond s not to exceed 2.5 months.</li> <li>Non-critical interference bo to exceed 15 months.</li> <li>Bonds across insulators uti known as continuity bonds</li> <li>Recommended guidance for in Procedure 16 of <u>TSCP-0</u></li> <li>Interference bond survey re <ul> <li>A measurement acr bond</li> <li>Recording of the point</li> <li>Recording the name</li> </ul> </li> <li>RMUs can be utilized to ob interference bond shall be interference bond</li> </ul>	surveys shall be performed 6 times performed on an lized by MPLX to facilitate cathodic and are not required to be tested as in performing interference bond testin 006. ecords shall consist of: soss the shunt for the amperage across the interference bond the performed the performed the performed the performed the performed on-site at least once annual	r calendar year, annual basis, not protection are nterference bonds. g can be located the interference erference bond e measurements et each y, not to exceed

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 2 of 6

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protec Bond Monitorin	tion Rectifier and Interferer g and Maintenance	nce Doc Number: OPS-STD-0022	Rev No: 1
Classification of Interference Bonds	<ul> <li>15 months, to verify proper operation of the RMU and to perform a visual integrity check of the interference bond.</li> <li>If a critical interference bond is not preforming correctly, it shall be repaired within 2.5 months of the discovery, unless approval is given from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead to disconnect the interference bond.</li> <li>The as-found interference bond current shall already be recorded, following the steps listed above.</li> <li>While the interference bond is connected, a structure-to-electrolyte potential of th MPLX test leads located at the interference bond location shall be measured. Record this data with the cathodic protection current source both "On" and momentarily interrupted ("Instant-Off").</li> <li>Disconnect the interference bond and obtain another structure-to-electrolyte potential of the MPLX asset test leads located at the interference bond location, with the reference cell in the same location. Record this data.</li> <li>If the MPLX asset structure-to-electrolyte potentials in the "Instant-Off" mode a more positive than -850mV with the interference bond disconnected, further testing shall be performed per specified below.</li> <li>Further Testing: Shut off all cathodic protection sources affecting the area of test Allow the structure potential to depolarize at least 100 mV more positive than the "Instant-Off" potential with the interference bond disconnected. If 100 mV shift in potential from the "Instant-Off" potential is obtained, then the interference bond would not be considered critical. If available, existing depolarized potential data can be used to evaluate against the "Instant-Off" potential.</li> <li>If any of the above test criterions cannot be achieved, then the interference bond defined as critical.</li> </ul>		erform a visual shall be repaired a from the Regional e bond. orded, following the ctrolyte potential of the hall be measured. both "On" and re-to-electrolyte rence bond location, a. "Instant-Off" mode are onnected, further ecting the area of test. more positive than the ame location as in ed. If 100 mV shift in he interference bond larized potential data he interference bond is
Survey Record	Record	Owner	Location
Keeping	Rectifier and Interference Bond Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Definitions	Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of making it the cathode in an electro	f a metal surface by chemical cell.
	Continuity Bond	A metallic connection that provide between MPLX assets for the purp cathodic protection.	es electrical continuity bose of facilitating
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that result electrochemical reaction with its e	s from a chemical or nvironment.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Rectifier and Interference Bond Monitoring and Maintenance	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0022Rev No: 1	
Critical Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between an MPLX asset and a foreign structure in a shared electrolyte, which if disconnected, will cause detrimental effects to an MPLX asset.	
Electrical Isolation	The condition of being substantially electrically separated from other metallic structures and the environment.	
Foreign Structure	Any structure that is not owned by MPLX.	
Half Cell Reference Electrode	See Reference Electrode.	
Impressed Current	Direct current supplied by a power source external to the electrode system.	
Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.	
Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between an MPLX asset and a foreign structure.	
IR Drop	The voltage difference between a structure and reference electrode due to transient current flow in a conductive medium (soil, water, etc.).	
Isolation	See Electrical Isolation.	
Line Current	The direct current flowing on a pipeline.	
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.	
Non-Critical Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between an MPLX asset and a foreign structure in a shared electrolyte, which if disconnected, shall cause no detrimental effects to an MPLX asset.	
Reference Electrode	A device whose open circuit potential is constant under similar conditions of measurement.	
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 4 of 6	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Cathodic Protection Rectifier and Interference Bond Monitoring and Maintenance	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0022 Rev No: 1
Reverse Current Switch	A device that prevents the reversal of direct current through a metallic conductor.
Shared Electrolyte	Electrolyte in contact with both the electrode and the structure.
Stray Current	Current flowing through paths other than the intended circuit.
Stray Current Corrosion	Corrosion resulting from current flowing through paths other than the intended circuit.
Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	The voltage difference between a metallic structure and reference electrode in contact with a shared electrolyte.
Structure-to-Structure Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Structure Potential)	The difference in voltage between metallic structures in a common electrolyte.

Voltage

An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.

**Waiver Process** Any deviation or waiver from this standard shall be processed and documented through use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>.

Forms	Number	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
<b>D</b> 4	<b>X X</b>	
References	<u>Number</u>	Description
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program
	TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedure

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>Cathodic Protection Rectifier and Interference</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0022	Rev No: 1
Bond Monitoring and Maintenance		

Records	Do not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this
Retention	document will be retained indefinitely.

### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Reformatted to G&P Standard	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Template			

**Table of** 

**Contents** 

	Gathering & Processing Standard Docum	
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0023
Ryan Ell		
Doc. Custodian	Electrical Isolation Monitoring and	Rev. No.: 1
Ryan Ell	Maintenance	
Approved by:		MPLX G&P
Scott Stampka		
Date Approved:	: 7/17/2023 Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023
Purpose	This standard establishes minimum requirements for in electrical isolation for pipelines (e.g., valve site) and fa	pection and remediation of cilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels
Purpose	This standard establishes minimum requirements for in electrical isolation for pipelines (e.g., valve site) and faetc.) to provide:	pection and remediation of cilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels
Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for in electrical isolation for pipelines (e.g., valve site) and fa etc.) to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for a facilities)</li> </ul>	spection and remediation of cilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels egulated pipeline systems and
Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for in electrical isolation for pipelines (e.g., valve site) and faetc.) to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> </ul>	spection and remediation of cilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels egulated pipeline systems and

Processing (G&P) operated assets.

Electrical Isolation Surveys2Pipeline Casings2Isolation Flange Kits2Monitoring and Repairs2Pipeline Casings2Isolation Flange Kits3Survey Records3Survey Record Keeping3Definitions3Waiver Process4Forms4References4Records Retention5Revision History5

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<b>Electrical Isolatio</b>	n Monitoring and Maintenance	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0023	Rev No: 1	
Conorol				
Need for Electrical Isolation	<ul> <li>Where present, carrier pipe shall be installed to be electrically isolated from pipeline casing.</li> <li>An electrical isolation flange kit shall not be installed without the approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. <ul> <li>Not all locations require an electrical isolation, and an electrical isolation could cause adverse effects for the cathodic protection systems.</li> </ul> </li> <li>If a pipeline is designed to be electrically continuous but is supported by another metallic structure in contact with soil or groundwater, the pipeline shall be electrically isolated from that structure. The isolating supports shall prevent damage to the pipeline coating and shall accommodate relative movement, vibration, and temperature differential.</li> </ul>			
Monitoring	<ul> <li>Individuals performing annu Operator Qualification (OQ)</li> <li>Testing data shall be entered within sixty (60) days of the</li> <li>Electrical isolation testing d outlined in Appendix C of Q</li> </ul>	al survey work shall be qualified p ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-000</u> l into the Pipeline Compliance Sys e testing completion date. ata shall be retained per the retention <u>DPS-STD-0017</u> .	ber the relevant 5. tem (PCS) database on schedule	
Electrical Isolation Surveys Pipeline Casings	<ul> <li>Pipeline casings shall be sur</li> <li>If a casing is determined to classified as a direct (metall</li> <li>Recommended guidance for located in Procedure 10 of 1</li> </ul>	rveyed annually, not to exceed 15 m be electrically shorted to a pipeline ic) short or an electrolytic (electrol performing casing electrical isolat	nonths. e, it shall either be yte) coupling. tion testing can be	
Isolation Flange Kits	<ul> <li>Isolation flange kits shall be</li> <li>If the potential difference ac radio frequency insulator tes the isolation flange kit is ele</li> <li>Recommended guidance for be located in Procedure 11 of</li> </ul>	e surveyed annually, not to exceed cross an isolation flange kit is less t ster (RF-IT) shall be used to detern ectrically shorted. performing electrical isolation flat of <u>TSCP-006</u> .	15 months. han 100 mV, a nine whether or not nge kit testing can	
Monitoring and Repairs Pipeline Casings	<ul> <li>If a casing and pipeline are a (metallic) short, a remediation six months of the discovery</li> <li>If a casing and pipeline are a electrolytic (electrolyte) cours shall be taken near each end</li> </ul>	determined to be electrically shorte on plan to clear the short shall be d per <u>OPS-STD-0023-FOR-01</u> . determined to be electrically shorte pling, a structure-to-electrolyte po of the casing.	ed through a direct locumented within ed through an tential measurement	

MPLX Gathering &	IPLX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard Docum		lard Document	
<b>Electrical Isolation</b>	Monitoring and Mainte	nance Doc Number: OPS-STD-0023	Rev No: 1	
	<ul> <li>If the structu outlined in <u>C</u> an annual ba</li> <li>If the structu outlined in <u>C</u> be document <u>FOR-01</u>.</li> </ul>	re-to-electrolyte potentials meet the properties of the properties of the casing shall continues is. re-to-electrolyte potentials do not meet <b>DPS-STD-0020</b> , a remediation plan to contend within six months of the discovery properties of the discovery pro	otection criteria ue to be monitored on the protection criteria lear the coupling shall per <u>OPS-STD-0023-</u>	
Isolation Flange Kits	<ul> <li>If an isolating flange location to not meet         <ul> <li>Trace out all electrical pat devices for p</li> <li>Use an RF-I isolation. Re</li> <li>If the cause of then a faulty joint will nee replaced.</li> <li>After the sho action was su</li> <li>If a shorted i remediation of the discov</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>FOR-01.</li> <li>If an isolating flange kit is found to be electrically shorted and it causes the location to not meet cathodic protection criteria: <ul> <li>Trace out all gauge lines, tubing, electrical conduit, etc. for a potential electrical path around the isolation flange kit and check any inline isolation devices for proper operation using the RF-IT.</li> <li>Use an RF-IT, per manufacturer's instructions, to test each bolt for isolation. Replace any defective isolating sleeves or washers.</li> <li>If the cause of the short cannot be located by the aforementioned methods, then a faulty electrical isolating gasket may be the cause. To repair, the joint will need to be disassembled and the defective isolating gasket replaced.</li> <li>After the short is located and repaired, re-inspect to ensure the corrective action was successful.</li> <li>If a shorted isolating flange kit cannot be fixed at the time of discovery, a remediation plan to clear the short shall be documented within six months</li> </ul> </li> </ul>		
Survey Records				
Survey Record	Record	Owner	Location	
кееріпд	Annual Cathodic	Regional Corrosion Control Team	DCG	

Definitions	Arcing	An electric arc, or arc discharge, is an electrical breakdown of a gas that produces an ongoing electrical discharge. The current through a normally nonconductive medium such as air produces a plasma; the plasma may produce visible light.
	Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of a metal surface by making it the cathode in an electrochemical cell.
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
This cop	Electrical Isolation by was printed on 10/15/2024	The condition of being substantially electrically Page 3 of 5

Lead or Engineer

Protection Survey

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

PCS

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
<b>Electrical Isolation Monitoring and Maintenance</b>		ceDoc Number: OPS-STD-0023Rev No: 1
		separated from other metallic structures and the environment.
	Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged particles (ions) may travel. Typically soil, water, or product in this application.
	Isolation	See Electrical Isolation.
	MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
	Reference Electrode	A device whose open circuit potential is constant under similar conditions of measurement.
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	The voltage difference between a metallic structure and reference electrode in contact with a shared electrolyte.
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from thuse of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FC</u>	is standard shall be processed and documented through <u><b>R</b>-01</u> .
Forms	Number	Description
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	OPS-STD-0023-FOR-01	Electrical Short Notification and Mitigation Plan
References	Number	Description
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
	OPS-STD-0020	Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

TSCP-006

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>Electrical Isolation Monitoring and Maintenance</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0023	Rev No: 1

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Reformatted to G&P Standard	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Template			

•

	Electrical Short Notification and Mitigation Plan	OPS-STD-	-0023-FOR-01
		Page 1 of 1	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Information							
Asset	Team Area	Team Area					
System	ROW Code	ROW Code					
Location Description	Milepost	Milepost			Discovery Date		
Electrical Short   Casing   Flange	Latitude	Latitude			Longitude		
If Shorted Casing, Type of Short							
Risk Evaluation							
In HCA or Could Affect?   Yes  No	%SMYS at	%SMYS at Location (If Known)					
Product  Finished Product  Crude  Natural Gas  Other:							
Known External Corrosion?	lo 🛛 Unkr	□ Unknown CGR (If K			Known)		
Pipeline Coating Type (If Known)							
If Shorted Casing, Vent(s) Present?  Yes No Number of Vents (If Present)							
Mitigation							
If Shorted Casing,       Image: Monitor LEL (Vents),       Image:							
Mitigation Method Casing Short Wax Fill Casing Casing Clear Components Co							
Planned Mitigation Date (Quarter/Year)							
* Mitigation should be performed within 1 year of electrical short discovery.							
Comments							
Approval							
Regional Corrosion Team Lead or Engineer Name	Name:		Signature		Date:		
Regional Operations Manager Name:		Signature			Date:		
Inform		orgriat			Bato.		
The Regional Corrosion Team Lead shall inform the following individuals:							
Regional Integrity Manager					Date:		
Central Compliance Manager	□ Informed				Date:		
Gathering & Processing Standard Document							
--	--	--	---------------------------	--			
Authored by:			Doc No.: OPS-STD-0024				
Ryan Ell		DC Interference Monitoring and	Rev No : 2				
Ryan Ell		Mitigation	MPLX G&P				
Approved by: Scott Stampka							
Date Approved: 7	/17/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023				
Purpose Scope	This standar Direct Curre piping, vesse • Com facili • The • Standar This standar	ard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of rrent (DC) interference on pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, ssels, etc.) to provide: impliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and cilities) is intended service life for the asset andardization of work procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to be inspection and mitigation of DC interference					
Table of Contents	Processing ( Purpose Scope	G&P) operated assets.					
	Test Facilities						
	Monitoring	and Testing	2				
	Interferen	ce Bonds					
	Indication	s that Interference Problems Have Been Res	olved 5				
	Survey Reco	ords					
	Survey Re	ecord Keeping	5				
	Definitions.						
	Waiver Proc	ess	7				
	Forms		7				
	References.		7				
	Records Ret	ention	7				
	Revision Hi	story	7				

**Test Facilities** 

- Where feasible, test facilities shall be installed at underground foreign metallic pipeline crossings.
  - o Additional interference tests sites may include:
    - Meter stations with insulating devices between MPLX structures and foreign structures
    - Where pipelines run parallel in high resistivity soils and encounter an area of relatively low resistivity soils (ex., at a river crossing)
  - Interference test facilities shall include two wires for each structure, one wire for

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024Rev No: 2	
	<ul> <li>current and one wire for poor of the foreign structure, if they has if their color schem of the color of the tess appropriate compare box) when the facil</li> <li>Wire connections to undergy welding or pin brazing. The electrical continuity. All consistent.</li> <li>Attachments to, probe bar of the discretion of the foreign personnel.</li> </ul>	etential measurements. company's color scheme for wire coloring of their ve no color scheme then MPLX's wire shall be white, e matches MPLX then MPLX's wire shall be black. t wires identified by structure shall be recorded on the hy report and in the test station (or interference bond ities are installed. ground metallic structures shall be made by thermite e connection shall be tested for mechanical strength ar onnections shall be coated with an approved coating contact to, and excavation of foreign structures are at a structure owner and shall not be made by MPLX	
Monitoring and Testing	<ul> <li>All identified interference is or close interval surveys at Compliance System (PCS) pickup or discharge shall be         <ul> <li>For underground for shall be recorded in a survey.</li> <li>For aboveground for electrically isolated pipeline potentials a fields in PCS during.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Where detrimental interference MPLX structure or affect a Corrosion Control Team L shall determine if the instal installed until definitive tes.</li> <li>Any area where MPLX rea and corrected within 12 models.</li> <li>Written documentation of a be stored in the PCS Datability OPS-STD-0017.</li> <li>Written documentation of a contact nameling information.</li> <li>Request for</li> <li>If the ownership of a foreigners.</li> </ul>	test stations (no bond) shall be evaluated during annual ad the status shall be recorded in the Pipeline database. Any detrimental indications of current e evaluated as to its cause. reign pipeline crossings, the foreign pipeline potential the Foreign P/S and Foreign IRF fields in PCS during oreign pipeline connections to MPLX piping that are though the use of an insulating flange kit, the foreign shall be recorded in the Insulator P/S and Insulator IRI g a survey. ence is suspected, a joint interference test shall be of discovery. the are discovered that pose an immediate hazard to n area where public safety is a concern, the Regional ead or Engineer shall be contacted immediately and lation of temporary corrective measures will be sting and remediation is completed. dings indicate a positive potential shall be investigated onths of the discovery date. all requests for interference testing and responses shall ase and retained in accordance with Appendix C in tion shall be by letter or email and shall contain the on: area of concern ne an exchange of cathodic protection operating history on structure cannot be readily determined, then a pade to ascertain the ownership, especially if testing	

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024	Rev No: 2	

determines that MPLX's cathodic protection could be affecting the foreign structure.

- If joint testing or installation of test leads is requested and the owner of the foreign structure does not respond in a timely manner, a registered letter shall be sent. The registered letter shall contain the same information as noted above. The registered letter shall be kept for the life of the system. If there is no response, MPLX shall proceed as deemed necessary.
- Recommended guidance for performing DC interference testing can be located in Procedure 17 of TSCP-006.
- During corrosion control surveys performed under <u>OPS-STD-0020</u>, personnel shall be alert for electrical or physical observations that could indicate interference from a neighboring source during corrosion control surveys. Indications of interference are as follows:
  - Structure-to-soil potential changes on the affected structure caused by the foreign DC source
  - Changes in the line current magnitude or direction caused by the foreign DC source
  - Localized pitting in areas near to or immediately adjacent to a foreign structure
  - Breakdown of protective coatings in a localized area near an anode bed or near any other source of stray direct current
- Appropriate tests shall be conducted to determine the cause in areas where interference currents are suspected and documented using <u>OPS-STD-0024-FOR01</u>. All affected parties shall be notified before tests are made for the purpose of determining a mitigation technique. Any one or combination of the following test methods shall be employed:
  - Measurement of structure-to-electrolyte potentials with recording or indicating instruments
  - Measurement of current flowing on the structure with recording or indicating instruments
  - Measurement of the variations in current output of the suspected source of interference current and correlations with measurements obtained in the two methods above
- If DC interference has been classified as possibly detrimental to our pipeline due to our vicinity to a foreign operator's assets, the following actions shall be conducted:
  - Current shall be decreased on the interfering foreign CP system (only to be performed by the foreign operator), or current increased on our nearest CP system, to try and mitigate the effects of the DC interference.
  - If the above does not mitigate the effects of the DC interference, testing shall be conducted in which a temporary bond, equipped with a variable resistor, is installed between our pipeline and the interfering foreign pipeline. Current outputs and potential measurements at different resistance settings shall recorded and submitted to the Corrosion Engineer.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used

APLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard D	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
OC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024	Rev No: 2		
<ul> <li>This testificasible of</li> <li>Equipped with the communicate with permanent bond means of mitigat created to execute</li> <li>If the foreign oper magnesium and the Corrosion Ennearby to provide interference.</li> <li>The following requirem only be applicable for 4</li> <li>MPLX shall appli interference current that identified the</li> <li>MPLX shall correspondence of the correspond</li></ul>	ng will determine if a magnesium anode leption for a mitigation system installation e above information, the Corrosion Engine th the foreign operator and determine when or magnesium anode bank will be the mo- ion moving forward. Once agreed upon, e the installation. erator does not agree to allow a permanent e bank will not suffice for the mitigation gineer will evaluate installing a suppleme e more current to our pipeline near the arc <b>nents for a buried pipeline interference</b> <b>19 CFR 192 Transmission type pipeline</b> y for any necessary permits to correct the ent within 6 months of completing the inter- ent effects of the interference current upleting the interference survey that ident soon as practicable, but not to exceed 6 m cessary permits.	coank will be a neer will ether a set effective a project will b t bond and a requirements, ental CP system ea of <b>survey shall</b> es. e effects of the erference surve within 15 ified the nonths, after		
Interference In the event that interference Bonds In the event that interference operator's pipeline, a cur agreement of both comp Team Lead or Engineer coordinate the establisher	ence is present between our pipeline and rrent exchange agreement may be establis anies. If established, the Regional Corros shall review all data, obtain Property Rig	a foreign shed upon ion Control hts approval, ar		

- No interference bond is to be installed or removed without an interference test being conducted and documented using OPS-STD-0024-FOR01. The completed form shall be stored in the Corrosion Control folder within the Documents Library and retained in accordance with Appendix C of OPS-STD-0017.
  - If an interference bond is lost for any reason, it shall be reinstalled as soon as possible upon detection, unless an interference test proves that the bond is no longer needed as per the Indications that Interference Problems Have Been Resolved section of this standard.
- A precision resistance shunt should be installed in an interference bond test station to allow the current to be read without unhooking the interference bond or the interference bond current shall be read with a clamp on ammeter. If a precision shunt is not installed, the current is to be read with an ammeter, and the following procedure shall be used to keep any circuit conditions change to a minimum:
  - o Hook the ammeter up across the terminals to the interference bonded structures first.
  - Disconnect the metallic connection between the structures. 0
  - Take the current reading. 0
  - Connect the structures. 0

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<b>DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024	Rev No: 2	

Disconnect the ammeter. 0

#### Indications Restoration of the structure-to-electrolyte potentials on the affected structure to • that those values that existed prior to the interference. **Interference** Measurement of line currents on the affected structure to ensure that interference ٠ **Problems** current is not being discharged to the electrolyte. Have Been Resolved

## **Survey Records**

Survey
Record
Keeping

Record	Owner	Location
Bi-Monthly Critical Interference Bond Readings	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Annual CP Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation Form (OPS-STD-0024- FOR01)	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database

Definitions	Ammeter	A measuring instrument used to measure the current in a circuit.
	Amphoteric Metal	A metal that reacts in both acidic and alkaline environments.
	Anode	An electrode that is characterized by electron loss.
	Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of a metal surface by making it the cathode in an electrochemical cell.
	Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
	Corrosion Control Coordinating Committee	A committee of corrosion control personnel from multiple pipeline companies.
	Current Exchange Agreement	A negotiated interference bond that provides a benefit to one or both parties and is in effect only as long as both parties are in agreement.
This copy	was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 5 of 7

Page 5 of 7

PLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
C Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024Rev No: 2		
Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged particles (ions) may travel. Typically, soil, water, or product in this application.		
Foreign Structure	Any structure that is not part of the subject structure.		
Galvanic Anode	Typically, a prepackaged assembly consisting of an active metal (Mg, Zn, etc.) in a moisture retaining backfill. Generally, any metal which is more electrochemically active in a multi-metal system.		
Impressed Current	Direct current supplied by a power source external to the electrode system.		
Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between metallic systems.		
Line Current	The direct current flowing on a pipeline.		
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.		
Reference Electrode	A device whose open circuit potential is constant under similar conditions of measurement.		
Reverse Current Switch	A device that prevents the reversal of direct current through a metallic conductor.		
Shared Electrolyte	Electrolyte in contact with both the electrode and the structure.		
Stray Current	Current flowing through paths other than the intended circuit.		
Stray Current Corrosion	Corrosion resulting from current flowing through paths other than the intended circuit.		
Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	The voltage difference between a metallic structure and reference electrode in contact with a shared electrolyte.		
Voltage	An electromotive force or a difference in electrode potentials expressed in volts.		
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 6 of 7		
o Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
<b>DC</b> Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0024	Rev No: 2	

**Waiver Process** Any deviation or waiver from this standard shall be processed and documented through use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>.

Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	OPS-STD-0024-FOR01	DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	OPS-S1D-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
	OPS-STD-0017 OPS-STD-0020	Corrosion Control Governing Standard Aboveground Cathodic Protection Surveys

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	04/1/2021
1	Edited Section 7.5	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	Actions hierarchy resulting	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	from interference testing results		_	
	added. New requirements per			
	49 CFR Part 192 for			
	"Monitoring and Testing"			
	added. Section positions			
	reorganized. Reformatted to			
	G&P Standard Template.			

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

	DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	OPS-STD	-0024-FOR01	
		Page 1 of 2		
®	FORM	DATE 4/1/2021	Rev 0	

DC INTERFERENCE MONITORING											
Date				Re	egion						
MPLX ROW Code & Pipeline				Ν		MPLX	MPLX Pipeline Size				
Foreign	Company	Foreig	gn Pipeliı	ne In	formatio	n		Forei	gn P	ipeline	Size
MPLX R	epresentative			I	Foreign C	Compa	any Repre	esenta	ative		
	Neerest Destifier		postion 9		nact				Outputs		
	Nearest Rectifier	LC	Location & Milepost		GPS COOLUMATES			Volts	Amps		
MPLX											
Foreign	Company										
Close I n	terval Survey – Stationin	g Stai	rt/Stop								
Potential (-mV)											
	Stationing										
Location	Location of Discharge Point Discharge Point GPS Coordinates										
Interference Bond Box Location Interference Bond Box GPS Coordinates				S							
Material and Equipment Furnished By											
Interfer	ence Bond Type		Interfe	rence	ence Bond Resistance		S	Shunt Resistance		ance	
Current	Drain		From		То		/	Amps			
Test Lea	d Identification										
		ſ	MPLX Pip	beline	e Potentia	al	Fo	reign l	Pipe	line Pote	ential
* With Interfer Bon		Without erference Bond	* With * W e Interference Inter Bond E		* Wi Interf Bo	* Without * Wit Interference Interfer Bond Bond		With ference ond			
	All Rectifier "On"										
All Rect	fiers "Off" (Interrupted)										
	Native										
	*STRUCTUR	RE-TO-E	LECTROLYT	E POTE	NTIAL TAKE	N AT DI	SCHARGE PO	DINT	•		

	DC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	OPS-STD	-0024-FOR01	
		Page 2 of 2		
®	FORM	DATE 4/1/2021	Rev 0	

# DC INTERFERENCE MONITORING

Comments

Gathering & Processing Standard Document					
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0025			
Ryan Ell					
Doc. Custodian:	AC Interference Monitoring and	Rev. No.: 2			
Ryan Ell	Mitigation				
Approved by:	5	MPLX G&P			
Prasanna Swamy					
Date Approved: 7/17/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024			

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of Alternating Current (AC) interference on pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of survey procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion</li> </ul>	
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.	
Table of	Purpose	1
Contents	Scope	1
	Transmission Line Induced AC Requirements	1
	Lightning Requirements	3
	Telluric Current Requirements	4
	Survey Records and Frequencies	4
	Survey Record Keeping	4
	Inspection Frequencies per 49 CFR Part 192/195	5
	Definitions	5
	Waiver Process	8
	Forms	8
	References	8
	Records Retention	9
	Revision History	9

Transmission Line Induced AC Requirements

• All existing pipelines shall be reviewed for crossings or collocations with an existing High Voltage Alternating Current (HVAC) transmission line(s) (defined as 69 kV or higher). In addition, the Corrosion Engineer shall determine whether an influence study is be performed when:

This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard D	ocument
AC Interference Monitoring and Mi	tigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3
<ul> <li>A ne trans withi</li> <li>A ne infra feet of</li> <li>MPLX cond</li> <li>Phas</li> <li>It should be above) was of corrosion accelerated of this threshol Soil Resistiv</li> <li>Recommend</li> </ul>	w pipeline(s) mission line n 500 feet of w pipeline(s) structure, or of existing pi- ucts an AC i e I - Desktop e II - Field d e III - Model e IV - Mitiga n of the post possible pip a close proxi- ned for those the <u>IEEE 80</u> in those case noted that the established w influences. I corrosion can d, as shown ity in the Fig ed guidance	) is installed within 500 feet of an existin (s), or when a new HVAC transmission I f a parallel existing pipeline(s) ) is installed within 25 feet of existing el- when new electrical infrastructure is inst ipeline(s) interference study in the following phase o review and data integration ata collection and mitigation design I validation and AC interference monitor ation installation sible risk to personnel safety for those we beline corrosion damage shall take place of mity to a HVAC transmission line. A mit e areas where potentials are above permit and <u>NACE SP0177</u> . These standards ind es where step or touch potentials are in en- teresteady state 15 V <sub>AC</sub> threshold (in the star with personnel safety in mind and not with Recent research and experience have sho n occur in low resistivity soils at AC volt in AC Current Densities as a Function of gures section. for performing AC interference testing of	ng parallel HVA0 line(s) is installe ectrical talled within 25 s. ing orking on the whenever a tigation system ssible limits as licate mitigation xcess of 15 V <sub>AC</sub> . tandards listed th consideration own that AC cages well below f AC Voltage and can be located in
<ul> <li>The AC structure</li> <li>Cathodic Production</li> <li>49 CFR Participation</li> <li>VAC</li> <li>Can vertice</li> <li>Can vertice</li> <li>Can vertice</li></ul>	cture-to-electotection (CP) 192/195 sections shall b less than 5 w ary significations). between 5 a ivity of the son. Using the ent Density f tion. If the A lled at the test A Model	etrolyte potential ( $V_{AC}$ ) data collected due ) surveys, per the table in the Inspection etion, shall be reviewed and based on the e taken: wolts: Continue monitoring (loads in transantly within 24 hours periods and with se and 15 volts: Perform additional testing be soil at the depth of the pipe in the area ne e AC Voltage and Soil Resistivity, the est for a 1 cm <sup>2</sup> holiday shall be calculated us AC current density is above 30 A/m2, a cost station. AC-10 Portable AC Current Density Cou	ring the annual Frequencies per results, the asmission lines easonal by measuring the ext to the test timated AC sing the below IA oupon shall be

• V<sub>AC</sub> above 15 volts: Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for developing and submitting an engineered solution to management.

This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Docume	
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3

- When coupon test stations have been installed on the pipeline for monitoring current density, measurements for both AC & Direct Current (DC) current density shall also be collected during the annual CP surveys and recorded in the Pipeline Compliance System (PCS) database.
  - AC current density (I<sub>AC</sub>) for coupon calculation example (1 cm<sup>2</sup> Coupon Surface Area recommended):

$$I_{AC} = \frac{8 * V_{AC}}{\rho * \pi * \sqrt{\frac{4 * Coupon Surface Area}{\pi}}}$$

 $\circ~$  DC current density (I\_{DC}) for coupon calculation example:

$$I_{DC} = \frac{(\frac{V_{DC} \ across \ Shunt}{Shunt \ Resistance})}{Coupon \ Surface \ Area}$$

- The AC current density (I<sub>AC</sub>) data collected during the annual CP surveys shall be reviewed and based on the results, the following actions shall be taken:
  - IAC less than 30 A/m2: Continue monitoring (loads in transmission lines can vary significantly within 24 hours periods and with seasonal conditions).
  - **I**<sub>AC</sub> between 30 and 100 A/m2: Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall evaluate the DC current density (I<sub>DC</sub>) and act accordingly:
    - **I**<sub>DC</sub> **less than 1 A/m2:** Continue monitoring (loads in transmission lines can vary significantly within 24 hours periods and with seasonal conditions).
    - **I**<sub>DC</sub> greater than 1 A/m2: Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for developing and submitting an engineered solution to management.
  - IAC greater than 100 A/m2: Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for developing and submitting an engineered solution to management.
- The equipment installed for AC surge protection and reduction of induced AC shall be monitored to determine if it is operating correctly and in accordance with criteria listed in this section.
- The adequacy of the pipeline system's surge protection and reduction of induced AC (including station/terminal piping and breakout tanks) shall be tested within the time and frequency listed in the Inspection Frequencies per 49 CFR Part 192/195 section.

# Lightning Requirements

• Visual inspection of the pipeline shall be conducted to determine susceptibility to lightning strikes and if further action is warranted. While metallic objects do not inherently attract lightning, they are very good conductors and can be affected along further distances than would be normal. A pipeline with grounding at above grade appurtenance is less likely to be detrimentally affected. The structures

This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

Page 3 of 10

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Docun	
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3

height, shape, and isolation are factors in determining the likelihood of being struck by lightning.

- The design, installation, and commissioning of mitigation systems for alternating current and lightning on buried or submerged pipelines shall be in accordance with <u>NACE SP0177</u> and <u>NACE SP0169</u>.
- Should the results of the visual inspection indicate further testing is warranted, above grade appurtenances such as block valves, metering stations, and terminals shall be reviewed for grounding requirements. Pipeline washouts/exposure should be recovered, and measures taken to avoid a reoccurrence.
- Grounded aboveground pipeline appurtenances shall be in accordance with <u>IEEE</u> <u>80</u>.
- HVAC transmission lines crossing or collocated with pipelines shall be analyzed for arcing threats and documented per this standard. If deemed necessary, engineering solutions shall be implemented.
- Monitoring and maintenance shall include the continued inspection of the right-ofway for the situations aforementioned and measuring of the grounding resistances in accordance with the Inspection Frequencies per 49 CFR Part 192/195 section.

# Telluric Current Requirements

- If the monitoring of indicated telluric currents are of large enough magnitude and frequency that additional testing is required, the flowchart in <u>Appendix A</u> shall be followed.
  - There are presently no mitigation requirements for telluric currents, only the methodology for determining if they present measurement errors and procedures to account for them.
  - There is no equipment installed requiring maintenance, only the methodology required during performing electrical measurements and surveys.
- Electrical surveys conducted during telluric currents shall be monitored in accordance with this standard.

Survey Records and Frequencies Survey Record Keeping

Record	Owner	Location
Annual CP Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
CIS Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database

This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3	

Inspection	Ingrestion/Test	Free	Frequency		
Frequencies	Inspection/Test	At Least	Not to Exceed		
per 49 CFR Part 192/195	Pipelines: AC structur to-electrolyte potentia (with annual CP surve	e- ls 1 time per calendar ys) year	15 months		
	Pipelines: decouplers*	1 time per calendar year	15 months		
	Pipelines: ground mat testing*	Every 5 years	10 years		
	Pipelines: zinc ribbon ground conductor*	Every 5 years	10 years		
	Pipelines: electrical isolation devices with surge protection*	1 time per calendar year	15 months		
	* Pipeline potentials s fields in the PCS datal in the Insulator PS / In	* Pipeline potentials shall be recorded in the Structure PS / Structifields in the PCS database, while mats/ribbon potentials shall be in the Insulator PS / Insulator IRF fields in the PCS database.			
	Note: MPLX's Region be responsible for ensu- control inspection free completed, and any ne maintain a thorough k	al Corrosion Control Team aring compliance with all ap quencies, that all necessary of cessary repairs are made an nowledge of these requirem	Lead or Engineer shall oplicable corrosion documentation is id, as such, shall ents.		
Definitions	Alternating Current (AC)	An electrical current who with time. The polarity or alternating magnetic field time frequency cycle is al America, the common fre second).	se direction or polarity changes cycles are due to the s used in its generation. The so referred to as hertz. In North equency is 60 hertz (cycles per		
	Anode	An electrode that is characterized by electron loss (oxidation).			
	Capacitive Coupling	The influence of two or m through a dielectric media electric field acting betwe	nore circuits upon one another, um such as air, by means of the een them.		
	Cathodic Protection	A technique to control commaking it the cathode in a	rrosion of a metal surface by an electrochemical cell.		
This copy v	was printed on 10/31/2024		Page 5 of 10		

Page 2	231 0	f 483
--------	-------	-------

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025Rev No: 3
Continuity Bond	A metallic connection that provides electrical continuity.
Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.
Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
Current Density	The current per unit area.
Electrical Isolation	The condition of being substantially electrically separated from other metallic structures and the environment.
Electrode Potential	The potential of an electrode as measured against a reference electrode.
Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged particles (ions) may travel. Typically soil, water, or product in this application.
Engineered Solution	A comprehensive investigation of the pipeline/transmission line interactions using actual operating parameters and commercially available software to model the predicted effects of the collocation/crossing and identify viable solutions.
Fault Current	A current that flows from one conductor to ground or to another conductor due to an abnormal connection (including an arc) between the two. A fault current flowing to ground may be called a ground fault current.
Ground	An electrical connection to earth.
Ground Potential Rise (Also, Earth Potential Rise)	As defined in IEEE 367, the product of a ground electrode impedance, referenced to remote earth, and the current that flows through that electrode impedance. This occurs when large amounts of electricity enter the earth. This is typically caused when substations or high- voltage towers fault, or when lightning strikes occur (fault current). When currents of large magnitude enter the earth from a grounding system, not only does the grounding system rise in electrical potential, but so does the surrounding soil. The resulting potential differences
This copy was printed on 10/31/2024	Page 6 of 10

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025Rev No: 3
	causes currents to flow into any and all nearby grounded conductive bodies, including concrete, pipes, copper wires, and people.
Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.
Impressed Current	Direct current supplied by a power source external to the electrode system.
Isolation	See Electrical Isolation.
Lightning	An electric discharge that occurs in the atmosphere between clouds or between clouds and the earth.
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
Over-Voltage Protector (Surge Arrester)	A device that provides high resistance to DC and high impedance to AC under normal conditions within the specified DC and AC threshold rating and "closes" or has a very low resistance and impedance during upset conditions.
Potential Gradient	Change in the potential with respect to distance.
Resistive Coupling	The influence of two or more circuits on one another by means of conductive paths (metallic, semi-conductive, or electrolytic) between the circuits.
Reverse Current Switch	A device that prevents the reversal of direct current through a metallic conductor.
Shared Electrolyte	Electrolyte in contact with both the electrode and the structure.
Shock Hazard	A condition considered to exist at an accessible part in a circuit between the part and ground or other accessible part if the steady-state open-circuit AC voltage is 15 V or more (root mean square [rms]). For capacitive build-up situations, a source capacity of 5 mA or more is recognized as a hazardous condition. For short-circuit conditions, the permissible touch-and-step voltages shall be determined in accordance with the methodology specified in accordance with <u>IEEE 80</u> or equivalent standard.
This copy was printed on 10/31/2024	Page 7 of 10

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation			Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3
	Solid State DC Decoupler	Dr ele dec im	y type of DC decoupling device co octronics. The electrical characterist coupler are high resistance to low-w pedance to AC.	mprising solid state tics of a solid-state voltage DC and low
	Step Potential or Step Voltage	Th ean ste dir	e potential difference between two th's surface separated by a distance p, which is defined as one meter, d rection of maximum potential gradi	points on the e of one human etermined in the ent.
	Stray Current	Cu cir	rrent flowing through paths other t cuit.	han the intended
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	Th ref	e voltage difference between a met erence electrode in contact with a s	allic structure and shared electrolyte.
	Telluric Current	An the inc our usu and ior	a electric current which moves under e sea. The currents are primarily ge- luced currents, which are induced b ter part of the Earth's magnetic field ually caused by interactions between d the magnetosphere or solar radiat nosphere.	erground or through omagnetically by changes in the d, which are en the solar wind ion effects on the
	Touch Potential or Touch Voltage	Th a p equ hu	e potential difference between a mo point on the earth's surface separate ual to the normal maximum horizon man (approximately 1.0 m [3.3 ft])	etallic structure and ed by a distance ntal reach of a
	Voltage	An po	a electromotive force or a difference tentials expressed in volts.	e in electrode
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	this s FOR-	standard shall be processed and doc 01.	cumented through
Forms	<u>Number</u>	<u>De</u>	escription	
	<u>GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01</u>	Ad	ldition, Deletion and Deviation For	m
<b>References</b> This copy w	<u>Number</u> vas printed on 10/31/2024	<u>De</u>	escription Page	e 8 of 10

Page	<i>234</i>	of 4	83
------	------------	------	----

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
AC Interference Monitoring and Mitigation	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3

49 CFR Part 195	Transportation of Hazardous Liquids by Pipeline
Appendix A	Induced Telluric Current Flow Chart
IEEE 80	Guide for Safety in AC Substation Grounding
IEEE 367	Recommended Practice for Determining the Electric Power Station Ground Potential Rise and Induced Voltage from a Power Fault
NACE SP0169	Control of External Corrosion on Underground or Submerged Metallic Piping Systems
NACE SP0177	Mitigation of Alternating Current and Lightning Effects on Metallic Structures and Corrosion Control Systems
TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedure

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	<b>Effective Date</b>
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 2.2, 6.11.1,	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
	6.15.2; Removed Figure			
	"Figure 2 – Transmission Line			
	Induced AC Flow Chart"			
2	"Transmission Line Induced	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	AC Requirements" section			
	edited. Breakout tank			
	requirements removed.			
	Reformatted to G&P Standard			
	Template.			
3	Inspection Frequencies per 49	Ryan Ell	Prasanna	11/1/2024
	CFR Part 192/195 table * note		Swamy	
	revised			

This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
<b>Appendix A – Induced Telluric Current Flow Chart</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0025	Rev No: 3





This copy was printed on 10/31/2024

Page 10 of 10

•

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

	Operating Standard	OPS-ST	D-0026
MPL	<b>Corrosion Under</b>	Page 1	L of 12
	Insulation Monitoring,	DATE:	Rev:
	Inspection and Mitigation	4/1/2021	0

# Contents

1.0	<b>Intro</b> 1.1	Purpose	<b>1</b> .1
2.0	<b>Refe</b>	rences	2 2 2
	2.2 2.3	Industry Codes and Standards Government Regulations	.2
3.0	Defi	nitions	2
4.0	Mon	itoring Interval	3
5.0	Area	s of Interest	3
6.0	Indi	rect (Qualitative) Inspection	4

	6.1	Detection of Moisture in	
	6.2	Insulation Detection of Metal Loss in	4
		Insulated Piping	5
7.0	Direc	ct (Quantitative) Inspection	7
8.0	Insp	ection Procedure	9
9.0	Class	sifications	9
10.0	Repa	irs	.10
11.0	Surv	ey Record Keeping	.10
Appe	ndix	A – Insulated Piping Priority	
	Class	sifications	.11

# **List of Figures**

Figure 1	Detection of Moisture in Insulation using Infrared Scanning	.4
Figure 2	Detection of Moisture in Insulation using Neutron Backscatter	. 5
Figure 3	Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping using Pulsed Eddy-Current	.6
Figure 4	Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping using Guided Wave Ultrasonics	.6
Figure 5	Anaylsis of CUI using Fluoroscropy	.7
Figure 6	Pipe Access using Insulation Ports (Left), Pipe Access by Stripping Insulation (Right)	. 8

# **List of Tables**

Table 1	Definitions	2
Table 2	Survey Record Keeping	10

# **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

# 1.1 Purpose

- 1.1.1 This Standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of Corrosion Under Insulation (CUI) of pipelines (e.g. valve site) and facilities (e.g. tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) to provide:
  - Compliance with regulatory requirements (for pipeline systems and facilities).

Revision:	Prepared by:	Approved by:	Issue Date:		
0 Ryan Ell S		Scott Stampka	4/1/2021		
<b>NOTICE:</b> The information contained herein is the confidential property of MPLX unless another source is indicated. This material is subject to return on demand and must not be disclosed or reproduced without prior written consent by a duly authorized representative of MPLX.					
OPS-STD-0026 Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation					



#### Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation

The intended service life as well as to streamline all requirements through the standardization of survey procedures, materials, and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of corrosion under insulation.

#### 1.2 Scope

- 1.2.1 This Standard applies to all MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.
- 1.2.2 This Standard does not include the monitoring, inspection, and mitigation of atmospheric corrosion. The monitoring, inspection, and mitigation of atmospheric corrosion is covered under OPS-STD-0018.

# 2.0 REFERENCES

## 2.1 MPLX Standards

- > OPS-STD-0017 Corrosion Control Governing Standard
- OPS-STD-0018 Atmospheric Corrosion Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation Standard
- OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01 Corrosion Under Installation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation Form

## 2.2 Industry Codes and Standards

- > ASME B31.3-2006 Process Piping
- > ASME B31.4-2006 Pipeline Transportation Systems for Liquids and Slurries
- > ASME B31.8-2007 Gas Transmission and Distribution Piping Systems
- API 570-2016 Piping Inspection Code: In-Service Inspection, Rating, Repair, and Alteration of Piping Systems
- API 2611-2011 Terminal Piping Inspection: Inspection of In-Service Terminal Piping Systems
- NACE SP0198-2016 Control of Corrosion Under Thermal Insulation and Fireproofing Materials

#### 2.3 Government Regulations

- > PHMSA 49 CFR Part 192 Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline
- > PHMSA 49 CFR Part 195 Transportation of Hazardous Liquids by Pipeline

#### **3.0 DEFINITIONS**

The following additional definitions are applicable to this Standard.

Term	Description
Contractor	Company or business that agrees to furnish materials or perform specified services at a specified price and/or rate to MPLX.
Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal surface to the environment.

#### Table 1 Definitions



# Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation

#### OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 3 of 12

Term	Description
Idled (Inactive)	A pipeline that is not currently used to transport gas or liquids, but continues to be maintained under 49 CFR Part 192 or 49 CFR Part 195.
Inspector/ Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
Onshore	Situated or occurring on land.
Offshore (Marine)	Beyond the line or ordinary low water along that portion of the coast that is in direct contact with the open seas and beyond the line marking the seaward limit of inland waters.
PCS	Pipeline Compliance System.

# 4.0 MONITORING INTERVAL

- 4.1 The pipeline system or portion of the pipeline system that is exposed to CUI shall be inspected for evidence of CUI at the intervals listed below:
  - 4.1.1 Onshore At least once every three (3) calendar years, but with intervals not exceeding thirty-nine (39) months.

# 5.0 AREAS OF INTEREST

- 5.1 The following areas of an insulated pipeline system or portion of an insulated pipeline system shall be inspected for CUI:
  - 5.1.1 Insulated piping systems with damaged, deteriorated or missing insulation.
  - 5.1.2 Insulated piping systems with entrapped water.
  - 5.1.3 Insulated piping systems with bulges in the insulation, staining of the insulation, or missing bands in the jacketing system.
  - 5.1.4 All penetrations or breaches in the insulated piping system, including:
    - 5.1.4.1 Transitions from insulated piping to non-insulated piping.
    - 5.1.4.2 Vents and drains.
    - 5.1.4.3 Pipe hangers and other supports.
    - 5.1.4.4 Valves and fittings (irregular insulation surfaces).
    - 5.1.4.5 Bolt-on pipe shoes.
    - 5.1.4.6 Insulation jacketing seams located on the top of horizontal piping or improperly lapped or sealed insulation jacketing.
    - 5.1.4.7 Caulking of insulated piping systems which has hardened, separated, or is missing.
    - 5.1.4.8 Locations where insulation plugs can be removed to permit piping thickness measurements on insulated piping.
- 5.2 Special attention shall be made to insulated piping systems which operate in intermittent service, and/or are process dead legs.



# 6.0 INDIRECT (QUALITATIVE) INSPECTION

Indirect inspection for CUI is broken up into two categories, "Detection of Moisture in Insulation" and "Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping". At least one test method from each category shall be used while performing indirect inspection for CUI.

## 6.1 Detection of Moisture in Insulation

- 6.1.1 Infrared Method
  - 6.1.1.1 Infrared scanning of insulated piping can be used as a screening inspection to detect the presence of moisture in insulation. With infrared scanning, a temperature difference between the dry and wet insulation can usually be detected.
  - 6.1.1.2 More moisture can correlate to a higher probability of the presence of CUI.
  - 6.1.1.3 Advantages of the infrared method include:
    - Insulation removal is not required.
    - Inspection can be performed from a distance.
  - 6.1.1.4 Disadvantages of the infrared method include:
    - Insulated pipes not currently in service and that cannot display a large enough temperature difference from the ambient temperature may limit the effectiveness of this inspection method.
    - May not provide an accurate indication of insulation system integrity for piping with normal operating temperature above 200°F.



# Figure 1 Detection of Moisture in Insulation using Infrared Scanning

6.1.2.1 Similar to infrared scanning, the neutron backscatter system can be used to detect moisture in insulation. With the neutron backscatter system, a radioactive source emits high energy into the insulation. If moisture is present, the hydrogen nuclei attenuate the energy of the neutrons. The instrument's gauge detector is only sensitive to low energy neutrons. The count displayed on the gauge is proportional to the amount of water in the insulation.



# Figure 2 Detection of Moisture in Insulation using Neutron Backscatter

- 6.1.3 Visual Inspection
  - 6.1.3.1 Visual inspection can be used for detection of moisture in insulation when removable insulation blankets are present.
- 6.1.4 Other Methods
  - 6.1.4.1 Alternative indirect inspection methods can be used for detection of moisture in insulation with approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead.

# 6.2 Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping

- 6.2.1 Pulsed Eddy-Current (PEC) Method
  - 6.2.1.1 PEC is an electromagnetic method used to determine the pipe wall thickness. The PEC probe is placed on an insulated pipe or vessel. A magnetic field is created by an electrical current in the transmitting coil of the probe. This field penetrates through the weather sheeting and magnetizes the pipe wall. Next, the electrical current in the transmission coil is switched off, causing a sudden drop in the magnetic field. As a result of electromagnetic induction, eddy currents are generated in the pipe wall. The eddy currents diffuse inwards and decrease in strength. The decrease in eddy currents is monitored by the PEC probe and is used to determine wall thickness.
  - 6.2.1.2 PEC is suitable for detecting general wall loss, but isolated pitting defects cannot be detected.
  - 6.2.1.3 Advantages of the PEC method include:



#### Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation

#### OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 6 of 12

- Insulation removal is not required.
- 6.2.1.4 Disadvantages of the PEC method include:
  - Method only works with carbon steel and low-alloy steel.
  - Pitting defects cannot be detected.



# Figure 3 Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping using Pulsed Eddy-Current

- 6.2.2 Guided Wave Ultrasonic (GUL) Method
  - 6.2.2.1 During GUL testing, a transducer ring is clamped around the pipe and transmits guided waves in both directions along the pipe. Reflected signals from defects and pipe features such as welds are received by the transducer and sent to the main unit for analysis.
  - 6.2.2.2 GUL requires access to the pipe and removal of about 3.3 ft length of insulation at each test location.
  - 6.2.2.3 GUL is suitable for detecting general wall loss, but isolated pitting defects cannot be detected.
  - 6.2.2.4 Advantages of the GUL method include:
    - Only a small portion of insulation removal is required.
  - 6.2.2.5 Disadvantages of the GUL method include:
    - Successful measurement ranges can differ between 0 to 150 feet depending on pipe (e.g., thickness, coating, etc.) and environmental conditions (e.g., aboveground, buried, etc.).'



Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

MPLX	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 7 of 12
------	--	------------------------------------

- 6.2.3 Visual Inspection
  - 6.2.3.1 Visual inspection can be used for detection of metal loss in insulated piping when removable insulation blankets are present.
- 6.2.4 Other Methods
  - 6.2.4.1 Alternative indirect inspection methods can be used for detection of metal loss in insulated piping with approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead.

# 7.0 DIRECT (QUANTITATIVE) INSPECTION

The results from the indirect inspection methods (Section 6.0) shall be used to determine if further direct inspection methods are required.

- If moisture in insulation and/or metal loss was observed, further direct inspection methods shall be conducted.
- If moisture in insulation and/or metal loss was not observed, further direct inspection methods are not required.
- 7.1 Fluoroscopy (C-Arm) Method
  - 7.1.1 Fluoroscopy provides a clear view of the pipes outside diameter through the insulation utilizing a "C" shaped arm device, producing a silhouette of the pipe outside diameter (OD). The X-ray digital fluoroscopy equipment operates at a maximum of 75 KV, a low-level radiation source, but the voltage is adjustable to obtain the clearest image.
  - 7.1.2 The inspection can be viewed during the inspection on a helmet-mounted, visor-type video-display or a TV-type monitor.
  - 7.1.3 Advantages of the fluoroscopy method include:
    - Insulation removal is not required.
  - 7.1.4 Disadvantages of the fluoroscopy method include:
    - Limited to a maximum pipe diameter of 24 inches.
    - Limited to pipes that have enough clearance from other objects that will allow the C-arm to fit.
  - 7.1.5 If fluoroscopy is not feasible for a given pipe/structure, the "Visual Inspection with Ultrasonic Thickness Measurements Method" shall be used.





MPLX	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 8 of 12
------	--	------------------------------------

- 7.2 Visual Inspection with Ultrasonic Thickness (UT) Measurements Method
  - 7.2.1 Depending on the severity of the suspected CUI that was determined using the Indirect (Qualitative) Inspection methods (Section 6.0), the inspector shall determine whether using new/pre-existing inspection ports is sufficient or if complete removal of the insulation is required to perform a visual inspection with UT measurements.
  - 7.2.2 If pitting corrosion is present under insulation, a pit gauge shall be used in conjunction with a UT gauge to perform pipe wall thickness measurements.
  - 7.2.3 Advantages of the visual inspection with UT measurements method include:
    - Visual inspection allows for the most reliable form of inspection.
  - 7.2.4 Disadvantages of the visual inspection with UT measurements method include:
    - Insulation removal is required.
    - Possible exposure to asbestos.
    - Time-consuming.
    - Expensive, as insulation will need to be replaced.
    - Incorrect replacement of inspection ports will create locations for water ingress.
- 7.3 Other Methods
  - 7.3.1 Alternative direct inspection methods can be used for the analysis of CUI with approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.





MPLX	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 9 of 12
------	--	------------------------------------

#### 8.0 INSPECTION PROCEDURE

- 8.1 Individuals performing CUI inspection work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in the MPLX OQ Plan.
- 8.2 CUI Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation Procedures shall be recorded using MPLX Form OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01 or by using an Allegro Field PC and recording the fields listed in MPLX Form OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01 (preferred). Following the completion of the survey, the survey data shall be transferred to the PCS database within sixty (60) days of the survey completion date.
- 8.3 Appendix A contains priority classifications for insulated piping. Priority classifications consist of 3 priority ranges, with a 1 being the most severe and 3 being the least severe. Actions associated with Priorities are defined in the Section 9.0 of this Standard.
- 8.4 In the field, the Corrosion Control Technician or Qualified Inspector shall assign priorities to the inspected areas of the insulated pipeline system for each area of interest. If no signs are present of CUI, the Inspector shall classify it as Priority 3.
- 8.5 Photographs shall be taken at each assessed location and stored together with the survey data in the PCS database, which shall be retained per OPS-STD-0017.
- 8.6 Each exposed area shall be given a unique identifying label, i.e. PIC 01, for reference on future inspections. If piping circuits have been assigned under a prior API 570 or API 2611 inspection, use the piping circuits label as the identifying element.

# 9.0 CLASSIFICATIONS

- 9.1 MPLX personnel shall review third-party inspection reports and affirm or modify priority classifications.
- 9.2 For areas classified as Priority 1 items, an engineering assessment of the metal loss along with remediation shall be conducted per the code associated with the pertinent regulatory agency. Where no regulatory agency has authority, an engineering assessment, along with remediation, shall be performed per ASME B31.3 or ASME B31.4 for liquid service or ASME B31.8 for gas service.
- 9.3 Areas classified as Priority 2 items shall be re-assessed at the midpoint of the CUI inspection interval. The Corrosion Control Technician/Engineer or Qualified Operator shall re-evaluate the area, and if conditions have changed, re-prioritize the location.
  - 9.3.1 Alternatively, if Priority 2 items receive a coating, they can be re-prioritized to a Priority 3 item.



9.4 Areas classified as Priority 3 items shall be re-assessed at the standard CUI inspection interval and can be re-prioritized at any time.

#### **10.0 REPAIRS**

- 10.1 All repair items shall be assigned a work order and tracked in SAP-PM.
- 10.2 Repair of Jacketing and Insulation
  - 10.2.1 Damaged jacketing that allows the possibility of moisture ingress shall be repaired/replaced.
  - 10.2.2 Damaged, deteriorated or missing insulation discovered during the inspection shall be repaired/replaced.
- 10.3 Repair of Pipe Coating
  - 10.3.1 Coating of or coating repairs on insulated piping shall follow the LE-10.001-STD standard.
  - 10.3.2 Coating shall be documented using the appropriate MPLX coating packet forms.
- 10.4 If metal loss requires repair by mechanical means (e.g. sleeve, weld-overlay, replacement pipe, etc.), an MPLX Pipeline Integrity Engineer shall be consulted to determine the proper type of repair.

# **11.0 SURVEY RECORD KEEPING**

Tat	ble	2	Survey	Record	K	Ceeping
-----	-----	---	--------	--------	---	---------

Record	Owner	Location
Corrosion Under Insulation Inspection Survey	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database
Photographs of Piping Circuits	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	PCS Database



# **APPENDIX A – INSULATED PIPING PRIORITY CLASSIFICATIONS**

**Priority 3** 

The pipeline coating, if present, is undamaged and no oxidation or metal loss is present.



#### **Priority 2**

The pipeline coating, if present, is damaged and oxidation is present but there is no metal loss.





# **Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation**

OPS-STD-0026 Rev 0 Page 12 of 12

#### Priority 1

The pipeline coating, if present, is damaged and excessive oxidation with metal loss is present.



	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-	-0026-FOR-01
		Page 1 of 3	
ß	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

CORROSION UNDER INSULATION INSPECTION FORM					
Inspection Date	Technician				
Information					
ROW Code	Milepost				
Location Description	GPS Coordinates				
Drawing Reference	Insulated Pipe Coating	Insulation Type			
	□ Field Applied Epoxy	□ Fiberglass Batting			
	Fusion Bonded Epoxy	Extruded Glass			
Facility Type:	□ Paint	□ Urethane			
□ Exposed Pipe – Terminal/Facility	Extruded Polyethylene	Removable Blanket			
Exposed Pipe – Pipeline	🗆 Coal Tar	□ ACM / Possible ACM			
Exposed Pipe – Offshore Facility	□ Somastic Coating	□ Other:			
Engineered Span	□ Pritec				
□ Trestle	□ Heat Shrink Sleeve				
□ Vault	🗆 Таре				
	□ Wax				
	□ Uncoated				
	□ Other:				
	D N/A				

Information Remarks

•

	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01		
	FORM	Page 2 of 3		
®		DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

Inspection					
Indired	Indirect Inspection Method (Detection of Moisture in Insulation)				
	Infrared				
	Neutron Backscatter				
	Visual				
	Other:				
Indired	t Inspection Method (Detection of Metal Loss in Insulated Piping)				
	Pulsed Eddy Current (PEC)				
	Guided Wave Ultrasonics (GUL)				
	Visual				
	Other:				
Direct	Inspection Method				
	Fluoroscopy (C-Arm)				
	Visual Inspection with UT Measurements				
	Other:				
Conditi	on of Insulation				
	Excellent – No Jacket and Insulation Damage, Band Intact				
	Good – Minimal Jacket and Insulation Damage, Minimal Missing Bands				
	Fair – Moderate Jacket and Insulation Damage, Isolated Missing Bands				
	Poor – Severe Jacket and Insulation Damage, Multiple Missing Bands				
	Could Not Inspect				
	N/A				
Inspection Priority (per OPS-STD-0026)					
	3 – Pipeline Coating, if Present, is Undamaged – No Visual Oxidation – No Visible Metal Loss				
	2 – Pipeline Coating, if Present, is Damaged – Oxidation Present – No Metal Loss Present				
	1 – Pipeline Coating, if Present, is Damaged – Excessive Oxidation Present – Metal Loss Present				
	N/A				
Repair	Repair Recommended 🗆 Yes 🗆 No				

.

	Corrosion Under Insulation Monitoring, Inspection and Mitigation	OPS-STD-0026-FOR-01		
	FORM	Page 3 of 3		
®		DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

Insp	ection Remarks		
Mair	ntenance/Repairs	_	
Reco	ommended Action	Repa	ir Priority
	Monitor		High
	Repair Damaged Jacket and/or Insulation		Medium
	Coat Exposed Steel		Low
	Perform Maintenance Coating		N/A
	Other (See Repair Remarks)		
Repair Remarks			

	Gathering & Processing Standard Document						
Authored by: Rvan Ell			Doc No.: OPS-STD-0027				
Doc. Custodian:		External Corrosion Direct	Rev. No.: 2				
Approved by:		Assessment	MPLX G&P				
Scott Stampka	7/47/0000	Next Deview Deter 0/4/0005					
Date Approved: 0	1/1//2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023				
Purpose	<ul> <li><b>rpose</b> This standard establishes minimum requirements for External Corrosion Direct Assessment (ECDA) of pipelines to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life as well as to streamline all requirements through the standardization of survey procedures, materials, and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion</li> </ul>						
Scope	This standar Processing ( (IMP) that a	d applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum L G&P) operated assets that fall under the Integ re not assessed for integrity by means of inlin	ogistics (MPLX) Gathering and grity Management Program he inspection or hydrotest.				
Table of	Purpose		1				
Contents	Scope						
	General Req	uirements					
	Procedure						
	Qualificat	ions					
	Equipmen	t					
	Special Co	onsiderations					
	Pre-Assessm	ent					
	Purpose						
	Data Colle	ection					
	ECDA Fe	asibility					
	Identificat	ion of ECDA Regions					
	Selection	of Indirect Inspection Tools					
	Developin	g an Indirect Inspection Plan					
	Additiona	Requirements for First Time Application					
	Indirect Insp	ection					
	Purpose						
	Conductin	g Indirect Inspections					
	Data Alig	nment and Comparison					
	Identificat	ions of Indications					
	Classifica	tion of Indication Severity					

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
External Corro	sion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2		
	Additional Requirements for l	First Time Application	18		
	Direct Examination				
	Purpose		10		
	Prioritization				
	Determining the Required Number of Exceptions for Direct Examination				
	Scheduling	moet of Excavations for Direct Exam	23 niation		
	Excavations and Data Collect	ion	23		
	Excavations and Data Conection				
	Demoining Strength Evaluation				
	In Process Evaluation	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	25		
	Additional Considerations for	First Time Application	28		
	Post-Assessment	This The Appleaton	28		
	Purpose		28		
	Root Cause Analysis		29		
	Determining Mitigation		29		
	Reclassification and Repriorit	ization	30		
	Definition of Re-Assessment	Interval	31		
	ECDA Effectiveness				
	Feedback and Continuous Im	provement			
	Additional Considerations for	First Time Application			
	Survey Records				
	Survey Record Keeping				
	Definitions				
	Waiver Process				
	Forms				
	References				
	Records Retention				
	Revision History		39		
Jeneral Requirements Procedure	• Individuals performing F	ECDA survey work shall be qualified	per the relevant		

- Individuals performing ECDA survey work shall be qualified per the relevant Operator Qualification (OQ) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.
- ECDA shall be performed in accordance with <u>NACE SP0502</u>.
- ECDA is a structured four-step process for buried onshore piping systems. The

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 2 of 44

Printed copies should
MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

intent of the ECDA methodology is to improve pipeline safety by assessing and reducing the impact of external corrosion on the integrity of the pipeline. A brief description of the four steps in the ECDA process is presented below:

- Step 1: Pre-Assessment
  - Compile historic and current data to determine whether ECDA is feasible, define ECDA regions, and select the appropriate indirect inspection tools. The types of data that are most important during the pre-assessment step of ECDA are typically available in construction records, operating and maintenance histories, alignment sheets, corrosion survey records, other aboveground inspection records, and inspection reports from prior integrity evaluations or maintenance actions.
- Step 2: Indirect Inspection
  - Covers aboveground inspections to identify and define the severity of coating faults, other anomalies, and areas where corrosion activity may have or may be occurring in the areas under investigation. Two or more complementary indirect inspection tools shall be used over the entire pipeline segment under investigation to provide improved detection accuracy under the wide variety of conditions that may be encountered along a pipeline right-of-way. The combination of indirect inspections may vary based on the characteristics of different regions that may exist along the pipeline segment being assessed.
- Step 3: Direct Examination
  - The data from the direct examinations is combined with prior data to identify and assess the impact of external corrosion on the pipeline.
- Step 4: Post-Assessment
  - Analyses of data collected from the previous three steps to assess the effectiveness of the ECDA and determine re-assessment intervals.
- <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u> shall be used when completing each step of the ECDA process.

Role	<b>Training Requirements &amp; Qualifications</b>
ECDA Manager	An individual who possesses a Bachelor of Science degree in engineering or technology, plus five years of experience in integrity engineering and EDCA management programs (including <u>NACE SP0502</u> and <u>49 CFR Part 192</u> Section192.925 or <u>49 CFR Part 195</u> Section 195.588). The individual must have sufficient pipeline experience related to external pipeline corrosion to provide guidance and oversight to the personnel conducting the ECDA process.
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	An individual who is qualified as a Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer per the qualifications stated in Appendix D of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Integrity Engineer	An individual who possesses a Bachelor of Science degree in engineering or technology, plus three years of pipeline related engineering or has equivalent pipeline experience in the pipeline industry.
Corrosion Control Technician/ Specialist/ Engineer	An individual who is qualified through corrosion control OQ tasks or the equivalent National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) certifications per Appendix D of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .
Nondestructive Examination Specialist (Inspector)	An individual who meets OQ requirements and is an American Society for Nondestructive Testing (ASNT) SNT-TC-1A Level II NDT Examiner for any Nondestructive Testing (NDT) task to be completed under this plan.

# **Equipment** The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for ensuring all equipment used during the ECDA process is used in accordance with MPLX cathodic protection survey and Nondestructive Evaluation (NDE) procedures. This includes ensuring equipment is calibrated and that individuals using the equipment are properly trained.

#### Special Consideration s

A key part of the ECDA process is the use of more restrictive criteria during the first application of the process. Each of the four steps of the process has a section dedicated to explicitly stating what additional requirements shall be applied for first time ECDA application. These sections are as follows:

- Pre-Assessment
- Indirect Inspection
- Direct Examination
- Post-Assessment

# **Pre-Assessment**

# Purpose

The purpose of the pre-assessment step is to collect sufficient pipeline data to determine if ECDA is feasible for the pipeline segment, to select indirect inspection tools, and to identify ECDA regions. The pre-assessment step contains the following activities:

- Data collection
- Assessment of ECDA feasibility
- Selection of indirect inspection tools
- Identification of ECDA regions
- Development of an indirect inspection plan

#### Data Collection

Historical and current data, including physical information, shall be collected for the pipeline segment. Minimum data collection requirements are based on the history and condition of the pipe. <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02</u> (cased or uncased piping) shall be used to collect relevant data. The form differentiates between

Page 4 of 44

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

required, desired, and optional data.

- **Required data** is information that is critical to completing the ECDA process.
- **Desired data** is information that is relevant to the ECDA process; however, the information is not critical to the process.
- **Optional data** is typically informational.
- Required data elements shall be obtained before the completion of the preassessment step. Desired data elements should be obtained if the data are available in existing records, or it is reasonable to acquire through measurements or examinations.
- In the event that desired data for a particular category is not available, conservative assumptions shall be used based on experience and information about similar systems. Any assumptions made shall be technically justified and documented by the Integrity Engineer. The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall approve the assumptions made.
  - Assumptions shall not to be made for the following data elements:
    - Pipe diameter
    - Pipe wall thickness
    - Presence of bare pipe
    - Cathodic Protection (CP) system type
    - Coating type
- The Integrity Engineer shall complete the data collection. If required data elements are found to be missing or incomplete, a plan shall be implemented to collect the missing data. All data collected shall be recorded in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02</u>.
- There is a unique set of data that must be collected to assess the feasibility of cased piping for ECDA. <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02</u> shall be used for the data collection of cased piping. This form addresses the different data elements that are required to accurately assess the feasibility of ECDA for cased sections.
- Prior assessments of the pipeline segment may be used as a resource for preassessment data; however, they should not be used as a substitute for the data collection process outlined in this procedure.
- As an integrity assessment method, ECDA must also integrate data from other sources and assessments. While the purpose of ECDA is to assess the threat of external corrosion, it is capable of detecting other threats as well. This includes other threats such as internal corrosion and stress corrosion cracking, fabrication and construction defects, threats such as third-party damage, and human error. If another threat is observed during the ECDA process, the Integrity Engineer shall document these findings, so they can be assessed using other appropriate methods. The data from other related integrity assessments are integrated into the ECDA process and included in the indirect inspection plan where relevant information can be used to identify threats to the pipeline.
- ECDA Feasibility
- Following the data collection, the Integrity Engineer shall integrate and assess the data to determine if the conditions around the pipeline segment are such that two

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

or more complementary indirect inspection tools can be used or are such that ECDA can be applied. Specific aspects of the feasibility decision, including technical justification, shall be documented.

- If sufficient historical and current data are available on the pipeline segment and it can be reasonably concluded that indirect inspections will establish indications of possible corrosion activity along a pipeline segment, it is reasonable to conclude that ECDA is feasible.
- ECDA shall not be considered feasible if there are required data elements that were not able to be obtained. In addition, the following environmental conditions may prevent the application of ECDA:
  - o Locations at which coatings cause electrical shielding
  - o Backfill with significant rock content or rock ledges
  - Certain ground surfaces such as pavement, frozen ground, and reinforced concrete
  - Situations that lead to the inability to acquire aboveground measurements in a reasonable time frame
  - o Locations adjacent to buried metallic structures
  - Inaccessible areas

In the event that one or more of these conditions exist, the Integrity Engineer shall provide technical justification for the application of ECDA in relation to the given condition. This shall be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

- There are separate requirements to address the feasibility of the ECDA methodology to conditions specific to cased pipe. Whenever the requirements provided in this standard cannot be effectively implemented on an ECDA region, the process shall not be considered feasible for that casing/region.
- The following data will be considered during the ECDA feasibility study of cased crossings:
  - Data on casing construction
  - Filled-casing data
  - Casing monitoring data
  - Coating type and coating condition
  - History of metallic shorts and or electrolytic contact
  - Data required in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02</u> (cased piping)
  - Data required in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03</u> (cased piping)
  - Data required in OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04 (cased piping)

### Identification of ECDA Regions

- The entire pipeline segment being assessed shall be divided into ECDA regions. An ECDA region is a portion of a pipeline segment that has similar physical characteristics, corrosion histories, and expected future corrosion conditions. The same indirect inspections shall be completed over the complete ECDA region. These regions may contain non-continuous pipeline sections.
- The Integrity Engineer shall establish the ECDA regions for the pipeline segment. The primary decision process for establishing pipeline regions within a segment are as follows:

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard D	Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2
<ul> <li>Availability of is reasonably s</li> <li>Applying and s</li> </ul>	F prior operating history and a determination similar	n that the history
<ul> <li>Anarysis and C are known and</li> <li>Determination</li> </ul>	l similar that indirect inspections are feasible and the	at they would
<ul> <li>vield similar a</li> <li>evaluated with</li> <li>A determination</li> <li>reinspection in</li> <li>inspection tool</li> </ul>	in the pipeline segment on that corrosion activity, corrosion growth atervals, and the predictive capabilities of the ls used are similar	rates, ne indirect
<ul> <li>When identifying ECI collected and all cond For example, a separa leaves a congested pip</li> <li>The following provide</li> </ul>	DA regions, the Integrity Engineer shall con- itions that significantly affect (or drive) ext te ECDA region may be defined where a pro- peline corridor or right-of-way. es a description of the relevance of various	nsider the data ternal corrosion. ipeline enters or factors that affect
ECDA region selectio • Age – The year degradation m corrosion rate. process and m materials typic defect size and	n: ar of installation impacts the time over which ay occur, and the estimation of defect popul The age of the pipe helps indicate the prob- anufacturing technology used to make the p cally have lower toughness levels, which re l remaining life predictions.	th coating Ilation and bable steel making pipe. Older pipe duces critical
<ul> <li>Pipe Related C which the pipe chemical and r (ERW) or flash rates than the l will increase s separate ECDA</li> </ul>	Characteristics – Knowing the specification was made will provide information about mechanical properties. Pre-1970 Electric Re h welded pipe seams may be subject to high pase material. Locations with pre-1970 low elective seam corrosion susceptibility and n A regions.	s and grade to minimum esistance Welded her corrosion frequency ERW may require

- Construction Characteristics Construction practice differences may require separate ECDA regions. Locations of valves, clamps, supports, taps, mechanical couplings, etc., can be used to help determine changes in CP current that may be considered separately. Locations where CP levels are significantly affected by external sources (e.g., high voltage electric transmission lines) may be treated as separate ECDA regions. Outside influences of external power sources may impact the corrosion mechanism (stray Direct Current (DC) and Alternating Current (AC) corrosion) that could be present in a pipeline.
- Soil and Environment Soil related and environmental factors are reviewed along the entire length of the pipeline to determine any changes that necessitate separate regions. There are several factors related to soils that influence the formation and susceptibility to external corrosion. These include soil type, topography, and drainage. Exposure to bacteria and environments conducive to Microbiologically Influenced Corrosion (MIC) can prevent an accurate understanding of corrosion rates, and therefore

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

ECDA is not suited for mitigating MIC.

	Lebra is not suited for integating wife.
	<ul> <li>Pipeline Coating Types – Coating type may influence the time at which corrosion begins and estimates of corrosion rate based on measured wall loss. Sections of the pipeline that are coated with polyethylene tape may make it difficult to apply ECDA because of the potential for electrical shielding of the CP current. For the tape coated sections, ECDA may be applied using soil resistivity coupled with drainage and topography.</li> <li>Leak and Repair History – Information about pipe replacements or repairs may indicate where problems have occurred in the past. If pipe has recently been replaced, the removed pipe may be available for examination and extrapolations may be made to areas having similar characteristics with respect to soil type, soil resistivity and drainage, etc.</li> <li>Cathodic Protection Data – External corrosion develops where CP current cannot penetrate under or through the coating to reach the steel pipe or where there is inadequate distribution of current to bare or ineffectively coated pipe. The length of time without CP is essential in understanding the exposure history of the pipeline segment.</li> <li>The ECDA regions selection shall be documented by the Integrity Engineer on <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04</u> (cased or uncased piping) and submitted to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer for approval.</li> <li>ECDA regions may need to be modified throughout the ECDA process. This could be due to unexpected conditions or tools not performing as expected in the conditions identified. Any change shall be documented and attached to <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u> by the Integrity Engineer is also responsible for including any changes to ECDA regions in the feedback and continuous improvement section of the post-assessment step.</li> <li>Due to the unique characteristic of cased piping may or may not be considered to be one ECDA regions. However, all cased piping may or may not be considered to be one ECDA regions. However, all cased piping. If a pipeline segment cor</li></ul>
	contains different cased sections representing different pipelines, considerations shall be made to the necessity of dividing cased sections in to different ECDA regions.
Selection of Indirect Inspection Tools	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall select and document which indirect inspection tools are to be used for each ECDA region along the pipeline segment.</li> <li>At least two (2) complementary indirect inspection tools capable of detecting corrosion activity and coating conditions reliably under the specific pipeline conditions shall be performed over the entire length of each ECDA region. Tools selected for each ECDA region shall complement one another. Specifically, the</li> </ul>

tools should be selected such that the strengths of one tool compensate for the

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 8 of 44

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

limitations of another. This program recognizes the six (6) indirect inspection tools listed in Table 1.

- Recommended guidance for performing Close Interval Survey (CIS) testing can be located in Procedure 6 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.
- Recommended guidance for Direct Current Voltage Gradient (DCVG) testing can be located in Procedure 7 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.
- Recommended guidance for Alternating Current Current Attenuation (ACCA) and Alternating Current Voltage Gradient (ACVG) testing can be located in Procedure 8 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.
- Recommended guidance for Pearson Survey testing can be located in Procedure 27 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.
- Recommended guidance for soil resistivity testing can be located in Procedure 19 of <u>TSCP-006</u>.
- The use of a tool not listed in Table 1 shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer The justification and verification of the tool shall be documented by the Integrity Engineer.

Indirect Inspection Tool	Measurement Attributes	Typical Uses	Less Suitable For	Comple- mentary Tools
Close Interval Survey (CIS)	Measures structure-to- electrolyte potentials along the pipeline at 2.5 to 10-foot intervals. Units: mV (CSE)	Generally used to assess the performance of CP systems and generally estimate the location of coating holidays. Can also detect interference, shorted casings, electrical or geological shielding, contact with other metallic structures, as well as defective electrical isolation joints.	Pipelines that are below paved areas require holes to be drilled to the soil. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.	DCVG, ACVG, Pearson Survey, ACCA
Current Attenuation Survey (ACCA)	Measures the electro- magnetic field attenuation emanating from the pipe induced with an AC signal. Qualitatively	Can be used for pipelines under pavement and CP systems that are difficult to isolate.	Not indicative of structure-to- electrolyte potential or effectiveness of CP. Is ineffective under HV transmission lines. Is not	CIS

### Table 1: Recognized Indirect Inspection Tools

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

	ranks coating quality and highlights areas with the largest holidays. Units: % signal drop		effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.		
DCVG/ ACVG/ Pearson Survey	Measures voltage gradients resulting from current pickup and discharge points at holidays. Capable of precisely locating holidays on the pipeline. Units: %IR (DCVG), dB/V (ACVG), % of total signal (Pearson)	Generally used to precisely locate large and small coating holidays on buried pipelines.	Pipelines that are below paved areas require holes to be drilled to the soil. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.	CIS	
Soil Resistivity	Measures the resistivity of soil at different layers. Units: ohm-cm	Generally used to characterize the resistance and corrosivity of the soil.	Not indicative of the effectiveness of CP or in determining the effectiveness of coating systems.	CIS, DCVG, Pearson Survey, ACVG, ACCA	

- The Integrity Engineer shall determine the required number of tools to reliably detect corrosion activity for each ECDA region. The same survey tools do not need to be used over the entire pipeline segment.
- Table 2 provides additional guidance for selecting indirect inspection tools and specifically addresses conditions under which some indirect inspections tools may not be practical or reliable.
- <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03</u> (cased or uncased piping) is to be used to document the tools selected. The Integrity Engineer shall complete this form and document supporting justification. This form and supporting technical justification shall be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Table 2: Indirect Inspection Tool Selection				
Conditions	Close Interval Survey (CIS)	Voltage Gradient Survey (DCVG and ACVG)	Pearson Survey	Current Attenuation Survey (ACCA)
Coating holidays	2	1, 2	2	1, 2
Anodic zones on bare pipe	2	3	3	3
Near river or water crossings	2	2	2	2
Under frozen ground	3	3	3	1, 2
Stray currents	2	1, 2	2	1, 2
Shielded corrosion activity	3	3	3	3
Adjacent metallic structures	2	1, 2	3	1, 2
Near parallel pipelines	2	1, 2	3	1, 2
Under high voltage alternating current overhead electric transmission lines	2	1, 2	2	2
Shorted casing	2	2	2	2
Under paved roads	3	3	3	1, 2
Crossing other pipelines	2	1, 2	2	1, 2
Cased piping	3	3	3	3
At very deep depth of cover	3	3	3	3
Wetlands	2	1, 2	2	1, 2
Rock terrain/rock ledges/rock backfill	3	3	3	2

Key:

1 - Applicable: Small coating holidays (isolated and typically less than 600  $\text{mm}^2$  (1 in<sup>2</sup>) and conditions that do not cause fluctuations in CP potentials under normal operating conditions)

2 - Applicable: Large coating holidays (isolated and continuous) or conditions that cause fluctuations in CP potentials under normal operating conditions

3 - Applicable: When it can be demonstrated, through sound engineering practice and thorough analysis of the inspection location, that chosen methodology produces accurate comprehensive results that result in a valid integrity assessment of the pipeline segment

• Cased piping creates limitations for indirect inspection tools and the ability of

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2
	those tools to detect corroside indirect inspection tools that considerations should reflect of the data or information the main limitation of most indi identify if there is a pipe-to- differentiate between contin	on activity. As such, other consider t are to be used for cased piping. A t the level of performance of each nat can reasonably be expected from rect inspection tools is that they can casing electrical continuity of som uities.	rations are made for additional tool, and the nature in the tools. The an only reliably he kind, but not
Developing an Indirect Inspection Plan	<ul> <li>An indirect inspection plan a inspections. The plan address specifications, safety proceed requirements. The plan mustor in Pipeline segment manaidentified and labele</li> <li>Clearly defined ECD assessed</li> <li>Identified indirect in region and the seque</li> <li>Flagging and GPS address of the training, experied conducting the indirect of the limitations and sequements on over the limitations and sequements on over the plan shall be documented Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engine</li> </ul>	shall be developed prior to commenses project logistics, survey proce- lures, personnel requirements, and t include, but is not limited to, the aps with boundaries and pertinent i d by location (e.g., bonds, casings, DA region(s) along the entire pipelit spection surveys to be performed which the surveys must be a couracy to be used during the survey ence, or OQ requirements for the in- ect inspection surveys performing each survey including, ensitivities of the technique and the erlapping surveys, if applicable considerations (frozen ground) ed by the Integrity Engineer and su Team Lead or Engineer. The Regi- neer shall be responsible for manage	ancing the indirect dures and data analysis following: nformation clearly roads, etc.) ine segment to be within each ECDA conducted eys ndividuals but not limited to, e spacing required
Additional Requirements for First Time Application	<ul> <li>When ECDA is applied for requirements apply. The Repute responsible for ensuring being applied for the first the restrictive criteria implement.</li> <li>At least one of the following pipeline segment for the first one of the following pipeline segment for the first one collecting soil resist one of the following pipeline segment for the first one collecting soil resist one of the following pipeline segment for the first one collecting soil resist one collecting soil resist one collecting the segment for the first one confirmation.</li> <li>Locating and pre-matic conducting the indirection of the segment for the first one conducting the indirection.</li> </ul>	the first time on a pipeline segmen gional Corrosion Control Team Le that more restrictive criteria are us me. The Integrity Engineer shall do ted in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u> . g tasks shall be completed when ap at time: ivity measurements during the ind onsequence Area (HCA) included s gions a depth of covers, pipe coatings, an arking the entire pipeline at 5-foot ect inspections tegrity Engineer and/or Regional C	t, more stringent ead or Engineer shall ed when ECDA is ocument the more oplying ECDA on a irect inspection step segments into ad soil conditions, intervals prior to Corrosion Control

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Team Lead or Engineer to the pipeline segment

Indirect Inspection Purpose	The purpose of the indirect inspection step is to conduct aboveground inspections (Table 1) to identify and define the severity of coating faults, other anomalies, and areas where corrosion activity may have or may be occurring in the areas under investigation.
Conducting Indirect Inspections	<ul> <li>After the indirect inspection plan has been approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, the aboveground surveys are conducted in accordance with the MPLX Corrosion Control Program, MPLX Cathodic Protection Survey Procedures, and this standard. The surveys shall be completed by a survey crew and each survey crew shall include at least one Corrosion Technician/Specialist/Engineer.</li> <li>The indirect inspections shall be conducted and completed as close together in time as practical.</li> <li>The boundaries of the ECDA pipeline segment shall be identified and physically marked prior to performing the indirect inspection surveys.</li> <li>During the indirect inspections, accurate stationing for readings shall be obtained. Accuracy shall be verified by the Integrity Engineer by comparing GPS coordinates from surveys with known pipeline segment alignment. The difference between the measured stationing and the stationing of locations on the alignment sheet shall be less than 2%. The Integrity Engineer shall be located with reference to clearly described aboveground locations. GPS measurements shall be collected at every reading and at every pipeline feature or appurtenance along the right-of-way. This includes recording the position of the following: <ul> <li>Each pipeline marker</li> <li>CP test stations</li> <li>The edges and center of: <ul> <li>Road crossings</li> <li>Waterways</li> <li>Diches</li> </ul> </li> <li>Fences</li> <li>Overhead power lines</li> <li>Foreign line and utility crossings</li> <li>Any sections of exposed pipe</li> <li>Any locations with evidence of soil erosion along the right-of-way</li> </ul> </li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall witness a portion, or all, of the indirect inspection sto verify that the indirect inspection personnel are following the ECDA indirect inspection personnel are following the ECDA indirect inspection personnel are following the ECDA indirect inspection personnel are of low of the indirect inspection personnel. The audit findings sh</li></ul>

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Data Alignment and Comparison	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall overlay the data sets from the indirect inspections. The results of data alignment shall be documented as part of the final report. The data are aligned such that individual indications on coated lines can be identified, or such that possible anodic areas on bare lines can be identified. The results of the surveys shall be compared to the pre-assessment data to confirm the feasibility of ECDA and confirm ECDA regions were appropriately defined. If discrepancies exist regarding the ability of tools to accurately inspect the pipeline segment, these discrepancies shall be resolved by the Integrity Engineer prior to proceeding to the next activity in the indirect inspection step. Any discrepancy, and associated resolution, shall be documented and attached to <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u>.</li> <li>The impact of spatial errors from various techniques shall be considered when aligning data. Any suspected spatial errors shall be investigated prior to the indication classification and prioritization step.</li> </ul>
<b>Identifications</b>	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for identifying ECDA indications. Analysis software may also be used, if approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, based on comparisons between surveys. The criteria for determining ECDA indications may be determined on a per project basis as results may vary based on local conditions and unique project factors. At a minimum, criteria for identifying ECDA indications must consider the following:         <ul> <li>The known sensitivities of the survey equipment</li> <li>The procedures used during the survey</li> <li>The approach used for decreasing the physical spacing between measurements</li> </ul> </li> <li>The criteria for identifying ECDA indications shall be based on sound engineering practice and conform to generally accepted industry practices. Typically, potential ECDA indications are changes in measured values that exceed normal variations (e.g., "noise") and cannot be explained by changes in conditions along the ECDA region. For example, a signal strength change that is greater than five times the instrument resolution might be considered an indication. When a clear determination cannot be made regarding indications, assumptions shall be conservative such that a potential indication is considered to be an indication unless additional investigation proves otherwise. Additionally, any changes to the criteria during the selecting ECDA indications shall be documented by the Integrity Engineer. The criteria shall then be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. These criteria shall be attached to <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u>. Selection criteria need not be the same for each ECDA region; however, if criteria are different, the different criteria shall be documented with justification for the differences.</li> <li>ECDA indications shall be selected by evaluating superimposed data from different ECDA tools, local environmental conditions, and ph</li></ul>

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 14 of 44

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Indications will be chosen using engineering analysis and judgment of signal relevance (e.g., CIS dips, alignment with DCVG, etc.).

- Locations where the indirect inspection survey results are not consistent shall be identified. Locations where one survey identifies an indication, but others do not, shall be evaluated to determine if the discrepancies can be explained by inherent tool capabilities or specific/localized pipeline features or conditions. If discrepancies cannot be explained, additional surveys or preliminary direct examinations shall be considered as follows:
  - Use additional complementary survey tools.
  - Use an approach to decrease the physical spacing of indirect inspection tool readings is followed when the presence of an indication is suspected.
  - Perform preliminary direct examinations to resolve discrepancies, provided the examinations identify a localized and isolated cause of the discrepancy.
  - If the above do not resolve the discrepancies, ECDA feasibility may be reassessed. In addition, additional direct examinations may be considered, or the location may be prioritized for immediate action required in the direct examination step.
- While ECDA is suited best for detecting external corrosion, it is capable of detecting other threats to the pipeline. Data that have been integrated from other sources shall be considered when identifying Indications. Other sources include operational or incident data, encroachment records, "one call" records, or data showing close proximity of foreign structures. If an indication from the ECDA process detects an anomaly where another integrity threat may exist, for example a location where third-party damage may have occurred, these locations shall also be considered for direct examination.

## Classification of Indication Severity

- The Integrity Engineer shall define and apply severity classification criteria for identified ECDA indications based on the likelihood of corrosion activity. The Integrity Engineer is responsible for ensuring that the criteria are documented. The final criteria shall be attached to <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01</u>. The final criteria shall also be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. The criteria must take into account the specific conditions along the pipeline during the survey. The following classifications are used at a minimum:
  - Severe Indications that are considered as having the highest likelihood of corrosion activity
  - **Moderate** Indications that are considered as having possible corrosion activity
  - **Minor** Indications that are considered inactive or have the lowest likelihood of corrosion activity
- More detailed criteria may be used if necessary. Table 3 provides general guidelines of indication classification. A weighted algorithm should be used to determine the indication classification. The algorithm applies a numerical value for each survey result and then factors are applied to these numerical values to provide more significance to the results deemed most likely to be associated with corrosion activity.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Table 3: General Guidelines for Indication Classifications				
Tool/Environment	Minor	Moderate	Severe	
CIS, aerated, moist soil	Small dips with on and off potentials above CP criteria	Medium dips or off potentials below CP criteria	Large dips or on and off potentials below CP criteria	
DCVG survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop; cathodic conditions at indication when CP is on and off	Medium voltage drop and/or neutral conditions at indication when CP is off	High voltage drop and/or anodic conditions when CP is on or off	
ACVG or Pearson survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop	Medium voltage drop	High voltage drop	
Soil resistivity	Mildly corrosive soil	Corrosive soil	Very corrosive soil	
ACCA survey	Small increase in attenuation per unit length	Moderate increase in attenuation per unit length	Large increase in attenuation per unit length	

Table 4 provides an example methodology for determining a numerical value score for each survey result. The determination criteria provided in Table 4 may be used as a default or altered by the Integrity Engineer, if necessary, to meet the needs of each individual project. Any alteration to the numerical weighting shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. This process also applies for cased piping; however, a different algorithm should be utilized based on a numerical score assigned to each survey result used to analyze the cased piping. The numerical weight applied to each variable is based on the confidence of the data collected and the increased likelihood of corrosion based on the survey finding. A higher calculated weighting factor (W), as shown in Equation 1, is a result of the severity of the individual indications based on the accuracy of the indirect tool. As such, indications that pose a greater risk coupled with a less accurate survey technique result in a more conservative and thus higher priority ranking for direct examination classifications.

Table 4: Criteria for Classifying Indications with Numerical H	Rankings
--	----------

Variable	Tool/	Minor	Moderate	Severe
variable	Environment	0.5 Score	1.5 Score	2.5 Score

MPLX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard Doc		d Document
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

A1	CIS, aerated, moist soil - CP meets protection criteria	Off doesn't meet -0.85 V criterion but meets 100 mV criterion	On meets -0.85 V criterion, Off doesn't meet -0.85 V criterion or 100 mV criterion	On & Off doesn't meet - 0.85 V criterion or 100 mV criterion, or reverse potential shift
B1	DCVG survey, similar conditions	<15% IR	16 to 35 % IR	>35 % IR
B2	CIS, aerated, moist soil – potential dips	<50 mV dip	50 – 100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""><td>&gt;100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""></criteria<></td></criteria<>	>100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""></criteria<>
B3	Wenner 4-pin	>10,000 Ohm- cm	1000-10000 Ohm-cm	<1000 Ohm-cm
B4	ACVG or Pearson survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop	Medium voltage drop	High voltage drop
B5	ACCA survey	Low signal loss	Medium signal loss	Large signal loss
B6	Carrier structure-to- electrolyte and casing-to- electrolyte potential test	Potential difference greater than 100 mV	Potential difference between 100 mV and 5 mV	Potential difference smaller than 5 mV

• An example weighting algorithm for combining indirect survey results and determining the severity classification is as follows:

# Equation 1: $W = 3A_1 + 2B_{(1 \text{ or } 4 \text{ or } 5)} + B_{(2 \text{ or } 3 \text{ or } 6)}$

### Where:

- $\circ$  A<sub>1</sub> = The numerical score of the CIS survey results (CP meets protection criteria) where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>1</sub> = The numerical score of the DCVG survey results where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>4</sub> = The numerical score of the ACVG or Pearson survey results where anomalies are identified

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

- $\circ$  B<sub>5</sub> = The numerical score of the ACCA survey results where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>2</sub> = The numerical score of the CIS survey results (potential dips) where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>3</sub> = The numerical score of the soil resistivity results where potentially corrosive environments are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>6</sub> = The numerical score of the carrier structure-to-electrolyte and casingto-electrolyte potential test
- Final classification of the ECDA indications based on the weighted algorithm could then be determined based on the ranges provided in Table 5.

Table 5: Indications Severity Classification Range			
Indication Severity Classification	Weighting Algorithm (W) Range		
Severe	$12 \le W \le 15$		
Moderate	$6 \le W < 12$		
Minor	$0.5 \le W \le 6$		

# Table 5. Indications Sevenity Classification D

- The classification ranges presented in Table 5 may be used as a default; however, the Integrity Engineer may consider the use of a different weighting algorithm based on the specific pipeline conditions. If altered, the indication severity classification algorithm shall be documented and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.
- The indication severity for identified indications shall be documented in OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05 by the Integrity Engineer. This information shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

## Additional **Requirements** for First Time Application

- When ECDA is applied for the first time, any location where discrepancies cannot be resolved shall be categorized as severe. In addition, the classification criteria shall be as stringent as possible.
- One or more of the following tasks shall be completed when applying ECDA on a pipeline segment for the first time:
  - Repeat a portion of each indirect inspection survey in the opposite direction and compare results.
  - Repeat a portion of the indirect inspection at a later date and compare for consistencies.
  - Decrease thresholds for each severity level in Table 5 for each tool, such that the severity of indications increases.
  - Provide additional training for indirect inspection personnel or use individuals with a higher level of qualification than the minimum levels specified in this procedure.
  - Provide additional oversight during inspections by having the Integrity Engineer onsite.
  - Utilize more than two indirect inspection tools. 0

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2	
	<ul> <li>Resurvey before</li> <li>For indirect survinspections for a</li> <li>Any other action accuracy and co herein. This is d first time application</li> </ul>	e excavations. Yey tool conflicts, even if resolved, redo in all tools. In that can be technically justified to provide infidence to the indirect step beyond what ocumented as an additional indirect inspe- ation.	ndirect de added is required ection activity for	
Direct Examination Purpose The purpose of the direct ex- indirect inspections pose the Sites selected for direct exa- so that a detailed inspection step includes the following Indication prioritizat Determining the req Scheduling excavati Excavation and data Corrosion damage a Remaining strength In-process evaluation		ination step is to determine which indicate ghest risk and to collect data to assess con- ation require exposure of the pipeline and d examination can be performed. The dire- vities: ed number of excavations for direct exami- llection corrosion data collection luation	ions from the rosion activity. I coating surface act examination	
Prioritization	<ul> <li>Each identified indicative suitable for monitoring factors: the likelihood of severity of prior corrosis         <ul> <li>Immediate – In considered as lil coupled with prior following may be</li> <li>Multiple indication inspection consider</li> <li>Indication significate shall also</li> <li>Scheduled – Sc considered as power when coupled with prior considered as power when coupled with prior considered when consid</li></ul></li></ul>	on shall be categorized as immediate, sche as defined in <u>NACE SP0502</u> . Prioritization of current or future corrosion activity plus on damage. Inmediate indications are those indications kely to have ongoing corrosion activity and for corrosion, pose an immediate threat to be considered when prioritizing indication severe indications in close proximity and ons that are classified as severe by more the on technique at roughly the same location ed immediate indications. Ins for which the likelihood of ongoing correct e determined and severe or moderate indications be considered immediate indications. The prior corrosion is suspected at or near to be considered immediate indications. The duled indications are those indications obtentially having ongoing corrosion activity with prior corrosion, do not pose an immediate ormal operating conditions. The following ormal operating conditions as scheduled:	eduled, or on is based on two the extent and which are id which, when the pipeline. The s as immediate: isolated an one indirect shall be prrosion activity cations where the indication which are ty but which, liate threat to the g shall be	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

each other and have not been prioritized as immediate indications shall be considered scheduled indications.

- Indications classified as moderate where significant or prior corrosion is likely at or near the indications shall also classified as scheduled indications.
- **Suitable for Monitoring** Indications that are suitable for monitoring are those which are considered minor or as having the lowest likelihood of ongoing or prior corrosion activity.
- The year-round conditions around a pipeline shall also be considered in setting the excavation priority criteria. This includes physical characteristics of each ECDA region that affect the performance and effectiveness of the CP system.
- The guidelines stated in Table 6 shall be used to prioritize the actions regarding the schedule of direct examination of indications from indirect inspections. All the results shall be documented in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05</u> with station number, classification, and prioritization. The prioritization of indication shall be completed by the Integrity Engineer and verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

In	nmediate Action Required	Scheduled Action Required	Suitable for Monitoring
•	Severe indication in close proximity regardless of prior corrosion. Individual severe indication or groups of moderate indications in regions of moderate prior corrosion. Individual severe indications where the likelihood of ongoing corrosion activity cannot be determined. Moderate indications in regions of severe prior corrosion. Any indication of a	<ul> <li>Required</li> <li>All remaining severe indications.</li> <li>All remaining moderate indications in regions of moderate prior corrosion.</li> <li>Groups of minor indications in regions of severe prior corrosion.</li> <li>Any indication of electrolytic contact between the casing and carrier pipe where the pipe potential is not meeting protection criteria.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Any indication of electrolytic contact between the casing and carrier pipe where the pipe potential is meeting protection criteria.</li> <li>All remaining indications.</li> </ul>
	casing and carrier pipe.		

# **Table 6: Prioritization Criteria for Indirect Inspection Indications**

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

•	For initial ECDA	
	applications, any location	
	at which unresolved	
	discrepancies have been	
	noted between inspection	
	results.	

- A similar prioritization approach may be used for cased piping; however, due to the difficulty in determining the condition of cased piping, an intermediate step should be applied. Guided Wave Ultrasonic Testing (GWUT) is an effective method to supplement the selected indirect inspection tools to better prioritize indications. As such, GWUT may be used to determine which indications will require direct examination. After indication classification has been performed, the following action shall be taken:
  - For each cased pipe ECDA region, all immediate indications shall be screened using GWUT.
  - For each cased pipe ECDA region, where no immediate indications are identified, at least one scheduled indication is screened using GWUT or a better suitable NDE technique, at the cased crossing with the highest likelihood of corrosion activity.
  - For each cased pipe ECDA region, where neither immediate nor scheduled indications are identified, at least one suitable for monitoring indication shall be screened using GWUT.
- The data from the GWUT shall be compared to the data from indirect inspection tools to prioritize which locations will require direct examinations. The following requirements shall be used to prioritize indications on cased piping:
  - Immediate priority indications include:
    - Any indication identified as a metallic short
    - GWUT indication greater than 50% wall loss
    - If applicable, any indication of a change in casing integrity including change in wax fill height or quality
  - Scheduled indications include: 0
    - Any indication of electrolytic contact between the casing and carrier pipe where the pipe potential is not meeting protection criteria
  - Suitable for Monitoring indications include:  $\cap$ 
    - Any indication of electrolytic contact between the casing and carrier pipe where the pipe potential is meeting protection criteria
    - Any indication where there is no evidence of a short and where corrosion activity is unlikely
- Indications in close proximity to a casing shall result in the casing being excavated unless additional testing can provide technical justification that the indication is not associated with the casing. Indications at casings that have been selected for direct examination shall be examined over the entire casing.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Determining the Required Number of Excavations for Direct Examination	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for selecting sites for direct examination. The number of direct examination sites shall meet the requirements described herein at a minimum; however additional sites may need to, and at times, should be considered. If previous excavations have been performed due to any reason for direct examination, the results of the direct examinations of those excavations should be taken into account to define the final total number of excavations required.</li> <li>The minimum required number of direct examination sites per ECDA region shall be based on the following guidelines: <ul> <li>All indications prioritized as immediate shall be examined.</li> <li>For each region that contains scheduled indications:</li> <li>At least one (1) direct examination shall be completed at the indication that poses the greatest risk, as determined in the classification of indication severity, for direct examination.</li> <li>If ECDA is being applied for the first time, one (1) additional direct examination shall be performed at the indication in a region, then the direct examination occurs at a suitable for monitoring indication.</li> </ul> </li> <li>If the results of a scheduled indication show corrosion that is deeper than 20% of the nominal wall thickness and that is deeper or larger than an immediate indication, at least one (1) additional direct examination shall be required at the next highest ranking and</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>If the above condition is met and ECDA is being applied for the first time, one (1) additional direct examination shall be performed at the second highest ranking prioritized indication</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>If no immediate or scheduled indications are identified in an ECDA region, at least one (1) direct examination shall be performed.</li> <li>If ECDA is being applied for the first time, one (1) additional direct examination shall be performed at the second highest ranking prioritized indication.</li> <li>If multiple ECDA regions contain only suitable for monitoring indications, one (1) direct examination shall be performed in the region identified as most likely for external corrosion activity based on the pre-assessment.</li> <li>If the above condition is met and ECDA is being applied for the first time, one (1) additional direct examination shall be performed at the second highest ranking prioritized indication.</li> </ul>

• If no indications are identified in an ECDA region, at least one (1) direct examination shall be performed.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

- If ECDA is being applied for the first time one (1) additional dig is completed.
- The direct examination sites shall be documented in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06</u> by the Integrity Engineer. The summary shall be submitted to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer with the transaction date noted. The summary shall be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

#### Scheduling

- The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for establishing a schedule for conducting direct examinations at all locations selected by the Integrity Engineer, based on the excavation priorities and the number of excavations to be conducted. The excavation schedule shall be developed within 30 days of completion of the indication prioritization. In setting a schedule, the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall consider issues such as the following:
  - Permitting
  - Right-of-way access
  - Time needed to ensure that adequate inspection equipment is available
  - Time needed to ensure that appropriate crews are available
  - The schedule may recognize that, for example, permitting in a public area has been applied for but not approved by the correspondent authority.
- Within 30 days of the completion of the indication prioritization, the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall organize a stakeholder's meeting for discussion and review the schedule, requirements, safety requirements, and safety awareness.
- Requirements for the excavation schedule are provided below (subject to inprocess evaluation and reprioritization) determined from the date of indication prioritization.
  - **Immediate** Excavations shall be conducted within one month of the indication prioritization.
  - **Scheduled** Excavations shall be conducted within three months of indication prioritization.
  - **Suitable for Monitoring** Excavations shall be conducted within six months of indication prioritization.

## Excavations and Data Collection

- A qualified representative of MPLX shall be present during all excavations. A qualified representative includes the Integrity Engineer, Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, or an individual deemed acceptable by any of those individuals. The representative shall be responsible for ensuring all work is performed as per MPLX procedures during excavations and data collection. Care shall be taken during the excavation to avoid damaging the pipeline coating and removing any corrosion or protective products that are critical to the overall analysis.
- The Inspector (per Qualifications section) is responsible for data collection during the direct examinations. Data collected during each direct examination shall be

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2
	<ul> <li>documented using OPS-STT approved by the Integrity Erexamination. Relevant data I following guidelines shall be  <ul> <li>The location and size recorded. The length recorded. The length feet at a minimum.</li> <li>A minimum of two (asite. One of the samp depth (i.e., to be obta while the other shall preferably near the at investigation.</li> <li>The soil resistivity performance where the other shall preferably near the at a minimum.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	2-0027-FOR-06. Data collected shagineer. One form shall be completisted on the form shall be collected adhered to: e adhered to: e of the excavation site shall be ided of the exposed pipe shall be phys of the excavations for direct exam 2) soil samples shall be collected at oles shall be representative of the r ined from the ditch wall perpendi be collected immediately adjacent nomaly(s) that poses the greatest r erpendicular to the pipe shall be m d if resistivity measurements were ctions or if soil conditions have ch eason change).	all be verified and ted per direct d. In addition, the entified and ically measured and nination shall be 10 at each excavation native soil at pipe cular to the pipe), t to the pipe and isk under neasured using the e not collected nanged significantly
Coating Damage and External Metal Loss Data Collection	<ul> <li>Examination of the coating spipeline is exposed and the ordirect examination shall be of following shall be adhered to order or order or order to generate and sufficient or order to generate and sufficient or order to generate and sufficient or order to generate and for coating shall be estimperformed. The coating the steel beneath the plastic bags identified gathering the sample repaired.</li> <li>No coating sample shat the steel beneath the plastic bags identified gathering the sample repaired.</li> <li>If liquid or moisture shall be measured; he deionized water shall or order to generate and order to generate and sufficient or order to generate and sufficient order to generate a determine order to generate and sufficient order to generate and sufficient order to generate and sufficient order to generate a determine order to generate a determine order to generate a determine order to generate and sufficient order to generate a determine order to generate</li></ul>	surface shall begin as soon as poss litch is made safe to enter. Data co locumented using <u>OPS-STD-0027</u> o during coating and pipe surface acts are present on the pipe surface d chemical testing for pH and spe- des). n shall be recorded. The coating c ations as blistering and lack of adl coating, loosely adhered coating, nated. Viable qualitative adhesion ing shall also be inspected for the ness. All coating conditions, obser- be documented. all be obtained carefully using a cl coating. Coating samples shall be d by dig location, sample location s. All areas where coating samples mples will be needed if the coating e pipe surface. is present on the pipe surface, the owever, in case of no liquid or mo l be used to measure the pH on the g damage or coating holiday, the operform pipe wall examination for Attention shall be paid to correlat	ible after the ollected during each <u>-FOR-06</u> . The examination: e, the products shall cific ions (iron, ondition evaluation hesion. The area of and disbonded tests shall be presence of holidays rvations, and ean knife to expose placed in sealed , date, and person s were taken shall be ng is intact and well pH of the liquid disture, addition of e pipe surface. coating shall be corrosion or e any possible
This copy was print	red on 10/15/2024	Page	24 of 44

MPLX Gatheri	ng & Processing		Gathering & Processing Sta	andard Document
<b>External Corr</b>	osion Direct Ass	essment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-00	027 Rev No: 2
	<ul> <li>Photog pipe ex</li> <li>The In accord Engine</li> </ul>	relationship between observations shall be Structure-to-electrol and polarized potent pipe at both the upst Pipe wall thickness r o'clock) and at upstr obtain reliable and a • If the ends ar readings shal The presence of any metal loss shall be cl collection for extern Integrity Manageme the external metal lo shall be recorded. Th this condition is four graphs of examination sposed in good condit tegrity Engineer shall ance with the required er shall also record th	a coating and pipeline surface e documented. yte potentials (both potential ial) shall be taken at grade ar ream and downstream ends of measurements, at all four qua ream and downstream ends, s ctual wall thickness. re underneath well adhered co l be made at the indication lo external metal loss shall be of haracterized as general, local al metal loss shall be in accor- nt Plan. At a minimum, the la ss, as defined in the Remedia he Integrity Engineer shall be nd. findings shall be collected. The ion and/or free of anomalies. verify that the number of dig d number of direct examinati- ne final date of completion of	e damages. Any such with CP current applied ad above and below the of the excavation. drants (3, 6, 9, and 12 hall be measured to bating, wall thickness boation. documented. The external ized, or pitting. Data rdance with the MPLX ength, width, and depth of al Actions Procedure, e immediately notified if This includes finding the gs performed is in ons. The Integrity T the direct examinations.
Remaining Strength Evaluation	Where externation completed. The remaining street completed in the accordance with Team Lead or of the pipeline	al metal loss anomalie ne Integrity Engineer s ength evaluation and o response to the remain ith the MPLX Integrit Engineer determines	es are found, a remaining stre shall classify the need for ren observed conditions. All rema- ning strength and observed co y Management Plan. The Re- any necessary additional act	ngth calculation shall be nedial action based on the edial actions are to be onditions and in gional Corrosion Control ions to assess the integrity
In Process Evaluation	<ul> <li>The In examination of the examination of t</li></ul>	tegrity Engineer shall nation data, and remain indication severity are ed with respect to the and characterize the estion activity, when for lication severity class y identified during the stinspection data, the stified. Likewise, if the indicated by the indirect lications be reclassified	evaluate the indirect inspect ining strength analyses to eva- id excavation prioritization. The effectiveness of each indirect extent of corrosion activity wound, at each excavation shall ification. If the external meta e direct examination is worse criteria shall be modified, and e external metal loss due to con- et inspection data, the criteria ed.	ion data, direct aluate the criteria used to The data shall also be t inspection survey to hen found. be compared relative to 1 loss due to corrosion than indicated by the ad the indications shall be prosion activity is less a may be modified, and
This copy	was printed on 1	0/15/2024		Page 25 of 44
sed to Imaging: 4/	/1/2025 2:07:38 PM			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

	Table 7: Responses to Evaluation of Classification Criteria				
	Finding	Change to Severity Criteria			
ere	Ongoing corrosion activity and immediate threat	None			
	Possible ongoing corrosion activity but not an immediate threat	May relax and reclassify			
Sev	No ongoing corrosion and not an immediate threat	May relax and reclassify			
	No coating fault or metal loss	Re-evaluate inspection tool sensitivity			
	Ongoing corrosion activity	Must revise and reclassify			
rate	Possible ongoing corrosion activity	None			
odeı	No ongoing corrosion activity	May relax and reclassify			
Md	No coating fault or metal loss	Re-evaluate inspection tool sensitivity			
	Ongoing corrosion activity	Must revise and reclassify			
nor	Possible ongoing corrosion activity	Must revise and reclassify			
Ш	No ongoing corrosion activity	None			
	No coating fault or metal loss	None			
u	Ongoing corrosion activity	Must re-evaluate ECDA feasibility; consider alternative assessment methods, or similar			
Vo Indicatio	Possible ongoing corrosion activity	May re-evaluate ECDA feasibility and/or choice of indirect inspection tools; consider alternative assessment methods, or similar			
	No ongoing corrosion activity	None			
	No coating fault or metal loss	None			

In addition, the extent and severity of existing corrosion activity relative to the • criteria used for excavation prioritization shall be compared. Similar to the classification criteria, if corrosion activity is more or less extensive than indicated by the criteria used to prioritize examinations, modification may be required. If the prioritization criteria are changed, the indication shall be reprioritized. When determining reprioritization, it must be noted that corrosion activity may not have associated metal loss. Corrosion activity includes areas of the pipe surface that are corroding yet may not have measurable metal loss.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

	Table 8: Responses to Evaluation of Excavation Priority Criteria				
	Initial Finding	Change to Excavation Priority Criteria			
ediate	Ongoing corrosion activity and immediate threat	None			
	Possible ongoing corrosion activity but not an immediate threat	May relax and reprioritize			
Imm	No ongoing corrosion and not an immediate threat	May relax and reprioritize			
	No coating fault or metal loss	Re-evaluate inspection tool sensitivity			
	Ongoing corrosion activity	Must revise and reprioritize			
eduled	Possible ongoing corrosion activity but not an immediate threat	None			
Sch	No ongoing corrosion activity	May relax and reprioritize			
	No coating fault or metal loss	Re-evaluate inspection tool sensitivity			
Monitored	Ongoing corrosion activity and immediate threat	Must revise and reprioritize			
	Possible ongoing corrosion activity but not an immediate threat	Must revise and reprioritize			
	No ongoing corrosion and not an immediate threat	None			
	No coating fault or metal loss	None			
	Ongoing corrosion activity and immediate threat	Must re-evaluate ECDA feasibility; consider alternative assessment methods, or similar			
) Indication	Possible ongoing corrosion activity but not an immediate threat	May re-evaluate ECDA feasibility and/or choice of indirect inspection tools; consider alternative assessment methods, or similar			
Z	No ongoing corrosion and not an immediate threat	None			
	No coating fault or metal loss	None			
Any	Other defects (SCC, mechanical damage)	Additional reporting and assessments			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for reclassifying and reprioritizing any indications. All changes shall be technically justified and documented. If conditions are observed for which ECDA is not designed to mitigate, a determination shall be made if ECDA is an applicable integrity assessment method for the pipeline segment. All in-process evaluation activities shall be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>Reclassification and reprioritization shall meet the following requirements:         <ul> <li>Indications that were originally in the immediate category may be moved no lower than the scheduled category.</li> <li>Indications that were originally in the scheduled category may be moved no lower than the suitable for monitoring category.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer must verify and approve any reclassification and/or reprioritization.</li> </ul>
Additional Consideration s for First Time Application	<ul> <li>One or more of the following tasks shall be completed when applying ECDA on a pipeline segment for the first time: <ul> <li>Resurvey each ECDA region after immediate indications are repaired to determine if other indications were being masked.</li> <li>Perform direct examinations at a location with possible third-party damage.</li> <li>Perform additional NDE (magnetic particle examination, x-ray, or scanning UT) at direct examinations.</li> <li>Extend the length of the pipe under direct examination.</li> </ul> </li> <li>During reclassification or reprioritization per the In Process Evaluation section, indications shall not be downgraded during first time applications.</li> </ul>
Post- Assessment	
Purpose	<ul> <li>The purpose of the post-assessment is to define re-assessment intervals, determine the need to reprioritize indications, and assess the effectiveness of the ECDA process. The post-assessment step includes the following activities:         <ul> <li>Root-cause analysis</li> <li>Determining mitigation</li> <li>Reprioritization</li> <li>Remaining life calculations</li> <li>Definition of re-assessment intervals</li> <li>Assessment of ECDA effectiveness</li> <li>Feedback for continuous improvement</li> </ul> </li> <li>Upon completion of the project, the Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for compiling and submitting to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer a final report, summarizing all phases of the project. The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall also include all supporting documentation.</li> <li>Upon receipt of the report, the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or</li> </ul>

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 28 of 44

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027 Rev No	
MPLX Gathering External Corrosi Root Cause Analysis	<ul> <li>&amp; Processing</li> <li>on Direct Assessment</li> <li>Engineer shall review the resolved issues. Any actio plan and the report shall b Lead or Engineer for appr</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer sha analysis is performed to in metal loss observed. Signi 20 percent nominal wall th but is not limited to, insuf previously identified), and</li> <li>The results from the direct pipe surface, corrosion proto-electrolyte potentials, p direct root cause.</li> <li>The analysis shall include         <ul> <li>Coating Damage coating damage, in associated with ins system.</li> <li>Cathodic Protection CP history in the ashielding or stray of the corrosion observed corrosion</li> <li>Corrosion Charaet the characteristics</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	Gathering & Processing Standard DocumentDoc Number: OPS-STD-0027Rev Noreport and create an action plan for addressing any un plans shall be included in the final report. This actie submitted to the Regional Corrosion Control Teamoval.all be responsible for ensuring that a direct root causeevestigate all corrosion activity or significant externaficant metal loss includes any anomaly with greater thickness loss. A direct root cause analysis may includeficient CP, stray currents or electrical interference (nol shielding of CP due to disbonded coatings.t examinations (i.e., visual inspection of coating andoduct analysis, soil resistivity measurements, structureH, etc.) shall be aligned and used to help determine thecluding discussion regarding whether the damage istallation or if it is a result of a failure of the coatingto Ineffectiveness – The analysis may discuss whytin this area. The analysis also includes a discussionrea, and the reasons for the presence of CP currentcurrents.n Mechanism(s) – The analysis identifies the mainon, when found, in the area including soil chemistry,e microbes, etc. The analysis identifies the mainon, when found, in the area including soil chemistry,e microbes, etc. The analysis also determines if theappears to be active or historic.cteristics at Other Locations – The analysis discussof other locations where similar corrosion activity m	
	<ul> <li>be found.</li> <li>Mitigative Measu mitigate corrosion</li> <li>If a direct root cause analy (e.g., shielding due to dist alternative methods of add</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer sha within the pipeline segme that other indications exist evaluated. The Integrity E The analysis shall be verif Team Lead or Engineer.</li> </ul>	res – The analysis identifies potential measures to activity at the particular location. vsis uncovers a cause for which ECDA is not well supponded coating), the Integrity Engineer shall consider lressing the integrity of the pipeline segment. all be responsible for identifying all other indications int where similar conditions may exist. If it is determine t with similar conditions, these indications shall be ngineer shall document the direct root cause analysis fied and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control	
Determining Mitigation	• After identifying the direct actions must be established	t root causes of the discovered conditions, mitigative d to preclude future external corrosion. The Integrity	

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

Engineer shall prepare a list of mitigative actions as part of the post-assessment step. Remedial actions shall be completed in accordance with the MPLX Integrity Management Plan.

The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall document what remedial actions are completed including when the action items are completed.

**Reclassificatio** n and **Reprioritizati** on

- Calculation Methodology
  - The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible to ensuring that remaining life 0 calculations are conducted when corrosion damage is found on the pipeline. If no corrosion damage is found, the remaining life of the pipeline is taken as that of a new pipeline. The maximum remaining flaw size at all scheduled indications is taken as the same as the anomaly that poses the greatest risk in all locations that have been excavated and is used in determining remaining life.
  - The remaining life is established by selecting the shortest value between 0 "Time-to-Leak" (TL) and "Time-to-Failure" (TF) calculations. The relevant equations for TF and TL are:

Equations 2 and 3:  

$$TF = C \times SM \frac{t}{GR}$$
  $TL = \frac{0.8 \cdot t - d}{GR}$ 

Where:

- C = Calibration Factor = 0.85 (dimensionless)
- TF = Time until Failure (years) .
- TL= Time until Leak (years) (grown to a maximum 80% deep defect representing an immediate condition)
- SMYS = Specified Minimum Yield Strength (PSI) .
- IDP = Internal Design Pressure (PSI)
- MOP = Maximum Operating Pressure (PSI) of the pipeline . segment
- Pburst = Predicted Burst Pressure (PSIG) using B31G modified . method
- MPR = MOP Ratio = MOP/YP
- . RPR = Rupture Pressure Ratio = Pburst/YP
- SM = Safety Margin = RPR MPR.
- t = Nominal Wall Thickness (inches)
- d = Corrosion depth (inches)
- OD = Outside Diameter (inches)
- GR = Growth Rate (inches per year)
- YP = Yield Pressure (pressure to produce stress equal to 100%) SMYS)
- **External Corrosion Rate Determination** 
  - The external corrosion growth rate is an essential variable needed for the 0 calculation of the remaining life of a pipeline segment. Actual corrosion rates are difficult to predict or to measure, since the actual conditions at all

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard	1 Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2
	<ul> <li>locations where corr rate used in the remain data applicable to the collected, the follow</li> <li>Method 1 – H pipelines witt grade) install drainage). But used to estim</li> <li>Method 2 – H used to estabt anomalies bat of exposure (</li> <li>Method 3 – H available, and methods, ind relied upon.</li> </ul>	osion may be occurring are not kn aining life calculation is based on a e ECDA region if available. If actu- ing methods shall be considered: Historical corrosion growth rates ca- h similar characteristics (coating, 0 led in similar environments (terrain aried corrosion coupon data if avai- hate corrosion rates. Linear growth rates (or alternative lish the annual corrosion growth of sed on the peak metal loss depth d (years since installation). If no known corrosion growth rate d it cannot be approximated by any ustry published corrosion growth is	own. The growth actual corrosion rate al data cannot be an be utilized for CP, wall thickness, n, soil type, lable can also be modeling) can be f external corrosion livided by the years information is y of the above three rate data can be
Definition of Re- Assessment Interval	<ul> <li>The re-assessment interval smonths.</li> <li>Any indications that are pride before the next re-assessment.</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall the direct examinations indises shorter interval. The re-asses <u>0027-FOR-07</u>. The Regional review and approve the final Control Team Lead or Engine the compliance group, the hemaintenance group, and the maintenance group, and the second sec</li></ul>	shall be determined by <u>IMP 06</u> , but pritized as scheduled for evaluation at interval. I evaluate whether or not condition cate a need to re-assess the pipelin ssment interval shall be document al Corrosion Control Team Lead or I re-assessment interval. The Region neer must verify communication is ealth and safety group, the integrit corrosion group.	t shall not exceed 68 n shall be addressed s discovered during e segment at a ed in <u>OPS-STD-</u> Engineer shall onal Corrosion made to operations, y group, the
ECDA Effectiveness	<ul> <li>Process Validation         <ul> <li>Additional process v post-assessment. Wh separately, the validations as all entime timeframe.</li> <li>At least one (1) additione be performed at a rational direct process validation if examinations shall by which contains a schuscheduled indication detected. Additional</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	validation excavations shall be required to a from these excavations we ation excavations shall be planned excavations will likely occur within the planned direct examination in the pipe ndom location to validate the process examination, for a total of two, sharpplying ECDA for the first time. The performed at randomly selected neduled indication (or monitored in the sexist) and one in an area where revalidation direct examinations share the process of the sexist) and set of the sexist o	uired as part of the ill be analyzed as part of the direct n the same peline segment shall ess. all be required for The direct locations, one of adication if no no indication was all also be
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024 Page 31 of 44		31 of 44	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

documented in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06</u>. The condition observed at this location shall be compared to indications of the same severity level. If conditions are or greater risk than determined during the ECDA process, the validation process shall be re-evaluated and repeated. The reason(s) for the discrepancy shall be established. If the process cannot be validated using this process, then ECDA may be unfeasible to evaluate the impact of external corrosion on the integrity of the pipeline segment.

- Long-Term Effectiveness
  - ECDA is a continuous improvement process. As such, criteria shall be used to determine its long-term effectiveness. Performance measures shall include the following:
    - Repeatability and Consistency Tracking the reliability and repeatability of the results and/or the number of reclassifications and reprioritizations
    - Application Tracking the number of excavations, total miles inspected, and/or number of miles subjected to indirect inspection
    - ECDA Results
      - Tracking and comparing the frequency with which anomalies in the immediate and scheduled categories occur
      - Tracking the extent and severity of corrosion for each ECDA region
      - Tracking how frequently anomalies occur in a given region, documenting both time and location of each anomaly measured
      - Tracking the number of repairs completed at each prioritization level of indication
      - Tracking the number of failures
  - In addition, absolute criteria may be established to assess ECDA effectiveness. For example, a minimum performance requirement, such as no leak or rupture before the next re-assessment interval may be used. All identified locations of any corrosion activity must be addressed.
  - The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for ensuring that criteria are used to evaluate ECDA effectiveness. If the evaluation does not show improvement between applications, measures shall be taken to re-evaluate the ECDA application process or consider alternative methods. The completion and outcome of the validation study and any specific comments shall be documented in the final report. The process validation shall be completed by the Integrity Engineer, and the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall review the findings.

#### Feedback and Continuous Improvement

• The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for ensuring that actions are taken to continuously improve the application of the ECDA process through a timely and quality-oriented feedback. The following types of feedback shall be considered:

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027 Rev No: 2	
	<ul> <li>Identification and cla</li> <li>Data collection meth</li> <li>Remaining strength</li> <li>Direct root cause and</li> <li>Mitigation</li> <li>In-process evaluation</li> <li>Additional direct exa</li> <li>Additional criteria for</li> <li>Proper scheduling ar</li> <li>ensuring the long-ter</li> <li>Lessons learned</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall continuous comments for ea approved by the Regional C feedback or continuous impri Integrity Engineer as part of</li> <li>The Regional Corrosion Contracking changes to this stan Corrosion Control Team Leaproject teams of the changes responsibility of the Regional team members of changes to the stan contact of the changes to the changes team members of changes to the changes to the changes team members of changes team team members of changes team team team team team team team team</li></ul>	assification of indirect inspection results tods and effectiveness evaluation alysis n amination for process validation or assessing the ECDA effectiveness ad monitoring of the re-assessment intervals for rm effectiveness of the ECDA process be responsible for summarizing feedback and ach project. These findings shall be verified and orrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. All rovement suggestions shall be documented by the the final report. ntrol Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for idard as a result of the feedback. The Regional ad or Engineer shall be responsible for informing is between projects. During projects, it is the al Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer to inform o the ECDA process.	$\mathbf{r}$ as the current annihold version of the document is being used
Additional Consideration s for First Time Application Survey Records	<ul> <li>These requirements shall include th</li> <li>Comparing the results of thi similar conditions.</li> </ul>	e following for the post-assessment step: s ECDA to other pipeline segments that operate under	dociment mist er
Survey Record Keeping	In accordance with this standard, the documenting forms, reports, and sup process. Approval for the use of this Management Plan. This documenta Control Team Lead or Engineer for following each of the four steps of the forms and reports, the Regional Con- responsible for storing all document prior to storage. All documentation folder located on the Logistics network Below is a summary of the data, for the process. • Project • ECDA Process Form • To act as a su • To be used for	e Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for pporting data. This includes the approval of the ECDA s ECDA process is located in the MPLX Integrity tion shall be submitted to the Regional Corrosion verification and approval. This shall be completed the ECDA process. Following the verification of all rrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be tation. Documentation shall have required signatures for an ECDA project shall be stored in the Documents ork drive and maintained for the life of the asset. rms, and reports that are to be documented throughout	mies should be used with caution The user of this
Page 33 of 44		inted ro	
used to Imaging: 4/1/.	2025 2:07:38 PM		p.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

process

- This form also acts a checklist for the process to ensure all activities are completed and documented
- Pre-Assessment
  - ECDA Data Element Form (<u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02</u>)
  - ECDA/SCCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection Form (<u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03</u>)
  - ECDA Regional Analysis Form (<u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04</u>)
  - Indirect Inspection Plan
  - Pre-assessment data collected
    - Includes assumptions made about data elements
      - Technical justification used during tool selection
  - Documentation of justification for ECDA feasibility
- Indirect Inspection
  - Raw survey data
  - Aligned survey data
  - ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary Form (<u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05</u>)
    - Documentation of criteria used with supporting justification
- Direct Examination
  - ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary Form, Prioritization column (<u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05</u>)
    - Documentation of criteria used with supporting justification
  - Excavation summary
  - Field data collected
  - Remaining strength
  - Documented in-process evaluation
    - Includes technical justification
  - Post-Assessment
    - Final Report
      - Summary of pre-assessment
      - Summary of indirect inspection
      - Summary of direct examination
      - Root cause analysis
      - Mitigation
      - Reprioritization
      - Remaining life
      - Re-Assessment interval
      - ECDA effectiveness
      - Feedback for continuous improvement
      - Recommendations

Definitions

Active

(1) A state of a metal surface that is corroding without significant influence of reaction product; (2) the negative direction of electrode potential.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing

External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2
Alternating Current Current Attenuation (ACCA) Survey	A method of measuring the overall co coating on a pipeline based on the app electromagnetic field propagation the data collected may include depth, coa conductance, anomaly location, and a	ndition of the blication of the blicatio
Alternating Current Voltage Gradient (ACVG) Survey	A method of measuring the change in the soil along and around a pipeline to holidays and characterize corrosion ac	leakage current in locate coating ctivity.
Anomaly	Any deviation from nominal condition wall of a pipe, its coating, or the elect conditions around the pipe.	ns in the external
Cathodic Protection	A technique to reduce the corrosion ra surface by making that surface the cat electrochemical cell.	ate of a metal hode of an Ender State transformation trans
Classification	The process of estimating the likeliho activity at an indirect inspection indic year-round conditions.	od of corrosion ation under typical
Close Interval Survey (CIS)	A method of measuring the potential and earth at regular intervals along the	between the pipe spipeline.
Corrosion	The deterioration of a material, usuall results from a chemical or electrocher its environment.	y a metal, that nical reaction with
Corrosion Activity	A state in which corrosion is active ar that is sufficient to reduce the pressure of a pipe during the pipeline design lit	ad ongoing at a rate e-carrying capacity fe.
Defect	An anomaly in the pipe wall that reduce carrying capacity of the pipe.	ces the pressure-
Desired Data	A data element that is recommended t account for the feasibility assessment, ECDA regions, or analysis of results.	to be taken into designation of
Direct Current Voltage Gradient (DCVG) Survey	A method of measuring the change in gradient in the soil along and around a coating holidays and characterize corr	electrical voltage a pipeline to locate pipeline to social voltage a pipeline to locate pipeline to social voltage a pipeline to soc
Direct Examination This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Inspections and measurements made of Page 2	on the pipe surface

Gathering & Processing Standard Document

.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027Rev No: 2
	at excavations as part of ECDA.
Disbonded Coating	Any loss of adhesion between the protective coating and a pipe surface as a result of adhesive failure, chemical attack, mechanical damage, hydrogen concentrations, etc. Disbonded coating may or may not be associated with a coating holiday. See also Cathodic Disbondment.
ECDA Region	A section or sections of a pipeline segment that have similar physical characteristics, corrosion histories, expected future corrosion conditions, and in which the same indirect inspection tools are used.
Electrolyte	A chemical substance containing ions that migrate in an electric field. For the purposes of this standard, electrolyte refers to the soil or liquid adjacent to and in contact with a buried or submerged metallic piping system, including the moisture and other chemicals contained therein.
External Corrosion Direct Assessment (ECDA)	A four-step process that combines pre-assessment, indirect inspection, direct examination, and post- assessment to evaluate the effect of external corrosion on the integrity of a pipeline.
Fault	Any anomaly in the coating, including disbonded areas and holidays.
Geographic Information System (GIS)	A system including data, hardware, software, and personnel, for managing information connected with geographic locations.
High Consequence Area (HCA)	Location along the pipeline that meets the characteristics specified by $\underline{IMP 02}$ i.e., location where a pipeline release might have a significant adverse effect on a particularly sensitive area, a commercial waterway, or a high population or other populated area.
Holiday	A discontinuity in a protective coating that exposes unprotected surface to the environment.
Immediate Indication	An indication that requires remediation or repair in a relatively short time span.
Indication	Any deviation from the norm as measured by an indirect inspection tool.
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 36 of 44

\_\_\_\_

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027Rev No: 2
Indirect Inspection	Equipment and practices used to take measurements at ground surface above or near a pipeline to locate or characterize corrosion activity, coating holidays, or other anomalies.
In-Line Inspection (ILI)	The inspection of a pipeline from the interior of the pipe using an in-line inspection tool. The tools used to conduct ILI are known as pigs or smart pigs.
Maximum Allowable Operating Pressure (MAOP)	The maximum internal pressure permitted during the operation of a pipeline.
Mechanical Damage	Any of a number of types of anomalies in pipe, including dents, gouges, and metal loss, caused by the application of an external force.
Microbiologically Influenced Corrosion (MIC)	Metal corrosion or deterioration that results from metabolic activity of microorganisms.
Monitored Indication	An indication that is less significant than a scheduled indication and that does not need to be addressed or require remediation or repair before the next scheduled re-assessment of a pipeline segment.
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
Nondestructive Evaluation (NDE)	An inspection technique that does not damage the item being examined.
Pipeline Segment	A portion of a pipeline that is (to be) assessed using ECDA. A segment may consist of one or more ECDA regions.
Polarization	The change from the corrosion potential as a result of current flow across the electrode/electrolyte interface.
Prioritization	The process of estimating the need to perform a direct examination at each indirect inspection indication based on current corrosion activity plus the extent and severity of prior corrosion. The three levels of priority are immediate, scheduled, and suitable for monitoring, in this order.
Region	See ECDA Region.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 37 of 44

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027Rev No: 2
	Remediation	As used in this standard, remediation refers to corrective actions taken to mitigate deficiencies in the corrosion protection system.
	Required Data	A data element that must be obtained in order to perform ECDA.
	Root Cause Analysis	A family of processes implemented to determine the primary cause of an event. These processes all seek to examine a cause-and-effect relationship through the organization and analysis of data.
	Scheduled Indication	An indication that is less significant than an immediate indication, but which is to be addressed before the next scheduled re-assessment of a pipeline segment.
	Shielding	(1) Protecting; protective cover against mechanical damage; (2) preventing or diverting cathodic protection current from its natural path.
	Sound Engineering Practice	Reasoning exhibited or based on thorough knowledge and experience, logically valid, and having technically correct premises that demonstrate good judgment or sense in the application of science.
	Stray Current	Current flowing through paths other than the intended circuit.
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	The voltage difference between a metallic structure and reference electrode in contact with a shared electrolyte.
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from t use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-F</u>	his Standard shall be processed and documented through OR-01.
Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01	ECDA Process Form

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 38 of 44
Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
<b>External Corrosion Direct Assessment</b>		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027Rev No: 2	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02	ECDA Data Element Form	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03	ECDA/SCCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection Form	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04	ECDA Regional Analysis Form	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05	ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary Form	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06	ECDA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection Form	
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-07	ECDA Re-Assessment Interval Form	
References	Number	Description	
	49 CFR Part 192	Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline	
	49 CFR Part 195	Transportation of Hazardous Liquids by Pipeline	
	IMP 02	High Consequence Area Identification Integrity Management Procedure	
	IMP 06	Integrity Assessment Integrity Management Procedure	
	NACE SP0502	Pipeline External Corrosion Direct Assessment Methodology	
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard	
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program	
	TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedure	

RecordsDo not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this<br/>document will be retained indefinitely.

#### **Revision History**

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
External Corrosion Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Edited Sections 5.6.1, 6.2.4, 6.5.2, 8.5, 8.6.2.3 & Tables 2, 3, 4, 8	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	7/28/2022
2	Reformatted to G&P Standard Template	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023



Figure 1: ECDA Pre-Assessment Step Flow Chart



**Figure 2: ECDA Indirect Inspection Step Flow Chart** 

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Appendix A – ECDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2



**Figure 3: ECDA Direct Examination Step Flow Chart** 

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Appendix A – ECDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0027	Rev No: 2



Figure 4: ECDA Post-Assessment Step Flow Chart

Page 44 of 44

MPIV	ECDA Process	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-01
		Pag	e 1 of 6
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

#### ECDA Project Information

ECDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

This form is to be used as a supplement to the Integrity Assessment Form (LIM030-F1). When conducting an ECDA Project both forms must be completed. The form includes a section for each step of the ECDA process. Each section contains a list of activities for each step, a list of required forms and documentation, a section to enter what criteria has been used for a first-time application project, and a verification section for the responsible individuals.

Form Sections:

- 1. Pre-Assessment Step
- 2. Indirect Inspection Step
- 3. Direct Examination Step
- 4. Post-Assessment Step

	ECDA Process	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-01
•	FORM	Pag DATE: 4/1/2021	e 2 of 6 Rev: 0

1) Pre-Assessment Step	
Step Activities	
<ul> <li>The Pre-Assessment Step includes the following activities:</li> <li>Data collection</li> <li>Assessment of ECDA feasibility</li> <li>Selection of indirect inspection tools</li> <li>Identification of ECDA regions</li> <li>Development of an Indirect Inspection Plan</li> </ul>	
Forms and Documentation	
The Pre-Assessment Step Requires the following documentation: <ul> <li>Relevant data collected</li> <li>ECDA Data Elements Form</li> <li>Technical justification for ECDA feasibility</li> <li>Indirect Inspection Tool Selection Form with attached justification</li> <li>ECDA Region Identification Form</li> <li>Indirect Inspection Plan</li> </ul> First Time Application What additional criteria were applied for the first time application? (If not	first application, N/A)
Verification and Approval	
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.	
Signature:	Date:
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified.	1
Signature:	Date:

MPI	ECDA Process	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-01
		Pag	je 3 of 6
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

2) Indirect Inspection Step	
Step Activities	
<ul> <li>The Indirect Inspection Step includes the following activities:</li> <li>Conducting the indirect inspections</li> <li>Data alignment</li> <li>Identification of indications</li> <li>Classification of indication severity</li> </ul>	
Forms and Documentation	
<ul> <li>The Indirect Inspection Step Requires the following documentation:</li> <li>Indirect inspection survey data</li> <li>Aligned data</li> <li>Criteria for identify indications</li> <li>Criteria for classifying indications</li> <li>Indication Severity Classification Form (except for Prioritization colu</li> <li>First Time Application</li> <li>What additional criteria were applied for the first time application? (If not supplication)</li> </ul>	mn) ot first application, N/A)
Verification and Approval	
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.	
Date:	
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer : Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified.	
Signature:	Date:

MPLy	ECDA Process	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-01	
	FORM	Page 4 of 6           DATE:         Rev:           4/1/2021         0	

# 3) Direct Examination Step Step Activities The Direct Examination Step includes the following activities: Indication prioritization · Determining the required number of excavation for direct examination Scheduling excavations · Excavation and data collection · Corrosion damage and corrosion data collection Remaining strength evaluation · In-process evaluation Forms and Documentation The Direct Examination Step Requires the following documentation: □ Indication Severity Classification Form (Prioritization column) Criteria for indication prioritization Excavation Summary Form Excavation Data Collection Form(s) Remaining Strength/Remaining Life Form □ In-process evaluation First Time Application What additional criteria were applied for the first time application? (If not first application, N/A) Verification and Approval Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented. Signature: Date: Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer : Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified. Signature: Date:

	ECDA Process	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-01	
		Pac	Page 5 of 6	
®	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev:	
4) Post-Assess	sment Step			
Step Activities				
The Post-Assessmen	t Step includes the following activities:			
Root-cause ana	alysis			
Determining m	itigation			
Reprioritization				
Remaining life	calculations			
Definition of re	-assessment intervals			
Assessment of	ECDA effectiveness			
Feedback for co	ontinuous improvement			
Forms and Docur	mentation			
The Post-Assessmen	t Step Requires the following documentation	on, will are included in a	a single final	
report:				
Root cause and	alysis conclusions			
<ul> <li>Mitigative activ</li> </ul>	vities			
Reprioritization	justification			
Remaining Street	ength/Remaining Life Form			
Define re-asses	ssment interval			
□ ECDA effective	ness			
Feedback				
Recommendation	ions			
□ Summary of ea	ach ECDA step			

What additional criteria were applied for the first time application? (If not first application, N/A)

Date:

Verification and Approval

Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented

Signature:

Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer

MPL	ECDA Process	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-01
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R		Page 6 of 6	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

4) Post-Assessment Step			
Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified. Approval of Re-Assessment Interval.			
Signature:	Date:		

MPLX	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 1 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

ECDA Project Information
ECDA Project Identification:
Pipeline Identification:
Segment Identification:

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Pipe Related					
Pipe Grade	Required	Needed for determining critical flaw sizes and remaining life.	None	Assume Grade A	
Diameter	Required	Needed for determining critical flaw sizes and remaining life.	Minor effect on survey performance and cathodic protection currents.	Do not assume, take field measurements	
Wall thickness	Required	Needed for determining critical flaw sizes and remaining life.	None	Do not assume, take field (UT) measurements	
Pipe manufacturing year	Optional	(See installation year)	Can sometimes provide an indication of the seam weld type.	None	

MPLX	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 2 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other	Alternative	Available Data
	Need	Kationale	Considerations	available)	Available Data
Seam type	Desired	Tenting over long seam welds can affect survey performance; Some weld types can be susceptible to preferential corrosion.	At excavations, check for tenting and preferential corrosion.	Field identification	
Construction Re	elated				
Installation year	Desired	Sometimes used as basis for estimating corrosion growth rates and/or coating degradation.	Sometimes used to identify typical construction techniques (see below).	None	
Route changes or modifications	Desired	May indicate where prior corrosion problems have occurred.	Significant changes (e.g., coating type) requires separate ECDA regions.	Field observations	
Route maps, aerial photos	Required	Needed to identify pipe route.	May help define boundaries for ECDA regions.	Field Notes	
Construction practices	Optional	Some trenching and backfill practices could damage the coating and/or affect survey performance.	May influence natural shielding in rocky areas and coating damage.	Field notes during excavation	

MPLx	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 3 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

			Othor	Alternative		
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data	
Locations of valves and other pipeline features	Required	Major components and connections influence cathodic protection.	Uncoated components can make confuse signal interpretation.	Field notes		
Locations of casings	Required	Often requires a separate assessment.	May require operator to extrapolate nearby results.	Field notes		
Locations of bends, including miter bends and wrinkle bends.	Desired	Coatings may not match mainline pipe. Wrinkles and other geometric discontinuities can be sites for preferential corrosion.	Some components could justify separate ECDA regions.	Field notes		
Proximity to other pipelines, structures, high voltage electric transmission lines, and rail crossings	Desired	Needed to identify sources of stray or other influencing currents.	Additional surveys may be needed to identify and quantify interference.	None		
Sleeves or composite repairs	Desired	May preclude some indirect inspection tools.	May affect interpretation of results.	Field notes during excavations		
Soils and Enviro	Soils and Environmental					
Pipeline Accessibility	Desired	Difficult to access areas may make surveys and	Alternate techniques, such as long wave	Field notes		

MPL	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 4 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		excavations problematic.	ultrasonic or radio waves may be necessary for short pipe sections under barriers.		
Depth of cover	Required	Deep burial restricts the use of some indirect inspection techniques.	May impact current flow and interpretation of survey results.	Field measurements	
Soil characteristics/ types	Required	Some soil characteristics reduce the accuracy of various indirect inspection techniques.	Influences corrosion rates and remaining life assessment.	None	
Drainage	Optional	None	Influences corrosion rates and remaining life assessment.	None	
Topography	Required	Conditions such as rocky areas can make indirect inspections difficult or impossible.	None	None	
Type of cover	Required	Changes in cover often requires changes in survey methods and/or their application.	May reduce tool sensitivity and/or require specialized application techniques.	Field notes	
Underwater sections; river crossings	Required	Often requires a separate assessment when two survey tools	Affects interpretation of results; may require	Field notes	

MPL	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 5 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		cannot be performed over pipeline.	alternative assessment.		
Location of river weights and anchors	Desired	Can affect survey results and/or produce spurious indications.	Affects interpretation of results.	Field notes	
Frozen ground	Optional	May impact applicability and effectiveness of some surveys.	Influences current flow and interpretation of results.	Field notes	
Corrosion Cont	rol	-	-	-	
CP system type (anodes, rectifiers, and locations)	Required	Detailed information needed for most surveys.	None	Do not assume, perform field investigations	
Stray current sources or locations	Desired	Needed if stray currents significantly affect survey readings or produce interference locations.	Identifying stray currents can be difficult in complicated rights of way.	Additional indirect inspection surveys to identify potential interference sites.	
Test point locations (or pipe access points)	Desired	Generally used to relate survey results to prior cathodic protection conditions.	Historic readings may demonstrate CP is stable.	None	
Prior CP surveys	Desired	Can help identify locations where prior CP is problematic.	Useful in post- assessment analysis.	Test point and rectifier records	

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 6 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
CP maintenance history	Desired	Coating condition indicator.	Can be useful in interpreting results.	Test point and rectifier records	
Years without cathodic protection applied	Required/ Desired	Provides insight into prior corrosion.	Negatively affects ability to estimate corrosion rates and make remaining life predictions.	Assume no CP from date of first CP records.	
Years of questionable CP	Desired	None	Negatively affects ability to estimate corrosion rates and make remaining life predictions.	None	
Coating type – pipe	Required	Tape and other coatings with high dielectric constants can preclude ECDA.	Coating type may influence time at which corrosion begins and estimates of corrosion growth rate.	Do not assume, perform field investigations	
Coating type – joints	Desired	Potential for shielding exists.	Shielding due to certain joint coatings may lead to requirements for other assessment activities.	Field notes	
Coating condition	Desired	ECDA may be difficult to apply with severely degraded coatings.	None	Field notes	

MPIV	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
8		Page 7 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
CP current demand	Desired	Increasing current demand can indicate areas where coating degradation is leading to more exposed pipe surface area.	None	Rectifier readings	
Operational					
Pipe operating temperature	Optional	Not typically important unless high.	High temperatures can locally influence coating degradation rates.	Field measurements	
Maximum Allowable Operating Stress	Required	Needed for critical flaw size calculations.	None	None	
Operating stress levels and fluctuations	Optional	Can be important when corrosion is associated with other threats (e.g., SCC, low frequency ERW).	Impacts critical flaw size and remaining life predictions.	Station records	
Monitoring programs (coupons, patrol, leak surveys, etc.)	Optional	None	May impact repair; remediation, replacement schedules.	None	

MPL	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-02	
		Page 8 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Pipe inspection reports – excavation	Optional	None	Provides information on coating degradation.	Direct examinations	
Repair history/ records – such as steel/composite repair sleeves, repair locations, etc.	Required	Could introduce spurious survey indications; can identify locations with prior corrosion concerns.	Provides useful data for post-assessment analysis such as interpreting data near repairs.	Field notes	
Leak/rupture history (external corrosion)	Required	Important for identifying prior problem zones.	Pipeline with prior leaks and ruptures may be difficult to assess with ECDA.	None	
Evidence of external MIC	Desired	MIC may accelerate external corrosion rates.	None	Field measurements	
Type/frequency – third party damage	Optional	High third-party damage areas may have increased indirect inspection coating fault detects.	None	None	
Hydrotest dates/pressures	Required	Can provide basis for maximum remaining flaw size.	Influences inspection intervals.	Assume no prior Hydrotest	

MPIV	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
6		Page 9 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element In-line inspection data	Need Required	Rationale Provides valuable information that complements ECDA	Other Considerations Useful post- assessment data.	Alternative (if data not readily available) None	Available Data
Casing Related		results.			
Carrier pipe coating	Desired	Cased pipe with coatings that tend to shield cathodic protection (CP) is placed in a separate region. All other coatings that do not tend to shield CP may be placed in the same cased region. Operators may use as many regions as there are types of coatings. Carrier pipe that is bare must also be placed in a separate region.	It is envisioned that there will be two main groups of carrier pipe coatings, shielding type coatings and non-shielding type. Operators can segregate coating into additional groups if they desire.	None	
Casing materials and design	Optional	Cased pipe with problematic casing materials and designs that are known to cause or promote external corrosion require separate regions.	There are several types of casing designs and materials that behave differently from others. Among these are split sleeve type, nested type,	None	

	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
®		Page 10 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily	Available Data
Data Element	Need	Rationale These may include such things as wooden spacers, metal band/runner type spacers, corrugated casings, and casings with extremely oversized or undersized annuli. Coated casings require separate regions, since they can significantly impact the resolution and interpretation of the indirect inspection data. Additionally, casings	Other Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		that are too long to be fully inspected by a guided wave inspection as part of ECDA step 3 (indirect assessment) are evaluated in the pre-assessment to determine if ECDA is feasible. All data gathered and analyzed as part of the pre- assessment must be	coating fails because of age or initial method of installation. Additional design issues are end seal design, space between the carrier pipe and the casing, the likelihood of stress on the carrier pipe at the entry point, etc.		

MPIV	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
•		Page 11 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

			Othor	Alternative	
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		utilized in the decision process.			
Corrosion history on adjacent buried pipe segments	Desired	Casings that are in a pipe segment with known corrosion problems and are influenced by the same CP system are placed in a separate cased region.	Corrosion history on a pipe segment may be an excellent indicator for corrosion in a casing if there is a short or an electrolytic contact. Per NACE RP 0502, Table 1, these need to be in separate regions from areas that do not promote corrosion. Leak and rupture history can be dependent on corrosion history, which according to NACE RP 0502 need to be identical for each ECDA region.	None	
Each carrier pipe must have a similar cathodic protection maintenance history	Desired	Cased crossings that reside in areas that are found during the Pre- Assessment to have had intermittent or inadequate cathodic protection must be	Cathodic protection maintenance histories are important to determine the susceptibility of the carrier pipe to external corrosion and may provide additional	None	

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 12 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		considered for a specific cased region.	information on the likelihood of past, present and future corrosion.		
Past knowledge of metallic or electrolytic contacts	Desired	Casings that are found to have been metallically shorted or with electrolytic current path in the past (even seasonally) and have not passed a Subpart O integrity assessment are placed in a separate cased region.	Cased crossing with metallic shorts or electrolytic contacts may have undergone external corrosion in the past and may be susceptible to external corrosion in the present and future and thus must be in separate regions.	None	
Each carrier pipe must have similar exposure to microbiologically influenced corrosion (MIC)	Desired	If the cased crossing is in an area of the operator's system that is known to have a high rate of MIC related corrosion, then the casing must be placed in a separate region.	MIC can cause the corrosion growth rate to be accelerated and may require a higher level of CP. Areas that are prone to MIC must be in a separate region.	None	
Casing construction techniques	Optional	Different construction techniques that result in changes in construction crews/contractors and installation procedures	Some construction techniques and crews may produce poor quality construction or specific construction	None	

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 13 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		may require separate cased regions.	deficiencies, e.g., pushing centralizers together, damaging the pipe coating, etc.		
Each carrier pipe may have a similar time in service	Desired	Different pipe vintages may require different regions. Operators may rely on their experience and follow the protocols established in their ECDA procedures for buried pipe.	Time in service may be an indication of the extent of atmospheric corrosion or corrosion from shorted conditions and electrolytic contacts. Date of installation can also assist in determining construction techniques used.	None	
Casing and carrier pipe environment	Desired	Different environments surrounding the casing may require designation as separate regions, which may be consistent with the operator's ECDA procedure for buried pipe. A separate region is needed for each area with similar drainage characteristics and each area with similar soil	The environment may play a large role if there are electrolytic contact issues and shorted conditions. Some environments are more prone to causing shorts than others. Environments may play a significant role in corrosion growth rates.	None	

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

MPLY	ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
		Page 14 of 17	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

			Othor	Alternative	
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		corrosiveness properties.			
Carrier pipe stress level	Optional	The operating stress levels (e.g., 20% as compared to 72%) must be considered when establishing regions.	The stress on a carrier pipe can determine the consequence of a failure. Low stress carrier pipes will tend to leak rather than rupture while the converse is true for high stress pipes. Pipe stress levels must be considered when determining casing regions.	None	
Carrier pipe seam	Optional	Operators may follow their ECDA procedure for buried pipelines.	Selective seam corrosion can be a threat to some older pipelines with specific seam types, and thus may be in a separate region.	None	
Land use	Optional	Areas where the land use may increase corrosion due to the corrosiveness of the environment (such as processing plants) may	Land use can impact the threat of external corrosion to the carrier pipe within the casing. For example, cased crossings near	None	

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 15 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		be considered for a separate region.	major highways that have snow and ice could be subject to salt contamination, i.e., low resistivity of the surrounding ground. There are other areas which could subject the pipeline to large soil loads from above, etc.		
Protection system of carrier pipe	Desired	Operators may consider the type of CP system used on the cased pipe and follow their ECDA procedure for buries pipelines	Galvanic and impressed current CP systems will behave differently and cased crossings may have the same type of CP systems in the same region	None	
Stray current and induced AC on carrier pipe	Required / Desired	Operators may follow their ECDA procedure for buried pipelines regarding stray current and induced AC history.	Stray currents, either DC or AC, can accelerate corrosion or cause corrosion, and thus cased crossing with potential stray current issues may be in separate regions.	None	

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 16 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Temperature on carrier pipe	Optional	Different operating temperatures may require separate regions, especially if high operating temperatures, coupled with moist environments, could cause degraded coatings by creating a streaming effect or causing moisture to condense in the annulus. Additionally, high operating temperatures that can accelerate corrosion may be considered when establishing cased regions.	High temperatures can accelerate atmospheric corrosion by allowing additional moisture and humidity to permeate the casing annular space. Additionally, fluctuations in temperature can cause condensation which could cause atmospheric corrosion to form on the carrier pipe.	None	
Carrier pipe exposure to humid/dry air	Desired	If the casing resides in an area that the operator has identified as an atmospheric corrosion monitoring area, such as salt marine environments, the casing may be	See the above guidance material. Cased crossing in dry air regions may be less prone to atmospheric corrosion and thus be in a separate region.	None	

ECDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-02
	Page 17 of 17	
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		placed in a separate region.			
Carrier pipe design	Optional	Operators may follow their ECDA procedure for buried pipelines. Each carrier pipe may have a similar type pipe design; maximum allowable operating pressure, diameter, class location, end loading stresses and other design factors.	Dissimilar designs with regard to piping design, MAOP, diameter and other issues can affect both the likelihood and consequence of failure and thus may be in separate regions.	None	

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.						
Signature:	Date:					
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: <i>Reviewed and Verified.</i>						
Signature:	Date:					

	ECDA/SSCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03				
		Pag	je 1 of 2			
ß	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## ECDA/SCCDA Project Information

ECDA/SCCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

(For Uncased Pipe)											
	Tool Selection										
Pipeline Segment	Region #	Length (miles)	CIS	DCVG	ACVG	Pearson	ACCA	GWUT	Soil Resistivity	Other	Justification

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.						
Signature:	Date:					
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Reviewed and Verified.						
Signature:	Date:					

	ECDA/SSCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03				
		Pag	e 2 of 2			
ß	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## ECDA/SCCDA Project Information

ECDA/SCCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

(For Cased Pipe)											
	Tool Selection										
Pipeline Segment	Region #	Length (miles)	CIS	DCVG	ACVG	Pearson	ACCA	GWUT	Soil Resistivity	Other	Justification

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.						
Signature:	Date:					
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Corrosion Control Program Manager: <i>Reviewed and Verified.</i>						
Signature:	Date:					

MPIX	ECDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-04					
		Page 1 of 3					
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0				

ECDA Project Information	
ECDA Project Identification:	
Pipeline Identification:	
Segment Identification:	

Section	Uncased / Cased Pipe	Location	Start Station	End Station	Length (Feet)	Assigned Region #
1						
2						
3						
4						
5						
6						

Item #		Separate				Section					
	Attribute	Region Required?	Comments	Additional Guidance Material	1	2	3	4	5	6	
Uncased	Pipe										
1	Age	Maybe	Sometimes used as basis for estimating corrosion growth rates and/or coating degradation.	Sometimes used to identify typical construction techniques.							
2	Coating	Maybe	Tape and other coatings with high dielectric constants can preclude ECDA.	Coating type may influence time at which corrosion begins and estimates of corrosion growth rate.							

ECDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-04		
	Page 2 of 3			
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

		Separate				Section					
Item #	Attribute	Region Required?	Comments	Additional Guidance Material	1	2	3	4	5	6	
3	СР Туре	Maybe	Detailed information needed for most surveys.	CP type may influence protection level or type of surveys.							
4	Soil	Maybe	May have an impact on the corrosion rate.	Sandy soils may have different corrosion rates than clay soils							
5	Drainage	Maybe	May have an impact on the corrosion rate.	None							
6	Slope	Maybe	May have an impact on the corrosion rates based on seasonal changes.	None							
7	Special Conditions	Maybe	Presence of stray current or other conditions may impact survey tool selection or corrosion rates.	None							
Cased Pi	ре									-	
8	Corrosion history on adjacent pipe	Maybe	Casings that are in a pipe segment with known corrosion problems and are influenced by the same CP system are placed in a separate cased region.	Corrosion history on adjacent pipe							
9	Metallic or electrolytic contacts	Yes	Casings that are found to have been metallically shorted or with electrolytic current path in the past (even seasonally) and have not passed a Subpart O integrity assessment are placed in a separate cased region	Metallic or electrolytic contacts							

ECDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-04		
	Page 3 of 3			
 FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

		Separate		Additional Guidance Material		Section				
Item #	Attribute	Region Required?	Comments			2	3	4	5	6
10	Exposure to MIC	Yes	If the cased crossing is in an area of the operator's system that is known to have a high rate of MIC related corrosion, then the casing must be placed in a separate region.	Exposure to MIC						
11	Carrier Pipe Exposure to Humid/Dry Air	Maybe	If the casing resides in an area that the operator has identified as an atmospheric corrosion monitoring area, such as salt marine environments, the casing may be placed in a separate region.	Carrier Pipe Exposure to Humid/Dry Air						

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.						
Signature: Date:						
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: <i>Reviewed and Verified.</i>						
Signature:	Date:					

ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-05		
	Page 1 of 2			
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

# ECDA/SCCDA Project Information

ECDA/SCCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

Region #	Stationing	Indication #	% IR	Pipeline Depth (ft)	Factor A <sub>1</sub>	Factor $B_1$ , $B_4$ , or $B_5$	Factor $B_2$ , $B_3$ , or $B_6$	$W = 3A + 2 B_{1,4,5} + B_{2,3,6}$	Severity Classification	Prioritization	Recommended for Direct Assessment?	Justification	GPS Latitude	GPS Longitude	Dig Site #

ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-05		
	Page 2 of 2			
 FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.						
Signature: Date:						
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead: Reviewed and Verified.						
Signature:	Date:					
MPIV	ECDA/SSCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-06			
------	--------------------------------	-------------------	--------------			
		Page	e 1 of 11			
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

# ECDA/SCCDA Project Information

ECDA/SSCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

(1) Project Information				
Project Number:	Date:			
Line Name/Number:	Contractor/Inspector:			
ECDA/SCCDA Region #:	Dig Site Number #:			
(2) Site Location Information				
Alignment Sheet Number:	GPS Latitude:			
US/DS Reference Description:	GPS Longitude:			
US/DS Reference Inventory Number:	Location of Examination (City/County, State):			
(3) Specified Pipe Information				
Pipe Outside Diameter:	Reference Girth Weld (RGW) Number:			
Nominal Wall Thickness:	Joint Length:			
Pipe Seam Type:	Clock Position of L-Seam:			
Pipe Manufacturer (if known):				
Material Specification:				
Coating Type				
□ Asphalt □ Tape □ Coal Tar □ Liquid Ep	oxy 🗆 FBE 🗖 Wax 🗖 Extruded PE 🗖 Other:			
Girth Weld Coating				
□ Tape □ Cold Mastic □ Hot Mastic □ Liq	uid Epoxy 🗖 Wax 🗖 Other:			
Outer Wrap: D Yes, Type:	□ No			
Cathodic Protection System:   Impressed  Impressed Impress	Galvanic Date Installed:			
Additional Notes:				

MPIV	ECDA/SSCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-06
®		Page	e 2 of 11
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

(4) Dig Site Informat	ion									
Reference Feature:		Dist	ance to Fea	ature:						
Length of Pipe Exposed:	fee	t	inches		Dep	oth of Cover	-:	feet	t	inches
Terrain Conditions										
□ Inclined □ L	evel	🗖 Ridge	ed		Depre	essed	🗖 Undu	latin	g 🗆 Si	de Slope
Soil Type										
🗆 Fluvial 🛛 🗆 Till Dep	osits 🛛 🗘	Drganic	🗖 Lacu	strin	е	Rock	D Alluv	/ial	🗖 Clay	□ Sand
Soil Condition:	Wet 🛛 N	loist	🗖 Dry			□ Frozen	D Othe	er	Soil pH:	
Drainage: Drainage:	Poor DP	oor	□ Imper	fect	to Po	oor	Goo	d	□ Not Io	dentified
Soil Sample Taken:	]Yes □	No		Sar	nple	ID(s):				
Soil Resistivity Performe	d: 🛛 Wer	nner 4-P	in 🗆 S	Soil B	lox	🗆 Sir	ngle Prob	9	🗆 No	
Wenner 4-Pin Method:	□ Parallel	to Pipe	D Perp	endia	cular	to Pipe D	istance fr	om l	Pipe (feet	):
Pin Separation (feet)	Dial Read	Reading Multip		lier	ier Resistance		ce (ohms) Re		sistivity (	ohm-cm)
Weather Conditions:				Am	bient	t Temperat	ure (°F):			
Additional Notes:										

\_\_\_\_\_

177

	ECDA/SS	CDA Dig Data	O	PS-STD-	0027-FOR-06			
					D	Page	e 3 of	11 Rev <sup>.</sup>
		FURIVI			4/1	/2021		0
(5) Observed Coat	ing							
Coating Type								
□ Asphalt □ Tape	□ Coal Tar	Liquid Epoxy	□ FB	E 🗆 Wax		Extruded	PE	□ Other:
Girth Weld Coating	3							
	Id Mastic	Hot Mastic	🗆 Liqui	d Epoxy	D Wa		1 Other	:
Outer Wrap:		Yes, Type:			□ No			
Coating Thickness (m	nils): 12 o'clocl	k: 3 o'o	clock:	6 0'0	clock:	9	o'clock	(:
Coating Thickness Lo	cation:							
Additional Notes:								
(6) Coating Condit	ion							
Condition: $\Box$ Ex	cellent D	Good	🗆 Fair	E	l Poor		U Ver	v Poor
Bonding Adhesion:		Fair D Poo	or	Test Type:				,
Moisture Underneath	Coating:	∕es □No	Moist	ure pH:		Pipe Sur	face pl	H:
Type of Coating Da	amage			I			<u> </u>	
□ Wrinkles □ Cuts	□ Holidays	□ Blisters □	Dents	□ Test Ba Marks	r 🗆	Disbondr	nent	□ Other:
Coating Sample Take	en: 🗆 Yes	D No		Sample ID	:			
Additional Notes:				•				

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD-	0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 4 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

(6a) Coating Damage Listing												
Damaged Area No.	Distance from Reference (ft, in)	Upstream or Downstream	Pipe Orientation	Length (in)	Width (in)	Diameter (in)	Moisture Underneath Coating?	Н	Bonding Adhesion	Type of Damage	Notes	Photograph Taken?
1												
2												
3												
4												
5												
6												
7												
8												
9												
10												

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 5 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

(6b) Coating Damage Sketch	□ None

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 6 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

(7) External Metal Loss/Mechanical Damage											
External Metal Loss Observed											
🗆 Unif	orm	□ Localized		□ Scattered	Isolated Pit				one		
Products/Deposits Observed											
□ Pipe Surface □ Coating Surface □ Other Location:										lone	
Descri	Description of Products/Deposits										
Loc	ation	Description		Color	Textu	re	Bon	ding	р	Н	
Produc	t Sample	Taken:	/es		D No			Sample	ID:		
Field (	Chemical	Tests									
		Sample			CO 2-	<b>c</b> <sup>2</sup> -	<b>F</b> _2 <sup>2</sup> +		$Ca^{2+}$		
ID	De	escription		Location	CU <sub>3</sub> <sup>2</sup> S <sup>2</sup>		ге ге		Ca	рп	
Mecha	nical Da	mage Observe	d								
Den Den	t 🗖 Go	uge 🛛 Linear	Indi	cation 🛛 Weldir	ng Related	🗆 Oth	ner:		C	None	
Wall Th	nickness (	inches): 12 o'	cloc	k: 3 oʻclo	ock:	6 0	clock:		9 o'clock:		
Longitu	udinal Sea	m: O'clo	ock F	Position	None						
Additio	Additional Notes:										

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 7 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

(8) Casing Information								D N/A				
Diameter (inches):		Wall Thi	ckness (inche	s):		Coated:	□ Yes	🗆 No				
Casing Vents: 2 C	] 1	□ None	I None Condition:									
End Seals:   Yes  No	Upstr	eam Cond	lition:			Downstream Condition:						
Test Leads: Dupstream	D Do	wnstream	D Non	е	C/S O	n Potential (VD						
Annulus Space												
Electrolyte Present in Upstream End: Completely Full Half Full End with Some												
Electrolyte Present in Downstr	eam End	d: 🗖 Co	mpletely Full		Half Fu	II 🛛 End with	Some	□ None				
Electrolyte Sample Taken:	□ Yes	🗖 No	Sample II	D:								
Casing Thickness (inches):	12 o'clo	ck:	3 o'clock:		6 (	o'clock:	9 o'clo	ck:				
Additional Notes:												
(9) SCC Investigation Resu	ults							D N/A				
Pipe Preparation Method:	🛛 Grit E	Blasting	□ Water Bla	Water Blasting		□ Walnut Shells		Wheel				
MPI Method:	🗖 Dry		Wet Visua		ΠW	et Fluorescent	Black on White					
Electrolyte Under Coating:	D Yes,	pH:	D No									
Additional Notes:												

	ECDA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-06			
		Page 8 of 11				
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

(10) \$	SCC Inve	estigation D	etails								D N/A
ID #	Axial Start (in)	Circum- ferential Start (O'clock)	Axial Length (in)	Circum- ferential Width (in)	Maximum Interlinked Length (in)	Seam Weld (O'clock)	Wall Thickness (in)	Depth (in)	Method Used to Estimate Depth	Proximity to Stress Risers	Comments

.

	ECDA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD	-0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 9 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

### (11) Pipe Condition Sketch

.

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-06
		Page	e 10 of 11
MARATHON	FORM	DATE:	Rev:
		4/1/2021	U

Cathodic Protection System Status													
□ On □ Off □ Interrupting □ Polarizing □ Depolarizing □ Information Unavailable	,												
Structure-to-Electrolyte (P/S) Potential Data at Dig Site													
AC P/S Potential (VAC CSE):													
DC "On" P/S Potential (-VDC CSE): DC "Interrupted" P/S Potential (-VDC CSE):													
Structure-to-Electrolyte (P/S) Potential Data at Nearest Test Station													
Test Station Distance from Dig Site (ft):AC P/S Potential (VAC CSE):													
DC "On" P/S Potential (-VDC CSE): DC "Interrupted" P/S Potential (-VDC CSE):													
Additional Notes:													
	ļ												
	ļ												
(13) Remedial Action													
Reinforcing Sleeve:Type AType BOther:None													
Cut-Out     Material Specification for Replacement:													
□ Recoat Coating Used:													
Actual Station Where Repair was Completed:													
Additional Notes:													

	EDCA/SCCDA Dig D	ata Collection	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06						
MARATHON	FORM	1	Page DATE: 4/1/2021	e 11 of 11 Rev: 0					
<ul> <li>(14) Summary of F</li> <li>Direct Examination</li> <li>Excavation Site</li> <li>Reference Feature</li> <li>Adjacent</li> <li>Appurtenances</li> <li>Terrain Conditions</li> <li>Soil Profile</li> <li>Coating Condition</li> <li>Products</li> </ul>	Photographs n: Casing Features, if applicable: • Crossing • Casing Vent(s) • Casing Condition • End Seal Condition • End Seal Condition • Annulus Space (upstream)	<ul> <li>SCC Colonies, if applicable:</li> <li>SCC 1 Colony</li> <li>SCC 2 Colony</li> <li>SCC 3 Colony</li> <li>SCC 4 Colony</li> <li>SCC 5 Colony</li> <li>SCC 6 Colony</li> <li>SCC 7 Colony</li> </ul>	Other Other Oth Oth Oth Oth Oth Oth Oth Oth	Photographs: er: er: er: er: er: er: er:					
Pipe Surface Before     Surface Preparation	e • Annulus Space (downstream)	<ul> <li>SCC 8 Colony</li> <li>SCC 9 Colony</li> <li>SCC 10 Colony</li> <li>More</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Oth</li> <li>Oth</li> <li>Oth</li> <li>Oth</li> <li>Oth</li> </ul>	er: er: er:					

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.	
Signature:	Date:
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead: Reviewed and Verified.	
Signature:	Date:

MPIV	ECDA Re-Assessment Interval	OPS-STD-	-0027-FOR-07			
		Page 1 of 3				
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0			

## ECDA Project Information

ECDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

	Region #
	Dig Site #
	NPS
	Pipe OD (in)
	t (in)
	Pipe Steel Grade
	MOP (psi)
	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)
	MAOP (psi)
	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)
	FoS (Pf/MOP)
	% SYMS
	MPR
	RPR
	SM [RPR-MPR]
	GR (mpy)
	Remaining Life – TF (years)
	Remaining Life – TL (years)
	Re-Assessment Interval Based on RL (years)
	Re-Assessment Interval
	Comments

<sup>1</sup> If Category 4, reduce pressure or shut down and conduct an integrity assessment within 90 days.

<sup>1</sup> If Category 3, reduce pressure until hydrotest or in-line inspection is completed (within 2 years)

<sup>1</sup> If Category 2, consider a pressure reduction until hydrotest or in-line inspection is completed (within 2 years)

<sup>1</sup> If Category 1, conduct a minimum of two additional direct examinations, then follow category of any SCC found

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

								EC	CDA R	e-Ass	essme	ent In	terval		OPS	S-STD-	0027-	FOR-07	,	
					MARAT	HON		FORM							Page 2 of 3           DATE:         Rev:           4/1/2021         0					
Region #	Dig Site #	NPS	Pipe OD (in)	t (in)	Pipe Steel Grade	MOP (psi)	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)	MAOP (psi)	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)	FoS (Pf/MOP)	% SYMS	MPR	RPR	SM [RPR-MPR]	GR (mpy)	Remaining Life – TF (years)	Remaining Life – TL (years)	Re-Assessment Interval Based on RL (years)	Re-Assessment Interval	Comments

							ECDA Re-Assessment Interval							OPS-STD-0027-FOR-07					
				MARAT	HON		FORM							Page 3 of 3           DATE:         Rev:           4/1/2021         0					
Dig Site #	NPS	Pipe OD (in)	t (in)	Pipe Steel Grade	MOP (psi)	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)	MAOP (psi)	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)	FoS (Pf/MOP)	% SYMS	MPR	RPR	SM [RPR-MPR]	GR (mpy)	Remaining Life – TF (years)	Remaining Life – TL (years)	Re-Assessment Interval Based on RL (years)	Re-Assessment Interval	Comments

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.	
Signature:	Date:
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Reviewed and Verified.	
Signature:	Date:

.

		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Authored by: Ryan Ell			Doc No.: OPS-STD-0028
Doc. Custodian:		Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct	Rev. No.: 1
Approved by:		Assessment	MPLX G&P
Scott Stampka	7/47/2022	Next Deview Deter 0/4/2025	Effective Deter 0/44/2022
Date Approved: U	1/11/2023	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 8/14/2023
Purpose	This standar Assessment • Com facili • The stand they	d establishes minimum requirements for Strea (SCCDA) of pipelines to provide: pliance with regulatory requirements (for reg ities) intended service life as well as to streamline a lardization of survey procedures, materials, an pertain to the mitigation of Stress Corrosion (	ss Corrosion Cracking Direct ulated pipeline systems and all requirements through the nd inspection requirements as Cracking (SSC)
Scope	This standar Processing ( (IMP) that a	d applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum L G&P) operated assets that fall under the Integ re not assessed for integrity by means of inlin	ogistics (MPLX) Gathering and grity Management Program le inspection or hydrotest.
Table of	Purpose		1
Contents	Scope		1
	General Req	uirements	2
	Procedure		
	Qualificat	ions	
	Equipmen	.t	4
	Pre-Assessm	nent	
	Purpose		4
	Data Colle	ection	4
	Identificat	ion of SCCDA Regions	
	Selection	of Indirect Inspection Tools	7
	Developin	ng an Indirect Inspection Plan	
	Indirect Insp	pection	
	Purpose		
	Conductin	ng Indirect Inspections	
	Data Alig	nment and Comparison	
	Identificat	tions of Indications	
	Classifica	tion of Indication Severity	
	Site Selec	tion	
	Direct Exam	ination	
	Purpose		
This copy v	was printed on	10/15/2024	Page 1 of 37

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Stress Corrosio	on Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1	
	Site Prioritization			
	Minimum Number of Excavation	ons		
	Minimum Excavation Lengths			
	Scheduling			
	Excavations and Initial Data Co	llection		
	Coating Damage and External M	Metal Loss Data Collection		
	SCC-Related Data Collection			
	Classification of Cracking			
	Post-Assessment			
	Purpose			
	Determining Mitigation			
	Definition of Re-Assessment In	terval		
	SCCDA Effectiveness			
	Feedback and Continuous Impre	ovement		
	Survey Records			
	Survey Record Keeping			
	Definitions			
	Waiver Process			
	Forms			
	References			
	Records Retention			
	Revision History			
	5			
General				
<b>Requirements</b> <b>Procedure</b>	<ul> <li>Individuals performing SC Operator Qualification (OO</li> <li>SCCDA shall be performe</li> <li>SCCDA is a structured four intent of the SCCDA meth more likely to occur, there pipeline. A brief description below:</li> </ul>	CDA survey work shall be qualifie Q) tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-000</u> d in accordance with <u>NACE SP020</u> ur-step process for buried onshore p odology is to identify and examine by providing insight into whether S on of the four steps in the SCCDA p	ed per the relevant <u>55</u> . <u>64</u> . biping systems. The sites where SCC is SCC is a threat to the process is presented	
	<ul> <li>Step 1: Pre-Assessa</li> <li>Compile his select approare most im</li> </ul>	ment storic and current data to define SC opriate indirect inspection tools. The portant during the pre-assessment s	CDA regions and e types of data that step are typically	
This copy	was printed on 10/15/2024	Pag	ge 2 of 37	
ed to Imaging: 4/1	/2025 2:07:38 PM			

- intent of the SCCDA methodology is to identify and examine sites where SCC is more likely to occur, thereby providing insight into whether SCC is a threat to the pipeline. A brief description of the four steps in the SCCDA process is presented below:
  - Step 1: Pre-Assessment 0
    - Compile historic and current data to define SCCDA regions and select appropriate indirect inspection tools. The types of data that are most important during the pre-assessment step are typically

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

available in construction records, operating and maintenance histories, alignment sheets, corrosion survey records, other aboveground inspection records, and inspection reports from prior excavations, integrity evaluations, and maintenance actions.

- Step 2: Indirect Inspection
  - Covers aboveground inspections to identify and define the severity of coating faults, other anomalies, and areas where corrosion activity may have or may be occurring in the areas under investigation. Two or more complementary indirect inspection tools shall be used over the entire pipeline segment under investigation to provide improved detection accuracy under the wide variety of conditions that may be encountered along a pipeline right-of-way. The combination of indirect inspections may vary based on the characteristics of different regions that may exist along the pipeline segment being assessed.
- Step 3: Direct Examination
  - Collection of data which, combined with prior data, are used to assess the impact of SCC on the pipeline.
- Step 4: Post-Assessment
  - Analyses of data collected from the previous three steps to assess the effectiveness of the SCCDA program and determine reassessment intervals.
- <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01</u> shall be used when completing each step of the SCCDA process.

Role	Qualifications
IMP Manager	An individual who possesses a Bachelor of Science degree in engineering or technology, plus five years of experience in corrosion engineering and SCC management programs. The individual must have sufficient pipeline experience related to external pipeline corrosion to provide guidance and oversight to the personnel conducting the SCCDA process.
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead	An individual who is qualified as an MPLX Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer per the qualifications stated in Appendix D of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .
Integrity Engineer	An individual who possesses a Bachelor of Science degree in engineering or technology, plus three years of pipeline related engineering or has equivalent pipeline experience in the pipeline industry. This individual has training and experience on conducting remaining strength calculations for crack-like anomalies.

Qualifications

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Corrosion Control Technician/Specialist/ Engineer	An individual who is qualified through corrosion control OQ tasks or the equivalent National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) certifications per Appendix D of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .
Nondestructive Examination Specialist (Inspector)	An individual who meets OQ requirements and is an American Society for Nondestructive Testing (ASNT) SNT-TC-1A Level II NDT Examiner for any Nondestructive Testing (NDT) task to be completed under this plan.

**Equipment** The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for ensuring all equipment used during the SCCDA process is used in accordance with MPLX field investigation and NDT procedures.

#### **Pre-Assessment**

# PurposeThe purpose of the pre-assessment step is to collect sufficient pipeline data to identify<br/>SCCDA regions and sites for possible direct examinations. The pre-assessment step shall<br/>contain the following activities:

- Data collection
- Identification of SCCDA regions
- Development of an indirect inspection plan
- Selection of dig sites

#### Data Collection

- Historical and current data, including physical information, shall be collected for the pipeline segment. Minimum data collection requirements are based on the history and condition of the pipe. <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02</u> shall be used to collect relevant data. The form differentiates between required, desired, and optional data.
  - Required data is critical to completing the SCCDA process.
  - $\circ~$  **Desired data** is relevant but not essential to the SCCDA process.
  - **Optional data** is typically informational.
- Required data elements shall be obtained before the completion of the preassessment step. Desired data elements should be obtained if the data is available in existing records, or they are reasonable to acquire through measurements or examinations.
- In the event that data for a particular category is not available, conservative or best estimate assumptions shall be used based on experience and information about similar systems. Any assumptions made shall be technically justified and documented by the Integrity Engineer. The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall approve the assumptions made.

 $\circ$   $\,$  Assumptions shall not be made for the following data elements:

- Pipe diameter
- Pipe wall thickness
- Cathodic Protection (CP) system type

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

• Coating type

	couning type
•	The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for completing the data collection. If
	required data elements are found to be missing or incomplete, a plan shall be
	implemented to collect the missing data. All data collected shall be recorded in the
	<u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02</u> .

• Prior integrity assessments of the pipeline segment may be used as a resource for pre-assessment data; however, they should not be used as a substitute for the data collection process outlined in this plan.

#### Identification of SCCDA Regions

- The pipeline segment shall be divided into SCCDA regions. An SCCDA region is a portion of a pipeline segment that has similar physical characteristics, loading, CP histories, and expected future conditions relative to the potential for SCC. These regions may contain non-continuous pipeline sections.
- The Integrity Engineer shall establish the SCCDA regions in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-03</u> shall be used during the process of establishing pipeline regions. The primary decision process for establishing pipeline regions within a segment shall consider:
  - Availability of prior operating history and a determination that future operation is expected to be reasonably similar
  - A determination that factors that influence SCC susceptibility are known and similar, such that zones with similar characteristics can be grouped into SCCDA regions
  - Pressure loading along the pipe segment, including cyclic loading characteristics, such that zones with similar loading can be identified
  - A determination that the historic and current performance of the CP system is known and consistent
- When identifying SCCDA regions, the Integrity Engineer shall consider the data collected and all conditions that significantly affect (or drive) SCC. For example, a separate SCCDA region shall be required when the pipe wall thickness changes or when coating type changes.
- The following provides a description of various factors that can affect SCCDA region selection:
  - Age The year of installation impacts the time over which coating degradation may have occurred and the period over which CP performance may have changed. The age of the pipe helps indicate the probable steel making process and pipe manufacturing technology, which can affect susceptibility. In addition, older pipe materials typically have lower toughness levels, which reduces critical defect size and remaining life predictions.
  - Pipe Related Characteristics The grade, diameter, and wall thickness of the pipe affect the pressure loading and susceptibility to SCC. Also, some pre-1970 Electric Resistance Welded (ERW) or flash welded pipe seams may be more susceptible to SCC. Pipe manufacturing type is an essential parameter in selecting SCCDA regions. Knowing the specifications and grade to which the pipe was made affects critical defect sizes and

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

remaining life predictions.

	0	Pipeline Coating Types –	Coating type may influe	ence the time at which
		depths Certain types of c	coating make the pipe mo	re susceptible to SCC
		especially tape and aspha	Itic coatings Coating tyr	es should be
		identified/known for girtl	n welds recoats and field	d renairs
	0	Operating Stress and Stre	r weids, recoard, and rick	n major role in defining
	0	susceptibility to SCC No	minal hoon stress pluys a	ine grade defines the
		percent Specified Minim	um Yield Strength (SMY	(S) to which the line
		operates which in turn af	fects susceptibility. The	presence of dents
		mechanical damage, bend	is casings weights etc.	can introduce local
		stresses, thereby increasi	ng susceptibility. Cyclic s	stress affects the crack
		growth rate	ig susceptionity. Cyclic i	stress arreets the cruck
	0	History of Pipeline Move	ement – Pipeline moveme	ent. including operations
	Ũ	such as rerouting or lowe	ring a line, affect local st	resses and susceptibility.
	0	Construction Characterist	tics – Significant differen	ces in construction
	Ũ	practices may require ser	arate SCCDA regions. L	ocations of valves.
		clamps, supports, taps, m	echanical couplings, etc.	. can be used to help
		determine changes in CP	that should be considered	d separately. Locations
		where CP levels are signi	ficantly affected by exter	rnal sources (e.g., high
		voltage electric transmiss	ion lines) should be treat	ed as separate SCCDA
		regions.	,	1
	0	Soil and Environment – S	Soil related and environm	ental factors should be
		reviewed along the entire	length of the pipeline to	determine any changes
		that necessitate separate 1	regions. Certain combinat	tions of soil type,
		topography, and drainage	are thought to be more c	conducive to SCC. They
		also influence the format	ion and susceptibility to e	external corrosion.
	0	Locations with Weights a	and Anchors – May affec	t local susceptibility.
	0	Casing Locations – Casir	igs are potential locations	s of shielding and coating
		damage.		
	0	Cathodic Protection Data	- The likelihood and ext	tent of cracking is
		strongly affected by the h	istoric and current CP lev	vels at to the pipe. Both
		high pH SCC and near ne	cutral pH SCC require lov	w (more positive than -
		850 mV) polarized poten	tials. The length of time	without CP is also
		important.		
	0	Leak and Repair History	<ul> <li>Information about pipe</li> </ul>	replacements or repairs
		may indicate where probl	ems may have occurred i	in the past. Replaced and
		recoated pipe will genera	lly be less susceptible to	cracking, assuming the
		replacement coating is of	high quality.	
•	SCCD	A regions may need to be	modified throughout the	SCCDA process. This
	could	be due to unexpected cond	itions. Any change shall	be documented and
	attach	ed to OPS-STD-0028-FOR	<u>-03</u> by the Integrity Engi	ineer. The Integrity
	Engin	eer shall also be responsibl	e for including any chang	ges to SCCDA regions in
	the fee	edback and continuous imp	provement section of the j	post-assessment step.
		0/15/2024		D ( 627
This copy was print	eu on I	0/13/2024		Page 6 of 37

PLX Gathering	LX Gathering & Processing Gathering & Processing Standard Document		ent		
tress Corrosion	n Cracking Dire	ct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-S7	TD-0028	Rev No: 1
election of ndirect nspection 'ools	<ul> <li>The Intershall be</li> <li>At least corrosio condition selected tools shell limitation tools list</li> <li>I tools list</li> <li>I tools I tools</li> <li>I tools I tools I tools I tools</li> <li>I tools I tools I</li></ul>	egrity Engineer shal used for each SCC two (2) complement n activity and coatins shall be perform for each SCCDA r build be selected success ons of another. This ted in Table 1. Recommended guid esting can be locate Recommended guid esting can be locate Recommended guid ACCA) and Altern ocated in Procedure Recommended guid Procedure 27 of <u>TS</u> Recommended guid Procedure 19 of <u>TS</u> of a tool not listed Team Lead or Engineented by the Integ-	Il select and document w DA region along the pip ntary indirect inspection ng conditions reliably u led over the entire length egion shall complement ch that the strengths of o program recognizes the lance for performing Clo ed in Procedure 6 of <u>TSO</u> lance for Direct Current ed in Procedure 7 of <u>TSO</u> lance for Alternating Cu ating Current Voltage C e 8 of <u>TSCP-006</u> . lance for soil resistivity <u>CP-006</u> . in Table 1 shall be appro- ineer. The justification a grity Engineer.	which indirect inspected eline segment. tools capable of det nder the specific pip of each SCCDA re- one another. Specifi ne tool compensate six (6) indirect insp ose Interval Survey (CP-006. Voltage Gradient (ICP-006. rrent Current Attenue tradient (ACVG) test y testing can be located by the segional nd verification of the	etion tools fecting beline egion. Tools fically, the for the bection (CIS) DCVG) uation sting can be ated in al Corrosion he tool shall
		Table 1: Reco	ognized Indirect Inspec	ction Tools	
	Indirect Inspection Tool	Measurement Attributes	Typical Uses	Less Suitable For	Comple- mentary Tools
	Close Interval Survey (CIS)	Measures structure-to- electrolyte potentials along the pipeline at 2.5 to 10-foot intervals.	Generally used to assess the performance of CP systems and generally estimate the location of coating holidays. Can also detect interference, shorted casings, electrical or geological shielding, contact with other	Pipelines that are below paved areas require holes to be drilled to the soil. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the	DCVG, ACVG, Pearson Survey, ACCA
			well as defective electrical isolation	pipe from CP current.	

Indirect Inspection Tool	Measurement Attributes	Typical Uses	Less Suitable For	Comple- mentary Tools
Close Interval Survey (CIS)	Measures structure-to- electrolyte potentials along the pipeline at 2.5 to 10-foot intervals.	Generally used to assess the performance of CP systems and generally estimate the location of coating holidays. Can also detect interference, shorted casings, electrical or geological shielding, contact with other metallic structures, as well as defective electrical isolation joints.	Pipelines that are below paved areas require holes to be drilled to the soil. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.	DCVG, ACVG, Pearson Survey, ACCA

#### **Table 1: Recognized Indirect Inspection Tools**

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1	

Current Attenuation Survey (ACCA)	Measures the electro- magnetic field attenuation emanating from the pipe induced with an AC signal. Qualitatively ranks coating quality and highlights areas with the largest holidays.	Can be used for pipelines under pavement and CP systems that are difficult to isolate.	Not indicative of structure-to- electrolyte potential or effectiveness of CP. Is ineffective under HV transmission lines. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.	CIS	
DCVG/ ACVG/ Pearson Survey	Measures voltage gradients resulting from current pickup and discharge points at holidays. Capable of precisely locating holidays on the pipeline.	Generally used to precisely locate large and small coating holidays on buried pipelines.	Pipelines that are below paved areas require holes to be drilled to the soil. Is not effective in detecting disbonded coatings that are shielding the pipe from CP current.	CIS	
Soil	Measures the resistivity of	Generally used to characterize the	Not indicative of the effectiveness of CP or in	CIS, DCVG, Pearson	
Resistivity	soil at different layers.	resistance and corrosivity of the soil.	determining the effectiveness of coating systems.	Survey, ACVG, ACCA	

- The Integrity Engineer shall determine the required number of tools to reliably detect corrosion activity for each SCCDA region. The same survey tools do not need to be used over the entire pipeline segment.
- Table 2 provides additional guidance for selecting indirect inspection tools and specifically addresses conditions under which some indirect inspection tools may not be practical or reliable.
- <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03</u> shall be used to document the indirect inspection tools selected. The Integrity Engineer shall complete this form and document supporting justification. This form and supporting technical justification shall be

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1	

|--|

Table 2: Indirect Inspection Tool Selection					
Conditions	Close Interval Survey (CIS)	Voltage Gradient Survey (DCVG and ACVG)	Pearson Survey	Current Attenuation Survey (ACCA)	
Coating holidays	2	1, 2	2	1, 2	
Anodic zones on bare pipe	2	3	3	3	
Near river or water crossings	2	2	2	2	
Under frozen ground	3	3	3	1, 2	
Stray currents	2	1, 2	2	1, 2	
Shielded corrosion activity	3	3	3	3	
Adjacent metallic structures	2	1, 2	3	1, 2	
Near parallel pipelines	2	1, 2	3	1, 2	
Under high voltage alternating current overhead electric transmission lines	2	1, 2	2	2	
Under paved roads	3	3	3	1, 2	
Crossing other pipelines	2	1, 2	2	1, 2	
Cased piping	3	3	3	3	
At very deep depth of cover	3	3	3	3	
Wetlands	2	1, 2	2	1, 2	
Rock terrain/rock ledges/rock backfill	3	3	3	2	

Key:

1 - Applicable: Small coating holidays (isolated and typically less than  $600 \text{ mm}^2$  (1 in<sup>2</sup>) and conditions that do not cause fluctuations in CP potentials under normal operating conditions)

2 - Applicable: Large coating holidays (isolated and continuous) or conditions that cause fluctuations in CP potentials under normal operating conditions

3 – Applicable: When it can be demonstrated, through sound engineering practice and thorough analysis of the inspection location, that chosen methodology produces accurate comprehensive results that result in a valid integrity assessment of the pipeline segment

Cased piping creates limitations for indirect inspection tools and the ability of

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028 Rev No: 1
	those tools to detect corrosid indirect inspection tools tha considerations should reflect of the data or information the main limitation of most indi- identify if there is a pipe-to- differentiate between contin	on activity. As such, other considerations are made for t shall be used for cased piping. Additional t the level of performance of each tool, and the nature hat can reasonably be expected from the tools. The rect inspection tools is that they can only reliably casing electrical continuity of some kind, but not uities.
Developing an Indirect Inspection Plan	<ul> <li>An indirect inspection plan inspections. The plan address specifications, safety proceed requirements. The plan shal         <ul> <li>Pipeline segment manidentified and labele</li> <li>Clearly defined SCC assessed</li> <li>Identified indirect in region and the seque</li> <li>Flagging and station</li> <li>The procedures for pathe limitations and setween readings</li> <li>Requirements on ove</li> <li>Weather or seasonal</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	shall be developed prior to commencing the indirect sees project logistics, survey procedures and lures, personnel requirements, and data analysis l include, but is not limited to, the following: ups with boundaries and pertinent information clearly d by location (e.g., bonds, casings, roads, etc.) CDA region(s) along the entire pipeline segment to be spection surveys to be performed within each SCCDA nce in which the surveys must be conducted ing methodology to be used during the surveys ence, or OQ requirements for the individuals ect inspection surveys performing each survey including, but not limited to, ensitivities of the technique and the spacing required erlapping surveys, if applicable considerations (frozen ground) ed by the Integrity Engineer and submitted to the Team Lead. The Regional Corrosion Control Team aging the plan.
Indirect Inspection		
Purpose	<ul> <li>The purpose of the indirect (Table 1) to identify and det areas where corrosion activity investigation. Two or more over the entire pipeline segr accuracy under the wide van pipeline right-of-way. The c the characteristics of differe being assessed.</li> <li>Aboveground survey data sl ECDA digs versus SCCDA on pipe that appears to be ac potential at the pipe surface</li> </ul>	inspection step is to conduct aboveground inspections fine the severity of coating faults, other anomalies, and ty may have or may be occurring in the areas under complementary indirect inspection tools shall be used nent under investigation to provide improved detection iety of conditions that may be encountered along a combination of indirect inspections may vary based on nt regions that may exist along the pipeline segment hould be analyzed differently when selecting sites for digs. For example, high pH SCC has been observed lequately protected in a CIS but where the actual is less negative because of shielding by disbonded

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 10 of 37

MPLX Gathering	& Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028 Rev No: 1
	coatings. For near neutral p inadequate CP, can allow S indications of coating holic problem areas.	oH SCC, the absence of CP, either due to shielding or SCC to proceed. Since SCC requires coating faults, lays in voltage gradient surveys could help identify
Conducting Indirect Inspections	<ul> <li>After the indirect inspection Control Team Lead or Eng accordance with the MPLX Protection Survey Procedur by a survey crew and each Technician/Specialist/Engi</li> <li>The indirect inspections sh time as practical.</li> <li>The pipeline shall be clearl and markings may be used weather, and terrain condit</li> <li>During the indirect inspect Accuracy shall be verified stationing to the alignment the measured stationing an shall be less than 2%. The any discrepancies. The pipe described aboveground loc reading and at every pipelin includes recording the posi</li> <li>Each pipeline mark</li> <li>CP test stations</li> <li>The edges and centur</li> <li>Road crossin</li> <li>Waterways</li> <li>Ditches</li> <li>Fences</li> <li>Overhead power lim</li> <li>Any sections of exp o Any locations with</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shal verify that the indirect insp inspection plan. Any such the the Integrity Engineer and findings shall also be revie Engineer.</li> </ul>	n plan has been approved by the Regional Corrosion ineer, the aboveground surveys shall be conducted in Corrosion Control Program, MPLX Cathodic res, and this standard. The surveys shall be completed survey crew shall include at least one Corrosion neer. all be conducted and completed as close together in y marked in the field. Photographs of the survey route to provide documentation of the route, markings, ions, during the surveys. ions, accurate stationing for readings shall be obtained. by the Integrity Engineer by comparing measured sheet for the pipeline segment. The difference between d the stationing of locations on the alignment sheet Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for resolving eline segment shall be located with reference to clearly ations. GPS measurements shall be collected at every ne feature or appurtenance along the right-of-way. This tion of the following: er er of: ngs hes lity crossings oosed pipe evidence of soil erosion along the right-of-way Il witness a portion, or all, of the indirect inspections to ection personnel are following the SCCDA indirect field audits and their findings shall be documented by given to the indirect inspection personnel. The audit wed by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or
Data Alignment	• The Integrity Engineer sha The results of data alignme	ll overlay the data sets from the indirect inspections. ent shall be documented as part of the final report. The
This copy wa	as printed on 10/15/2024	Page 11 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

and Comparison	<ul> <li>data shall be aligned such that individual indications on coated lines can be identified, or such that possible anodic regions on bare lines can be identified. The results of the surveys shall be compared to the pre-assessment data to confirm the feasibility of SCCDA and confirm SCCDA regions were appropriately defined. If discrepancies exist regarding the ability of tools to accurately inspect the pipeline segment or if data does not support the defined SCCDA regions, these discrepancies shall be resolved by the Integrity Engineer prior to proceeding to the next activity in the indirect inspection step. Any discrepancy, and associated resolution, shall be documented and attached to <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01</u>.</li> <li>The impact of spatial errors from various techniques shall be considered when aligning data. Any suspected spatial errors shall be investigated prior to indication classification and prioritization.</li> </ul>
<b>Identifications</b>	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for identifying SCCDA indications. Analysis software may also be used, if approved by Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, based on comparisons between surveys. The criteria for determining SCCDA indications may be determined on a per project basis as results may vary based local conditions and unique project factors. At a minimum, criteria for identifying SCCDA indications shall consider the following:         <ul> <li>The known sensitivities of the survey equipment</li> <li>The procedures used during the survey</li> <li>The approach used for decreasing the physical spacing between measurements</li> </ul> </li> <li>The criteria for identifying SCCDA indications shall be based on sound engineering practice and conform to generally accepted industry practices. Typically, potential SCCDA indications are changes in measured values that exceed normal variations (e.g., "noise") and cannot be explained by changes in conditions along the SCCDA region. For example, a signal strength change that is greater than five times the instrument resolution might be considered an indication. When a clear determination cannot be made regarding indications, assumptions shall be conservative such that a potential indication is considered to be an indication unless additional investigation proves otherwise. Additionally, any changes to the criteria during the selection process shall be documented with justification.</li> <li>The final criteria for selecting SCCDA indications shall be documented by the Integrity Engineer. The criteria shall then be verified and approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. These criteria shall be attached to <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01</u>. Selection criteria need not be the same for each SCCDA region, however if criteria are different, the different criteria shall be documented with justification for the differences.</li> <li>SCCDA indications shall be selected b</li></ul>

• SCCDA indications shall be selected by evaluating superimposed data from different SCCDA tools, local environmental conditions, and physical pipeline features. When potential indications from multiple tools (and other related information) coincide, the location will be considered an SCCDA indication. Indications shall be chosen using engineering analysis and judgment of signal

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 12 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1	

relevance (e.g., CIS dips, alignment with DCVG, etc.).

	<ul> <li>Locations where the indirect inspection survey results are not consistent shall be identified. Locations where one survey identifies an indication, but others do not, shall be evaluated to determine if the discrepancies can be explained by inherent tool capabilities or specific/localized pipeline features or conditions. If discrepancies cannot be explained, additional surveys or preliminary direct examinations shall be considered as follows:         <ul> <li>Use additional complementary survey tools.</li> <li>Use an approach to decrease the physical spacing of indirect inspection tool readings is followed when the presence of an indication is suspected.</li> <li>Perform preliminary direct examinations to resolve discrepancies, provided the examinations identify a localized and isolated cause of the discrepancy.</li> <li>If the above do not resolve the discrepancies, SCCDA feasibility may be re-assessed. In addition, additional direct examinations may be considered, or the location may be prioritized as for immediate action required in the direct examination step.</li> </ul> </li> <li>While SCCDA is suited for detecting SCC, it is capable of detecting other threats to the pipeline. Data that have been integrated from other sources shall be considered and when identifying indications.</li> </ul>
	considered when identifying indications. Other sources include operational or incident data, encroachment records, "one call" records, or data showing close proximity of foreign structures. If an indication from the SCCDA process detects an anomaly where another integrity threat may exist, for example a location where third-party damage may have occurred, these locations may be considered for direct examination.
Classification of Indication Severity	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall define and apply severity classification criteria for identified SCCDA indications based on the likelihood of corrosion activity. The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for ensuring that the criteria are documented. The final criteria shall be attached to <u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01</u>. The final criteria shall also be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. The criteria shall take into account the specific conditions along the pipeline during the survey. The following classifications shall be used at a minimum:         <ul> <li>Severe - Indications that are considered as having the highest likelihood of corrosion activity</li> <li>Moderate - Indications that are considered as having possible corrosion activity</li> <li>Minor - Indications that are considered inactive or have the lowest likelihood of corrosion activity</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

• More detailed criteria may be used if necessary. Table 3 provides general guidelines of indication classification. A weighted algorithm shall be used to determine the indication classification. The algorithm applies a numerical value for each survey result and then factors are applied to these numerical values to provide more significance to the results deemed most likely to be associated with corrosion activity.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Table 3: General Guidelines for Indication Classifications					
Tool/Environment	Minor	Moderate	Severe		
CIS, aerated, moist soil	Small dips with on and off potentials above CP criteria	Medium dips or off potentials below CP criteria	Large dips or on and off potentials below CP criteria		
DCVG survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop; cathodic conditions at indication when CP is on and off	Medium voltage drop and/or neutral conditions at indication when CP is off	High voltage drop and/or anodic conditions when CP is on or off		
ACVG or Pearson survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop	Medium voltage drop	High voltage drop		
Soil resistivity	Mildly corrosive soil	Corrosive soil	Very corrosive soil		
ACCA survey	Small increase in attenuation per unit length	Moderate increase in attenuation per unit length	Large increase in attenuation per unit length		

- Table 4 provides an example methodology for determining a numerical value score for each survey result. The determination criteria provided in Table 4 may be used as a default, altered by the Integrity Engineer, if necessary, to meet the needs of each individual project. Any alteration to the numerical weighting shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer. This process also applies for cased piping; however, a different algorithm should be utilized based on a numerical score assigned to each survey result used to analyze the cased piping. The numerical weight applied to each variable is based on the confidence of the data collected and the increased likelihood of corrosion based on the survey finding. A higher calculated weighting factor (W), see Equation 1, is a result of the severity of the individual indications based on the accuracy of the
  - result of the severity of the individual indications based on the accuracy of the indirect tool. As such, more severe indications coupled with a less accurate survey technique result in a more conservative and thus higher priority ranking for direct examination classifications.

Table 4: Criteria for Classifying Indications with Numerical Rankings	5
---	---

Variable	Tool/	Minor	Moderate	Severe
variable	Environment	0.5 Score	1.5 Score	2.5 Score

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

A1	CIS, aerated, moist soil - CP meets protection criteria	Off doesn't meet -0.85 V criterion but meets 100 mV criterion	On meets -0.85 V criterion, Off doesn't meet -0.85 V criterion or 100 mV criterion	On & Off doesn't meet - 0.85 V criterion or 100 mV criterion, or reverse potential shift
B1	DCVG survey, similar conditions	<15% IR	16 to 35 % IR	>35 % IR
B2	CIS, aerated, moist soil – potential dips	<50 mV dip	50 – 100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""><td>&gt;100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""></criteria<></td></criteria<>	>100 mV dip or <criteria< td=""></criteria<>
B3	Wenner 4-pin	>10,000 Ohm- cm	1000-10000 Ohm-cm	<1000 Ohm-cm
B4	ACVG or Pearson survey, similar conditions	Low voltage drop	Medium voltage drop	High voltage drop
B5	ACCA survey	Low signal loss	Medium signal loss	Large signal loss
B6	Carrier structure-to- electrolyte and casing-to- electrolyte potential test	Potential difference greater than 100 mV	Potential difference between 100 mV and 5 mV	Potential difference smaller than 5 mV

• An example weighting algorithm for combining indirect survey results and determining the severity classification is as follows:

#### Equation 1: $W = 3A_1 + 2B_{(1 \text{ or } 4 \text{ or } 5)} + B_{(2 \text{ or } 3 \text{ or } 6)}$

#### Where:

- $\circ$  A<sub>1</sub> = The numerical score of the CIS survey results (CP meets protection criteria) where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>1</sub> = The numerical score of the DCVG survey results where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>4</sub> = The numerical score of the ACVG or Pearson survey results where anomalies are identified

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

- $\circ$  B<sub>5</sub> = The numerical score of the ACCA survey results where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>2</sub> = The numerical score of the CIS survey results (potential dips) where anomalies are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>3</sub> = The numerical score of the soil resistivity results where potentially corrosive environments are identified
- $\circ$  B<sub>6</sub> = The numerical score of the carrier structure-to-electrolyte and casing-to-electrolyte potential test
- Final classification of the SCCDA indications based on the weighted algorithm could then be determined based on the ranges provided in Table 5.

Table 5. Indications Severity Classification Range			
Indication Severity Classification	Weighting Algorithm (W) Range		
Severe	$12 \le W \le 15$		
Moderate	$6 \le W < 12$		
Minor	$0.5 \le W \le 6$		

#### Table 5: Indications Severity Classification Range

- The classification ranges presented in Table 5 may be used as a default; however, the Integrity Engineer may consider the use of a different weighting algorithm based on the specific pipeline conditions. The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall approve the weighted algorithm used. The indication severity classification algorithm shall be documented.
- The indication severity for identified indications shall be documented in <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05</u> by the Integrity Engineer. This information shall be approved by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.

#### **Site Selection**

- The Integrity Engineer, in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, is responsible for selecting SCCDA direct examination sites. SCCDA direct examination sites are based on an analysis of the coating, stresses, soil, drainage, topography, and CP performance (current and historical) along the line. As part of this data integration, a loading analysis shall be conducted. The loading analysis should characterize the stresses along the pipeline, including cyclic and secondary stresses, and identify locations where stresses are high or otherwise elevated.
  - The Integrity Engineer shall select more direct examination sites than required to provide extras in the event a site is inaccessible or not otherwise suitable for excavation.
  - Table 6 summarizes factors that shall be considered in selecting sites. For additional information, see the SCC Management information in LO-18.001-STD.

Tuble of Summary of Enduration Sciection Criteria for Second
--

|--|

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

SCC has been previously found on or near the line	Similar locations
Coating type	• Coal tar: high pH SCC
	• Polyethylene tape or asphalt: near neutral pH SCC
Coating condition	Areas of disbonded and/or damaged coating
Cathodic protection	Areas that have exhibited dips in CP levels and in areas that are difficult to protect (e.g., near ends of casings)
Operating stress (high pH SCC)	Highest stress areas, locations over 60% SMYS
Locally elevated stresses (near neutral pH SCC)	Near the long seam, dents, near bends, including overbends and sagbends
Age	Older segments
Temperature (high pH SCC)	Locations with historic or current operating temperatures over 100 degrees Fahrenheit
Other factors	See the SCC Management information in <u>LO-</u> <u>18.001-STD</u> .

#### Direct Examination Purpose

- The purpose of the direct examination step is to look for SCC and assess whether conditions suitable for SCC to develop are present. Conditions suitable for SCC include large areas of disbonded or damaged coating, signs of ineffective CP, and electrolyte pH in the range needed for cracking (10 to 12 for high pH SCC and 5 to 7 for near neutral pH SCC).
- If SCC is detected, the presence, extent, type, and severity of the SCC shall be assessed. Depending on the severity of the SCC found, additional direct examinations and/or other integrity assessments may be required. All pipelines on which SCC is found shall be managed in accordance with the SCC Management information in <u>LO-18.001-STD</u>.
- Sites selected for direct examination require exposure of the pipeline and coating surface so that a detailed inspection and examination can be performed. The direct examination step includes the following activities:
  - Site prioritization
  - Minimum number of excavations
  - Minimum excavation lengths
  - Scheduling of excavations
  - Excavation and initial data collection
  - Coating damage and external metal loss data collection
  - SCC related data collection
  - Cracking severity evaluation

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Site Prioritization	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer, in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, is responsible for prioritizing sites for excavation and inspection. In general, prioritization should be in order of perceived susceptibility to SCC. The SCC Management information in LO-18.001-STD contains additional information on susceptibility.</li> <li>If previous excavations have been performed due to any reason for direct examination, the results of the direct examinations of those excavations shall be taken into account in prioritizing sites. The year-round conditions around a pipeline shall also be considered in setting the excavation priority. This includes physical characteristics of each SCCDA region. In addition, consideration shall be given to prior CP history, stresses on the pipe, and the pipe's strength and ability to withstand cracking without failure.</li> </ul>
Minimum Number of Excavations	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for selecting the number of sites for direct examination. The minimum number of direct examinations shall be determined according to the SCC Management information in LO-18.001-STD and the guidelines given below. Additional sites may be required if SCC or conditions suitable for SCC are found.</li> <li>The minimum number of direct examinations is no less than: <ul> <li>Two excavations in the SCCDA region deemed most susceptible and</li> <li>One excavation in the next most susceptible SCCDA region</li> </ul> </li> <li>Note that when linear indications or conditions suitable for SCC are found at an excavation site, additional digs or mitigation shall be required.</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer, in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, shall determine the number of additional digs and/or mitigation.</li> <li>Previous excavations may be substituted for SCCDA digs if: <ul> <li>All necessary data has been collected,</li> <li>The location has a susceptibility at least as high as the location for which it is being substituted, and</li> <li>The excavations may be substituted for no more than half of the required minimum number of digs.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Minimum Excavation Lengths	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for defining the length of each SCC investigative excavation based on information from CIS, terrain condition, etc. The following guidelines apply:</li> <li>Except when an excavation site is selected to investigate locally elevated stresses (e.g., near welds, dents, bends, etc.), consideration shall be given to excavating/inspecting the entire pipe joint and 10 feet of the upstream and downstream pipe joints.</li> <li>When an excavation site is selected to investigate near welds and dents, consideration shall be given to excavating/inspecting at least two feet on either side of the weld or dent.</li> </ul>

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard	Document
Stress Corrosio	n Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1
Scheduling	<ul> <li>When an excavation site is a consideration shall be given</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall be respectively and the statement of the state</li></ul>	selected to investigate near bends on to excavating/inspecting the entire ponsible for establishing a schedule selected based on the excavation pr	other features, pipe joint. for conducting
	<ul> <li>number of excavations at an ideations number of excavations to be conducted within 30 days after a determination SCC. In determining a schedule, the</li> <li>Permitting</li> <li>Right-of-way access</li> <li>Time needed to ensure that</li> <li>Time needed to ensure that</li> <li>The schedule may recognized been applied for but not app</li> </ul>	cted. The excavation schedule shall n has been made that a line segment e Integrity Engineer shall consider i adequate inspection equipment is av appropriate crews are available e that, for example, permitting in a p proved by the correspondent authori	be developed is susceptible to ssues such as: vailable public area has ty.
Excavations and Initial Data Collection	<ul> <li>A qualified representative o Qualified representatives in Control Team Lead or Engi- individuals. The representat performed as per MPLX pro- shall be taken during the ex- removing any corrosion or p analysis.</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall techniques are applied at ex- inspecting the entire expose Inspection (MPI) with a con- locations which are indicati- o Corrosion and/or cat O Coating is disbonded O Moisture (electrolyte</li> </ul>	f MPLX shall be present during all clude the Integrity Engineer, Region neer, or an individual deemed accep- ive shall be responsible for ensuring ocedures during excavations and dat cavation to avoid damaging the pipe protective products that are critical to be responsible for ensuring that ap- cavation sites. Consideration should d area. At a minimum, wet Magneti- itats coating shall be performed at to ve of coating breakdown: hodic deposits are present. d or damaged.	excavations. hal Corrosion stable by approved g all work is a collection. Care eline coating and o the overall propriate NDT d be given to a Particle the following
	<ul> <li>Within 6 inches of a</li> <li>Dig photographs (with an apshall be documented. Each of the location of the center of point, such as a weld and a deach detected crack cluster as below.</li> <li>An Inspector (per the Quality during the direct examination shall be documented using geverified and approved by the direct examination. Relevant</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall accordance with the required</li> </ul>	Il welds and within 2 feet of all stre ppropriate ruler or scale) at all SCC detected cluster shall be given a uni the colony shall be identified relati- clock position. Following completic shall be photo documented and eval fications section) is responsible for ons. Data collected during each direct <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06</u> . Data collected for shall the data listed on the form shall be co liverify that the number of digs perfit d number of direct examinations. The	ss risers. excavation sites que identifier and ve to a reference on of the wet MPI, uated as described data collection ct examination ected shall be l be completed per llected. formed is in he Integrity

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 19 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Engineer shall also record the final date of completion of the direct examinations.

Coating	• Examination of the coating surface shall be performed and recorded in <u>OPS-STD-</u>
Damage and	002/-FOR-06. The following guidelines shall be adhered to during coating and
External	pipe surface examination:
Metal Loss	• If products are present on the pipe surface, the products shall be analyzed
Data	with field chemical testing for pH and specific ions (iron, carbonates, and
Collection	sulfides).
	• The coating condition shall be recorded. The coating condition evaluation
	includes such observations as blistering and lack of adhesion. The area of
	any pipeline with no coating, loosely adhered coating, and disbonded
	coating shall be estimated. Viable qualitative adhesion tests shall be
	performed. The coating shall also be inspected for the presence of holidays
	and coating thickness. All coating conditions, observations, and
	measurements shall be documented.
	• A coating sample shall be obtained carefully using a clean knife to expose
	the steel beneath the coating, if possible. Coating samples shall be placed
	in sealed plastic bags identified by dig location, sample location, date, and
	person gathering the samples. No coating samples will be needed if the
	coating is intact and well adhered to the pipe surface.
	• If liquid or moisture is present on the pipe surface, the pH of the liquid
	shall be measured. However, in case of no liquid or moisture, the addition
	of deionized water shall be used to measure the <b>nH</b> on the nine surface
	$\sim$ In case of any coating damage or coating holiday, the coating shall be
	removed in order to perform pipe wall examination. Correlation of any
	possible relationship between coating and pipeline surface damages shall
	be documented
	o Structure to electrolyte polerized potentials shall be taken at both the
	• Structure-to-electrolyte polarized potentials shall be taken at both the
	Ding well thickness measurements, at all four guadrants (2, 6, 0, and 12)
	• Pipe wall thickness measurements, at all four quadrants (3, 6, 9, and 12
	o clock) and at upstream and downstream ends, shall be measured to
	obtain reliable and actual wall thickness.
	• If the ends are underneath well adhered coating, wall thickness
	readings shall only be made at the indication location.
	• The presence of any external metal loss and mechanical damage shall be
	documented. The external metal loss will be characterized as general,
	localized, or pitting. Data collection for external metal loss shall be in
	accordance with $\underline{\text{LO-18.001-STD}}$ . At a minimum, the length, width, and
	depth of the external metal loss, as defined in <u>LO-18.001-STD</u> , shall be
	recorded.
	• Photographs of examination findings shall be collected. This includes finding the
	pipe exposed in good condition and/or free of anomalies.
SCC-Related	Per <u>NACE SP0204</u> , the types of SCCDA data to be considered for collection are included
Data	in Table 7. All items listed as "Required Element for SCCDA" shall be collected.

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 20 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

**Collection** Additional data collection for SCCDA is described in the SCC Management information in LO-18.001-STD.

# Table 7: Data Collected at a Dig Site in an SCCDA Program and RelativeImportance

Data Element	When Collected	Use and Interpretation of Results	Ranking*
Structure-to- electrolyte potential (IR-free)	Prior to coating removal	Useful for comparison with ground surface structure-to- electrolyte potential (IR-free) measurements.	D
Soil resistivity	Prior to coating removal	Related to soil corrosiveness and soluble cation concentration of soil. Useful for comparison with results of soil and groundwater analyses.	С
Soil samples	Prior to coating removal	Useful in confirming terrain conditions. Soil analysis results can be trended in predictive model.	В
Groundwater samples	Prior to coating removal	Chemistry results can be trended in predictive model.	В
Coating system	Prior to coating removal	Required element. Used for field site verification and in predictive model development.	А
Coating condition	Prior to coating removal	Can be related to extent of SCC found.	С
Measurement of coating disbondment	Prior to coating removal	Locations of disbondment can be related to presence of cracking and other measured data.	С
Electrolyte	Prior to coating removal	Useful in establishing type of cracking. Can be related to groundwater chemistry.	С
Photograph of dig site	Prior to coating removal	Useful in confirming terrain conditions, coating system, and coating condition.	D
Data for other integrity analyses	Before and after coating removal	Data for other analyses (e.g., dent measurements) may be related to occurrence of SCC.	C, D

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Deposit description and photograph	After coating removal	Useful in establishing type of cracking.	С
Deposit analysis	After coating removal	Useful in establishing type of cracking.	С
Identification and measurement of corrosion defects	After coating removal	Used for integrity assessment of corrosion defects. Also used in establishing type of SCC, if present.	A, D
Photograph of corrosion defects	After coating removal	Used in integrity assessments.	D
Identify weld seam type	After coating removal	Required element. Used in field site verification.	А
MPI	After coating removal	Required element for SCCDA. Establishes whether SCC is present.	А
Location and size of each cluster	After coating removal	Required element for SCCDA. Used to establish correlation of location with other parameters measured.	A
Crack length and depth measurements	After coating removal	Required element for SCCDA. Used to establish significance of cracking and determine whether there is an immediate integrity concern.	A
In situ metallography	After coating removal	Used to establish type of SCC.	В
Photograph clusters	After coating removal	Required element for SCCDA. Used to confirm crack measurements.	А
Wall thickness measurements	After coating removal	Required element. Used in integrity assessments and field site verification.	A, D
Measure pipe diameter	After coating removal	Required element. Used in integrity assessments and field site verification.	A, D
* The relative importa A: Required element f B: Optional (likely use C: Optional (might be D: Useful background	nce of each data elem for SCCDA eful in SCCDA mode useful in SCCDA mode information or inforr	hent (indicated in the last column) i l development) odel development) nation used in other analyses	is:
s printed on 10/15/202	24	Page 22 of 37	
25 2:07:38 PM			

- C: Optional (might be useful in SCCDA model development)
- D: Useful background information or information used in other analyses
| MPLX Gathering & Processing                 | Gathering & Processing Standard | d Document |
|---|---------------------------------|------------|
| Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment | Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028        | Rev No: 1  |

- Classification of Cracking
- When linear indications are observed during the nondestructive inspections, the Integrity Engineer shall ensure that the following information is collected. Where practical, this information shall be collected for each individual crack cluster. The Integrity Engineer shall consult with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer before, during, and after data collection, as appropriate.
- **Colony Dimensions** The colony length is the total length of the colony in the • axial direction. The colony width is the total width of the colony in the circumferential direction. The maximum length is the longest axial extent of the colony, which might be different from the colony length or width, depending on the colony orientation. The maximum width is the dimension of the colony perpendicular to the length direction. Figure 1 defines these dimensions.



**Figure 1: Colony Dimensions** 

**Interlinking of Cracks** - Cracks are defined to have interlinked if they physically have joined (coalesced) to form one longer crack (Figure 2).



**Figure 2: Interlinking of Cracks** 

Interacting of Cracks - Crack interaction depends on the circumferential and axial separation between individual cracks and is calculated as follows (Figure 3):



**Figure 3: Interaction of Cracks** 

Two neighboring cracks are defined as interacting if their circumferential 0 spacing, Y, is less than 14% of the average crack length:

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 23 of 37

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

$$Y \leq 0.14 \frac{(l_1 + l_2)}{2}$$

• Two neighboring cracks are defined as interacting if their axial spacing is less than 25% of the average crack length, where  $l_1$  and  $l_2$  are the individual crack lengths:

$$X < 0.25 \frac{(l_1 + l_2)}{2}$$

• **Maximum Interacting Crack Length** - Determine the maximum crack length, including interlinking and interacting cracks. The maximum interlinked crack length is the total length of the longest interacting and interlinking cracks, as defined above (Figure 4).



Figure 4: Maximum Interacting Crack Length

- **Crack Depth** Determine the maximum crack depth for evaluating crack severity and estimating the failure pressure. Since typically the longer cracks are also deeper, grinding should be performed on them first. If grinding is to be performed on a pressurized line, the initial wall thickness shall be determined by Ultrasonic Testing (UT), and a safe wall thickness shall be maintained at all times during grinding. Consideration shall be given to a pressure reduction before grinding.
- **Crack Density** Determine whether the cracking is dense (crack spacing less than 20% of the wall thickness) or sparse (crack spacing greater than or equal to 20% of the wall thickness).
- Location of SCC with Respect to Stress Risers Determine the position of the SCC in relationship to welds (e.g., at the weld toe, in base metal adjacent to the weld, in weld metal, or away from the weld). For dents, determine whether the cracking is at the shoulder, the maximum depth, or elsewhere. Also determine the crack location relative to any metal loss in or around the dent.
- **Type of SCC** If practical, document factors that could be related to the type of cracking. Typical factors are shown in Table 8.
  - In situ metallography may be performed to determine the crack path of the SCC (intergranular versus transgranular) and establish the type of SCC (High-pH SCC [intergranular] versus Near-Neutral-pH SCC [transgranular]). It can also help determine if the indication is a crack, sliver, lamination, etc. Removal of metal samples for destructive analysis may provide improved data on crack morphology, origin, and propagation.

Page 3	363	of	<b>48</b> .
--------	-----	----	-------------

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Table 8: Factors for Identifying High-pH SCC and Near-Neutral-pH SCC		
Near-Neutral-pH SCC	High-pH SCC	
Frequently associated with light surface corrosion of the pipe	Usually not associated with obvious external corrosion	
Generally has poor CP	Generally well protected with CP	
Tends to be wider than High-pH SCC; is sometimes visible to the naked eye	Tends to be narrower than Near-Neutral-pH SCC; is rarely visible to the naked eye	
Often associated with local stress risers, such as dents, welds, and transitions	Sometimes associated with welds and dents but can occur anywhere on the pipe	
More common under tape and asphalt coatings	More common under coal tar coating	
Electrolyte pH in the range of 5.5 to 7.5	Electrolyte pH in the range of 9 to 11 (or higher)	
Can occur anywhere along the length of a pipeline segment	More commonly found within 20 miles of pump stations	

• Cracking Severity Evaluation - Where linear indications are found, the Integrity Engineer, in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, shall ensure that the severity of representative individual and interlinked cracks are determined using a suitable fracture mechanics analysis. The severity is defined by the SCC Management information in LO-18.001-STD.

Post-Assessment Purpose

- The purpose of the post-assessment is to determine if SCC mitigation is required and assess the effectiveness of the SCCDA direct assessment process and define re-assessment intervals. The post-assessment step includes the following activities:
  - Determining mitigation
  - Assessment of SCCDA effectiveness
  - o Definition of re-assessment intervals
  - Feedback for continuous improvement
- Upon completion of the project, the Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for compiling and submitting a final report to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead summarizing all phases of the project. The report shall also include all supporting documentation.
- Upon receipt of the report, the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead shall review the report and create an action plan for addressing any un-resolved issues. Any action plans are included in the final report. This action plan and the report shall be submitted to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer for approval.
- If SCC is found, the Integrity Engineer, in consultation with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, shall be responsible for identifying all

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1
Dotomining	other locations within the p similar conditions exist, the	ipeline segment where similar concesse locations shall be evaluated.	litions may exist. If
Determining Mitigation	<ul> <li>For SCCDA, guidance for mitigation on pipelines is provided in Part AS of <u>ASME</u> <u>B31.8S</u> and in the SCC Management information in <u>LO-18.001-STD</u>. When applying <u>ASME B31.8S</u> to liquids pipelines, the characteristics of the pipeline segment shall be considered. Additional guidance for pipelines subject to near-neutral-pH SCC is provided in the <u>CEPA Stress Corrosion Cracking</u> <u>Recommended Practices</u>. When applying guidance found in these documents to liquids pipelines, the potential for fatigue and or corrosion fatigue shall be considered in order to establish appropriate intervals for inspection and mitigation activities.</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer, in conjunction with the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer, is responsible for determining the need for mitigation and remedial action. Mitigation and/or remedial action is required if Category 1, 2, 3, or 4 SCC is found.</li> </ul>		
Definition of Re- Assessment Interval	<ul> <li>The Integrity Engineer, in a Lead or Engineer, shall esta such as:         <ul> <li>The extent and seven investigation</li> <li>The estimated rate of of the pipe containint</li> <li>The total length of t</li> <li>The total length of p</li> <li>The potential consert</li> </ul> </li> <li>The re-assessment interval 0028-FOR-04.</li> </ul>	consultation with the Regional Corr ablish the re-assessment intervals be writy of the SCC detected during the of propagation of the crack clusters ing the clusters he pipe segment potentially susceptible pipe within to quences of a failure within a given justification shall be documented u	rosion Control Team ased on information original and remaining life the segment segment sing <u>OPS-STD-</u>
SCCDA Effectiveness	<ul> <li>Process Validation         <ul> <li>Additional process vassessment. While of separately, the valid examinations as all timeframe.</li> <li>At least one (1) add be considered at a rathis is the first time validation direct examination direct examinatin direct examinatin direct exa</li></ul></li></ul>	validation excavations are optional data from these excavations would be lation excavations may be planned excavations will likely occur within itional direct examination in the pip andom location to validate the proc SCCDA is applied to the pipeline s aminations should be documented i sed to determine the long-term effect erformance measures can include the mber of lines subjected to SCCDA	as part of the post- be analyzed as part of the direct n the same peline segment may ess, especially if segment. Additional n <u>OPS-STD-0027-</u> ectiveness of the he following:

Page 26 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1
	<ul> <li>Whe         <ul> <li>The result of the second program</li> <li>A tally of the second promotion</li> <li>The number</li> <li>Whe                 <ul> <li>The number</li> <li>Whe</li> <li>If so, provide the second program</li> <li>The number second to a (ILI) program</li> <li>The Regional Corrosion Correspondence of the second provement evaluate the SCCDA applic completion and outcome of the documented in the final the Integrity Engineer and the shall verify and approve the</li> <li>See the SCC Management in the second provement is the second provement in the second provement in the second provement is the second provement in the second provement in the second provement is the second provement in the second provement in the second provement is the secon</li></ul></li></ul></li></ul>	ther ECDA was concurrently conduct number of SCCDA direct examination e number and severity of SCC found gram) of in-service and hydrotest releases ther the line was subjected to SCCD , findings from the SCCDA program imity of the releases to direct examin and types of escalations (e.g., movin a hydrostatic pressure (re)testing or I m based on SCCDA findings) ontrol Team Lead or Engineer shall be ed to evaluate SCCDA effectiveness at between applications, measures shall be cation process or consider alternative of the validation study and any specific report. The process validation shall be the Regional Corrosion Control Tear e findings.	cted ons (digs) I (in or outside the attributed to SCC A I, including the nation sites ng a line from n-Line Inspection be responsible for S. If the evaluation ould be taken to re- e methods. The c comments shall be completed by n Lead or Engineer nore details.
Feedback and Continuous Improvement	<ul> <li>The Regional Corrosion Coensuring that actions are tall SCCDA process through a types of feedback are consision. Data collection method Remaining strengthology Remaining strengthology Mitigation</li> <li>Additional direct example Additional direct example Additional criteria for Proper scheduling a ensuring the long-texample of Lessons learned</li> <li>The Integrity Engineer shall continuous comments for examproved by the Regional Corrosion Coefficient of the Coefficien</li></ul>	ontrol Team Lead or Engineer shall be keen to continuously improve the app timely and quality-oriented feedback dered: hods and effectiveness evaluation aminations for process validation for assessing the SCCDA effectivene and monitoring of the re-assessment if form effectiveness of the SCCDA pro- l be responsible for summarizing feed ach project. These findings shall be Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer for the final report. The final report is responsed by the final report is responsed by the final report. The final report is responsed by the final report is responsed by the final report. The final report is responsed by the final report is responsed by the final report. The final report is responsed by the final report is reported by the final report is reported by the final report is responsed by the final report is reported by the final report is report is reported by the final report	e responsible for lication of the a. The following ess intervals for cess edback and verified and gineer. All mented by the bonsible for informing project e responsibility of rm team members

## **Survey Records**

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard	d Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1

Survey Record Keeping	In accordance with this plan, the Integrity Engineer shall be responsible for documenting forms, reports, and supporting data. This includes the approval of the SCCDA process. Approval of this SCCDA process is located in LO-18.001-STD. This documentation shall be submitted to the Regional Corrosion Control Team		
	each of the four steps of the SCCDA process		
	<ul> <li>Following the verification of all forms and reports, the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be responsible for storing all documentation. Documentation has required signatures prior to storage. All documentation for an SCCDA project shall be stored in the Documents folder located on the Logistics network drive and maintained for the life of the asset. Below is a summary of the data, forms, and reports that shall be documented throughout the process.</li> </ul>		
	• Project		
	- To act as a supplement to the Integrity Assessment Form		
	<ul> <li>Used for approval of the project and a guide throughout the</li> </ul>		
	process		
	<ul> <li>This form also acts a checklist for the process to ensure all</li> </ul>		
	activities are completed and documented		
	• Pre-Assessment		
	<ul> <li>SCCDA Data Element Form (<u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02</u>)</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>ECDA/SCCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection Form (<u>OPS-</u></li> </ul>		
	SCCDA Bagional Analysis Form (ODS STD 0028 FOD 02)		
	<ul> <li>SCCDA Regional Analysis Form (<u>OPS-STD-0028-FOR-05</u>)</li> <li>Indirect Inspection Plan</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Pre-assessment data collected</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Includes assumptions made about data elements.</li> </ul>		
	- Technical justification used during tool selection		
	• Indirect Inspection		
	<ul> <li>Raw survey data</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Aligned survey data</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Direct Examination</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification &amp; Dig Site</li> </ul>		
	Summary Form, Prioritization column ( <u>OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05</u> )		
	– Documentation of criteria used with supporting justification		
	<ul> <li>Excavation summary</li> </ul>		
	Field data collected		
	• Post-Assessment		
	Final Report		

- Summary of pre-assessment
- Summary of indirect inspection
- Summary of direct examination
- Mitigation
- Re-Assessment interval
- SCCDA effectiveness

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 28 of 37

Printed copies should be used with caution. The user of this document must ensure the current approved version of the document is being used.

MPLX Gatherin	ng & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028Rev No: 1
	– F – F	Feedback for continuous improvement Recommendations
Definitions	Active	(1) A state of a metal surface that is corroding without significant influence of reaction product; (2) the negative direction of electrode potential.
	Alternating Current Current Attenuation (ACCA) Survey	A method of measuring the overall condition of the coating on a pipeline based on the application of electromagnetic field propagation theory. Concomitant data collected may include depth, coating resistance and conductance, anomaly location, and anomaly type.
	Alternating Current Voltage Gradient (ACVG) Survey	A method of measuring the change in leakage current in the soil along and around a pipeline to locate coating holidays and characterize corrosion activity.
	Anomaly	Any deviation from nominal conditions in the external wall of a pipe, its coating, or the electromagnetic conditions around the pipe.
	Cathodic Protection	A technique to reduce the corrosion rate of a metal surface by making that surface the cathode of an electrochemical cell.
	Classification	The process of estimating the likelihood of corrosion activity at an indirect inspection indication under typical year-round conditions.
	Close-Interval Survey	A method of measuring the potential between the pipe and earth at regular intervals along the pipeline.
	Cluster	A grouping of stress corrosion cracks (colony). Typically, stress corrosion cracks occur in groups consisting of hundreds or thousands of cracks within a relatively confined area.
	Coalescence	Joining of two or more cracks that are in close proximity to form one larger crack.
	Colony	A grouping of stress corrosion cracks (cluster). Typically, stress corrosion cracks occur in groups consisting of hundreds or thousands of cracks within a relatively confined area. See Cluster.

IPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
tress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Do	oc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1
Corrosion	The der results its envi	terioration of a material, usual from a chemical or electroche	ly a metal, that mical reaction with
Corrosion Activity	A state that is s of a pip	in which corrosion is active a sufficient to reduce the pressur- be during the pipeline design li	nd ongoing at a rate re-carrying capacity ife.
Critical Flaw Size	The din fail at a	mensions (length and depth) of a given level of pressure or stre	f a flaw that would ess.
Defect	An and carryin docum be SCC	maly in the pipe wall that reduge a capacity of the pipe. For the ent, any crack-like indication to a considered a defect.	uces the pressure- purposes of this hat is confirmed to
Direct Current Voltage Gradient Survey (DCVG)	A meth gradier coating	nod of measuring the change ir nt in the soil along and around g holidays and characterize cor	n electrical voltage a pipeline to locate rosion activity.
Direct Examination	Inspect at exca	ions and measurements made vations as part of SCCDA.	on the pipe surface
Disbonded Coating	Any lo a pipe s attack, etc. Dis with a	ss of adhesion between the pro- surface as a result of adhesive mechanical damage, hydroger sbonded coating may or may n coating holiday.	ptective coating and failure, chemical a concentrations, not be associated
Electrolyte	A chen electric electro contact the mo	nical substance containing ions c field. For the purposes of this lyte refers to the soil or liquid t with a buried metallic piping isture and other chemicals con	s that migrate in an s standard, adjacent to and in system, including tained therein.
External Corrosion Direct Assessment (ECDA)	A four- indirec assessm the inte	-step process that combines pro t inspection, direct examination nent to evaluate the effect of e egrity of a pipeline.	e-assessment, n, and post- xternal corrosion on
Fault	Any an and hol	nomaly in the coating, includin lidays.	g disbonded areas
High Consequence Area	Location specific where a	on along the pipeline that meet ed in <u>49 CFR Part 192</u> §192.90 a pipeline release might have a	ts the characteristics 05, i.e., location a significant adverse
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024		Page	30 of 37
to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Stress Corrosion Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028 Rev No: 1
	effect on a particularly sensitive area, a commercial waterway, or a high population or other populated area.
High-pH SCC	A form of SCC on underground pipelines that is intergranular and typically branched and is associated with an alkaline electrolyte (pH about 9.3).
Holiday	A discontinuity in a protective coating that exposes unprotected surface to the environment.
Indirect Inspection	Equipment and practices used to take measurements at ground surface above or near a pipeline to locate or characterize corrosion activity, coating holidays, or other anomalies.
In-Line Inspection	The inspection of a pipeline from the interior of the pipe using an In-Line Inspection (ILI) tool. The tools used to conduct ILI are known as pigs or smart pigs.
Intergranular Cracking	Cracking in which the crack path is between the grains of a metal (typically associated with high-pH SCC).
Low-pH SCC	See Near-Neutral-pH SCC.
Maximum Allowable Operating Pressure (MAOP)	The maximum internal pressure permitted during the operation of a pipeline.
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.
Near-Neutral-pH SCC	A form of SCC on underground pipelines that is transgranular and is associated with a near-neutral-pH electrolyte. Typically, this form of cracking has limited branching and is associated with some corrosion of the crack walls and sometimes of the pipe surface.
Pipeline Segment	A portion of a pipeline that is (to be) assessed using SCCDA. A segment may consist of one or more SCCDA regions.
Predictive SCC Model	A model that predicts the SCC susceptibility of a segment of a pipeline based on factors such as terrain conditions (topography, drainage, and soil type), pipe characteristics, and operating and maintenance history.
Shielding This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	(1) Protecting; protective cover against mechanical Page 31 of 37

Page 3	70 oj	f 483
--------	-------	-------

MPLX Gathering	& Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document
Stress Corrosion	Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028 Rev No: 1
	Sound Engineering Practice	<ul><li>damage; (2) preventing or diverting Cathodic Protection (CP) current from its natural path.</li><li>Reasoning exhibited or based on thorough knowledge and experience, logically valid and having technically correct premises that demonstrate good judgment or sense in the application of science.</li></ul>
	Stress Corrosion Cracking (SCC)	Cracking of a material produced by the combined action of corrosion and sustained tensile stress (residual or applied).
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage (Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)	The voltage difference between a metallic structure and reference electrode in contact with a shared electrolyte.
	Tenting	A tent-shaped void associated with tape coatings formed along the seam weld of a pipeline where the external coating bridges from the top of the weld to the pipe.
	Terrain Conditions	Collective term used to describe soil type, drainage, and topography. Often used as input in the generation of SCC predictive models.
	Transgranular Cracking	Cracking in which the crack path is through the grains of a metal (typically associated with near-neutral-pH SCC).
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from t use of form <u>GEN-STD-0002-Fe</u>	his Standard shall be processed and documented through OR-01.
Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviation Form
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-03	ECDA/SCCDA Indirect Inspection Tools Selection Form
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-05	ECDA/SCCDA Indication Severity Classification & Dig Site Summary Form
	OPS-STD-0027-FOR-06	ECDA/SCCDA Dig Data Collection Form
This copy w	as printed on 10/15/2024	Page 32 of 37

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document
<b>Stress Corrosion</b>	Cracking Direct Assessment	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028Rev No: 1
	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01	SCCDA Process Form
	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02	SCCDA Data Element Form
	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-03	SCCDA Regional Analysis Form
	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-04	SCCDA Re-Assessment Interval Form
References	<u>Number</u>	Description
		CEPA Stress Corrosion Cracking Recommended Practices
	49 CFR Part 192	Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline
	ASME B31.8S	Managing System Integrity of Gas Pipelines
	LO-18.001-STD	Hazardous Liquid Integrity Management Plan Governing Standard
	NACE SP0204	Stress Corrosion Cracking (SCC) Direct Assessment Methodology
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing Standard
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program
	TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedure

Records	Do not retain printed copies of this document more than 12 months. Revisions to this
Retention	document will be retained indefinitely.

## **Revision History**

Revision Number	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	4/1/2021
1	Reformatted to G&P	Ryan Ell	Scott Stampka	8/14/2023
	Standard Template	-	_	

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Appendix A – SCCDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1



Figure 1: SCCDA Pre-Assessment Step Flow Chart

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Appendix A – SCCDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1



Figure 2: SCCDA Indirect Inspection Step Flow Chart

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Appendix A – SCCDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1



Figure 3: SCCDA Direct Examination Step Flow Chart

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Appendix A – SCCDA Process Flow Charts	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0028	Rev No: 1



Figure 4: SCCDA Post-Assessment Step Flow Chart

MPIV	SCCDA Process	OPS-STD-	-0028-FOR-01
		Pag	e 1 of 5
U Contraction of the second se	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

## SCCDA Project Information

SCCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

This form is to be used as a supplement to the Integrity Assessment Form (LIM/GIM030-F1). The form includes a section for each step of the SCCDA process. Each section contains a list of activities for each step, a list of required forms and documentation, a section to enter what criteria has been used for a first-time application project, and a verification section for the responsible individuals.

Form Sections:

- 1. Pre-Assessment Step
- 2. Indirect Inspection Step
- 3. Direct Examination Step
- 4. Post-Assessment Step

MPIV	SCCDA Process	OPS-STD	-0028-FOR-01
		Pag	je 2 of 5
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

1) Pre-Assessment Step		
Step Activities		
The Pre-Assessment Step includes the following activities:		
Data collection		
Identification of SCCDA regions		
Development of an Indirect Inspection Plan		
<ul> <li>Preliminary selection of SCCDA direct examination sites</li> </ul>		
Forms and Documentation		
The Pre-Assessment Step Requires the following documentation:		
SCCDA Data Elements Form		
SCCDA Region Identification Form		
Indirect Inspection Plan		
SCCDA Site Selection Form		
Verification and Approval		
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.		
Signature: Date:		
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer:		
Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified.		
Signature: Date:		

MPLV	SCCDA Process	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-01	
		Page 3 of 5	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

2) Indirect Inspection Step			
Step Activities			
<ul><li>The Indirect Inspection Step includes the following activities:</li><li>Conducting the indirect inspections</li><li>Data alignment</li></ul>			
Forms and Documentation			
<ul> <li>The Indirect Inspection Step Requires the following documentation:</li> <li>Indirect inspection survey data</li> <li>Aligned data</li> </ul>			
Verification and Approval			
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.			
Signature:	Date:		
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified.			
Signature:	Date:		

MPL	SCCDA Process OPS-STD-0028-FO		
		Pag	e 4 of 5
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

3) Direct Examination Step			
Step Activities			
<ul> <li>The Direct Examination Step includes the following activities:</li> <li>Scheduling excavations</li> <li>Excavation and data collection</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>See damage and data collection</li> <li>Remaining strength evaluation</li> </ul>			
Forms and Documentation			
<ul> <li>The Direct Examination Step Requires the following documentation:</li> <li>Excavation Summary Form</li> <li>Excavation Data Collection Form(s)</li> </ul>			
Verification and Approval			
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.			
Signature:	Date:		
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified.			
Signature:	Date:		

MPIV	SCCDA Process	OPS-STD-	-0028-FOR-01
		Pag	je 5 of 5
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

4) Post-Assessment Step				
Step Activities				
The Post-Assessment Step includes the following activities:				
Determining mitigation				
Definition of re-assessment intervals				
Feedback for continuous improvement				
Forms and Documentation				
The Post-Assessment Step Requires the following documentation, will are report:	included in a single final			
<ul> <li>Mitigative activities</li> </ul>				
Remaining Strength Form				
Define re-assessment interval				
Feedback				
Recommendations	Recommendations			
Summary of each SCCDA step				
Integrity Assessment Form (LIM/GIM030-F1)				
Verification and Approval				
Integrity Engineer: All required items have been documented.				
Signature:	Date:			
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer:				
Documentation, Forms, and Conclusions have been verified. Approval of H	Re-Assessment Interval.			
Signature:	Date:			

	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02		
		Page 1 of 12		
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

SCCDA Project Information
SCCDA Project Identification:
Pipeline Identification:
Segment Identification:

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Pipe Related					
Pipe grade	Required	Needed for determining nominal hoop stress level, critical flaw sizes and estimated failure pressure	None	Assume most likely grade for stress level determinations; Assume Grade A or B for failure pressure calculations	
Diameter	Required	Needed for determining nominal hoop stress, critical flaw sizes, and estimated failure pressure	None	Do not assume, take field measurements	
Wall thickness	Required	Needed for determining nominal hoop stress, critical flaw sizes, and estimated failure pressure	None	Do not assume, take field (UT) measurements	
Pipe manufacturer	Optional	Near neutral pH SCC found preferentially on Youngstown Sheet and	None	None	

SCCDA Data Element OPS-STI			
	Page 2 of 12		
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0	

			Othor	Alternative	
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		Tube ERW pipe in the 1950s. Reported to be a significant predictor for one pipeline system			
Seam type	Desired	Near neutral pH SCC found preferentially in the HAZ of some ERW pipe	None	Field identification	
Coating surface preparation	Required	Shot peening or grit blasting can be beneficial by introducing compressive residual stresses at the surface, inhibiting crack initiation, and by removing mill scale, making it difficult to hold the potential in the critical range for high- pH SCC.	None	None	
Shop coating type	Required	To date, SCC has not been reported for pipe with undamaged FBE coating or with extruded polyethylene coating	None	Do not assume, perform field investigations	
Bare pipe	Desired	SCC has been observed on bare pipe in high- resistivity soils.	None	None	

	SCCDA Data Element OPS-STD-0028-F		-0028-FOR-02
		Page 3 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Hard spots	Desired	There have been instances in which near- neutral-pH SCC has occurred preferentially in hard spots, which can be located by ILI that measures residual magnetism.	None	None	
Construction Relat	ed				
Installation year	Required	Sometimes used as basis for estimating SCC growth rates and/or coating degradation	Sometimes used to identify typical construction techniques (see below)	None	
Route changes or modifications	Desired	May indicate locations where local stresses are elevated and/or where coating application may be different from surrounding pipe.	Significant changes could require separate SCCDA regions	Field observations	
Route maps, aerial photos	Desired	Needed to identify pipe route	May help define boundaries for SCCDA regions	Field Notes	
Construction practices	Desired	Some trenching and backfill practices could damage the coating and/or affect survey	May influence natural shielding in rocky areas and coating damage	Field notes during excavation	

	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0028-FOR-02
		Page 4 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

			Other	Alternative	
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		performance; presence of rock in the backfill can introduce dents and locally elevated stresses; time between burying pipe and installation of cathodic protection might be important			
Surface preparation for field coating	Required	Mill scale promotes potential in critical range for high-pH SCC	None	None	
Field coating type	Required	High-pH SCC found under coal tar, asphalt, and tape. Near-neutral- pH SCC most prevalent under tape but also found under asphalt. Weather conditions during construction also may be important in affecting coating condition.	None	None	
Locations of weights and anchors	Desired	Near-neutral-pH SCC has been found under buoyancy-control weights			

MPL	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02	
		Page 5 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
Locations of valves and other pipeline features	Optional	Can influence cathodic protection	None	Field notes	
Locations of casings.	Desired	CP shielding and coating damage more likely within casings	May be important for accurately locating and characterizing each site.	Field notes	
Locations of bends, including miter bends and wrinkle bends.	Desired	Coatings may not match mainline pipe. May indicate unusual residual and secondary stresses	Some components could justify separate SCCDA regions	Field notes	
Locations of dents	Desired	May indicate locations of residual stresses	None	None	
Soils and Environm	nental				
Soil characteristics/types	Desired	No known correlation between soil type and high-pH SCC, except for some evidence that high sodium or potassium levels might promote development of concentrated carbonate/bicarbonate solutions under disbonded coatings. Some success has been	Might be important, especially for near neutral pH SCC	None	

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

MPL	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02	
		Page 6 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		experienced in correlating near-neutral- pH SCC with specific soil types			
Drainage	Desired	Has been correlated with both high-pH and near-neutral-pH SCC	None	None	
Topography	Desired	Has been correlated with both high-pH and near-neutral-pH SCC, possibly related to effect on drainage. Also, circumferential near- neutral-pH SCC has been observed on slopes where soil movement has occurred.	None	None	
Land use (current/past)	Desired	No obvious correlations have been found, but use of fertilizer might affect soil chemistry as related to trapped water under disbonded coatings.	None	Field notes	
Groundwater	Desired	Groundwater conductivity affects the	None	Field measurements	

MPL <sub>®</sub>	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02	
		Page 7 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		throwing power of CP systems.			
Locations of river crossings	Desired	Affects soil moisture/drainage	None	Field notes	
Soil carbon dioxide	Desired	Reasonable to expect that probability of cracking increases with rate of CO2 generation. Rate of CO2 generation increases with increasing temperature and soil moisture content.	None	Field measurements	
Transitional environmental conditions	Optional	SCC is often associated with sites where the environmental conditions change, either seasonally or along the length or circumference of the pipe	None	Field notes	
Corrosion Control	1				
CP system type (anodes, rectifiers, and locations)	Desired	Adequate CP can prevent SCC if it reaches under disbonded coatings	None	Do not assume, perform field investigations	

	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0028-FOR-02
		Page 8 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
CP Evaluation criteria	Optional	Adequate CP can prevent SCC if it reaches under disbonded coatings	None	Field investigations	
CP shielding	Desired	Commonly associated with near neutral pH SCC	None	None	
CP maintenance history	Optional	Adequate CP can prevent SCC if it reaches under disbonded coatings	None	None	
Years without CP applied	Desired	For high-pH SCC, absence of CP might allow harmful oxides to form on pipe surface. For near-neutral-pH SCC occurring at or near the open-circuit potential, absence of CP could allow SCC to proceed.	None	None	
CIS and test station information	Desired	Although high-pH SCC occurs in a narrow range of potentials (typically between –575 and –825 mV vs. copper/copper sulfate [Cu/CuSO4] depending on temperature and	Important factor to consider for both high-pH and near- neutral-pH SCC	None	

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

MPI	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD	-0028-FOR-02
©		Page 9 of 12	
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

				Alternative	
Data Element	Need	Rationale	Considerations	(if data not readily available)	Available Data
		solution composition), it has been observed on pipe that appeared to be adequately cathodically protected, because the actual potential at the pipe surface can be less negative than the aboveground measurements because of shielding by disbonded coatings. Nevertheless, locations of cracks might correlate with CP history, especially if problems had been encountered in the past			
Coating fault survey information	Desired	Because SCC requires coating faults, indications of coating condition might help locate probable areas	None	None	
Coating system and condition	Required	The coating system (coating type, surface condition, etc.) is an important factor in determining SCC	None	None	

MPL	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02			
		Page 10 of 12			
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

Data Element	Need	Rationale susceptibility and the	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		type of SCC that occurs. Because SCC requires coating faults, indications of coating condition might help locate probable areas			
Operational		-	-	-	
Pipe operating temperature	Required	Elevated temperatures have strong accelerating effect on high-pH SCC. For near-neutral-pH SCC, temperature probably has little effect on crack growth rate, but elevated temperatures can contribute to coating deterioration.	Important, especially for high-pH SCC.	None	
Operating stress levels and fluctuations	Required	Stress must be above a certain threshold for SCC to occur. Fluctuating stresses can significantly reduce the threshold stress.	Impacts SCC initiation, critical flaw size, and remaining life predictions.	None	
Specific types of pressure fluctuations	Optional	Certain types of pressure fluctuations, such as unload/reload	Locations with an increased number of such cycles may be	None	

MPL	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02			
		Page 11 of 12			
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
		cycles, high frequency fluctuations, variable load and frequency cycles, underload and overload cycles, are associated with near- neutral pH SCC. Conversely, the absence of such types of pressure fluctuation can result in crack dormancy.	more susceptible to near-neutral pH SCC. May be useful for excluding the possibility of high-pH SCC on liquid lines		
Leak/rupture history (SCC)	Required	There is a high probability of finding more SCC in the vicinity of previously discovered SCC.	None	None	
Direct inspection and repair history	Required	There is a high probability of finding more SCC in the vicinity of previously discovered SCC.	None	None	
Hydrostatic retest history	Required	There is a high probability of finding more SCC in the vicinity of previously discovered SCC.	None	None	

MPLX	SCCDA Data Element	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-02			
		Page 12 of 12			
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0		

Data Element	Need	Rationale	Other Considerations	Alternative (if data not readily available)	Available Data
ILI data from crack- detecting pig	Required	There is a high probability of finding more SCC in the vicinity of previously discovered SCC.	None	None	
ILI data from metal- loss pig	Desired	If a metal-loss pig indicates corrosion on a tape-coated pipe where there is no apparent indication of a holiday, the coating is probably disbonded and shielding the pipe from CP, a condition in which SCC, especially near-neutral- pH SCC, has been observed.	None	None	

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.				
Signature:	Date:			
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: <i>Reviewed and Verified.</i>				
Signature:	Date:			

MPL	SCCDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-0028-FOR-03			
	FORM	Pac DATE: 4/1/2021	e 1 of 3 Rev:		
		7/1/2021	0		

	SCCDA Project Information
SCCDA Project Identification:	
Pipeline Identification:	
Segment Identification:	

Section	Location	Start Station	End Station	Length (Feet)	Assigned Region #
1					
2					
3					
4					
5					
6					

	Separate	<b>O</b>	Additional Guidance		Section					
Item #	Attribute	bute Region Comments Required? Region should be defined based o conditions similar to those at the	Material	1	2	3	4	5	6	
1	Prior SCC	Yes	Region should be defined based on conditions similar to those at the location(s) where SCC has been found.	Important parameters to consider are all of the following.						

SCCDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-	-0028-FOR-03
	Pag	e 2 of 3
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

		Separate	Commonto	Additional Guidance Section						
item #	Allribule	Required?	Comments	Material	1	2	3	4	5	6
2	Coating Type	Yes	Different types of coatings correspond to different SCC susceptibilities. See SCC Management Program (LIM031).	None						
3	Terrain Conditions	Maybe	See SCC Management Program (LIM031), which references the CEPA guidance; locations that do not match the CEPA categories may be given a separate region (and considered low likelihood).	Different susceptible conditions apply for different coating types.						
4	Operating Stress/Wall Thickness	Yes	Areas over 60% SMYS should have a separate region; significant changes in wall thickness may have a separate region.	Applies more to high pH SCC than near neutral pH SCC.						
5	Locally Elevated Stresses	Maybe	Correlated with near neutral pH SCC.	Examples include dents and bends.						
6	Temperature	Yes	Locations with historic or current operating temperatures over 100 degrees F should have a separate region.	High pH SCC only						

SCCDA Regional Analysis	OPS-STD-	-0028-FOR-03
	Pag	e 3 of 3
FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

	A.I.I. II. I	Separate		Additional Guidance			Sec	tion		
Item #	Attribute	Region Required?	Comments	Material	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	Age	Maybe	None	None						
8	Evidence of cathodic protection shielding	Yes	Shielded areas should be in a separate region.	None						

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.	
Signature:	Date:
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Reviewed and Verified.	
Signature:	Date:

MPIV	SCCDA Re-Assessment Interval	OPS-STD	-0028-FOR-04
®		Pag	e 1 of 3
	FORM	DATE: 4/1/2021	Rev: 0

## SCCDA Project Information

SCCDA Project Identification:

Pipeline Identification:

Segment Identification:

	Region #
	Dig Site #
	Pipe OD (in)
	t (in)
	Pipe Steel Grade
	MOP (psi)
	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)
	MAOP (psi)
	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)
	Method Used to Calculate Burst Pressure
	BP/YP
	Is BP ≤ 110% MOP (Category 4)?
	Is BP > 110% and <b>≤</b> 125% MOP (Category 3 )?
	Is BP > 125% MOP and <b>≤</b> 110% YP (Category 2 )?
	Is BP>110% YP (Category 1 )?
	Is d<10% WT and L < 2 inches (Category 0)?
	Move to Hydrotest/ILI Program (Category 2, 3 and 4)?
	Type of Repair Made
	Re-Assessment Interval
	Comments

<sup>1</sup> If Category 4, reduce pressure or shut down and conduct an integrity assessment within 90 days.

<sup>1</sup> If Category 3, reduce pressure until hydrotest or in-line inspection is completed (within 2 years)

<sup>1</sup> If Category 2, consider a pressure reduction until hydrotest or in-line inspection is completed (within 2 years)

<sup>1</sup> If Category 1, conduct a minimum of two additional direct examinations, then follow category of any SCC found

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM
				M	ARATHO			SCCDA Re-Assessment Interval				OP DA 4/1/2	S-STD- Pag TE: 2021	-0028-FOR-01 e 2 of 3 Rev: 0				
Region #	Dig Site #	Pipe OD (in)	t (in)	Pipe Steel Grade	MOP (psi)	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)	MAOP (psi)	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)	Method Used to Calculate Burst Pressure	ВР/ҮР	Is BP <b>≤</b> 110% MOP (Category 4)?	Is BP > 110% and <b>≤</b> 125% MOP (Category 3 )?	Is BP > 125% MOP and <b>≤</b> 110% YP (Category 2 )?	Is BP>110% YP (Category 1 )?	Is d<10% WT and L < 2 inches (Category 0)?	Move to Hydrotest/ILI Program (Category 2, 3 and 4)?	Type of Repair Made	

Region #	Dig Site #	Pipe OD (in)	t (in)	Pipe Steel Grade	MOP (psi)	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)	MAOP (psi)	Burst Pressure, BP (psi)	Method Used to Calculate Bur Pressure	ВР/ҮР	Is BP <b>≤</b> 110% MOP (Categor) 4)?	Is BP > 110% and ≤ 125% MOP (Category 3 )?	Is BP > 125% MOP and <b>≤</b> 110% YP (Category 2 )?	Is BP>110% YP (Category 1 )?	Is d<10% WT and L < 2 inche (Category 0)?	Move to Hydrotest/ILI Progra (Category 2, 3 and 4)?	Type of Repair Made	Re-Assessment Interval	Comments

.

					ARATHO		SCCDA	A Re-A	ssessi FORI	ment I	nterva	al	OP DA 4/1/2	S-STD- Pag TE: 2021	0028-F <u>e 3 of</u> F	OR-01 3 Rev: 0		
Region #	Dig Site #	Pipe OD (in)	t (in)	Pipe Steel Grade	MOP (psi)	Yield Pressure, YP (psi)	 Burst Pressure, BP (psi)	Method Used to Calculate Burst Pressure	ВР/ҮР	Is BP <b>≤</b> 110% MOP (Category 4)?	Is BP > 110% and <b>≤</b> 125% MOP (Category 3 )?	Is BP > 125% MOP and <b>≤</b> 110% YP (Category 2 )?	Is BP>110% YP (Category 1 )?	Is d<10% WT and L < 2 inches (Category 0)?	Move to Hydrotest/ILI Program (Category 2, 3 and 4)?	Type of Repair Made	Re-Assessment Interval	Comments

Integrity Engineer: Compiled Data.								
Signature:	Date:							
Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer: Reviewed and Verified.								
Signature:	Date:							

Gathering & Processing Standard Document									
Authored by:		Doc No.: OPS-STD-0072							
Ryan Ell	Cathodic Protection Close Interval								
Doc. Custodian:	and Buried Bineline Costing	Rev. No.: 0							
Ryan Ell	and Burled Pipeline Coaling								
Approved by:	Surveys	MPLX G&P							
Prasanna Swamy									
Date Approved: 10/2/2024	Next Review Date: 6/1/2025	Effective Date: 11/1/2024							

Purpose	<ul> <li>This standard establishes minimum requirements for the inspection and mitigation of external corrosion on pipelines (e.g., valve site) and facilities (e.g., tanks, piping, vessels, etc.) using cathodic protection to provide:</li> <li>Compliance with regulatory requirements (for regulated pipeline systems and facilities)</li> <li>The intended service life for the asset</li> <li>Standardization of survey procedures and inspection requirements as they pertain to the mitigation of external corrosion</li> </ul>
Scope	This standard applies to all regulated MPLX Petroleum Logistics (MPLX) Gathering and Processing (G&P) operated assets.
Table of Contents	Purpose1
	Scope
	Close Interval Surveys (CIS)
	General2
	Requirements for New Pipelines2
	Requirements for Part 192 and 195 Transmission Pipelines
	Requirements for Part 192 Type A & B and 195 Regulated Rural Gathering Pipelines
	Requirements for Part 192 Type C Near Pipelines
	Reference Electrode Check
	Pipeline Contacts
	Current Interruption Requirements
	Survey Cycle
	Survey Meters
	Survey Types4
	Skips5
	Survey Procedures
	Minimum Survey Data Requirements5
	Analyzing Survey Deficiencies
	Survey Remediation7
	Special Surveys7

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

.

Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried       Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072       Rev No:0         Pipeline Coating Surveys	MPLX Gathering & P	rocessing	Gathering & Processing Standard	l Document
Buried Pipeline Coating Surveys	Cathodic Protection Pipeline Coating Sur	Close Interval and Buried veys	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0
General       Survey Records         Survey Record Keeping       Definitions         Definitions       Waiver Process         Waiver Process       1         Forms       1         References       1         Records Retention       1         Records Retention       1         Revision History       1         Revision History       1         Revision History       1         Close Interval       • Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> .         • The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         • Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         • The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         • Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .         Requirements for New Pipelines       • For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         • Number of annual test point inspection locations that do no		Buried Pipeline Coating Sur	veys	7
Survey Records         Survey Record Keeping         Definitions         Waiver Process         Waiver Process         Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in REG-STD-0005.         The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         Close Interval or conducting close interval all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveys to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer or based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         Close interval survey data entry and velays are anticipated.         Close interval survey data entry and velay or an interiophy in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         • The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         • Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .         Requirements for New Pipelines         • For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         • Number of annual		General		7
Survey Record Keeping         Definitions         Waiver Process         Image: Survey Record Keeping         Waiver Process         Image: Records Retention         References         Image: Records Retention         Records Retention         Revision History         Image: Record Retention         Records Retention         Image: Record Retention         Records Retention         Close Interval         Image: Record Retention         Records Retention         Record Retention		Survey Records		8
Definitions       Waiver Process       1         Waiver Process       1         Forms       1         References       1         Records Retention       1         Revision History       1         Close Interval inrveys (CIS)       •         General       •         Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in REG-STD-0005.         •       The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         •       Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer within sixty (60) days after completion data (or date final data is received from surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         •       The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         •       Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .         •       For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the R		Survey Record Keeping		
Waiver Process       1         Forms       1         References       1         Records Retention       1         Records Retention       1         Revision History       1         Close Interval Surveys (CIS)       1         General       • Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in REG-STD-0005.         • The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         • Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer within sixty (60) days after completion dat (or date final data is received from surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         • The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         • Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .         • For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         • Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference         • Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference         <		Definitions		
Forms       I         References       I         Records Retention       I         Revision History       I         Recover (CIS)       Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in REG-STD-0005.         The interval for conducting close interval and al applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         Close interval survey data shall be retaned per the retention schedule outlined in App		Waiver Process		
References       I         Records Retention       I         Revision History       I         Surveys (CIS)       Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in REG-STD-0005.         The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer within sixty (60) days after completion date (or date final data is received from surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         • The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         • Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of OPS-STD-0017.         Requirements for New Pipelines         • For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         • Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference         • Most recent CP system current outputs versus rated current outputs         • These circumstances shall be evaluated in order to determine when a close-interval survey or comparable technology is practicable and necessary to accomplish the below objectives:         • Assess the eff		Forms		
Records Retention       1         Revision History       1         Burreys (CIS)       • Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u> .         • The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.         • Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer within sixty (60) days after completion data (or date final data is received from surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         • The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.         • Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .         Requirements for New Pipelines         • For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         • Number of annual test point inspection locations that do not meet Cl criteria         • Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference         • Most recent CP system current outputs versus rated current outputs         • These circumstances shall be evaluated in order to determine when a close-interval survey or comparable technology is practicable and necessary to accomplish the below		References		
<ul> <li>Revision History</li></ul>		Records Retention		
<ul> <li>Close Interval Surveys (CIS)</li> <li>General</li> <li>Individuals performing close interval survey work shall be qualified per the relevant OQ tasks specified in <u>REG-STD-0005</u>.</li> <li>The interval for conducting close interval surveys can be adjusted be determined by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer based on past history, system goals, and risk analysis.</li> <li>Close interval survey data entry and all applicable paperwork are to be completed and transmitted from the surveyor to the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer within sixty (60) days after completion data (or date final data is received from surveyor) in order to provide timely analysis and remediation scheduling.         <ul> <li>The Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer shall be notified if any delays are anticipated.</li> <li>Close interval survey data shall be retained per the retention schedule outlined in Appendix C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u>.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Requirements for New Pipelines</li> <li>For new pipelines, the following circumstances shall be identified by the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed:         <ul> <li>Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference</li> <li>Most recent CP system current outputs versus rated current outputs</li> <li>These circumstances shall be evaluated in order to determine when a close-interval survey or comparable technology is practicable and necessary to accomplish the below objectives:</li></ul></li></ul>		Revision History		
New Pipelines       Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer not more than 2 years after Cathodic Protection (CP) is installed: <ul> <li>Number of annual test point inspection locations that do not meet Cl criteria</li> <li>Number of annual test point inspection locations with suspected foreign pipeline interference</li> <li>Most recent CP system current outputs versus rated current outputs</li> </ul> <li>These circumstances shall be evaluated in order to determine when a close-interval survey or comparable technology is practicable and necessary to accomplish the below objectives:             <ul> <li>Assess the effectiveness of the CP system</li> </ul> </li> <li>This copy was printed on 10/15/2024</li>	<b>Requirements for</b>	<ul> <li>The interval for cond determined by the Rebased on past history</li> <li>Close interval survey completed and transmedia transmedia data is manalysis and remedia or the Regional notified if any</li> <li>Close interval survey outlined in Appendix</li> <li>For new pipelines, the second data is the second data is</li></ul>	lucting close interval surveys can be egional Corrosion Control Team Lea y, system goals, and risk analysis. y data entry and all applicable paper nitted from the surveyor to the Regi or Engineer within sixty (60) days at received from surveyor) in order to tion scheduling. Corrosion Control Team Lead or E y delays are anticipated. y data shall be retained per the retent a C of <u>OPS-STD-0017</u> .	e adjusted be ad or Engineer work are to be conal Corrosion fter completion date provide timely Engineer shall be tion schedule
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024 Page 2 of 11	New Pipelines	<ul> <li>For new pipernies, the Regional Corrosion (after Cathodic Protection)</li> <li>Number of an criteria</li> <li>Number of an foreign pipeli</li> <li>Most recent C</li> <li>These circumstances interval survey or con accomplish the below</li> <li>Assess the effective of the section of the se</li></ul>	Control Team Lead or Engineer not ction (CP) is installed: nual test point inspection locations ne interference CP system current outputs versus rat shall be evaluated in order to detern mparable technology is practicable a v objectives: fectiveness of the CP system	more than 2 years that do not meet CP with suspected red current outputs nine when a close- and necessary to
	This copy was p	rinted on 10/15/2024	Pag	e 2 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Proces	ssing	Gathering & Processing Standar	d Document
Cathodic Protection Clos Pipeline Coating Surveys	e Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0
	<ul> <li>Provide basel</li> <li>Locate areas of</li> <li>Locate areas of</li> <li>Locate areas of</li> <li>Identify location</li> <li>Select areas to</li> <li>The length of</li> <li>Pipeling</li> <li>The above analysis of</li> <li>using OPS-STD-0072</li> <li>documentation.</li> </ul>	ine operating data of inadequate protection levels of possible coating deterioration ions likely to be adversely affected , or other environmental conditions o be monitored periodically the pipeline exceeds a half mile nes lengths under a half mile can b bint locations. f the cathodic protection system sh <u>2-FOR01</u> and stored with the approx	l by construction, s e evaluated utilizing hall be documented opriate pipeline
Requirements for Part 192 and 195 Transmission Pipelines	• Close interval survey pipelines at least once	rs shall be conducted on Part 192 a e every five (5) years.	nd 195 Transmission
Requirements for Part 192 Type A & B and 195 Regulated Rural Gathering Pipelines	Close interval survey regulated rural gather	rs shall be conducted on Part 192 T ring pipelines at least once every so	Type A & B and 195 even (7) years.
Requirements for Part 192 Type C Near Pipelines	• Close interval survey at least once every te	rs shall be conducted on Part 192 T n (10) years.	Ype C Near pipeline
Reference Electrode Check	<ul> <li>A reference electroded starting each day and ID shall be logged and one commended electrode(s) a <u>TSCP-006</u>.</li> <li>Reference cells show cleaned or replaced.</li> <li>Recommended guida are within tolerance on the start of the sta</li></ul>	e check shall be performed, at a mill at the end of each day. Time, date at the end of each day. Time, date ad recorded on <u>OPS-STD-0020-FO</u> ed guidance for testing and confirm re within tolerance can be located at ring a potential difference greater the nce for testing and confirming refer can be located in Procedure 1 of <u>TS</u>	nimum, before e, and reference cell <u>PR01</u> . ing reference in Procedure 1 of han 10 mV shall be erence electrode(s) <u>SCP-006</u> .
Pipeline Contacts	<ul> <li>Pipeline contacts are such as test leads, val</li> <li>Negative lead wires of interference bond state obtain structure-to-el these test leads, due to</li> </ul>	locations where contact with the p lves, spans, drips, risers, main line of a rectifier, galvanic anode groun tion lead wires shall not be used as ectrolyte potential readings. Metal to current flowing in the wire, and	ipeline can be made taps, etc. d bed lead wires, or pipeline contacts to lic IR drops occur in shall introduce an
This copy was printed	d on 10/15/2024	Pa	ge 3 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document			
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0		
Pipeline Coating Surveys				

error into the structure-to-electrolyte potential reading. If a dedicated test
lead has been installed at these locations, that lead can be used as a pipeline
contact.

Current Interruption Requirements	<ul> <li>All current supplying devices that need to be disconnected or interrupted shall be done in accordance with OPS-STD-0015 "Energized Electrical Work Standard"</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Current sources that have been determined to influence the subject pipeline shall be, if feasible, interrupted during the survey (examples include company rectifiers, foreign rectifiers, and galvanic anodes).</li> <li>A bond may be interrupted in conjunction with associated foreign Rectifiers, but shall not be used as the sole means of interrupting the foreign source.</li> <li>Both company and foreign rectifiers associated with these bonds shall be interrupted.</li> <li>Current magnitude, polarity, and Structure "On" and Structure "Instant-Off" potentials shall be gathered at bonds.</li> <li>Solid-State DC Decouplers (SSDs) and Polarization Cell Replacements (PCRs) shall be either disconnected or interrupted during the survey.</li> <li>If a Dairyland PCRx is installed, it does not need to be disconnected or interrupted.</li> </ul>
Survey Cycle	<ul> <li>When an interrupted survey is performed, corresponding "On/Instant Off" potentials shall be logged at each half-cell position to allow for IR determinations. A slow cycle synchronized survey may be used with approval from the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> <li>The normal survey interruption cycle of the current sources is 3-4 seconds "ON" and 1 second "OFF" for a total duty cycle of 4-5 seconds, beginning on the "OFF" cycle. Other survey cycles may be used with approval of the Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.</li> </ul>
Survey Meters	• All close interval surveys shall be performed using a multimeter, such as an American Innovations Allegro Field PC, that has been calibrated annually, not to exceed 15 months.
Survey Types	<ul> <li>Normal close interval surveys are performed in "ON/OFF" mode. The survey data shall be able to generate a printout with two data traces. One shall be the "ON" potential profile and the other shall be the "OFF" potential profile.</li> <li>In areas with fluctuating potentials, the Telluric method shall be used. Slow cycle interruption of the current sources is recommended. The survey data shall generate a printout with two data streams. One shall be the moving (remote) potential profile and the other shall be the stationary (local) potential profile.</li> </ul>

MPLX Gathering & Pro	ocessing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document				
Cathodic Protection (	Close Int	erval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0			
Pipeline Coating Surv	vevs						
	U ·			I			
Skips	•	Skips are places on the cannot be measured. E survey report. If the area of the pipeli the area shall be evalua required to fully evalua	e pipeline where structure-to-elect xplanations for the skips shall be ne covered by the road surface is ated to determine if test holes, or ate the section.	rolyte potentials included in the greater than 50 feet, flush test stations are			
Survey Procedures	Recom be locar	mended guidance for p ted in <u>TSCP-006</u> .	erforming cathodic protection sur	vey procedures can			
Minimum Survey Data Requirements	The mi: • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	nimum CIS survey data GPS coordinates at all "On/Instant Off" struct alignment and at all pip o Far Ground (FG measurements "On/Instant Off" MPL potentials at all foreign "On/Instant Off" casin leads. "On/Instant Off" struct isolation device. "On/Instant Off" interf surveyed. "On/Instant Off" influe leads are accessible. AC structure-to-electro the vicinity of HVAC Influencing rectifier cu An engineering station points. The upstream and dow Pipe depth measureme recorded as part of the Corrosion Control Tea interval is recommend o Pipe depth measureme recorded as part of the Corrosion Control Tea interval is recommend o Pipe depth measureme recorded as part of the Corrosion Control Tea interval is recommend o Pipe depth measureme recorded at provide the states of the corrosion to the abov taken and recorded at preadings, unless otherw Team Lead or Enginee Soil resistivity measureme	a requirements shall include: potential readings. ture-to-electrolyte potentials alon peline test stations. G), Metal IR (MIR), and Near Gro shall be taken at survey wire reco X and foreign structure structure- n crossings with test leads. g potential readings at all casing ture-to-electrolyte potentials on b ference bond currents influencing encing galvanic anode ground bed object potentials at pipeline contact powerlines. urrent and voltage outputs, if avail and description entered for all fer enstream station numbers and desc nts shall be performed using a pip survey, unless otherwise specifie m Lead or Engineer. The followi ed: usurement every 100 feet along th e pipe depth measurements, a pro- east once every half mile to confi- vise specified by the Regional Co- er.	g the pipeline ound (NG) potential nnect. to-electrolyte vent pipes and test oth sides of an the area being d currents where ts when pipeline is in lable. atures or reference criptions of all skips. be locator and d by the Regional ng measurement e alignment of the be reading shall be irm the pipe locator rrosion Control			
		• Soil resistivity	measurement (representing the so	oil at the depth of the			
This copy was pri	nted on	10/15/2024	Pag	ge 5 of 11			

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072 Rev No:0		
Pipeline Coating Surveys			
pipe) every n	nile along the alignment of the pipeline.		
Analyzing Survey . Once the survey date	is reasized from the surveyor, the Regional Correspondence		
Deficiencies Control Team Load	an Engineer shall generate on Expensions Deport for on		
Denciencies Control Team Lead	of survey data, greater than 50 ft, that includes any of		
the following deficie	on survey data, greater than 50-11, that includes any of		
Structure "In	stant Off' notantials do not meet cathodic protection		
criteria	stant-on potentials do not meet eathoute protection		
$\circ$ Structure "In	stant-Off <sup>o</sup> notentials are more electronegative than		
-1200 mV	stant off potentials are more electronegative than		
$\circ$ Structure "In	stant-Off" potentials drop more than 250 mV		
• Structure "O	n" potential is more electropositive than Structure		
"Instant-Off"	'potential ("Inverted Potentials")		
• IR drop (Stru	icture "On" – Structure "Instant-Off") potential is less		
than 100 mV			
<ul> <li>Skips</li> </ul>			
• In addition to the ab	ove, AC potentials above 15 VAC shall be listed as		
deficiencies and shall	l have prompt remediation unless otherwise approved		
by the Regional Cor	rosion Control Team Lead or Engineer.		
Each Exception shal	• Each Exception shall receive a number designation and include the		
following data:	following data:		
• Start and End	l GPS Coordinates		
• Start and End	1 Stationing		
<ul> <li>Total Footag</li> </ul>	e		
• The following data s	hall be recorded as part of the remediation for each		
Exception:			
• Review Com	ments		
• Mitigation M	lethod		
■ Increa	ase or Decrease Cathodic Protection Current. Retest to		
	rm.		
Perio	rm Interrupted Potential Survey		
<ul> <li>Instal</li> <li>Mitia</li> </ul>	Additional CP Systems		
	Shorted Casing		
- Clear Instal	1 CP Coupon Test Stations		
- Instal Instal	FR Probe & CP Coupon Test Stations		
■ Perfo	rm Coating Fault Survey and/or Coating Repair		
■ Other	· See Review Remarks		
• Status ("Not	Started", "In Progress", "Resolved")		
$\circ$ Execution Re	esponsible Person (RP)		
o RP Task Cor	nments		
• Resolved Date			
• RP Resolution	on Comments		
• The survey data shal	l be graphed (Y-axis – Potentials, X-axis – Stationing)		
for analysis as part of	of the Exceptions Report.		
• As part of the above	analysis,		

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & ProcessingGathering & Processing Standard DocCathodic Protection Close Interval and BuriedDoc Number: OPS-STD-0072Pipeline Coating SurveysDoc Number: OPS-STD-0072		Gathering & Processing Standard	Document
		Rev No:0	
	<ul> <li>All foreign cr MPLX piping necessary, ass potential on M correction or</li> <li>Isolation devi</li> <li>Rectifier and evaluated, and required for e</li> <li>All unexplain evaluated as t</li> <li>All structure- profile irregut</li> </ul>	ossings shall be evaluated for interfe g potential at a crossing shall be evalu- signed an immediate priority for corr MPLX piping shall have an immediat investigation. Ices shall be evaluated for proper oper other impressed current source setting d new minimum current requirement each unit. The d indications of current pickup or d to cause. to-electrolyte potential readings shall larities, which may or may not be be	erence. A dip in uated and, if rection. A positive te plan in place for eration. ngs shall be s shall be set as lischarge shall be l be evaluated for low criteria.
Survey Remediation	<ul> <li>For Sections of pipel were revealed in of the inspect plan shall be a of the inspect practicable, n permits.</li> <li>If a Part 195 ' Part 192 Type remediation p calendar year</li> </ul>	ine in which cathodic protection crite he CIS Exception Report, Transmission pipeline, an investigati implemented within one year, not to ion or test that identified the deficier ot to exceed 6 months, after obtainin Transmission, Part 195 Regulated Ru e A, B, and C (Near) pipeline, an inv blan shall be implemented by the end	eria deficiencies on and remediation exceed 15 months ncy; or as soon as ig any necessary ural Gathering and estigation and of the next
Special Surveys	If specialized surveys based effects, AC, or other influence Regional Corrosion Control	on CIS techniques are performed (to ces), best practices and techniques as Team Lead or Engineer shall govern	determined by the testing.
Buried Pipeline Coating Surveys General	<ul> <li>The following requires only be applicable for the construction projection of the properties of the construction projection of the properties of the construction of the properties of the properties of the properties of the coating damage and of the coating damage and of the coating damage and of the coating. Coating effective coating survey reasons.</li> <li>MPLX shall the other technology of the properties of the properties</li></ul>	rements for a buried pipeline coation or Part 192 Transmission type pipe h for an onshore steel transmission li ect involves 1,000 feet or more of co line), but not later than 6 months after the MPLX shall perform an assessment ensure integrity of the coating using a tyoG), alternating current voltage grad t provides comparable information all surveys shall be conducted, except in veys are precluded by geographical, the notify PHMSA at least 90 days in ad- ogy to assess integrity of the coating	ing survey shall elines. ne is backfilled (if ntinuous backfill er placing the nt to assess any direct current dient (ACVG), or bout the integrity of n locations where technical, or safety vance of using as discussed

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

Page 7 of 11

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0
Pipeline Coating Surveys		

above.

- MPLX shall repair any coating damage classified as severe (voltage drop greater than 60 percent for DCVG or 70 dBµV for ACVG) in accordance with section 4 of NACE SP0502 within 6 months after the pipeline is placed in service, or as soon as practicable after obtaining necessary permits, not to exceed 6 months after the receipt of permits.
- MPLX shall compile records documenting the coating assessment findings and remedial actions and retain this documentation per the requirements set forth in OPS-STD-0017.

## **Survey Records**

#### Survey Record Keeping

Record	Owner	Location
CIS Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	Corrosion Control Team Sharepoint
CIS Exception Reports	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	Corrosion Control Team Sharepoint
ACVG Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	Corrosion Control Team Sharepoint
DCVG Survey Data	Regional Corrosion Control Team Lead or Engineer	Corrosion Control Team Sharepoint

## Definitions

Alternating Current Voltage Gradient (ACVG) Survey	A technique that can detect coating defects by measuring the AC voltage gradient created due to AC current flowing to a coating defect at a buried pipeline.
Anode	An electrode that is characterized by electron loss.
Cathode	An electrode that is characterized by electron gain.
Cathodic Protection	A technique to control corrosion of a metal surface by making it the cathode in an electrochemical cell.
Continuity Bond	A metallic connection that provides electrical continuity.
Corrosion	Deterioration of a metal that results from a chemical or electrochemical reaction with its environment.
Current Density	The current per unit area.
Direct Current Voltage Gradient (DCVG) Survey	A technique that can detect coating defects by measuring the DC voltage gradient created due to DC current flowing to a coating defect at a buried pipeline.

Page 8 of 11

Printed

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072 Rev No:0		
Pipeline Coating Surveys			
Electrical Isolation	The condition of being substantially electrically separated from other metallic structures and the environment.		
Electrode Potential	The potential of an electrode as measured against a reference electrode.		
Electrolyte	A medium through which electrically charged partic (ions) may travel. Typically soil, water, or product in this application.	les n	
Foreign Structure	Any structure that is not part of the subject structure	•	
Galvanic Anode	Typically, a prepackaged assembly consisting of an active metal (Mg, Zn, etc.) in a moisture retaining backfill. Generally, any metal which is more electrochemically active in a multi-metal system.		
Half Cell Reference Electrode	See Reference Electrode.		
Holiday	A discontinuity of coating that exposes the metal sur to the environment.	face	
Impressed Current	Direct current supplied by a power source external to electrode system.		
Inspector/Person in Charge (PIC)	An MPLX appointed engineer or inspector.		
Interference Bond	A metallic connection designed to control electrical current interchange between metallic systems.		
Isolation	See Electrical Isolation.		
Line Current	The direct current flowing on a pipeline.		
MPLX	For the purpose of this standard, MPLX shall mean Andeavor, Markwest, and Southwest Gathering.		
Reference Electrode	A device whose open circuit potential is constant un similar conditions of measurement.	der	
Shared Electrolyte	Electrolyte in contact with both the electrode and the structure.	3	
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024	Page 9 of 11	Printed (	

MPLX Gathering & Processing		Gathering & Processing Standard Document		
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried		Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0	
Pipeline Coating St	irveys			q.
	Stray Current	Current flowing through paths circuit.	other than the intended	ľ
	Stray Current Corrosion	Corrosion resulting from curre other than the intended circuit	ent flowing through path	15
	Structure-to-Electrolyte Voltage	The voltage difference betwee reference electrode in contact	n a metallic structure an with a shared electrolyte	nd e.
	(Also, Structure-to-Soil Potential or Pipe-to-Soil Potential)			
	Structure-to-Structure Voltage	The difference in voltage betw a common electrolyte.	veen metallic structures	in
	(Also, Structure-to-Structure Potential)			
	Voltage	An electromotive force or a di potentials expressed in volts.	fference in electrode	I£
Waiver Process	Any deviation or waiver from through use of form <u>GEN-STI</u>	this Standard shall be processed D-0002-FOR-01.	and documented	ust ensure t
Forms	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>		a
	GEN-STD-0002-FOR-01	Addition, Deletion and Deviat	ion Form	
	OPS-STD-0020-FOR01	Reference Electrode Calibratio	on Form	
	OPS-STD-0072-FOR01	Close Interval Survey Determine	ination for New Pipeline	es
References	<u>Number</u>	<b>Description</b>		
	OPS-STD-0015	Energized Electrical Work Sta	indard	
	OPS-STD-0017	Corrosion Control Governing	Standard	
	OPS-STD-0020	Aboveground Cathodic Protec	tion Surveys	
	OPS-STD-0023	Electrical Isolation Monitoring	g and Maintenance	
	OPS-STD-0025	AC Interference Monitoring a	nd Mitigation	
	REG-STD-0005	Operator Qualification Program	m	
This copy was printed on 10/15/2024		Pag	e 10 of 11	Printed (

MPLX Gathering & Processing	Gathering & Processing Standard Document	
Cathodic Protection Close Interval and Buried	Doc Number: OPS-STD-0072	Rev No:0
Pipeline Coating Surveys		

зd.

U		
	TSCP-006	Cathodic Protection Survey Procedures
<b>Records Retention</b>	Do not retain printed copies of this document will be retained	f this document more than 12 months. Revisions to l indefinitely.

## **Revision History**

<b>Revision Number</b>	Description of Change	Written By	Approved By	Effective Date
0	Standard Initiated	Ryan Ell	Prasanna Swamy	11/1/2024

This copy was printed on 10/15/2024

MPLX	Close Interval Survey Determination for New Pipelines	OPS-STD-	00720-FOR01
	FORM	Page 1 of 3	
		DATE 11/1/2024	Rev 1

PIPELINE INFORMATION			
Pipeline Name		County, State	
Pipeline Product		CP System In-Service Date	
Pipeline Length		Pipeline Diameter	
Pipeline GPS Start		Pipeline GPS End	

			ſ	MOS <sup>-</sup> (A	T RE( ttach	CENT PCS F	CP Seport	SYST or Fil	EM I	NSP Below	ECTI / Table	ONS e)			
CP System		Inspection	V	oltag	je	Am	npera	age		Та	ap Se	etting	gs	Lat	Long
Name	IVIP	Date		(DC)			(DC)	_	С	oars	е		Fine	Lai	LONG
				of			of			of			of		
				of			of			of			of		
				of			of			of			of		

(Most Recent Settings per Location)

#### MOST RECENT CP TEST STATION INSPECTIONS (Attach PCS Report or Fill Out Below Table)

Table on Next Page

	CLOSE INTERVAL SU	RVEY SCHEDUI	LING		
	Circums	tances			
Annual Test Point	Inspection Locations that do not meet Cal	thodic Protection	Criteria	of	
Annual Test Point	Inspection Locations with Suspected Fore	ign Pipeline Inte	rference	of	
Other:					
	Proposed CIS	Timeframe			
Perform init	ial CIS in years from documentatior	n of OPS-STD-00	20-FOR02 form		
Perform init	ial CIS in per interval prescribed in OPS-S	STD-0072			
Signature		Date			
Name		Title			

	Close Interval Survey Determination for New Pipelines	OPS-STD-	00720-FOR01
		Pag	e 2 of 3
B	FORM	DATE 11/1/2024	Rev 1

CLOSE INTERVAL SURVEY SCHEDULING
Additional Remarks

	Close Interval Survey Determination for New Pipelines	OPS-STD	-0072-FOR01
		Pag	e 3 of 3
ß	FORM	DATE 11/1/2024	Rev 2

			MOST RECE (Attac	ENT CP TEST	STATION	INSPECTIONS	5			
Location Name	MP	Inspection Date	Structure P/S (mV)	Structure IRF (mV)	Native (mV)	Foreign P/S (mV)	Foreign IRF (mV)	Inspection Remarks	Lat	Long

(Most Recent Settings per Location)

.

## APPENDIX E EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN



Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

Revision 4 (2024 July)

## PLAN APPROVAL STATEMENT

## MPLX PERMIAN BASIN COMPRESSOR STATIONS EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN

This Emergency Action Plan is intended for responding to incidents occurring at the Permian Basin Compressor Stations, which consists of Bell Lake North, Bell Lake South, Mid Bell and Red Hill. It is designed to comply with the following requirements: 29 CFR 1910.120 "Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response", 29 CFR 1910.39 "Fire Prevention Plan" and 29 CFR 1910.38 "Emergency Action Plan".

It will be the responsibility of the site manager, in conjunction with the Emergency Preparedness Group Representative and site safety, to review and maintain this plan at least annually. All personnel affected by this plan will be trained of its content and are encouraged to participate in its annual review.

I certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of New Mexico, that the information contained in this Emergency Action Plan is true and correct and that the plan is both feasible and executable.

Aux Per

8/6/24

Trent Peterson Operations Manager MPLX

Date

i

## **DISTRIBUTION LIST**

The Emergency Action Plan has been distributed to the personnel or areas listed in the table below.

Name	Position	Binder number
Trent Peterson	Operations Manager	1
EJ C. Rios	Operations Supervisor	2
	Bell Lake South Office Building	3
	Bell Lake South Fence Box	4
	Bell Lake North Fence Box	5
	Red Hill Fence Box	6
	Mid Bell Lake Fence Box	7
Robert Kestenbaum	EPG Representative	8
John Ford	Emergency Management, G&P	9
Edwin Melendez	Safety	10
Daniel Juarez	Safety Supervisor	11
DeMarco Marshall	PSM	12

## **RECORD OF CHANGES**

This plan will be reviewed at least annually, or whenever necessary, for changes in procedures, response strategies, phone numbers, and regulatory mandates. Any changes or revisions made shall be noted in the Record of Changes below.

Revision #	Date	Description	Name
Original	2/2021	Original- standard version	R. Kestenbaum, S. Mercer, W.
			Malone
Revision 1	6/2021	Added Bell Lake North, renamed to Permian Basin	R. Kestenbaum, S. Mercer
		Compressor Station	
Revision 2	4/2022	Annual, added Mid Bell, wildfire, security guideline	R. Kestenbaum, S. Mercer
Revision 3	7/2023	Annual: Update names, numbers, added BLEVE	R. Kestenbaum, C. Ramos, D.
		safety precautions, severe weather, general updates	Marshall
Revision 4	7/2024	Annual review: update names, numbers, ERG	R. Kestenbaum, E. Melendez
		guides, security guide, general updates	

Introduction

## **SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION**

## 1.1 OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS

MPLX 200 East Hardin Findlay, OH 45840

#### **1.1.1 Plan Correspondence**

All plan correspondence should be sent to:

Robert Kestenbaum	John Ford
Emergency Management Coordinator	Emergency Management
1300 Pier B St	1515 Arapahoe St Twr 1 Ste 1600
Long Beach, CA 90813	Denver, CO 80202

## **1.2 PLAN PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES**

The following facilities are covered under this emergency action plan (EAP):

- Bell Lake North: 10-acre compressor station in Lea County. The unit contains seven compressors, dehy unit, JT fuel skid, and multiple storage tanks.
- Bell Lake South Compressor Station: 80-acre compressor station in Lea County. The unit contains eight compressor's, dehy unit, JT Fuel skid, and multiple storage tanks.
- Red Hills Compressor Station: 9.17-acre compressor station in Lea County.
- Mid Bell Compressor Station: 8-acre compressor station in Lea County.

Facility	Latitude	Longitude	County	Site Code
Bell Lake North	32.3323 N	103.5274 W	Lea (NM)	BELN
Bell Lake South	32.2365 N	103.5137 W	Lea (NM)	BELS
Red Hill	32.0878 N	103.6126 W	Lea (NM)	RED
Mid Bell	32.2672 N	103.5156 W	Lea (NM)	MIDB

The Company is committed to preventing incidents, mitigating impacts, and facilitating immediate response through an Incident Management Team (IMT) process utilizing pre-planning and an Incident Command System (ICS). The Company's response planning and actions are driven by, in order of priority, protection of human health and safety, minimization of environmental impacts, and minimization of socio-economic impacts. The purpose of this plan is to describe the policies and procedures to be followed by Company personnel in responding to emergency conditions, as required by federal, state, and local agencies.

The primary objectives of the Plan are to:

- Define notification, activation, and mobilization procedures to be followed when an incident occurs.
- Define organizational lines of responsibility to be adhered to during a response operation.
- Document equipment, manpower, and other resources available to assist with the response. Identify procedures for obtaining equipment if an incident occurs within the Facility.
- Ensure compliance with the federal, state, and local emergency response regulations.

## **1.3 SCOPE OF PLAN**

The purpose of this EAP is to provide effective organizational response to potential emergencies, in a timely manner. This includes instituting a systematic approach, the Incident Command System, to respond to an emergency. The step-by-step approach adopted in this plan will help to normalize an emergency situation as soon as possible yet be flexible enough to adapt to any size or type of emergency. The incident may be a fire, off-site or on-site spill, bomb threat, toxic release, multiple injury, earthquake, protest demonstration, security threat, etc.

The plan provides a general description of the Facility, outlines the response organizational structure, provides notification and call-out procedures, and identifies appropriate response to potential incidents. Facility overviews are provided as *Figures 1.1* through *1.4*. Facility overviews are not available for Bell Lake North or Mid Bell. Overall site and evacuation plans for the compressor stations (*Figures 1.5* through *1.8*) are also included in this section.

## **1.4 PLAN REVIEW AND UPDATE PROCEDURES**

Operations management, with support from the Emergency Preparedness Group representative and site safety, will support the plan development, maintenance and distribution. Plan review and updating will be done on the following basis:

- Annual review and update by local management and HES.
- Name and/or telephone number changes updated as they occur.
- Plan review opportunities may occur during response team tabletop exercises or actual emergency responses.
- Significant changes at a facility that may affect response capabilities:
  - Names and/or telephone numbers of the Response Personnel.
  - Response procedures as necessitated by potential deficiencies identified during training or exercises.
  - Revised emergency response procedures.
  - Pertinent regulations.

## 1.4.1 Immediate Plan Updates

The Company will immediately modify its response plan to address a new or different operating condition or information that would substantially affect the implementation of a response plan and, within 30 days of making such a change, submit the change to all plan holders.

Introduction



Figure 1.1 Bell Lake North

Figure 1.2 Bell Lake South



REVISION 4 July 2024

Figure 1.3

#### Permian Basin Compressor Stations Emergency Action Plan

**Red Hill** 



Figure 1.4 Mid Bell Lake



Introduction





x     x <th>PRIMARY MUSTER POINT RATE A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A</th> <th>ND: BUILDING CONTROL ROOM MSD BOOK LOCA HOT WORK AREA (PERNIT ROOK AREA EMERGENCY LIC EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIC ESD - EMERGEN SHUT DOWN SN ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT GAS DETECTOR FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT SECONDARY MEETI SECONDARY MEETI SECONDAR</th> <th>T T TION RED) HT AMBER HT RED CY ITCH ND NG AREA TING ATION SHER F GIVEN) UTE</th>	PRIMARY MUSTER POINT RATE A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	ND: BUILDING CONTROL ROOM MSD BOOK LOCA HOT WORK AREA (PERNIT ROOK AREA EMERGENCY LIC EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIC ESD - EMERGEN SHUT DOWN SN ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT GAS DETECTOR FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT FIRE EYES PREVAILING WIT SECONDARY MEETI SECONDARY MEETI SECONDAR	T T TION RED) HT AMBER HT RED CY ITCH ND NG AREA TING ATION SHER F GIVEN) UTE
	RLK BELL LAKE NORTH, STATION	A.F.E. DRAWN: TJH CHECK: RCM ENG. APP.: PROCESS APP.: DIRECTOR APP.: SCALE: 1"=30'-0"	DATE: 5/26/21 DATE: DATE: DATE: DATE: DATE: CAD FILE: CA

 $\square$ 



LEGEND: ULUING CONTROL ROOM / MSD BOOK LOCATION HOT WORK AREA (PERMIT REQUIRED) EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
17,5 35       BUILDING         ELEGEND:       BUILDING         CONTROL ROOM / MSD BOOK LOCATION       MSD BOOK LOCATION         MOL TO WORK AREA       (PERMIT REQUIRED)         EDGE OF AREA       EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER         EMERGENCY LIGHT RED       ESD - EMERGENCY         SHUT DOWN SWITCH       ESD VALVE         ALARM HORN       GAS DETECTOR
LEGEND: BUILDING CONTROL ROOM / MSD BOOK LOCATION HOW WORK AREA (PERMIT REQUIRED) EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
BUILDING CONTROL ROOM / MOS BOOK LOCATION HOT WORK AREA (PERMIT REQUIRED) EDG OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
CONTROL ROOM / MSD BOOK LOCATION HOT WORK AREA (PERMIT REQUIRED) EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
HOS BOOK LOCATION HOS BOOK LOCATION HOS BOOK LOCATION HOS BOOK LOCATION HOS BOOK LOCATION HOS BOOK LOCATION HEREBUIL END WORK AREA (PERMIT REQUIRED) EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
EMERGENCY LIGHT RED ESD - EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SWITCH ESD VALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR
SIUT DOWN SWITCH
SHUT DOWN SWITCH
ALARM HORN
ALARM HORN
GAS DETECTOR
FIRE EVES
OPEN PATH DETECTOR
PREVAILING WIND DIRECTION
PRIMARY MEETING AREA
SECONDARY MEETING
FIRST AID LOCATION
EYE WASH
FIRE EXTINGUISHER LOCATION (# IF GIVEN)
evacuation route
SMOKING AREA
WIND SOCK
FIRE BLANKET
EXIT
EXIT EMERGENCY EXIT
Defibrillator
NO EAR PROTECTION
EAR PROTECTION
2X EAR PROTECTION
GATE
SPILL RESPONCE
NOTEC ·
NOTES.
" Х
ASSET: BELL LAKE SOUTH
LOCATION: LEA CO, NEW MEXICO
SAFETY PLAN
BELL LAKE SOUTH COMPRESSOR STATION
BLK-577-1003



REFERENCE

REVISION-DESCRIPTION



					A.F	F.E.		
					DR/ CHE	AWN: DLB ECK:	DATE: 06/10 DATE:	0/20
					ENG	G. APP.:	DATE:	
	PI K				PRO	UULSS APP.:	DAIE:	
	RLK			SAFETY PLAN	DIR	RECTOR APP.:	DATE:	
		SM	RLK	RED HILLS COMPRESSOR STATION	SC/	ALE: 1"=40'-0"	CAD. FILE: RHL-100	13
1	ENG.	PROCESS	DIRECTOR	OVERALL SAFETY PLAN	DF	RAWING NO.		REV.
	APP'D	APP'D	APP'D	LEA CO. RED HILLS NEW P	MEXICO	RHL-SAF-	-1003	1

Page 424 of 483





	CATE			ULL UTION CONTINUE CONTROL ROOM / MSD BOOK LOCATION HOT WORK AREA (PERNIT REQUIRED) EDGE OF AREA EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER EMERGENCY LIGHT AMBER ESD YALVE ALARM HORN GAS DETECTOR FIRE EVES
	CATE			PREVALUSE VIEWS WIND DIRECTION PREVARY MEETING AREA SECONDARY MEETING AREA FIRST AID LOCATION EVE WASH FIRE EXTINGUISHER LOCATION (I F GIVEN) EVACUATION ROUTE SMOKING AREA WIND SOCK FIRE BLANKET EXIT EMERGENCY EXIT
\ /				DEFIBRILLATOR NO EAR PROTECTION EAR PROTECTION 2X EAR PROTECTION Gate CS: (#)
	GATE		1. SOME APPF ACCL EXPR TO A	E EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS ARE EXXIMATE, THEREFORE NO IRACY OR COMPLIANCE IS IESSED OR ASSUMED IN REGARD BBSOLUTE LOCATIONS.
ASSET:		MID BELL LAKE		
LUCATION:		SAFETY PLAN		
		MID BELL LAKE COMPRESSOR	STATION	VISION
SCALE: AS	NOTED	MBL-SPP-1000		<u>~</u> 1

Page 425 of 483



## SECTION 2 INITIAL RESPONSE GUIDE FIRST RESPONDER

# Initial Response Guide First Responder

#### Safety

- Your safety first and then the safety of others
- Start a Site Safety Health Plan (SSHP) as soon as possible. • This is found on page 5 of the ICS 201 Site Safety and Control Analysis.
- Stay out of the hazard area .
- If performing Recon, approach up-wind, up-stream with 4 gas meter or equivalent.

#### Shut down, Isolate and Deny Entry

- Eliminate all ignition sources
- Shut down pipeline operations as appropriate
- Evacuate the immediate area and establish an initial Hot Zone
- Deny entry to the immediate area
- If necessary, other Hazwoper trained employees may help deny entry into the area
- If on the scene, ask police and fire resources to help deny entry into immediate area

#### **Notifications (Section 3)**

- Dial 911 if ambulance, police or fire department assistance is needed
- Call MAPLINE
- Follow the Notifications Flowchart (internal and external)

#### **Protective Equipment**

- Ensure proper levels of PPE
- Ensure PPE is in line with SSHP

#### **Containment & Control**

- Immediately, valve isolation and control strategies should be developed within the Unified Command Process
- Operations Section Chief oversee containment and control tactical deployment

#### **Protective Actions**

- . Ensure safe Recon to assess impact for potential fire or explosion
- Protective action tactical deployment should be part of the Unified process

#### **Command Management**

- Assume the role of Incident Commander
  - Make an announcement to all on the scene that you have assumed Command
- Establish a Unified Command Post and Staging Area up-wind and up-stream of the incident in the cold zone

2

4

- Begin by assigning initial ICS positions as necessary, such as Deputy IC, Operations and Safety.
- Meet, greet and brief responding Agencies as they arrive at the **Unified Command Post**
- Ensure Safety Officer begins and completes a Job Site Safety Plan

#### **Identification and Assessment**

- Continue to evaluate the hot zone and adjust accordingly
- Continue to monitor evacuation activities with the fire
- department Ensure safe Recon to determine extent of impact to the community

#### **Action Planning**

- Create an ICS 201 to serve as the de facto Incident Action Plan for the initial period
- Create Unified "Next" period Incident Action Plan only if needed if there is a fire

#### **Decontamination / Clean-up**

- Decon activities take place under the ICS Ops Section
- Decon capabilities in place before entering Hot Zone
- Ensure proper PPE for Decon Team
- Clean-up strategies should be part of the Unified IAP
- Decon run-off needs to be contained and properly disposed of

## Disposal

Ensure early notification of Waste SMEs

#### **Documentation**

- Ensure initial response actions are documented on ICS Form 201
- Ensure proper retention of all incident related documents
- Ensure timely incident critique and record lessons learned
- Date and initial all field note pages





THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

.

## **SECTION 3 NOTIFICATION**

## 3.1 Initial Notification

In the event of an emergency condition, it is imperative that everyone at all levels of operation knows what action they must take in order to ensure proper completion of the internal and external notification process. Emergencies require quick response; therefore, delays at any level of the notification process must be avoided.

The first Company employee who discovers a fire, chemical release, medical emergency or other emergency will be responsible for initiating notification procedures and will act as the incident commander (IC) until relieved by a competent IC.

## 3.2 NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

It should be noted that the obligation to report immediately takes precedence over obtaining all the information outlined in the checklist. **Notifications to the appropriate external agencies will not be delayed solely to gather all of the required information**.

## 3.3 DATA REPORTING

The Company employee who discovers an emergency condition or receives initial notification of an emergency or abnormal condition should try to obtain the following information to provide pertinent data to HES to permit the making of an immediate report to the applicable agencies and personnel on the notification list. Notifications will not be delayed to complete gathering information. Other specific Notification Information may be required by other local, state and federal reporting requirements.

1. Location of emergency	6. Cause of emergency.
2. Was anyone hurt?	7. Actions taken.
3. Time of emergency	8. Weather conditions.
4. Type of emergency	9. Equipment needed.
5. Product/volume involved.	10. Environmental concerns.

**Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM** 

Notification

#### Figure 3.1 Incident Reporting

CSB (if release results in fatality, hospitalization or

Environmental Protection Agency- Region VI

damage to property >\$1 million.)

(spill on land (>1000 gal) or water)



Within 8 hours

(202) 261-7600

(866) 372-7745

#### Notification

FEDERAL AGENCIES					
AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED		
National Response Center	800-424-8802				
EPA – Region 6	866-372-7745				
Chemical Safety Board	202-261-7600				

STATE AGENCIES					
AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED		
New Mexico Department of Public Safety – State	(505) 476-0617				
Emergency Response Commission (SERC)					
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural					
<b>Resources Department – Oil Conservation Division</b>	(505) 476-3493				
District 4 – Santa Fe	(505) 476-3460				
New Mexico Environmental Department					
<ul> <li>Emergencies (24 hours/day)</li> </ul>	(505) 827-9329				
Non-emergencies	(866) 428-6535				
NMED Petroleum Storage Tank Bureau					
Normal Business hours (8-5)	(505) 476-4397				
• 24-hour alternate, emergencies	(505) 827-9329				
NMED Surface Water Quality Bureau					
Main Office	(505) 827-0187				
Nonemergency reporting, Business hours	(505) 476-6000				
Nonemergency reporting, 24-hour	(866) 428-6535				

LOCAL AGENCIES					
AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED		
Lea County Sheriff's Department	575-396-3611				
Jal Police Department	575-395-2501				
Jal Fire Department	575-395-2211				
Eunice Fire Department	575-394-3258				
Lea County Emergency Mgmt	575-391-2983				
Eddy County REDA Dispatch	575-616-7155 or 7111				

RESPONSE CONTRACTORS/COOPERATIVES				
AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED	
Marine Spill Response Corp. (MSRC)	(800) 645-7745			
CTEH (when impacting community for air monitoring)	(866) 869-2834			

MEDICAL				
AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED	
Carlsbad Medical Center	(575) 887-4100			
2430 W Pierce St, Carlsbad, NM 88220				
Reeves County Hospital	(432) 447-0000			
2323 Texas St Pecos, TX				

.

#### Notification

HES CONTACTS						
NAME	Title	CELL NUMBER	OFFICE PHONE	TIME CONTACTED		
Edwin Melendez	Safety	575-361-5923				
Jessica O'Brien	Environmental	409-454-3777	210-626-7774			
Josh Williams	EPG Representative	435-230-1988				
John Ford	Emergency Management	361-278-4656				
Glenn Godfrey	Security	210-952-4781				
Kevin Thomas	Safety Manager	307-371-4203	307-371-4203			
DeMarco Marshall	PSM	435-219-0472				

NEIGHBORS and COMMUNITY CONTACTS					
LOCATION	AFFILIATION	PHONE NUMBER	NAME OF PERSON CONTACTED	TIME CONTACTED	
Red Hills	Kaiser Francis	580-220-4484	Jerry Anderson		
Red Hills	Kaiser Francis	432-238-6996	Larry Motes		
Poll Lake South	Lucid Energy Gas Plant	575-748-5555			
Dell Lake South	Control Room	575-748-7012			
Bell Lake South	Lea County Concrete	575-392-1317			
Bell Lake North	Kaiser Francis	580-668-2335			
Mid Bell	DCP Midstream	575-745-3766			
Mid Bell	Devon Energy	575-748-3371			
Mid Bell	Kaiser Francis	918-494-0000			
Mid Bell	XCEL Energy	800-895-4999			

## **3.4 Other External Notifications**

#### 3.4.1 Media Communication

When required, the Public Information Officer or Incident Commander are the sole authorized spokespersons for the plant. Any requests for information or interviews will be referred to the Public Information Officer to maintain consistency. At the earliest possible opportunity following an incident, a statement will be prepared for the media acknowledging that an accident, fire or other emergency has occurred and that steps are being taken to control the situation.

If members of the media arrive unexpectedly at the facility (i.e., there is no incident or emergency in progress), media personnel should be directed to remain at the Main Entrance. The Facility Supervisor should then page or telephone the Public Affairs Director or designee.

#### 3.4.2 Next of Kin Notification

The Human Resources Officer will be responsible for coordinating any next of kin notifications. The circumstances and condition of the employee(s) will determine whether the notification is handled by telephone or by a personal visit of a trained Company representative. Transportation may be arranged for the family to the hospital if circumstances warrant.

NOTE: Employee families, relatives and friends should be advised to not flood the plant telephone system with phone calls when the media announces that there has been an emergency involving injuries or the loss of life within the plant. An extreme number of phone calls at the same time will potentially overload and shutdown the telephone system.

## **SECTION 4 SPECIFIC RESPONSE ACTIONS**

## 4.1 Chemical Information

The Permian Basin Compressor Stations processes and transport natural gas and condensate. Emergency Response Guidebook Guide #115 (natural gas) and Guide #128 (condensate) are provided at the end of this section for information on fires and spills, in addition to what is provided in this EAP

## 4.2 Initial Actions

## 4.2.1 General Procedures

When an emergency is discovered, the first person on-scene will initially assume control of the situation until the arrival of a Company employee of higher authority. Upon arrival, the Incident Commander will be responsible to (1) establish on-scene command of the emergency from a location which is upwind of any release and is in a safe area; (2) initiate the Incident Management System (IMS) if necessary; and (3) ensure that the appropriate initial notifications and actions are taken to minimize and control the emergency.

The following general response procedures should be implemented:

• Ensure that all personnel are notified in the immediate area. Isolate the hazard area and deny entry, as appropriate. Establish an initial isolation perimeter and access control points. Keep all non-essential people away from the hazard area.

DANGER: Only those individuals directly involved in the emergency response efforts that are properly trained, wearing the proper level of personal protective clothing, and working in pairs (if feasible for station operators) shall be allowed access into the hazard area.

- Personal protective clothing may include FR clothing, SCBA, flash gear, or chemical protective clothing, depending on the nature of the emergency.
- Initiate employee protective actions (e.g., evacuation or protection-in-place), as appropriate.
- If possible, implement immediate control or countermeasures. This includes blocking-in operations, etc., based upon the hazard present. If personal health and safety is not assured, do not attempt to re-enter the emergency site.
- Designate a staging area where the emergency response units can safely report to without becoming directly exposed to the emergency release, as appropriate.
- During accountability, only the Incident Commander shall decide on rescue or recovery for unaccounted personnel
- Identify and confirm the nature of the problem, materials involved, and the extent of the area/unit/process involved.
- Identify the hazards and assess the level of risk to station personnel, the community, and the environment.
- Implement Emergency Notifications, as appropriate.
- Upon the set-up and activation of the Emergency Operations Center (if necessary), overall command of the incident will be transferred to the Incident Commander in the EOC. Advise the Incident Commander of all emergency actions previously taken or currently being implemented. Command of on-scene operations will remain the responsibility of the On-Scene Commander.

## 4.2.2 What to do upon discovering an emergency

The initial response to all emergencies should be the same four steps: (a) Evaluation, (b) Protection and Site Control, (c) Reporting, and (d) Situation Control or suppression. These four steps should be done quickly and accurately so that proper information can be reported to emergency responders.

a) Evaluate the situation.
### **Specific Response Actions**

- What actions can be taken immediately to stop or minimize the situation?
- Are people injured or endangered?
- Is there a potential for the emergency to escalate?
- What chemicals and equipment are involved?
- What actions should be taken to secure the site to minimize the danger to others?
- Can the actions be safely made wearing your current protective equipment?
- b) Protect yourself and others and secure the area of the emergency.
  - Position yourself upwind and warn other workers in the area to remain clear. Use barricade tape (if available) or other means to secure the site until additional help arrives.
- c) Report the emergency.
  - Notify your supervisor or the control room by radio, telephone, in person, or through another person. The Supervisor shall determine the extent of the emergency and if necessary, summon further assistance by activating the Emergency Notification System.
- d) Control or suppress the situation.
  - Only if it is safe to do so, take incipient response actions to control or suppress the emergency (i.e. use of fire extinguishers). If hazardous gases or other hazards could be present, evacuate the scene until properly trained responders arrive.
  - All employees in the immediate vicinity of the emergency should assist in controlling the situation and/or securing the area until the additional assistance arrives. Persons shall position themselves upwind and at a safe distance away from the emergency.
  - If the emergency is a small or incipient fire, an immediate attempt should be made to extinguish the fire by using a hand portable fire extinguisher.
  - Employees will receive training in the use of this equipment (as applicable) per timelines required by regulation.

## 4.3 Evacuation Procedures

- Hazard Imposed by Released Material Possible hazards imposed by spilled petroleum products in the station include the following:
  - o Fire
  - Vapor Cloud Explosion cause by pressurized hydrocarbons.
  - Personnel exposure hazards including contact burns and toxic vapor inhalation.
- **Prevailing Wind Direction and Speed** The prevailing wind direction in the vicinity of the station is from the south from April to November, then from the west for the other half of the year.
- Arrival Route of Emergency Response Personnel and Response Equipment Refer to *Table 4.1* for facility specific information.
- **Evacuation Route/Muster Point** Refer to *Table 4.1* for facility specific information. An evacuation map is provided in *Figures 1-2 to 1-5*.
  - After an evacuation, no personnel are to re-enter the Facility until the All Clear / Re-entry signal is given verbally by the Station Manager. Company personnel may be authorized by the responding agency to re-enter prior to the All Clear to provide site-specific information to the responders.
  - Under no circumstances are Company personnel to enter hazardous areas unless they have the proper personal protective equipment and have been trained in the proper use of the equipment and are designated by the IC to enter the hazardous area.
  - The All Clear signal will be issued by the Operations Manager after consultation with the appropriate emergency response agencies and Company management and after determining that re-entry is safe.

- **Transportation of Injured Personnel to Nearest Emergency Medical Facility** Injured personnel will be transported to the Carlsbad Medical Center in Carlsbad.
- Location of Alarm/Notification Systems Verbal communication is used to provide warning to all personnel. Upon notification, all non-essential personnel, contractors and visitors shall immediately stop work, move away from the process area and move towards the primary assembly area.
- **Centralized Check-in/Assembly Area for Evacuation Validation** Report to Assembly Area and await further instructions.
  - DO NOT pick up personal belongings.
  - $\circ~$  DO NOT LEAVE individuals must be accounted for.
  - DO NOT light a cigarette, smoke or vape. DO NOT remain on the phone or make phone calls.
  - DO NOT attempt to reenter the affected area until supervisor gives the all clear.
  - The Incident Commander (IC) must ensure that all employees are accounted for by taking a head count.
  - The IC must determine if any employees are missing and will report them missing if uncertain of their status.
  - Only the IC and emergency response team is to interface with the local response personnel.
  - The IC will send team members to notify the employees when it is safe to reenter the facility.
  - Selection of Incident Command Post The Incident Command Post will be set up in the Conference Room in the conference room at the Tornado plant. An Operations Center will be set as close to the site of the incident as is deemed safe by the Safety Officer.
- **Reference to Existing Community Evacuation Plans** all evacuation efforts undertaken at the terminal will be coordinated with the Lea County Local Emergency Planning Committee.
- After returning to the site, a thorough inspection of the Facility must be made to determine:
  - The extent of any damage.
  - The status of all systems and equipment.
  - This inspection must cover the entire Facility, even if only a small part of the Facility was affected, in order to make a complete damage assessment.

Facility	Primary Evacuation Muster Point	Secondary Evacuation Muster Point	Route for Emergency Responders
Bell Lake North	Outside the primary gate	Along fenceline on south side of the station	From Jal: Head west on NM-128 W/W Kansas Ave for 20.2 miles, turn right onto Delaware Basin Rd. Travel 8.4 miles. Turn left after Delaware Basin turns east. Head north for .4 miles, then turn left and travel 1.5 miles.
Bell Lake South	Outside the primary gate	At the intersection of Delaware Basin Rd and dirt road	From Jal: Head west on NM-128 W/W Kansas Ave for 20.2 miles, turn right onto Delaware Basin Rd. Travel 1.8 miles, compressor station will be on the left.

## Table 4.1

**Specific Response Actions** 

Red Hill	Outside the primary gate	On CR-1B at the intersection to the east or west, depending on wind direction	From Jal: Travel west on NM-128 W for 29.6 miles, turn left onto J- 1/Orla Rd for 5.7 miles. Turn left onto Cotton Draw Rd/J-1 for 2.9 miles, then turn left. Travel .8 miles
Mid Bell	East of the West Front Gate outside the fence line	#2 – West of the East Front Gate outside the fence line; #3 – outside the northwest push gate	From Jal: Travel west on NM-128 W for 24.1 miles, turn right onto Delaware Basin Rd for 4 miles. Turn left onto County Rd 2-A/J- 2/XI Rd for .3 miles, facility on the left.

## 4.4 Fire or Explosion

## 4.4.1 Initial Actions

If a fire is discovered, these initial steps shall be followed:

- If it can be done safely, attempt to extinguish an incipient stage fire with the available portable fire extinguishers.
- If the fire was successfully extinguished, report the event.

NOTE: Under no circumstances shall an employee attempt to fight a fire that has passed the incipient stage or beyond their level of training (which can be put out with a fire extinguisher), nor shall any employee attempt to enter a burning building to conduct search and rescue. Untrained individuals may endanger themselves and/or those they are trying to rescue.

## 4.4.1.1 Uncontrollable Fire

Note: The plant is not designed with deluge systems or remote firefighting. Any fire that exceeds that ability to put out with a fire extinguisher will require evacuate, isolate and let burn. The safety of employees and emergency responders is the highest priority.

- Call 911 and activate the emergency evacuation alarm to initiate evacuation
- Implement process operation control, such as activating the ESD's, if safe to do so. ESD's are indicated on *Figures 1-2 to 1-5*.
- If the ESD wasn't successful to mitigate the fire, evacuate the facility and call 911.
- When fire department arrives, have someone meet them at the gate to provide information on the fire, including material on fire and actions taken. Provide support to fire department as requested
- Secure the site and control access to the terminal

## 4.4.1.2 Vessel Impingement

If the fire is on, near to, or impinging upon pressurized storage vessels containing natural gas liquids (NGL) or condensate, there is a high risk that a vessel BLEVE may occur within 10-15 minutes. After facility ESD is activated, immediately evacuate to a safe distance.

Important: The primary muster point is not likely far enough away from pressurized storage if a risk to vessel BLEVE exists. The OSC or Senior Qualified Operations Employee will direct which muster points shall be used.

## 4.4.2 Fire Response Equipment

The compressor stations are equipped with handheld fire extinguishers located throughout each station. These extinguishers are used to augment firefighting and emergency response actions. Locations are indicated on *Figures 1.2* and *1.3*.

### REVISION 4 July 2024

## 4.4.3 Wildfire

If a wildfire is reported within 10 miles of the station, contact MAPLINE to discuss need and steps to be taken for evacuation and shut down of the facility, if required.

## 4.5 Medical Incident

## 4.5.1 Injury or Medical Emergencies Requiring Paramedic Assistance

Any injuries resulting in a minor first aid injury must be immediately reported to a Terminal Operator or the control room. Treatment for first aid injuries will take place at Carlsbad Medical Center in Carlsbad. A supervisor will transport the injured employee to the clinic for treatment. Carlsbad Medical Center is located at 2430 W Pierce St, Carlsbad, NM 88220, (575) 887-4100.

Any injury or medical emergency that requires treatment beyond basic first must receive immediate Emergency Medical Service assistance (paramedics).

**\*NOTE**: None of the compressor stations have an Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) located onsite.

Call 911 and report the injury or medical emergency, location and information about the injured person. Send someone to the main entrance to escort the paramedics to the injured person.

- The nearest hospital is Carlsbad Medical Center is located at 2430 W Pierce St, Carlsbad, NM 88220. Carlsbad Medical Center has a heli-pad, but no burn center
- The nearest hospital with a burn unit is UMC Hospital at 602 Indiana Avenue, Lubbock, Texas.

**\*NOTE:** If an injured person requires decontamination, conduct emergency decon prior to transport in an ambulance to an emergency room.

## 4.6 Hazardous Materials Incident

## 4.6.1 Checklist of Spill Response Actions

Hazardous material release containment and control by station personnel is limited to small releases which are within the scope of personnel training and available resources. Large hazardous material releases which are outside the capabilities of the trained facility personnel will be handled by the fire department or other qualified contractors / agencies. Likely hazards to be encountered include petroleum products and hazardous waste.

## 4.6.2 Initial Response: Hazardous Materials Release

The Initial Responder is responsible for coordinating the following activities when responding to a hazardous materials release:

- Determine if the release can be controlled. Arrive on scene and assess the release from a safe distance. It is imperative the severity of the hazards is understood so the proper safety equipment is supplied, and the appropriate defensive measures are taken. Safety is always the first priority.
  - Obtain the product SDS.
  - Identify the product hazards
  - o Estimate the amount of contamination / concentration of the released material.
  - Conduct initial air monitoring if appropriate.
  - o Contact the Facility Manager

**WARNING**: Wear appropriate personal protective equipment when examining the release area. Consult SDS. Stay upwind and outside of spill zone.

## 4.6.3 Uncontrollable Release

Call 911 to summon the fire department and / or other trained responders if:

• Quantities of hazardous material released may impact the safety of personnel or the environment beyond the station boundary.

- If the release cannot be readily controlled, contained and quickly recovered with existing equipment and personnel.
- If a facility evacuation is required.

## Initiate Release Control Measures:

- Implement process operation control, such as stopping the material flow to control the release by shutting down pumps, closing valves, lowering tank levels, depressurizing/ shutting down equipment, if safe to do so. Eliminate ignition sources.
- Evacuate if necessary; The First Responder will coordinate an evacuation and shut down of process equipment as determined by the incident threat. Determine a safe evacuation route and assembly area and inform personnel onsite.

NOTE: Evacuate to an area upwind from the release zone (check facility wind sock for wind direction).

- **Provide support to the Fire Department** or other responders, including information and resources as necessary.
- Secure the site and control access to the station: Limit entry to essential personnel only. Obtain help from the Sheriff's Department if necessary. Use caution tape, barricades, barriers etc.
- Make notifications as provided in Section 3.

## 4.6.4 Controllable Release

## Initiate Release Control Measures:

**NOTE**: Containment, control, clean-up and decon actions beyond initial defensive measures shall be determined by Plant Supervisor with consultation with Emergency Preparedness Group Representative, Environmental and Safety as necessary.

- Implement process operation control, such as stopping the material flow to control the release by shutting down pumps, closing valves, lowering tank levels, depressurizing/ shutting down equipment, if safe to do so. Eliminate ignition sources.
- Implement Physical control by applying absorbent pads and / or boom or creating berms to contain the release.
- Chemical releases: small releases should be neutralized as recommended by the safety data sheet. For larger releases dike and pump back and / or apply absorbent material.
   WARNING: DO NOT dilute with water
- Consider additional resources which may be employed to control or prevent the release from spreading.
- Secure the site and control access to the station: Limit entry to essential personnel only. Obtain help from the Sheriff's Department if necessary. Use caution tape, barricades, barriers etc.
- Make notifications as provided in Section 3.

## 4.7 Severe Weather

## **4.7.1 Downed Power Lines**

For any downed powerlines inside the plant area because of severe weather, isolate the area and contact Oncor at 888-313-6862 (General) or 888-313-4747 (Outage).

## 4.7.2 Lightning Storms

Refer to G&P Standard Document **SAF-STD-0016 Lightning Safety Standard** for guidelines and requirements for lightning safety.

## 4.7.3 High Winds

The facility is in a region that is may be susceptible to high wind events. If a high wind event occurs, the Operations Supervisor will assess the situation and decide to scale back or cease operations until the situation is safe.

## 4.7.4 Tornados or Storms with High Winds

Refer to G&P Standard Document SAF-STD-0025-REF-02 Natural Disaster and Severe Weather Response Plan for guidelines and requirements for tornados or severe weather.

## 4.7.5 Earthquake

Earthquakes usually occur without warning therefore the first action is to shelter in place and do not go outdoors. After the earthquake ceases perform the following:

- Assess damage and account for all personnel
- Attend to injured and follow medical response section as required
- Shut off utilities as required
- Implement communications procedures and notify utilities if necessary.

#### **SECURITY INCIDENT RESPONSE GUIDE** Action **Considerations** 1. Assess the potential threat. What is happening? ٠ Could it get worse? • Corrective action needed? • • Additional assistance needed? 2. Perform protective See types of security threats and their protective measures below. measures based on the type of threat. • If suspicious activity by • Do not attempt to make contact with person(s). unknown person is Note any information like suspect description, license plate • observed in or around number, etc. facility... Contact law enforcement. • If workplace violence / Run if possible, knowing the location of the attacker. Open • ٠ active shooter is observed facility gate and call law enforcement. in or around facility... Hide and barricade yourself until law enforcement comes. • Fight by any means necessary to keep yourself safe. • If **bomb threat** is received • Contact law enforcement. • by mail or note... Keep letter/note for law enforcement. • • If **bomb threat** is received ٠ Remain calm. by phone... Keep person on the line. • • Listen very carefully. • Ask caller questions listed in SEC-96019 Bomb Threat Procedures. Contact law enforcement. • If suspicious package or Do not touch or move device. • • bomb-like device is found... Evacuate area. ٠ Avoid using radio or cellular phone near the device. • • Contact law enforcement. If civil disturbance or Ensure facility is secured from unauthorized entry. • • protest activity near the Brief onsite personnel of situation, evacuation routes, and • facility is observed... muster locations. • Ensure camera systems are operational.

## 4.8 Security Incident Response Guide

S	SECURITY INCIDENT RESPONSE GUIDE				
	<ul> <li>Evacuate if necessary and possible.</li> <li>Shelter-in-place and contact law enforcement if there is a threat of harm to onsite personnel.</li> <li>See the following standards and guidance documents for more information:         <ul> <li><u>SEC-6003 – Appendix E Emergency Response for Civil Disturbances</u></li> <li>MBLX Civil Unrest Cuidance Decument</li> </ul> </li> </ul>				
3. Cooperate with authorities.	Provide any details and follow up as requested.				
<ul> <li>4. Call 1-877-MAPLINE (1-877- 627-5463) from a safe location if not already done.</li> </ul>	Contact the Facility Manager (if not present), Security Professional, and others as needed. See <u>SEC 6003 Appendix C - Security Incident Reporting</u> for more information.				
5. After event follow up.	<ul> <li>Verify MAPLINE report accurately documents the event and actions taken.</li> <li>Perform a critique of the incident to identify best practices or areas of improvement.</li> <li>Complete an incident report.</li> </ul>				

## 4.9 Civil Disturbance, Terrorism

When civil disturbances or suspected terrorism event take place, local law enforcement agencies will usually be preoccupied with addressing the protection of the general public. Therefore, it is essential that the station be in a position to initiate defensive measures to assist in the protection of personnel and refinery property prior to the actual arrival of local law enforcement personnel.

The Company does not anticipate being the initial or a prime target of civil disorders. Due to its location, the station may have some pre-warning of any such activity taking place at other petrochemical facilities or industrial facilities and locations in the region. However, due to the presence of large quantities of flammable liquids and gases, the Facility could potentially serve as a target for terrorism-related events.

Personnel should be alert to the mood and political atmosphere in the area. When combined with information available through the news media, time will often be available to prepare for any potential occurrences. These guidelines will not be implemented based solely upon rumors, crank calls or reports from unreliable sources. Initiate notifications as indicated in *Figure 3.1*.

## 4.10 Disaster Recovery Plan (IT Emergency)

Company IT refers to an "IT Emergency" as a "MAJOR INCIDENT".

IT declares a Major Incident when the loss of an IT service causes significant business impact. The loss of service must be significant.

Criteria that warrants a Major Incident:

- Many users impacted
- Several offices impacted
- A critical application is down
- Lost service causes a significant impact to financial, operations, and\or Health & Safety

The IT Major Incident Process document is maintained on the ServiceNow website. An IT Incident Manager is available 24x7, 365 days.

**Specific Response Actions** 

How to Declare an IT Major Incident

- 1. Call the IT Helpdesk at 800-884-7397. You must CALL.
- 2. Identify the IT Service that is unavailable.
- 3. Tell the agent this is a "Major Incident".
- 4. The "on call" Incident Manager will be notified to begin the process.

## 4.11 Re-entry

Gas or chemical releases, fires, explosion, and other major emergencies that result in a facility evacuation may pose a health and safety threat to people. This procedure shall be followed if the ICS is stood up and/or third-party responders are called to support an emergency.

Important: The highest priority should always be the safety of the employees, contractors and emergency responders. No re-entry should be attempted until the emergency has been deemed secured.

Depending on the level of damage and/or potential exposure a detailed entry plan shall be written with the appropriate involvement from the following:

- Operations
- Engineering
- Safety
- Environmental
- Emergency Management Group
- Other resources as deemed necessary

The plan should take into account:

- Residual gas/chemicals
- Residual heat
- Structure damage
- Electrified equipment
- Hazardous atmosphere testing
- Equipment damaged with trapped pressure
- Potential movement of automated valves
- Remote isolation of the facility (isolation of gathering system valves)
- Congested entryways or walkways
- PPE requirements
- Human remains recovery procedure
- Communication Plan
- Evacuation plan
- Site Security
- Medical Care

Plan must be reviewed and approved by the Region Manager

## 4.12 Offsite Impacts to Facility

The facility's proximity to the other industrial facilities presents several potential impacts to the facility and employees resulting from an offsite incident.

## 4.12.1 Incident at Kaiser Francis, Lucid Energy or Lea County Concrete

The compressor stations are in close proximity to several industrial facilities, some of which are manned. If there is an emergency these facilities, there may not be any audible alarms or instructions. If no

instructions are received, determine need for evacuation based on visual indicators, such as a smoke plume, visible flame or noticeable odors. If evacuation is necessary, evacuate per the site-specific requirements, upwind if possible.

## 4.13 Other Incidents

## 4.13.1 Floods

The FEMA Flood maps for the Permian Basin compressor stations (3502C1900D, 3502C2050D) are unmapped, meaning no flood information is available. However, if there is a flood in the facility as a result of storms or broken water mains, the Operations Supervisor will assess the situation and make a determination to halt operations, depending on whether an increased hazard is present from the flood water.

### 4.13.2 Rescue

If a situation occurs that involves rescue, such as from a confined space, trench or high elevation (tank roof), immediately call 911 and request assistance.

## GUIDE GASES - FLAMMABLE 115 (Including Refrigerated Liquids)

### **POTENTIAL HAZARDS**

#### FIRE OR EXPLOSION

#### EXTREMELY FLAMMABLE.

- Will be easily ignited by heat, sparks or flames.
- · Will form explosive mixtures with air.
- · Vapors from liquefied gas are initially heavier than air and spread along ground.

CAUTION: Hydrogen (UN1049), Deuterium (UN1957), Hydrogen, refrigerated liquid (UN1966), Methane (UN1971) and Hydrogen and Methane mixture, compressed (UN2034) are lighter than air and will rise. Hydrogen and Deuterium fires are difficult to detect since they burn with an invisible flame. Use an alternate method of detection (thermal camera, broom handle, etc.)

- Vapors may travel to source of ignition and flash back.
- · Cylinders exposed to fire may vent and release flammable gas through pressure relief devices.
- · Containers may explode when heated.
- · Ruptured cylinders may rocket.

CAUTION: When LNG – Liquefied natural gas (UN1972) is released on or near water, product may vaporize explosively.

#### HEALTH

- · Vapors may cause dizziness or asphyxiation without warning, especially when in closed or confined areas.
- Some may be irritating if inhaled at high concentrations.
- Contact with gas, liquefied gas or cryogenic liquids may cause burns, severe injury and/or frostbite.
- · Fire may produce irritating and/or toxic gases.

### **PUBLIC SAFETY**

- CALL 911. Then call emergency response telephone number on shipping paper. If shipping paper
   not available or no answer, refer to appropriate telephone number listed on the inside back cover.
- Keep unauthorized personnel away.
- Stay upwind, uphill and/or upstream.
- Many gases are heavier than air and will spread along the ground and collect in low or confined areas (sewers, basements, tanks, etc.).

#### PROTECTIVE CLOTHING

- · Wear positive pressure self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA).
- · Structural firefighters' protective clothing provides thermal protection but only limited chemical protection.
- · Always wear thermal protective clothing when handling refrigerated/cryogenic liquids.

#### EVACUATION

#### Immediate precautionary measure

· Isolate spill or leak area for at least 100 meters (330 feet) in all directions.

#### Large Spill

Consider initial downwind evacuation for at least 800 meters (1/2 mile).

Fire

- If tank, rail tank car or highway tank is involved in a fire, ISOLATE for 1600 meters (1 mile) in all directions; also, consider initial evacuation for 1600 meters (1 mile) in all directions.
- In fires involving Liquefied Petroleum Gases (LPG) (UN1075), Butane (UN1011), Butylene (UN1012), Isobutylene (UN1055), Propylene (UN1077), Isobutane (UN1969), and Propane (UN1978), also refer to the "BLEVE – Safety Precautions" section.

Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:28 BM 024

Gases - Flammable

GUIDE

115

(INCLUDING REFRIGERATED LIQUIDS)

### **EMERGENCY RESPONSE**

#### FIRE

- DO NOT EXTINGUISH A LEAKING GAS FIRE UNLESS LEAK CAN BE STOPPED.
- CAUTION: Hydrogen (UN1049), Deuterium (UN1957), Hydrogen, refrigerated liquid (UN1966) and Hydrogen and Methane mixture, compressed (UN2034) will burn with an invisible flame. Use an alternate method of detection (thermal camera, broom handle, etc.)

#### Small Fire

Dry chemical or CO<sub>2</sub>.

#### Large Fire

- · Water spray or fog.
- · If it can be done safely, move undamaged containers away from the area around the fire.
- CAUTION: For LNG Liquefied natural gas (UN1972) pool fires, DO NOT USE water. Use dry chemical or high-expansion foam.

#### Fire Involving Tanks

- · Fight fire from maximum distance or use unmanned master stream devices or monitor nozzles.
- · Cool containers with flooding quantities of water until well after fire is out.
- Do not direct water at source of leak or safety devices; icing may occur.
- · Withdraw immediately in case of rising sound from venting safety devices or discoloration of tank.
- ALWAYS stay away from tanks in direct contact with flames.
- For massive fire, use unmanned master stream devices or monitor nozzles; if this is impossible, withdraw
  from area and let fire burn.

### SPILL OR LEAK

- ELIMINATE all ignition sources (no smoking, flares, sparks or flames) from immediate area.
- · All equipment used when handling the product must be grounded.
- Do not touch or walk through spilled material.
- Stop leak if you can do it without risk.
- If possible, turn leaking containers so that gas escapes rather than liquid.
- Use water spray to reduce vapors or divert vapor cloud drift. Avoid allowing water runoff to contact spilled material.
- Do not direct water at spill or source of leak.
- **CAUTION:** For **LNG Liquefied natural gas (UN1972)**, DO NOT apply water, regular or alcohol-resistant foam directly on spill. Use a high-expansion foam if available to reduce vapors.
- · Prevent spreading of vapors through sewers, ventilation systems and confined areas.
- · Isolate area until gas has dispersed.
- CAUTION: When in contact with refrigerated/cryogenic liquids, many materials become brittle and are likely to break without warning.

#### FIRST AID

## Refer to the "General First Aid" section.

#### Specific First Aid:

- Clothing frozen to the skin should be thawed before being removed.
- · In case of contact with liquefied gas, only medical personnel should attempt thawing frosted parts.
- In case of burns, immediately cool affected skin for as long as possible with cold water. Do not remove clothing if adhering to skin.



In Canada, an Emergency Response Assistance Plan (ERAP) may be required for this product. Please consult the shipping paper and/or the "ERAP" section.

### BLEVE (BOILING LIQUID EXPANDING VAPOR EXPLOSION)

The following section presents important safety-related information on BLEVEs, including a table, to consider in a situation involving Liquefied Petroleum Gases (LPG), UN1075.

LPGs include the following flammable gases:

- UN1011 Butane
- UN1012 Butylene
- UN1055 Isobutylene

- UN1077 Propylene
- UN1969 Isobutane
- UN1978 Propane

A BLEVE occurs when a fire impinged or damaged tank car fails to contain its internal pressure and explodes with a sudden product release. This catastrophic failure is more likely to occur with damaged pressure tank cars, even in the absence of an active fire.

The main hazards from a LPG BLEVE are:

- Fire: If the released substance is ignited, there is an immediate fireball.
- <u>Thermal radiation</u>: At a distance of about 4 times the radius of a fireball, the heat radiated from a fireball is enough to burn exposed skin in 2 seconds. Wearing protective clothing limits the thermal radiation dose.
- <u>Blast:</u> A concussive force caused by the sudden release of the pressurized substance. For a BLEVE occurring out in the open, the blast strength at a distance of 4 times the radius of a fireball can break window glass and may cause minor damage to buildings.
- <u>Projectiles:</u> Tank failure can throw metal fragments over large distances. These fragments can and have been deadly.

The danger decreases as you move away from the BLEVE centre. The furthest-reaching hazard is projectiles.

For a video with information on critical safety issues concerning BLEVEs, please visit https://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/tdg/publications-menu-1238.html.

## HEAT INDUCED TEAR (HIT)

A heat induced tear (HIT) is a rupture of a NON-PRESSURE tank car containing flammable liquids when exposed to the intense heat of a fire. The metal will soften and the pressure in the tank car will increase which can lead to containment failure. The tear generally occurs at the vapor space (upper side) of the container, venting large quantities of flammable liquid and vapors at high speed. A fireball and an intense heat wave will occur.

Compared to BLEVEs, HITs rarely result in the projection of tank car fragments. Heat induced tearing has occurred within 20 minutes of the derailment and as long as 10+ hours following the initial fire.

Responding to these types of incidents (BLEVE and HIT) requires specialized training, equipment and a tactical approach.

#### Received by OCD: 4/1/2025 1:00:00 PM BLEVE - SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

**Use with caution**. The following table gives a summary of tank properties, critical times, critical distances and cooling water flow rates for various tank sizes. This table is provided to give responders some guidance but it should be used with caution.

Tank dimensions are approximate and can vary depending on the tank design and application.

**Minimum time to failure** is based on *severe torch fire impingement* on the vapor space of a tank in good condition, and is approximate. Tanks may fail earlier if they are damaged or corroded. Tanks may fail minutes or hours later than these minimum times depending on the conditions. It has been assumed here that the tanks are not equipped with thermal barriers or water spray cooling.

**Minimum time to empty** is based on an engulfing fire with a properly sized pressure relief valve. If the tank is only partially engulfed, then time to empty will increase (i.e., if tank is 50% engulfed, then the tanks will take twice as long to empty). Once again, it has been assumed that the tank is not equipped with a thermal barrier or water spray.

**Tanks equipped with thermal barriers or water spray cooling** significantly increase the times to failure and the times to empty. A thermal barrier can reduce the heat input to a tank by a factor of ten or more. This means it could take ten times as long to empty the tank through the Pressure Relief Valve (PRV).

**Fireball radius and emergency response distance** is based on mathematical equations and is approximate. They assume spherical fireballs and this is not always the case.

**Two safety distances for public evacuation**. The minimum distance is based on tanks that are launched with a small elevation angle (i.e., a few degrees above horizontal). This is most common for horizontal cylinders. The preferred evacuation distance has more margin of safety since it assumes the tanks are launched at a 45 degree angle to the horizontal. This might be more appropriate if a vertical cylinder is involved.

It is understood that these distances are very large and may not be practical in a highly populated area. However, it should be understood that the risks increase rapidly the closer you are to a BLEVE. Keep in mind that the furthest reaching projectiles tend to come off in the zones 45 degrees on each side of the tank ends.

# Water flow rate is based on 5 ( $\sqrt{capacity (USgal})$ ) = USgal/min needed to cool tank metal.

**Warning**: the data given are approximate and should only be used with extreme caution. For example, where times are given for tank failure or tank emptying through the pressure relief valve – these times are typical but they can vary from situation to situation. Therefore, never risk life based on these times.

Received by OCD: 4/1/2025 1:00:00 PM

## GUIDE FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS 128 (WATER-IMMISCIBLE)

## **POTENTIAL HAZARDS**

#### FIRE OR EXPLOSION

- · HIGHLY FLAMMABLE: Will be easily ignited by heat, sparks or flames.
- · Vapors may form explosive mixtures with air.
- Vapors may travel to source of ignition and flash back.
- Most vapors are heavier than air. They will spread along the ground and collect in low or confined areas (sewers, basements, tanks, etc.).
- · Vapor explosion hazard indoors, outdoors or in sewers.
- Those substances designated with a (P) may polymerize explosively when heated or involved in a fire.
- · Runoff to sewer may create fire or explosion hazard.
- · Containers may explode when heated.
- · Many liquids will float on water.
- · Substance may be transported hot.
- For hybrid vehicles, GUIDE 147 (lithium ion or sodium ion batteries) or GUIDE 138 (sodium batteries) should also be consulted.
- If molten aluminum is involved, refer to GUIDE 169.

#### HEALTH

CAUTION: Petroleum crude oil (UN1267) may contain TOXIC hydrogen sulphide gas.

- · Inhalation or contact with material may irritate or burn skin and eyes.
- Fire may produce irritating, corrosive and/or toxic gases.
- · Vapors may cause dizziness or asphyxiation, especially when in closed or confined areas.
- Runoff from fire control or dilution water may cause environmental contamination.

### **PUBLIC SAFETY**

- CALL 911. Then call emergency response telephone number on shipping paper. If shipping paper not available or no answer, refer to appropriate telephone number listed on the inside back cover.
- · Keep unauthorized personnel away.
- Stay upwind, uphill and/or upstream.
- · Ventilate closed spaces before entering, but only if properly trained and equipped.

#### **PROTECTIVE CLOTHING**

- · Wear positive pressure self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA).
- · Structural firefighters' protective clothing provides thermal protection but only limited chemical protection.

#### EVACUATION

#### Immediate precautionary measure

· Isolate spill or leak area for at least 50 meters (150 feet) in all directions.

Large Spill

Consider initial downwind evacuation for at least 300 meters (1000 feet).

Fire

 If tank, rail tank car or highway tank is involved in a fire, ISOLATE for 800 meters (1/2 mile) in all directions; also, consider initial evacuation for 800 meters (1/2 mile) in all directions.

Page 446 of 483

FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS (WATER-IMMISCIBLE) GUIDE

128

### **EMERGENCY RESPONSE**

#### FIRE

- CAUTION: The majority of these products have a very low flash point. Use of water spray when fighting fire may be inefficient.
- CAUTION: For mixtures containing alcohol or polar solvent, alcohol-resistant foam may be more effective.

#### Small Fire

 Dry chemical, CO<sub>2</sub>, water spray or regular foam. If regular foam is ineffective or unavailable, use alcohol-resistant foam.

#### Large Fire

- · Water spray, fog or regular foam. If regular foam is ineffective or unavailable, use alcohol-resistant foam.
- · Avoid aiming straight or solid streams directly onto the product.
- If it can be done safely, move undamaged containers away from the area around the fire.

#### Fire Involving Tanks, Rail Tank Cars or Highway Tanks

- · Fight fire from maximum distance or use unmanned master stream devices or monitor nozzles.
- · Cool containers with flooding quantities of water until well after fire is out.
- For petroleum crude oil, do not spray water directly into a breached tank car. This can lead to a
   dangerous boil over.
- · Withdraw immediately in case of rising sound from venting safety devices or discoloration of tank.
- ALWAYS stay away from tanks in direct contact with flames.
- For massive fire, use unmanned master stream devices or monitor nozzles; if this is impossible, withdraw from area and let fire burn.

#### SPILL OR LEAK

- · ELIMINATE all ignition sources (no smoking, flares, sparks or flames) from immediate area.
- All equipment used when handling the product must be grounded.
- · Do not touch or walk through spilled material.
- Stop leak if you can do it without risk.
- · Prevent entry into waterways, sewers, basements or confined areas.
- A vapor-suppressing foam may be used to reduce vapors.
- · Absorb or cover with dry earth, sand or other non-combustible material and transfer to containers.
- · Use clean, non-sparking tools to collect absorbed material.

#### Large Spill

- Dike far ahead of liquid spill for later disposal.
- · Water spray may reduce vapor, but may not prevent ignition in closed spaces.

#### FIRST AID

#### Refer to the "General First Aid" section. Specific First Aid:

- · Wash skin with soap and water.
- In case of burns, immediately cool affected skin for as long as possible with cold water.Do not remove clothing if adhering to skin.



In Canada, an Emergency Response Assistance Plan (ERAP) may be required for this product. Please consult the shipping paper and/or the "ERAP" section.

## **SECTION 5 FORMS**

The forms in this chapter are standard forms, which are consistent with those used by municipal response organizations as well as most mutual aid organizations.

These forms or their approved equivalents should be filled out by Company Representatives and serve as documentation of the actions taken and plans for ongoing mitigation/control.

The following chapter is setup so that the actual form is accompanied by the instructions for filling out that particular form.

ICS 201 Incident Briefing

ICS 211p Personal Check-in

**Bomb Threat Checklist** 

## THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK









4. Initial Incid	lent Objectives					
Ensure	Ensure safety of the public and responder personnel					
Control	Control the Source of the Spill					
🔲 Maximi	Maximize Protection of Environmentally-Sensitive Areas					
Contair	and recover spilled mate	rial				
5. Summary of	of Current Actions					
Time	Action / Note					
		1				
INCIDENT BR	RIEFING		Page 2			

•

6. Current Or	rganization				
		FOSC			
	Unified	1000			
	ommand	SOSC			
		LOSC			
		TOSC			
		Safety Officer			
		Salety Officer			
		Liaison Officer			
		Information			
		Officer			
Operatio	ons Section F	lanning Section	Logistics Se	ction F	inance/Admin.
					Section
	Div. / Group	7			
			Communic	ations Table	
		Position	Phone #/Radio	Position	Phone #/Radio
		FOSC		Ops Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group			Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup	
	Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup	
	Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup	
	Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	
	Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group Div. / Group	FOSC SOSC IC LOSC TOSC Safety Officer Liaison Officer PIO		Ops Sect Chief Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Div/Group Sup Plan Sect Chief Logs Sect Chief Fin Sect Chief	ICS 201

•

7. Resources Summary						
Resources	Time			On		
Needed	Ordered	Resource Identifier	ETA	Scene	Notes: (Location / Assignment/Status)	
INCIDENT BRIEF	ING				ICS 201 Page 4	

•

8. Site Safety and Control Analysis	
-------------------------------------	--

Site Control:							
1. Is Site Control set up? Yes No	2. Is there an on-scene command post? Yes No						
Comments/Name:			If so, where:				
3 Have all personnel been accounted for?	irios.			Eata	litios		
Yes No Don't know	1163.			Fala	nues.		
	accounted:			Trap	ped:		
4. Are public observers involved? Yes	No	5. I	s a decon are	a set up?		Yes No	
If so, who and where:		If so	, where:				
Hazard Identification, immediate signs of: (if Yes,	explain in r	emark	s)				
1. Electrical hazards? Yes	No	2. 1	Products iden	tified?			Yes
		No					
		If so	o, what:				
3. Wind Direction Away from your position		4. I	s a sate appro	bach possik	ole?		Yes
wind speed:	r position	INO					
5. Any abnormal odors or smells? Yes	No	6. \	/apors visible	? Color:		, L	Yes
If so, what:		No					
7. Tide Times: Low High	-	8. I	gnition sourc	es nearby?			Yes
		No					
9. Is local traffic a potential problem?  Yes	No	10.	Product plac	ards, color	codes	visible	Yes
	<b>_</b> NI-	No					
11. Other Hazard(s)?	NO	12.	As you appro	ach the sc	ene tro	om the upwind side, d	lo you note a
				v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v	or the		
Hazard Wiltigation: (Have you determined the nec	essity for a	ny of t	ne tollowing	)			
1. Entry Objectives:							
2. Are warning signs or barricades required? 🗌 Yes	No Ide	entify T	ype:				
2. Atmospheric Testine 2. A Initial Desults (5)	1120	~	<u> </u>		<b>b</b> c		
3. Atmospheric resting? a. Initial Results: LEL	Time:	02	0		D. 5	ampling Equipment:	
c. Sampling Location(s):	requency:				e. Pr	ersonal Exposure Mor	nitoring:
Time/Location:	L	EL	H2S	02	CO	Benzene	Other
Time/Location:	L	EL	H2S	02	со	Benzene	Other
Time/Location:	L	EL	H2S	02	со	Benzene	Other
Time/Location:		FI	H2S	02		Benzene	Other
A Protective geor/level			h Clothing				
4. Protective gear/level. a. Gloves.			D. Clothing:			C. DOUIS.	
d. Respirators:		e. Cher	nical cartridge	e change fr	eauen	cv:	
						-	
5. Decon							
a. Instructions:							
b. Equipment and Materials							
6. Emergency Escape Route Established Yes	No No						
7. Field responders briefed on hazards?	No						
8. Remarks:							
							100 004
INCIDENT BRIEFING							
							raye 5

## **INCIDENT BRIEFING (ICS FORM 201-OS)**

**Purpose.** The Incident Briefing form provides the Unified Command (and the Command and General Staffs assuming command of the incident) with basic information regarding the response situation and the resources allocated to the incident. It is also a permanent record of the initial incident response.

**Preparation.** This briefing form is prepared under the direction of the initial Incident Commander for presentation to the Unified Command. This form can be used for managing the response during the initial period until the beginning of the first operational period for which an Incident Action Plan (IAP) is prepared. The information from the ICS form 201-OS can be used as the starting point for other ICS forms or documents.

- Page 1 (Map/Sketch) may transition immediately to the Situation Map
- Page 2 (Summary of Current Actions) may be used to continue tracking the response actions and as the initial input to the ICS form 215-OS and the ICS form 232-OS
- Page 3 (Current Organization) may transition immediately to the Organization List (ICS form 203-OS) and/or Organization Chart (ICS form 207-OS)
- Page 4 (Resources Summary) may be used to continue tracking resources assigned to the incident and as input to individual T-Cards (ICS form 219) or other resource tracking system.
- Page 5 (Site Safety and Control Analysis) Purpose: The 201-5 is used as a basis for safety 'tailgate briefing' to clear personnel entering a scene, and is a predecessor to the Site Safety Plan.

**Distribution.** After the initial briefing of the Unified Command and General Staff members, the Incident Briefing is duplicated and distributed to the Command Staff, Section Chiefs, Branch Directors, Division/Group Supervisors, and appropriate Planning and Logistics Section Unit Leaders. The sketch map and summary of current action portions of the briefing form are given to the Situation Unit while the Current Organization and Resources Summary portion are given to the Resource Unit. All completed original forms MUST be given to the Documentation Unit.

Item #	Item Title	Instructions
1.	Incident Name	Enter the name assigned to the incident.
2.	Prepared By Date Time	Enter the name and position of the person completing the form. Enter date prepared (month, day, year). Enter time prepared (24-hour clock).
3.	Map/Sketch	Show the total Area of Operations, the incident site, overflight results, trajectories, impacted shorelines, or other graphics depicting situation and response status on a sketch or attached map.
4.	Initial Incident Objectives	Enter short, clear, concise statements of the objectives for managing the initial response.
5.	Summary of Current Actions	Enter the actions taken in response to the incident, including the time, and note any significant events or specific problem areas.
6.	Current Organization	Enter on the organization chart the names of the individuals assigned to each position. Modify the chart as necessary, using additional boxes in the space provided under the Sections. Two blank lines are provided in the Unified Command section for adding other agencies or groups participating in the Unified Command and/or for multiple Responsible Parties.
7.	Resources Summary Resource Needed Time Ordered Resource Identifier	Enter the following information about the resources allocated to the incident: Description of the resource needed (e.g., open water boom, skimmer, vac truck, etc.). Time ordered (24-hour clock). Identifier for the resource (e.g., radio call-sign, vessel name, vendor
	ETA On-Scene Location /Assignment /	name, license plate, etc.). Estimated time for the resource to arrive at the staging area. Checkmark upon the resource's arrival.
	Status	Location of the resource, the actual assignment, and the status of the resource (if other than working).

Item #	Item Title	Instructions
8.	Safety Requirement	Before entering a potentially hazardous work environment, IT MUST BE EVALUATED BY A COMPETENT PERSON to establish safe work practices, personal protective equipment, and other control procedures. At a minimum, lower explosive limit (LEL), Oxygen, and Benzene levels must be evaluated. Spill cleanup areas shall be controlled as "regulated areas." If Benzene vapors are or may be expected to equal the action level of .5 ppm, then the area must be posted with the following warning: Danger – Benzene Cancer Hazard – Flammable – No Smoking – Authorized Personnel Only – Respirator Required (Reference 201 Page 5 Safety and Control Analysis Instructions below)
		NOTE: Additional pages may be added to ICS form 201-OS if needed.

## 201 Page 5 Site Safety and Control Analysis Instructions

## Purpose:

The intent of the 201-5 is to document and communicate the Site Control, Hazard Identification, and Hazard Mitigation measures in order to safely execute all actions within the emergency phase of the incident. It is the emergency phase site safety and control analysis plan.

## Site Control:

- 1. Site Control includes an isolation perimeter and access control points.
- 3. List numbers for each non-zero category. Describe each occurrence either in Remarks (#8) or reference applicable accident report(s).
- 5. Say whether the "decon" area is depicted on the 201-1. (It should be)

## Hazard Identification (and immediate signs of)

### 1. If 'Yes' is indicated, explain in Remarks (#8)

- 4. If 'Yes' is indicated, explain in Remarks (#8)
- 5. Only smells that are not natural, not normally present
- 6. If 'Yes' is indicated, include the color
- If 'Yes' is indicated, circle which fire hazards are present. Continue explanation in Remarks (#8) starting with 'Haz ID #8'
- 9. If 'Yes' is indicated, continue explanation in Remarks (#8) starting with 'Haz ID #9'
- 10. If 'Yes' is indicated, list placards and color codes seen. Also note type of container, manufacturer label(s)
- 11. If 'Yes' is indicated, explain in Remarks (#8)
- 12. If 'Yes' is indicated, explain in Remarks (#8)

## Hazard Mitigation

- 1. Describe simply-stated objectives.
- 2. For example, benzene and no smoking signs
- 3. All atmospheric monitoring results should be logged on the Atmospheric Monitoring Results Sheet
  - 3a. Equipment can include combustible gas indicator, O2 monitor, colometric tubes (type) HNU/OVA, etc.
    - 3b. Enter initial monitoring results from the 201-1
    - 3c. If the location(s) is/are depicted on the 201-1, so state
    - 3d. Frequency can be continuous, hourly, etc.
    - 3e. Describe the procedures in effect for personal (sampling for on-site personnel) and medical monitoring.
- 4. List the Protection Level (A-D) including the specific PPE needs. For APRs, estimate the life of the respirator cartridge.
- 6. Describe the route. If the route is depicted on the 201-1, so state.
- 7. Use Worker Declaration Log to ensure all field responders are briefed on hazards.
- 8. Use 'Remarks for further explanations of the above items. Start with the item number (SC#X, HazID#X, HM#X).
- Prepared by: Print the name/company/ICS position of the person preparing the form.

## Received by OCD: 4/1/2025 1:00:00 PM

.

For DU Use Only

FSC SO RUL

1. Incident Name		2. Operational	Period (D	ate/Military Time)	3.Check-in Locatio	n	CHEC	ECK-IN LIST (Personnel)	
		From:	To:		Command Post	Other			ICS 211p
4. Personnel Check-In I	Information	n						9. Time	
						8. Initial In	cident Check-in? √	(Military T	ime)
4. Name	5. Comp	oany / Agency		6. ICS Sectio Quals.	n / Assignment /	7. Contact	#s (Cell)	In	Out
10. Prepared by	Date/Tin	ne				11. Date / T	ime Sent to Resource	e Unit	
CHECK-IN LIST (Persor	nnel)								ICS 211p

### CHECK-IN LIST Personnel (ICS FORM 211p)

**Special Note.** This form is used for personnel check-in only.

**Purpose.** Personnel arriving at the incident can be checked in at various incident locations. Check-in consists of reporting specific information that is recorded on the form.

**Preparation.** The Check-In List is initiated at a number of incident locations including staging areas, base, camps, helibases, and ICP. Managers at these locations record the information and give it to the Resource Unit as soon as possible.

**Distribution.** Check-In Lists are provided to both the Resource Unit and the Finance Section. The Resource Unit maintains a master list of all equipment and personnel that have reported to the incident. All completed original forms MUST be given to the Documentation Unit.

Item #	Item Title	Instructions
1.	Incident Name	Enter the name assigned to the incident.
2.	Operational Period	Enter the time interval for which the form applies. Record the start and end date and time.
3.	Check-in Location	Check the box for the check-in location.
4.	Name	Enter the name of the person.
5	Company/Agency	Enter the company or agency with which the individual is associated.
6.	ICS Section / Assignment / Qualifications.	Enter ICS Section and assignment, if known and note any other ICS qualifications if needed.
7.	Contact Numbers (Cell)	Enter the contact information for the person.
8.	Initial Incident Check-in?	Check if this is the first time a person has checked in for this incident.
9.	Time In/Out	Enter the time the person checks in and/or out (24-hour clock). If the person is leaving on a regular basis for document runner or attending a meeting in another room, it is not necessary to log them out.
10.	Prepared By	Enter name and title of the person preparing the form. Enter date (month, day, year) and time prepared (24-hour
	Date/Time Prepared	clock).
11.	Date/Time Sent to Resource	Enter date (month, day, year) and time (24-hour clock) the form is sent to the Resource Unit.

#### Received.byoQGDi.4/1/2025o1iWiWRM

### BOMB THREAT CALL PROCEDURES

Most bomb threats are received by phone. Bomb threats are serious until proven otherwise. Act quickly, but remain calm and obtain information with the checklist on the right-hand side of this card.

#### IF A BOMB THREAT IS RECEIVED BY PHONE:

- 1. Remain calm. Keep the caller on the line for as long as possible. **DO NOT HANG UP,** even if the caller does.
- 2. Listen carefully. Be polite and show interest.
- 3. Try to keep the caller talking to learn more information.
- If possible, write a note to a colleague to call the authorities or, as soon as the caller hangs up, immediately notify them yourself.
- 5. If your phone has a display, copy the number and/or letters on the window display.
- Complete the Bomb Threat Checklist (reverse side) immediately. Write down as much detail as you can remember. Try to get exact words.
- Immediately upon termination of the call, do not hang up, but from a different phone, contact FPS immediately with information and await instructions.

#### IF A BOMB THREAT IS RECEIVED BY HANDWRITTEN NOTE:

- Call (local MPC Security):
- Handle note as minimally as possible.

#### IF A BOMB THREAT IS RECEIVED BY EMAIL:

- Do not delete the message.

#### SIGNS OF A SUSPICIOUS PACKAGE:

- No return address
- Excessive postage
- Stains
- Strange odor
- Strange sounds
- Unexpected delivery

- Poorly handwritten
  Misspelled words
- Incorrect titles
- Foreign postage
- Restrictive notes
- nestnetive notes

#### DO NOT:

- Use two-way radios or cellular phone; radio signals have the potential to detonate a bomb.
- Evacuate the building until police arrive and evaluate the threat.
- Activate the fire alarm.
- Touch or move a suspicious package.

#### WHO TO CONTACT:

MAPLINE 1-877-627/54

Follow Local Emergency Procedures

### BOMB THREAT CHRase 462 of 483

Date:	Time:	🛛 a.m.	🛛 p.m.
Time Caller Hung up:		🗆 a.m.	□ p.m.

Phone No. Where Call Received:

ΔS	K	CA	5	2.
		UA		

٨	/here	is the	bomb	located?

(Building, Floor, Room, etc.)

When will it go off?

What does it look like?

What kind of bomb is it?

What will make it explode?

Did you place the bomb?

□ Yes

Why?

What is your name?

#### EXACT WORDS OF THREAT:

No

### **INFORMATION ABOUT CALLER:**

Where is the caller located? (Background and level of noise)

Estimated age:

Is voice familiar? If so, who does it sound like?

Other points:

Caller's Voice:	<b>Background Sounds:</b>	Threat Language:
Accent	Animal Noises	Incoherent
Angry	House Noises	Message read
Calm	Kitchen Noises	Taped
Clearing throat	Street Noises	Irrational
Coughing	Booth	Profane
Cracking voice	PA system	Well-spoken
Crying	Conversation	
Deep	Music	
Deep breathing	Motor	
Disguised	Clear	
Distinct	Static	
Excited	Office machinery	
Female	Factory machinery	
Laughter	Local	
🗆 Lisp	Long distance	
Loud		
Male	Other Information:	
Nasal		
Normal		
Ragged		
Rapid		
Raspy		
Slow		
Slurred		
Soft		
Stuttor		

## Received by QCD: 4/1/2025 1:00:00 PM

### AN ACTIVE SHOOTER IS IN YOUR VICINITY

#### 1. EVACUATE

- Have an escape route and plan in mind.
- Leave your belongings behind.
- Keep your hands visible.

#### 2. HIDE OUT

- Hide in an area out of the shooter's view.
- Block entry to your hiding place and lock the doors.
- Silence your cell phone and/or pager.

#### **3. TAKE ACTION**

- As a last resort and only when your life is in imminent danger.
- Attempt to incapacitate the shooter.
- Act with physical aggression and throw items at the active shooter.

#### CALL 911 WHEN IT IS SAFE TO DO SO

### COPING WITH AN ACTIVE SHOOTER SITUATION

- Be aware of your environment and any possible dangers.
- Take note of the two nearest exits in any facility you visit.
- If you are in an office, stay there and secure the door.
- Attempt to take the active shooter down as a last resort.

#### HOW TO RESPONDER 483 LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES

- Remain calm and follow instructions.
- Put down any items in your hands (i.e., bags, jackets).
- Raise hands and spread fingers.
- Keep hands visible at all times.
- Avoid quick movements toward officers such as holding on to them for safety.
- Avoid pointing, screaming or yelling.
- Do not stop to ask officers for help or direction when evacuating.

#### INFORMATION YOU SHOULD PROVIDE TO LAW ENFORCEMENT OR 911 OPERATOR

- Location of the active shooter.
- Number of shooters.
- Physical description of shooter(s).
- Number and type of weapons held by shooter(s).
- Number of potential victims at the location.

### PROFILE OF AN ACTIVE SHOOTER

An active shooter is an individual actively engaged in killing or attempting to kill people in a confined and populated area, typically through the use of firearms.

CONTACT MPC CORPORATE SECURITY AT MPCCORPORATESECURITY@MGROUPNET.COM FOR MORE INFORMATION AND TRAINING ON WORKPLACE VIOLENCE, ACTIVE SHOOTER RESPONSE AND TELEPHONE BOMB THREATS.

### CHARACTERISTICS OF AN ACTIVE SHOOTER SITUATION

- Victims are selected at random.
- The event is unpredictable and evolves quickly.
- Law enforcement is usually required to end and active shooter situation.

Marathon Petroleum Company ∟P

## **SECTION 6 TRAINING & EXERCISES**

## 6.1 Training

Employees who work at the Permian Basin Compressor Stations shall receive training on this EAP. These employees include operators, mechanics, support staff, supervisors, and managers. This training will consist of an initial session with refresher training annually which will not exceed 15 months from the previous year's training date. Initial training shall consist of classroom delivered training and refresher training may be either classroom and/or Computer based training.

## 6.2 Exercises

## 6.2.1 Frequency

An exercise based on this EAP should be conducted at least once per calendar year.

## 6.2.2 Exercise Design

Exercises shall be designed to test operator and IMT actions for responses covered in Section 4 of this EAP. The exercise can be conducted in one of several manners:

- ICS-201 drill (Initial Incident Briefing) based on a scenario, with notifications and documentation of actions taken
- Round-table discussion on actions to take during an incident, with input from affected agencies, IMT members and initial responders
- Unannounced drill

## 6.3 **Post Incident Actions**

## 6.3.1 Lessons Learned

After the exercise is conducted, an after-action discussion or survey will be conducted to elicit feedback on positives and opportunities for improvement. Any comments that require action will be tracked in Intelex for follow-up.

## 6.3.2 Incident Investigation

A thorough incident investigation is essential to effective emergency response planning. One of the primary goals of pre planning for emergencies is to minimize the potential for emergencies to develop. The purpose of investigating an incident is to identify the cause of the incident so that measures can be taken to reduce the potential for recurrences.

**Training and Exercises** 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

## APPENDIX A CROSS REFERENCE

## A.1 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (29 CFR)

PLAN REQUIREMENTS		
§1910.38 Emergency Action Plan		
(a) <b>Application</b> . An employer must have an emergency action plan whenever an OSHA standard in		
this part requires one. The requirements in this section apply to each such emergency action plan.		
(b) Written and oral emergency action plans. An emergency action plan must be in writing, kept in		
the workplace, and available to employees for review. However, an employer with 10 or fewer		
employees may communicate the plan orally to employees.		
(c) Minimum elements of an emergency action plan. An emergency action plan must include at a		
minimum:		
(1) Procedures for reporting a fire or other emergency;	Section 3, 4	
(2) Procedures for emergency evacuation, including type of evacuation and exit route assignments;	Section 4	
(3) Procedures to be followed by employees who remain to operate critical plant operations before		
they evacuate;	Section 4	
(4) Procedures to account for all employees after evacuation;	Section 4	
(5) Procedures to be followed by employees performing rescue or medical duties; and	Section 2, 3, 4	
(6) The name or job title of every employee who may be contacted by employees who need more		
information about the plan or an explanation of their duties under the plan.	Section 3	
(d) <b>Employee alarm system</b> . An employer must have and maintain an employee alarm system. The		
employee alarm system must use a distinctive signal for each purpose and comply with the	Section 4	
requirements in § 1910.165.		
(e) <b>Training</b> . An employer must designate and train employees to assist in a safe and orderly		
evacuation of other employees.	Section 6	
(f) Review of emergency action plan. An employer must review the emergency action plan with		
each employee covered by the plan:		
(1) When the plan is developed or the employee is assigned initially to a job;	Section 6	
(2) When the employee's responsibilities under the plan change; and	Section 6	
(3) When the plan is changed.	Section 6	
§1910.39 Fire Prevention Plan		
(a) <b>Application</b> . An employer must have a fire prevention plan when an OSHA standard in this part	A survey a live D	
requires one. The requirements in this section apply to each such fire prevention plan.	Appendix B	
(b) Written and oral fire prevention plans. A fire prevention plan must be in writing, be kept in the		
workplace, and be made available to employees for review. However, an employer with 10 or	Appendix B	
fewer employees may communicate the plan orally to employees.		
(c) Minimum elements of a fire prevention plan. A fire prevention plan must include:		
(1) A list of all major fire hazards, proper handling and storage procedures for hazardous materials,		
potential ignition sources and their control, and the type of fire protection equipment necessary to	Appendix B	
control each major hazard;		
(2) Procedures to control accumulations of flammable and combustible waste materials;	Appendix B	
(3) Procedures for regular maintenance of safeguards installed on heat-producing equipment to	Appondix D	
prevent the accidental ignition of combustible materials;	Abbeurity R	
(4) The name or job title of employees responsible for maintaining equipment to prevent or control	Annendix B	
sources of ignition or fires; and	Арреник в	
(5) The name or job title of employees responsible for the control of fuel source hazards.	Appendix B	

## **Cross Reference**

PLAN REQUIREMENTS	LOCATION IN THIS PLAN
(d) <b>Employee information</b> . An employer must inform employees upon initial assignment to a job of the fire hazards to which they are exposed. An employer must also review with each employee those parts of the fire prevention plan necessary for self-protection.	Appendix B
§1910.120 Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response.(I) Emergency Response by Employees at Uncontrolled Hazardous Waste Sites.	
<ul> <li>(1) Emergency response plan.</li> <li>(i) An emergency response plan shall be developed and implemented by all employers within the scope of paragraphs (a)(1)(i) through (ii) of this section to handle anticipated emergencies prior to the commencement of hazardous waste operations. The plan shall be in writing and available for inspection and copying by employees, their representatives, OSHA personnel and other governmental agencies with relevant responsibilities.</li> </ul>	Overall Plan
<ul> <li>(ii) Employers who will evacuate their employees from the danger area when an emergency occurs, and who do not permit any of their employees to assist in handling the emergency, are exempt from the requirements of this paragraph if they provide an emergency action plan complying with 29 CFR 1910.38.</li> <li>(2) Elements of an emergency response plan. The employer shall develop an emergency response plan for emergency response plan. The following:</li> </ul>	
(i) Pre-emergency planning.	Section 4
(ii) Personnel roles, lines of authority, training and communication.	Section 3, 6
(iii) Emergency recognition and prevention.	Section 4
(iv) Safe distances and places of refuge.	Section 4
(v) Site security and control.	Section 4
(vi) Evacuation routes and procedures.	Section 1, 4
(vii) Decontamination procedures which are not covered by the site safety and health plan.	N/A (covered in SSHP
(viii) Emergency medical treatment and first aid.	Section 4
(ix) Emergency alerting and response procedures.	Section 3
(x) Critique of response and follow-up.	Section 6
(xi) Personal protective equipment (PPE) and emergency equipment.	
(3) Procedures for handling emergency incidents.	Section 4
(i) In addition to the elements for the emergency response plan required in subsection (I)(2), the following elements shall be included for emergency response plans:	
(A) Site topography, layout, and prevailing weather conditions.	Section 1
(B) Procedures for reporting incidents to local, state, and federal governmental agencies.	Section 3
(ii) The emergency response plan shall be a separate section of the Site Safety and Health Plan.	
(iii) The emergency response plan shall be compatible and integrated with the disaster, fire and/or emergency response plans of local, state, and federal agencies.	Section 1
(iv) The emergency response plan shall be rehearsed regularly as part of the overall training program for site operations.	Section 6
(v) The site emergency response plan shall be reviewed periodically and, as necessary, be amended to keep it current with new or changing site conditions or information.	Section 1
(vi) An employee alarm system shall be installed in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.165 to notify employees of an emergency situation, to stop work activities if necessary, to lower background noise in order to speed communication, and to begin emergency procedures.	Section 4
(vii) Based upon the information available at time of the emergency, the employer shall evaluate the incident and the site response capabilities and proceed with the appropriate steps to implement the site emergency response plan.	Section 4

## APPENDIX B Fire Prevention Plan

# B.1 Major Workplace Fire Hazards PROCESS UNIT

Description: The stations have a total of 18 compressors, one dehy unit (contactor tower and regen skid),
one fuel skid, storage tanks, one coalescer, one inlet separator, discharge meter, HPGL meter, condensate
pumps.

<ul> <li>Lightning.</li> <li>Signage and training: Smoking/Vaping is prohibited in the facility.</li> </ul>	Itial Ignition Source Control Procedures	Fire Control Equipment
<ul> <li>Unauthorized vehicles or equipment entering the process area.</li> <li>Contractors performing hot work.</li> <li>Tools</li> <li>All contractors are required to attend a safety orientation meeting prior to starting work at the facility.</li> <li>Area around the process unit is kept free of weeds and vegetation.</li> <li>Hot work permit policy. A fire watch will be designated for hot work jobs. Flammable liquids, gas cylinders in storage, combustibles like paper, wood, etc. will be cleared from the hot work area. Welding enclosures or screens will be placed around the cutting/welding area to contain sparks. A fire extinguisher will be available for use by the fire watch. An Atmospheric test will be conducted to determine the presence of flammable gas prior to initiating hot work. Fire blankets will be placed on open grating to prevent sparks from failing to a lower level.</li> <li>Air monitoring</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>signage and training: Smoking/Vaping is prohibited in the facility.</li> <li>Signage and training: Unauthorized vehi are prohibited from entering the process area. ontractors erforming hot work. bools</li> <li>All contractors are required to attend a sorientation meeting prior to starting wo the facility.</li> <li>Area around the process unit is kept free weeds and vegetation.</li> <li>Hot work permit policy. A fire watch will designated for hot work jobs. Flammable liquids, gas cylinders in storage, combus like paper, wood, etc. will be cleared fro hot work area. Welding enclosures or sc will be placed around the cutting/weldir to contain sparks. A fire extinguisher wil available for use by the fire watch. An Atmospheric test will be conducted to determine the presence of flammable gat to initiating hot work. Fire blankets will 1 placed on open grating to prevent spark failing to a lower level.</li> </ul>	or Systems         •       Fire extinguishers are located throughout the process unit.         s       •         nit.       •         nit.       •         •       Fire water for extinguishing fires would be provided by the responding fire department.         f       •         e       •         e       •         f       •         e       •         orior       •         orior       •

BUILDINGS			
Description: Each compressor station has a shop, control room, MCC, generator building. The building			
contains electronic equipment and combustibles such as desks and paper.			
Potential Ignition Source	rce Control Procedures Fire Control Eq		
		or Systems	
<ul> <li>Employees entering while Smoking/Vaping.</li> <li>Electronic equipment.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Employee training, proper signage and good housekeeping practices.</li> <li>Inspection of electrical cords for fraying.</li> <li>Smoking/Vaping is prohibited in the facility</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Hand portable fire extinguishers are located throughout the buildings.</li> </ul>	

## REVISION 4 July 2024
#### Permian Basin Compressor Stations Emergency Action Plan

#### **B.2 Responsibilities**

Supervisors are responsible for informing employees of potential fire hazards in the workplace specific to their tasks. In addition, each supervisor shall instruct employees on those parts of the fire prevention plan applicable for the employees to protect themselves and respond in the event of an emergency.

For the purposes of the fire prevention plan, one person has been named as the responsible person at the Facility for maintenance of equipment and systems installed to prevent or control ignition sources or fires and for control of fuel source hazards.

Name:EJ RiosTitle:Operations SupervisorCell Phone:575-266-2028

### **B.3** Housekeeping

All employees are expected to employ good housekeeping practices by keeping their work areas neat and free of waste that could pose a fire hazard. Employees/contractors are to perform the general housekeeping activities listed below.

It is the responsibility of the station operators during the course of their normal operations to police the station during their normal course of business, and to dispose of any ordinary combustible materials such as weeds, paper, cardboard etc. A third-party vendor services the portable toilet on a regular basis.

- Keep exits and passageways free of obstructions at all times.
- Keep access to fire protection equipment (pull stations and fire extinguishers) free and clear.
- Store flammable and combustible liquids in approved storage containers and cabinets.
- Incompatible materials in storage areas must be segregated. Specifically, separate ignitable material from oxidizers or sources of ignition. In general, do not store different types of incompatibles in the same container
- Prevent hazardous accumulations of flammable and combustible wastes such as discarded packing materials, or oily rags.
- General work areas must be kept orderly and clean
- A sufficient number of waste baskets or trash receptacles (non-combustible material) should be placed in each work area
- Floors are to be swept or vacuumed to prevent accumulation of combustible materials

### **B.4** Training

New employees receive initial fire prevention training on the fire hazards of the materials and processes to which they are exposed. Fire training consists of hands-on training in the use of hand held fire extinguishers, fire alarms, emergency shutdown procedures, emergency evacuation, and a review of this written Fire Prevention Plan.

At the time of a fire, employees should know what type of evacuation is necessary and what their role is in carrying out the plan. In cases where the fire is large, total and immediate evacuation of all employees is necessary. In smaller fires, a partial evacuation of nonessential employees with a delayed evacuation of others may be necessary for continued plant operation. Employees are expected to take the personal initiative to learn what is expected of them during a fire to assure their safety.

Every employee is trained annually in the Hazard Communication Standard and in the characteristics of flammable and combustible liquids. Records are kept of all training activities documenting the type of training, persons trained, and date of training.

### B.5 Maintenance

During the normal course of their duties, Station Operators inspect electronics and electrical systems such as the UPS systems, batteries, MCC cabinet and other major electrical systems for operation, proper housekeeping and any apparent damage or other problems. When the need for service, maintenance or repair is indicated, appropriate MPLX personnel are called in to perform work as needed.

**Fire Prevention Plan** 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

.

## FIGURE 1 SYSTEM LOCATION MAP





Released to Imaging: 4/1/2025 2:07:38 PM

## FIGURE 2 SYSTEM DETAILS

#### GAS CY2024 Class LCA Results

AREA_NAME	DISTRICT	Description	Class_Rating_Clustered	Comp_Vetted_RegType	Length_Miles County
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake 20In	Class 1	TypeCNear	0.000763 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Tornado 20In	Class 1	TypeCNear	0.000808 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Preakness - Poker Lake 16In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.000800 Eddy Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.597263 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.081921 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.568005 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.382226 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.487361 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	7.324930 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.845638 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.877476 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.388041 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Wingate 1700	Class 1	TypeR	0.020716 McKinley Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Bisti 8 Inch 502	Class 1	TypeR	0.153318 San Juan Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Bisti 8 Inch 502	Class 1	TypeR	0.165725 San Juan Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Bisti 8 Inch 502	Class 1	TypeR	0.114905 San Juan Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Bisti 8 Inch 502	Class 1	TypeR	92.813786 San Juan Co.
SW Crude	Midland	Bisti 8 Inch 502	Class 1	TypeR	0.012556 McKinley Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Aladdin 12In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	1.324567 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Abu 12In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	1.598291 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake 20In	Class 1	TypeCNear	20.897423 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Ross Draw 12In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.158484 Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Tornado 20In	Class 1	TypeCNear	16.701142 Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Preakness - Poker Lake 16In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	5.871031 Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Preakness - Poker Lake 16In	Class 1	TypeCNear	2.255440 Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Preakness - Poker Lake 16In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	15.788179 Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North 16In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	7.036232 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North Gas Lift 8In	Class 1	TypeR	6.981365 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills 12In Hp	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.422964 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Kf1 Gas Lift 8In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.190079 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Kf2 Gas Lift 8In	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.429997 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Salado Draw 1 & 2 16In Ng	Class 1	ТуреR	6.572708 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Cotton Draw 16In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	1.585746 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Cotton Draw 12In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	4.235900 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Facility Pad 1 12In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.484971 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 5 12In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeR	0.202128 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 6 Gas Lift 4In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeR	0.052660 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 7 Gas Lift 4In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeR	0.240943 Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 2 16In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.336130 Lea Co.

WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 2 20In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNear	0.266189	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 8 Gas Lift 6In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeR	0.769194	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills 12In Hp Discharge	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	2.448173	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Middle Ground 16In Lp Ng Lateral	Class 1	TypeR	0.208249	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake South 16In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.646702	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North Cs Gas Lift 8In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	1.000909	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North Cs 16In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.909311	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North Cs 12In Hp Ng Discharge	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.890138	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills 16In Lp Kf1	Class 1	TypeR	0.641481	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills Pad 5 - 4In Hpgl	Class 1	TypeR	0.425479	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Dagger Lake South 16In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	7.170028	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Sand Dunes 20In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNear	4.357533	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Hills 12In Lp Ng Extension	Class 1	TypeR	0.431810	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Dagger Lake North 16In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	8.985110	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Bell Lake North 16In Lp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.123107	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Oxy Sand Dunes 20" Hp	Class 1	TypeCNear	5.231763	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Eog Quail 10In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeR	2.705400	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Eog Bandit & Bull Run 10In Hp Ng Lateral	Class 1	TypeR	0.037547	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Eog Bandit & Bull Run 10In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	2.954618	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Mid Bell Lp Hot Tap	Class 1	TypeR	0.006059	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Mid Bell 16In Lp Ng Lateral	Class 1	TypeR	0.020008	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Mid Bell Lp Hot Tap	Class 1	TypeR	0.006541	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Mid Bell 12In Lp Ng Mainline	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.042662	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	RED TANK TO LOST TANK 16in HP NG	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	5.133072	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	RED HILLS PAD 2 WOLF CAMP 12in LP NG	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.824867	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	RED TANK 26 12in HP NG LATERAL	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.067044	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	RED TANK 19 12in HP NG LATERAL	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	2.616325	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	LOST TANKS TO SAND DUNES 20in HP NG	Class 1	TypeCNear	17.017323	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Ripple - Bertha 10in HP NG	Class 1	TypeR	2.315212	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Lost Tank 13 Lateral 12in HP NG	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.042391	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Tank 27	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.655743	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Tank 27 Reciever Barrrel	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.004593	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Tank 27 Bypass Reciever	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.004987	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Tank 27 Launcher Barrel	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.004578	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Red Tank 27 Bypass Launcher	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.004988	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Dagger Lake Amine - Supply Line	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.167981	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Dagger Lake Amine - Return Line	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.171299	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Lost Tank 25	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.434967	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Lost Tank 25 Connection	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.019904	Eddy Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Chevron Dagger Lake North 16In Hp Ng	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.003332	Lea Co.
WTX	WTX Gathering & Comp	Dagger Lake Amine - Supply Line	Class 1	TypeCNotNear	0.003332	Lea Co.

### FIGURE 3 COMPRESSOR STATION PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAMS

#### PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM FOR THE MID BELL LAKE COMPRESSOR STATION

eased to Imaging: 4/1/2025



# FIGURE 4 RELEASE EPORTING FLOW CHART

# **New Mexico Release Notification Guide**



Sante Fe Main Office Phone: (505) 476-3441

General Information Phone: (505) 629-6116

Online Phone Directory https://www.emnrd.nm.gov/ocd/contact-us

### State of New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Oil Conservation Division 1220 S. St Francis Dr. Santa Fe, NM 87505

QUESTIONS

Operator: MarkWest Energy West Texas Gas Company, L.L.C	OGRID: 329252				
1515 Arapahoe Street	Action Number:				
Denver, CO 80202	447738				
	Action Type:				
	[NGGS] NGGS Operations Plan (NGGS-OP)				
QUESTIONS					
Verification					

 Does the operator own the selected facility
 Yes

 Is the selected facility a natural gas gathering system
 Yes

Page 482 of 483

Action 447738

Sante Fe Main Office Phone: (505) 476-3441

General Information Phone: (505) 629-6116

Online Phone Directory https://www.emnrd.nm.gov/ocd/contact-us

### State of New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Oil Conservation Division 1220 S. St Francis Dr. Santa Fe, NM 87505

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Operator:	OGRID:	
MarkWest Energy West Texas Gas Company, L.L.C	329252	
1515 Arapahoe Street	Action Number:	
Denver, CO 80202	447738	
	Action Type:	
	[NGGS] NGGS Operations Plan (NGGS-OP)	

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

V I certify that, after reasonable inquiry, the statements in and attached to this Natural Gas Gathering System Operations Plan are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and acknowledge that a false statement may be subject to civil and criminal penalties under the Oil and Gas Act.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Action 447738

Page 483 of 483